
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 26 JULY 2016
1.30 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification” that has been disclosed to the Monitoring Officer. 

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

4.1 16/00252/FUL - Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, 
Peterborough

5 - 260

Exclusion of the Press and Public

In accordance with Standing Orders, Members are requested to vote to exclude the press 
and public when discussing appendix 7 of item 4.1. This appendix contains exempt 
information as defined by Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government 
Act 1972, in that it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of a 
particular person. The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information.

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and 
use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this 
facility is available at:

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20
Recording.pdf

Committee Members:

Councillors: C Harper (Chairman), Serluca (Vice Chairman), Bull, Casey, Hiller, Stokes, Martin, 
Sylvester, Clark, Bond and Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: Bisby, Iqbal, Sandford and Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20%20Recording.pdf


CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Andrew Cundy, Paul Smith, 
Mike Roberts, Louise Lewis, Janet Maclennan, Astrid 
Hawley, David Jolley, Louise Lovegrove, Vicky Hurrell, 
Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt Thomson, Chris 
Edwards, Michael Freeman

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering Services as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.



This page is intentionally left blank



5



This page is intentionally left blank

6



1

Planning and EP Committee 26 July 2016

Application Ref: 16/00252/FUL 

Proposal: Part demolition, alteration and extension including change of use and 
erection of roof top extension to provide for uses within A1, A3-A5 (shops, 
restaurants and cafes, drinking establishments and hot food take-away), 
D2 (assembly and leisure) and other associated works

Site: Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, Peterborough, 
Applicant: IREEF Queensgate Peterborough Propco S.a.r.l
Agent: Miss Hannah Fortune

Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners
Referred by: Director of Growth and Regeneration
Reason: The application is of wider public interest
Site visit: 22.02.2016

Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan
Telephone No. 01733 454438
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and surrounding area:

The application site is at the north west corner of the Queensgate Shopping Centre (“QSC”) which 
lies at the heart of the city centre retail area.  The site primarily involves the area occupied by John 
Lewis and the former Waitrose store. It covers an area of approximately 1.8 hectares, providing c. 
36,000 sqm Gross Internal Area (GIA) of Class A1-A5 floorspace.   The site is bounded to the north 
by Westgate and the ‘Westgate Development Opportunity Area’, to the south by Cowgate and to the 
west by the Bus Station, multi storey car parks and Bourges Boulevard beyond.  The surrounding 
area comprises a mix of uses including retail, leisure, and offices and further afield, residential.  The 
site abuts the Park Conservation Area and the City Centre Conservation Area to the north and south 
respectively and lies in close proximity to a number of listed and locally listed buildings.

The site lies adjacent to the Bus Station and is within a five minute walk of the railway station.  There 
are four multi-storey car parks adjoining the centre which offer 2,300 car parking spaces. The site 
offers good pedestrian and cycling links to nearby residential properties. 

Proposal

This application is a re-submission of a former approved application (15/01013/FUL) for the ‘Part 
demolition, alteration and extension including change of use and erection of roof top extension to 
provide for uses within A1, A3- A5 (shops, restaurants & cafes, drinking establishments and hot food 
take-away), D2 (assembly and leisure) and other associated works’.  The information submitted with 
regard to the development itself is substantially the same to that submitted under the former scheme 
save that a Comparative Viability Study has been submitted and is addressed within the Planning 
Statement.

The former approved application is the subject of an application for permission to apply for judicial 
review of the Council’s decision to grant planning permission. 

The application seeks planning consent for the addition of roof extensions to provide a multi-screen 
cinema (D2) and food and beverage areas (A1-A5).  

7



2

Cinema:  The Cinema would occupy part of the centre occupied by John Lewis at the second floor 
and would extend over the former Waitrose unit.  An additional floor would be provided by a roof 
extension above the John Lewis store to create a third floor, including a mezzanine, to provide the 
cinema.  The additional D2 floor space required to accommodate the cinema would be 3729 sqm 
and an additional 688 sqm for the Mezzanine floor.

The height of roof extension accommodating the cinema element would be 3.7m above the existing 
Mansard Roof of the John Lewis store to the north.  The IMAX element of the cinema would be an 
additional 3m in height and would be set in from the west elevation of the building by 32m.

Restaurant Cluster:  Two additional floors would be added at roof level above the former Waitrose 
Store to provide for food and beverage uses.   The food and beverage area will form a cluster located 
within the extensions providing 2000sqm at first floor level and 457 sqm at second floor level.  

The extension above the former Waitrose Store, the southern element, accommodating part of the 
cinema and restaurants would have staggered roof heights, the highest element being the cinema 
at 14.9m.

The roof of the west mall would be removed at the upper ground floor level to be replaced with a 
full height glazed mall.  This would provide natural light and a visual connection to the activity on 
the upper floors.

Changes are proposed to the John Lewis service yard and ‘click and collect’ facility to include a 
ramped access and additional customer parking.

The total gross internal area of the Queensgate Centre following development would be 48,516 
sqm; an increase of 6,858 sqm.  The following table sets out the composition of floor space/uses 
within the Centre.

Use Existing GIA 
(sqm)

GIA to be 
lost by 
change of 
use or 
demolitions 
(sqm)

Total GIA 
New 
Floorspace 
(including 
change of 
use) (sqm)

Net 
Additional 
GIA 
following 
development 
(sqm)

Total 
Floorspace

A1 (Retail) 35,849 5,252 64 -5,188 30,661

A3-A5 
(restaurants & 
cafes, drinking 
establishment
s & Hot-food 
takeaways)

242 116 2,450 2,334 2,576

D2 (Leisure)
0 0 4,278 4,278 4,278

Scheme 
‘other’

5,579 249 5,683 5,434 11,013

Total 41,670 5,617 12,475 6,858 48,528

The overall amount of A1 (retail) floorspace will decrease due to the increase in A3-A5, D2 and other 
uses including improved pedestrian circulation and dining space.

It is proposed that the QSC car parks would be open later during the evenings to accommodate the 

8



3

cinema goers.

The malls to the QSC would also be accessible during the evenings providing links to Cathedral 
Square from Queens Street and Cumbergate providing connectivity through the QSC with the 
Bus/Rail Station.

Internal reconfigurations:  
The proposal would involve internal reconfigurations, the details of which are provided below.  The 
internal works do not require the benefit of planning permission and are explained below for 
information purposes only.

The works to the centre would involve the reconfiguration of the John Lewis Store and the utilisation 
of back-of-house areas which are no longer required.  John Lewis is retracting its shop floor coverage 
and Waitrose has relocated which has provided the opportunity for additional retail units.  New retail 
units would be provided on the upper ground floor and first floor levels of the John Lewis store.  The 
former Waitrose store will provide a new retail unit and a circulation core/access to the new 
restaurant and leisure offer to be constructed above.  The roof top extension created above the 
former Waitrose store would provide restaurants.  The restaurants would overlook the west mall with 
terraces surrounding a double height internal courtyard.  The circulation core/access continues on 
this level to access the restaurants and cinema above on the second floor.

The second floor would accommodate the multi-screen cinema.  The cinema lobby would be to the 
south with the majority of screens accessed via a bridge over the west mall.  The Mezzanine cinema 
level is proposed to link both blocks across the enhanced mall space.

9



4

2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
15/01013/FUL Part demolition, alteration and extension 

including change of use and erection of roof 
top extension to provide for uses within A1, 
A3- A5 (shops, restaurants & cafes, 
drinking establishments and hot food take-
away), D2 (assembly and leisure) and other 
associated works
This permission is the subject of a judicial 
review.

Permitted 16/10/2015

15/00989/ADV 6 no. New, non-illuminated signs to replace 
existing like for like, all these signs are 
either external to the mall building or visible 
from the road

Permitted 07/08/2015

12/01414/FUL Installation of street furniture at external 
entrances to Queensgate shopping centre, 
comprising new PAS rated bollards (static, 
removable and rising variations), vehicle 
blockers and PAS rated cycle racks. New 
gatehouse to be installed at one service 
entrance

Permitted 26/11/2013

12/01377/NONMAT Non-Material amendment to planning 
application 10/01426/FUL - Extension to 
provide additional retail floor space, 
development of new service corridor and lift 
core in basement service yard, construction 
of new mansard roofs and elevation works 
to King Street and Queen Street elevations

Determined 27/09/2012

12/01080/ADV Two internally illuminated Primark blue 
external letter signs, one internally 
illuminated projecting banner sign and four 
Primark blue vinyl text to glazing 

Permitted 10/09/2012

10



5

12/00956/DISCHG Discharge of condition C7 (contamination) 
of planning permission ref. 10/01426/FUL 
dated 31/01/2011 - Extension to provide 
additional retail floorspace, development of 
new service corridor and lift core in 
basement service yard, construction of new 
mansard roofs and elevation works to King 
Street and Queen Street elevations

Determined 19/07/2012

12/00735/FUL Installation of metal gate on the King Street 
Alley Way

Permitted 06/07/2012

12/00641/NONMAT Non-material amendment to planning 
permission 10/01426/FUL dated 
31/01/2011 (Extension to provide additional 
retail floor space, development of new 
service corridor and lift core in basement 
service yard, construction of new mansard 
roofs and elevation works to King Street 
and Queen Street elevations) for 
amendments to conditions C8 and C9

Comments 17/05/2012

12/00578/FUL Installation of a new fire door to King Street 
(east side).

Permitted 06/06/2012

11/01456/DISCHG Discharge of condition C4 (Construction 
Management Plan) of planning permission 
10/01426/FUL (Extension to provide 
additional retail floor space, development of 
new service corridor and lift core in 
basement service yard, construction of new 
mansard roofs and elevation works to King 
Street and Queen Street elevations)

Determined 09/11/2011

11/01052/NONMAT Non-material amendment to planning 
permission 10/01426/FUL - Extension to 
provide additional retail floor space, 
development of new service corridor and lift 
core in basement service yard, construction 
of new mansard roofs and elevation works 
to King Street and Queen Street elevations

Comments 02/08/2011

11/00980/DISCHG Discharge of conditions C2 ( Archaeological 
work) , C3 ( Materials) and C5 ( Site 
Investigations) of planning permission 
10/01426/FUL - Extension to provide 
additional retail floorspace, development of 
new service corridor and lift core in 
basement service yard, construction of new 
mansard roofs and elevation works to King 
Street and Queen Street elevations

Determined 19/08/2011

10/01426/FUL Extension to provide additional retail floor 
space, development of new service corridor 
and lift core in basement service yard, 
construction of new mansard roofs and 
elevation works to King Street and Queen 
Street elevations

Permitted 31/01/2011

11



6

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty when exercising its planning functions to have 
special regard to the desirability of preserving any listed building or its setting, or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which that building possesses.

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions. 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty when exercising its planning functions to pay 
special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a 
Conservation Area.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 2 - Retail, Leisure and Office Development Outside Town Centres 
Should be subject to an Impact Assessment on existing, committed and planning public/private 
investment in a centre(s) and on town centre vitality and viability. If there is no local threshold, 2,500 
sq m will apply. Proposals which would have an adverse impact should be refused.

Section 4 - Assessment of Transport Implications 
Development which generates a significant amount of traffic should be supported by a Transport 
Statement/Transport Assessment.  It should be located to minimise the need to travel/to maximise 
the opportunities for sustainable travel and be supported by a Travel Plan. Large scale developments 
should include a mix of uses. A safe and suitable access should be provided and the transport 
network improved to mitigate the impact of the development.

Section 7 - Good Design 
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; optimise 
the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities and transport 
networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate innovation; 
create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of good architecture 
and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for development of poor 
design.

Section 8 - Safe and Accessible Environments 
Development should aim to promote mixed use developments, the creation of strong neighbouring 
centres and active frontages; provide safe and accessible environments with clear and legible 
pedestrian routes and high quality public space.

Section 8 - Social, Cultural and Recreational Facilities 
Developments should plan for the provision and use of shared space, community services and other 
local services; guard against the unnecessary loss of valued services/facilities; allow established 
shops, facilities and services to develop/modernise; and ensure an integrated approach to the 
location of housing, economic uses and communities facilities and services.

Section 11 - Contamination 
The site should be suitable for its intended use taking account of ground conditions, land stability 
and pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation. After remediation, as a 
minimum, land should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

12



7

Section 11 - Noise 
New development giving rise to unacceptable adverse noise impacts should be resisted; 
development should mitigate and reduce to a minimum other adverse impacts on health and quality 
of life arising. Development often creates some noise and existing businesses wanting to expand 
should not be unreasonably restricted because of changes in nearby land uses.

Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.  
When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation.  

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance of heritage assets unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that 
outweigh the harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new 
development will proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred.

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a 
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 
including securing its optimum viable use.

 
Section 12 - Development Affecting Non-Designated Heritage Assets 
A balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm and the significance 
of the heritage asset.  Where the assets is demonstrably of equivalent significance to a Scheduled 
Monuments it should be subject to the policies for designated heritage assets.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS04 - The City Centre 
Promotes the enhancement of the city centre through additional comparison retail floor space 
especially in North Westgate, new residential development, major new cultural and leisure 
developments and public realm improvements, as well as protecting its historic environment.

CS10 - Environment Capital 
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK.

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for residents.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

CS18 - Culture, Leisure and Tourism 
Development of new cultural, leisure and tourism facilities will be encouraged particularly in the city 
centre.

CS15 - Retail 

13



8

Development should accord with the Retail Strategy which seeks to promote the City Centre and 
where appropriate the district and local centres. The loss of village shops will only be accepted 
subject to certain conditions being met.

CS21 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
Development should conserve and enhance biodiversity/ geological interests unless no alternative 
sites are available and there are demonstrable reasons for the development.

CS22 - Flood Risk 
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built and 
natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is sufficiently 
robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, 
public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other 
disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made in 
accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees and 
natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

CC1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
Development should contribute to the City's Environment Capital ambition and take steps to address 
key principles of sustainable development.

CC2 - Retail 
Proposals for retail development will be determined in accordance with Policies CS4 and CS15 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.  Within Primary Retail Frontages, development within use 
classes A1 and A3 will, in principle, be acceptable.

CC3A - City Core Policy Area (a) General principles 
The Council will seek development of the highest quality which strengthens the area as the retail, 
leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough and its sub-region.  New development must: 
improve the quality of the public realm; protect important views of the Cathedral; preserve or enhance 
the heritage assets of the area; and protect and enhance existing retail areas.  The Council will also 
support development which results in a net increase in dwellings, improved connectivity, 

14



9

employment, conservation of historic shop fronts and development which encourages trips into the 
City Centre.

North Westgate Opportunity Area 
Planning permission will be granted for comprehensive mixed-use development including retail, 
housing, office and leisure. This must also include improvements to the connectivity with the railway 
station and be integrated with the existing retail area.

Individual proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive development of this area will not be 
permitted.

CC11 - Transport 
Within the area of the City Centre Plan, all development which has transport implications will be 
expected to make a contribution to the delivery of the City Centre Transport Vision.

The provision of additional car parking spaces will be resisted within the City Core Policy Area.

Elsewhere in the City Centre new residential development within classes C3 and C4 will be expected 
to make provision for car parking in accordance with Policy PP13 of the Planning Policies DPD.  
There will be no minimum requirement for car parking spaces in association with any other type of 
development. Additional spaces will only be allowed if the development has provided a fully 
justification.

Planning practice guidance (PPG) – Department for Communities and Local Government 
(2014)

 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
 Design
 Ensuring the vitality of town centres
 Travel plans, transport assessments and statements in decision-taking

The Park Conservation Area Appraisal Report and Management Plan

The City Centre Conservation Area Appraisal Report and Management Plan

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Preliminary Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this document runs from 15 January to 25 February 2016. 

At this preliminary stage the polices cannot be afforded any weight with the exception of the 
calculation relating to the five year land supply as this is based upon the updated Housing Needs 
Assessment and sites which have planning permission or which are subject to a current 
application. Individual policies are not therefore referred to further in this report.

4 Consultations/Representations

PCC Transport & Engineering Services – No objections.  The comments from the former 
application (15/01013/FUL) remain applicable.    Staff cycle parking should be secured by condition.  
The existing car parks are sufficient to meet the needs of the development.  

Travel Plan:  The submission of a Travel Plan is welcomed.  It includes targets and an action plan.  

Traffic impact:  The peak hours of use for a cinema are generally outside the highway network peak 
hours on both a weekday and Saturday.

15



10

The TRACK plots submitted for the revised ‘click and collect’ area for the John Lewis store are 
acceptable.

The LHA raises no objections subject to conditions being appended in respect of cycle parking, 
Travel Plan and Construction Management Plan being agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

PCC Lead Local Drainage Authority – No objections – No comments to make in relation to this 
application as the surface water drainage as the footprint of the centre and ground level hard 
standings are not due to be changed. 

PCC Conservation Officer  - No objection -  The application is substantially a re-submission of 
the earlier planning application ref: 15/01013/FUL and no change is proposed in terms of external 
appearance.  The Officer repeats the comments made regarding the former scheme as follows:

The proposed development has the potential to impact on the setting of a number of listed and locally 
listed building in the vicinity at Lincoln Road, Westgate, Long Causeway, Exchange Street, 
Cumbergate, Cathedral Square and Cowgate. Also the site is located adjacent to the City Centre 
Conservation area and the Park Conservation area is to the north. 

The more evident part of the extension will be viewed form Crescent Bridge roundabout / Bourges 
Boulevard. The proposed development sits broadly in the massing of the existing roof elements and 
the proposed materials - grey cladding and glazing - match the existing roof top materials.

The shopping centre is, or forms, the backdrop to various listed buildings.  The bulk of the building 
currently has a small adverse impact on the setting of some listed buildings (e.g. Wortley Arms 
Houses, former Royal Hotel, and Westgate).  There will be some minor visual impact on long 
distance views towards and from the Cathedral.  

In many locations in views of listed buildings and parts of the Park and City Centre Conservation 
areas the proposed extension will not be visible. In other locations the development will be seen and 
this will vary depending on position of the viewer. The extension will be set back from the northern 
elevation to Westgate.

Overall the effect of the extension adding height to the centre is considered at worst to have a 
negligible adverse effect on the setting of some listed buildings and the City Centre conservation 
area. 

PCC Wildlife Officer – No objections – The Wildlife Officer is satisfied with the Ecology report’s 
assessment of the impacts on protected species.  The Ecological Assessment has identified that the 
existing building is likely to support nesting birds including various more common species as well as 
the black redstart which is a UK BAP Priority Species and is listed under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act (as amended).  The Officer recommends targeted Black Redstart surveys are 
carried out every two weeks in May & June and monthly in July and August during the construction 
period by a suitably qualified ecologist, as recommended in the Ecology report. Should evidence of 
their nests being found, then appropriate measures should be put in place to ensure this species is 
not disturbed. The application proposes a number of bird boxes to enhance the development for 
biodiversity. The numbers and designs are acceptable.  The provision of bird boxes, along with 
confirmation of their locations for installation, would be secured by condition.  The officer considers 
that subject to my recommendations being fully incorporated into the approved scheme the 
development will in my opinion result in a net gain in biodiversity. 

Archaeological Officer  - No objection -  The extension would be within the existing footprint of the 
building.  Although the site is located within the core of the historic town of Peterborough, former 
development of the centre is likely to have caused extensive and deep truncation of potential buried 
remains.  Due to the history of development, the subject site is deemed to have negligible 
archaeological potential. As a result, there is no need to condition a programme of archaeological 

16



11

work.

PCC Rights of Way Officer  - No comments to make on the application

PCC Sustainable Travel Officer – No objection -  Amendments will be required to the Travel Plan 
Due to the higher footfall, and higher numbers of staff at the site from the new occupier, details 
should be included as to how the applicant intends to mitigate the impact of the new tenant.  Advice 
can be obtained from the Travelchoice Team.

PCC Pollution Team - No comments have been received for this application however, the 
comments on the former application were that the details of filtration equipment for cooking odours 
would not be required as due to the surrounding uses it would be impossible to pin point the A3/A5 
uses in Queensgate as a potential source of nuisance.

Building Control Manager - Building regulations approval required.  There is not enough detail to 
provide specific comments however the basic principles appear adequate. 

Environment Agency - We have assessed this proposal as having a relatively low environmental 
risk. Therefore have no further comments on the current application, as submitted.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer (PALO) – No objections – The officer has viewed the re-
submitted application and in terms of community safety and crime reduction there are no objections, 
recommendations, or further observations.  The Officer advised that the application was also passed 
to the Counter Terrorist Security Advisors for comment as the application does contain an element 
which comes under the definition of a Crowded Place, in their terms of reference.  However no 
concerns have been raised.

Peterborough Civic Society – The current application is identical in all its main content as the 
previous one which was approved, in outline form, with conditions in June 2015. As nothing has 
been altered our 2015 comments with some additions are resubmitted as below. 

 We understand that a legal challenge to the Peterborough City Council decision on the 2015 
application has been made and may we suggest that it might be prudent to wait until a final ruling 
on the challenge to that decision is known before determining this application. 

 The Civic Society recognises that this application has the potential to enhance the attractions of 
Queensgate both through the introduction of a cinema and through the long-overdue inclusion 
of a food court. 

 We also welcome the proposal to increase the public accessibility of the centre, and hence the 
City Centre, outside normal shopping hours. 

 We have no objection to the reconfiguration of the retail units or the extension of retail trading 
space into parts of the John Lewis not currently in retail use. 

However, we also have the following serious concerns: 
 The bulk of the cinema extension rising above the bus station is inappropriate. 
 Its design and materials are out of keeping with the elevational treatment of the existing centre. 
 The scheme will undermine the viability of the current long-awaited regeneration scheme for the 

North Westgate area. 
 Recommends that Condition C8 of the former scheme regarding pedestrian access and 

connections through Queensgate Centre be included in the consent.

Historic England - The application is for the same proposals as submitted last year and the advice 
from Historic England remains the same.  
 The majority of the Queensgate Shopping Centre lies outside of the City Centre Conservation 

Area, but the proximity of the development is such that it will have some impact on the character 
and appearance of the conservation area and on the setting of listed buildings in Westgate. 

 The increased bulk and mass of the Centre as proposed would result in a modest level of harm 

17



12

to both the character and appearance of the adjacent conservation area and to the listed 
buildings along Westgate through impact on their setting.  In accordance with para 134 of the 
NPPF it will be necessary for the Local Planning Authority to weigh that harm against wider public 
benefits that would be delivered by the proposal.  

 The application would address the connectivity issues to the city during closing hours.  Whilst 
this is welcomed and would go some way to offsetting the harm from the bulky roof extensions 
there are further opportunities.  The current Queensgate Centre severs the route from King Street 
the Primark extension has prevented the route but this could be improved by providing active 
frontages.  The improved connectivity should be secured by condition or S106.

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 265
Total number of responses: 2
Total number of objections: 1
Total number in support: 1

One representation has been made in support of the application.  The representation states that 
having seen the work carried out inside Queensgate since Invesco took ownership, the development 
would commence far sooner than North Westgate (“NWG”).

Two letters of objection have been received from Savills on behalf of Hawksworth Securities plc 
(“Hawksworth”).  The issues raised in the letters are summarised below.  The full letters are 
attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

Letter of 1 April 2016. 
 Additional information has been submitted, namely the ‘Comparative Viability Study’ (CBRE, 

Jan 2016).
 The planning statement does not undertake a full and proper assessment of the Development 

Plan
 The Comparative Analysis is contradictory and makes claims without evidence
 The Council has a duty to undertake such an assessment under Section 70(2) of the Town and 

Country  Planning Act 1990
 North Westgate offers greater planning benefits when compared to the Queensgate proposal
 It would only be appropriate to grant planning permission if the benefits of the Queensgate 

proposal would outweigh the loss of benefits of the North Westgate Scheme
 North Westgate is an allocation site and is priority for redevelopment.  The site’s delivery is key 

to the regeneration of the city centre
 The regeneration of North Westgate would help deliver the Plan’s objectives of increased 

housing, retail expansion, enhancement to leisure and cultural offers and improvement to the 
Evening economy.

 Planning permission for a cinema at Queensgate will jeopardise the redevelopment of North 
Westgate which is dependent on a cinema as its anchor

 The Council  should consider the harm to the prospect of the North Westgate proposal which is 
a material consideration which should be afforded significant weight

 A claim for judicial review has been submitted – The Council and Invesco dispute the grounds 
of the claim however, the current scheme provides a comparison exercise

 The supporting information states that the Statutory Development Plan must be considered as 
a whole but it fails to do so

 With regard to Policy CS4  the focus is solely on the wording, claiming that the extent to which 
North Westgate  is afforded priority relates only to comparison retail (para 6.1 5).  When 
considering the Policy within the context of the wider Development Plan, this point is wholly 
inaccurate and a significant flaw of Nathaniel Litchfield and Partners (the applicant’s agent) 
assessment of the weight that should be attached to the Development Plan and the allocation of 
North Westgate.

18



13

 Policy CS4 directly relates to the delivery of objective OB13, setting out the overarching policy 
aspirations for the City Centre. Of particular relevance is the policy support for the redevelopment  
of  North Westgate  and  priority  for  its  delivery  in  the  early  years  of  the  Plan  Period.    

 At the time the Core Strategy was produced retail was considered as the catalyst for the 
regeneration of North Westgate.  This changed with the economic downturn and the impact on 
retail through on line shopping.  There is high demand for leisure provision in city centres.  There 
is a need to consider other uses for the regeneration of North Westgate..

 The Council recognised  this  fundamental  change in the market and the most up-to-date 
Development Plan Document (the  CCDPD)  encourages  other  uses  at  North  Westgate,  
namely  leisure  and  housing.

 For North Westgate, a leisure-led scheme with a cinema anchor, is the only option that can kick-
start regeneration.

 The  approved  scheme  at  North Westgate represents  significant  planned  investment  of 
£100million which will underpin the regeneration of Peterborough’s Central Core and act as a 
catalyst for investment in  the  City.   

 The  Council’s  long-standing  commitment  to  see  this  site  redeveloped  is  evident  by  virtue  
of  the  site’s continued  allocation  since  1971.

 The statement that the  Queensgate proposal will not have an adverse impact on North Westgate  
scheme is contended

 The statement speculates there are other viable development options, however this is not 
substituted with any evidence, however Hawksworth has provided extensive material to 
demonstrate the cinema is the only viable option

 It is stated that Queensgate has an inherent interest in seeing development at North Westgate  
come forward but has failed to engage with Hawksworth

 It is unclear why consideration has been given to the relocation of existing major retailers in 
Queensgate to North Westgate.  This is not the intention of North Westgate.

 There is a contradiction between papa 6.24 which states ‘the regeneration benefits of the 
[Queensgate] proposals are more beneficial than [North Wesgate] and para 6.25 states ‘analysis 
to the two schemes reveals a larger and wider range of benefits arising from the [North Westgate 
scheme]’

 Having identified that the  Queensgate proposal will cause harm to the redevelopment of NWG, 
the Statement dismisses this on the basis North Westgate is not viable and will not be delivered 
in any event.  This is simply not the case.

 The re-configuration of units does not relate to the cinema offer; indeed there is no tangible 
evidence to suggest that this could still go ahead regardless of whether a cinema is provided. 
Thus, it is considered that these supposed benefits could be delivered in any event. It is 
misleading for NLP (the agent acting for the Queensgate scheme) to suggest that without a 
cinema, Queensgate will not seek to accommodate the requirements of its ‘major national 
retailers’.

 It is evident NLP is aware that the retail market is not as strong as it once was and, hence, new 
uses are being encouraged in town and city centres.   It  recognises  the  synergy  required  in  
order  to  make  mixed -use  developments  work  (as  is  the  case  for North Westgate). Yet, it 
claims alternative uses should be found for North Westgate.

 Policy priority of North Westgate exists.  If planning permission is granted for the Queensgate 
scheme, the North Westgate scheme will not be implemented.  This is not disputed in the 
Queensgate Planning Statement.

 The committee report for the former scheme recognised that North Westgate would be a positive 
contribution for the city but offered no guidance on the significance of the benefits or what weight 
should be attached to the loss of those benefits.

 The submitted information acknowledges the wider range of benefits of the North Westgate  
scheme but relies on the fact that it is ‘not viable anyway’ to justify why Queensgate scheme  
should be granted.

 The applicant’s precautionary approach giving priority to QSC is contrary to the key objectives 
of the Plan.

 It is essential that a robust comparative assessment of the merits of the two schemes is 
undertaken.  The analysis submitted cannot be relied upon.

19



14

 The Council has a duty to undertake a comparison assessment independently to be in a position 
to assess the planning balance and make a sound recommendation to Members.

 It would only be appropriate to grant planning permission if the benefits of the Queensgate  
scheme outweigh the loss of benefits of the North Westgate development.

Letter of 13 April 2016
The letter comments on perceived flaws in the viability report (produced by CBRE) submitted by the 
applicant re the North Westgate Scheme:

 The report is not rigorous, robust, fair or  balanced and contains  incorrect assumptions giving  
an unreliable output

 The Council should undertake its own independent and impartial assessment of viability of 
the North Westgate scheme in liaison with Hawksworth and do  the same regarding  
Queensgate and the applicant and the assessment should also consider alternative 
development scenarios

 The negative return for North Westgate identified in the CBRE report is  wrong given the  
work to date on the North Westgate scheme

 No evidence to support CBRE claim that the Queensgate scheme will improve  the  prospects 
of  North Westgate coming forward and no evidence that alternatives to the approved North 
Westgate scheme would be workable

 The City Council should  have  challenged the viability of North Westgate at the time of the 
determination of that application if  it had concerns – it did not do so

  The CBRE report does not consider / properly account for the lettability of the North Westgate 
scheme / attractiveness to end users.  Floor space assumptions  used  by CBRE are wrong, 
pessimistic  values & yields have  been applied,  build cost are over estimated

 It is not clear if the figures   are based on the existence of the rival scheme
 There remains  strong interest in the North Westgate scheme all principal cinema operators 

in the country  prefer  the North Westgate location over the Queensgate location
 PCC has  offered a JV option re the delivery of North Westgate and there  is a  policy 

commitment by PCC  to use its CPO powers
 To approve the Queensgate  scheme  would delay North Westgate again

Letter of 1st June 2016
 Welcome  the conclusion that the North Westgate scheme  is viable
 Notes that the  regeneration and sustainability benefits  as  well as the other qualities  of the  

North Westgate scheme are recognised
  Notes the  acceptance that the grant of  planning permission for the Queensgate scheme  is  

likely to prevent the  delivery of  North Westgate
 The North Westgate  planning permission has  sufficient flexibility such that if the office  

demand  fell away this use  could  be   replaced   by residential development  which would  
have an additional value

 The ability to progress  the  land  acquisition and  prospective  operators has impacted  on by 
the  uncertainty brought about by the Queensgate scheme.

 The  Queensgate scheme has  low profitability and is essentially an asset enhancement 
excersize which does n ot  provide  significant regeneration  that the city centre needs in 
terms  of its leisure  offer.

 The North Westgate  proposal is  planning policy  and  plan objective  compliant. NO alternative  
policy compliant scheme  has  been identified  for North Westgate and this  is confirmed  by  
considerable  research undertaken by Hawksworth.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

A. Reason for the resubmission
The former application (ref.  15/01013/FUL) was considered by Members of the Planning and 
Environmental Protection Committee on 29th September 2015 (Appendix 2).  At the same meeting 
an outline application for a mixed use scheme, to include, a cinema (Class D2), restaurants and 

20



15

cafes (Class A3), retail units (Classes A1, A2) a food hall (Classes A1, A3, A4, A5), office space 
(Class B1a), a hotel (Class C1), community and health care facilities (Class D1), residential (Class 
C3) at the North Westgate Development Opportunity Area was considered by Members (ref.  
15/01041/OUT) (Appendix 3).  Members resolved to approve both the Queensgate and North 
Westgate Applications.   Planning permission was granted for the North Westgate Scheme on 2nd 
October 2015 and for the Queensgate Scheme on 16th October 2015.

Subsequent to the issue of the permission, on the 23rd November 2015 Hawksworth (the applicant 
for North Westgate) filed a claim for permission to judicially review the decision by Peterborough City 
Council to grant planning permission in respect of application 15/01013/FUL (the Queensgate 
application).  The grounds of Hawksworth’s claim for permission to bring judicial review proceedings 
are summarised as follows: 

 The council failed to determine whether the grant of planning permission for the Queensgate 
scheme would render the North Westgate scheme unviable and mean that it would not proceed 
if the Queensgate scheme were permitted;

 That since the grant of planning permission for the Queensgate scheme would be likely to render 
the North Westgate scheme unviable and prevent its implementation, the Peterborough City 
Council failed to have regard to a number of material considerations including:

o The benefits of the North Westgate scheme that would be lost;
o The weight that should be given to the loss of those benefits;
o The benefits of the Queensgate scheme and the weight that should be given to those 

benefits;
o Whether the benefits of the Queensgate scheme were outweighed by the loss of the land 

use planning benefits of the North Westgate scheme that would be lost.
 The facts were such that a comparison of the planning merits of the two schemes was required 

to be undertaken and was not 
 That by determining the two planning applications sequentially, Peterborough City Council was 

prevented from considering these matters properly or at all
 That the Peterborough City Council wrongly considered whether prejudice would be caused to 

the North Westgate scheme on the basis of the application of a need to discharge a burden of 
proof “beyond reasonable doubt”

 If Peterborough City Council did determine that the prejudice to the North Westgate scheme was 
not likely to occur as a result of granting planning permission for the Queensgate scheme, that 
decision was irrational and unreasonable;

 The Peterborough City Council was wrongly advised that prejudice to the redevelopment and 
regeneration that would be brought about by the North Westgate scheme did not rise to a conflict 
with development plan policy, namely Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan

 The reasons for granting planning permission were inadequate

The grounds for judicial review were considered on the papers by a High Court judge who determined 
that they were not arguable and he refused permission for Hawksworth to apply for judicial review. 
Hawksworth, as is its right, applied for an oral hearing.

The hearing took place on the 21st/22nd June 2016. The Judge reserved her decision. At the time of 
writing this report no judgment has been given.  In the event that a Judgment is provided between 
the publication of this report and the Committee meeting Members will be updated by Officers.

Whilst the Local Planning Authority does not accept that the grounds of claim disclose any error of 
law, the applicant is re-submitting the present application which is now supported with information to 
enable a comparative analysis to be made on the viability and deliverability of the two schemes. 

A copy of the committee report in relation to the 2015 Queensgate application is in Appendix 2   

B. Background

Invesco purchased the Queensgate Centre and associated land holdings at North Westgate in 

21



16

January 2014.  The proposal is part of a programme of works including the refurbishment of car 
parks (completed), internal mall refurbishments and improvements to Westgate Arcade (completed).  
Investment in the centre is important to ensure the centre remains attractive, in the context of 
changes in shopping trends.  

The planning history and in particular details of the previous application in sections 2 and 5A above.  
Details of the application in respect of the proposal to redevelop the North Westgate Development 
Opportunity Area are also included in section 5A above.   

C. The principle of development

QSC is located within the city centre core policy area and the vision for this area is for development 
that will strengthen Peterborough’s sub-regional role as a key shopping destination.  Paragraph 
5.2.12 of the City Centre Plan states that as part of the vision for the city centre, there ‘will be new 
retail and leisure provision, particularly further improvements to the Queensgate shopping centre 
and the North Westgate Opportunity Area.’  Furthermore Policy CC3 of the Adopted Peterborough 
City Centre Plan DPD seeks ‘development which encourages trips into the city centre for shopping, 
leisure (including cinema), social and cultural purposes’.  There is an identified need for the city 
centre to expand its cultural offer and the need to attract new facilities particularly a centrally located 
cinema and more bars and restaurants.    

The cinema has the potential to attract large numbers of people and its location within the city centre 
is appropriate due to accessibility to a range of transport modes along with the provision of existing 
car parks/cycle parking provision and the likelihood of linked trips being made and to enhance the 
vitality and viability of the city centre.  It is a key objective of national and local planning policy to 
have strong city centres.    

The food and beverage provision would address a deficiency of these uses in the existing QSC.  
Investment has already been made in the city to enhance the restaurant provision within the city 
centre for example Carluccios and The Handmade Burger Company.  It is considered the restaurant 
cluster would provide a complementary offer to the QSC, the cinema and other restaurant uses within 
the city centre; ultimately encouraging visits to the city centre during the day and evening and 
increasing dwell time and enhancing the viability and vitality of the city centre. 

In addition, although not for consideration under this planning proposal the reconfiguration of the 
John Lewis Store and the former Waitrose Store will provide large retail units which would encourage 
new retail operators to the city.

Policy CC3 of the adopted Peterborough City Centre Plan supports improved connectivity for 
pedestrians and cyclists and particularly to the rail station.  The proposal would provide improved 
connectivity for pedestrians from the city centre to the Bus/Rail station through the extended opening 
hours of the QSC malls.  Also the Policy states that new development must, where appropriate 
‘protect and enhance existing retail areas.’  The proposal, by virtue of its content clearly satisfies this 
aspect of the policy.     

It is considered that the provision of a cinema and associated restaurant offer will strengthen the 
existing city centre core, extending retail hours and dwell times and improve the evening and night 
time economy for the city centre.  The principle of development is therefore supported and accords 
with the Council’s vision for the City Centre and policy CC3 of the Adopted Peterborough City Centre 
Plan DPD, policies CS4 and CS18 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

The Peterborough Civic Society have raised concern that the scheme will undermine the viability of 
the current long-awaited regeneration scheme for the North Westgate area.  The proposed scheme 
for North Westgate is leisure-led and will provide similar facilities to the Queensgate scheme but with 
the added planning gain of securing the major objective of regeneration for this part of the city. 

Under the former scheme (15/01013/FUL) objection letters on behalf of Hawksworth; the applicant 

22



17

for the North Westgate Development, were received.  Copies of the previous objection letters and 
the most recent objections are attached at Appendix 1.  Hawksworth maintain that, essentially, the 
approval of the QSC cinema would render the North Westgate redevelopment unviable since it 
contends that there is only room for one town centre cinema and its scheme is anchored via the 
provision of a cinema.

Hawksworth makes reference to national planning policy and contends that it supports the delivery 
of the North Westgate Scheme, i.e. ‘a presumption in favour of sustainable development’ and that 
the three dimensions of sustainability:  “economic, social and environmental gains should be sought 
jointly and simultaneously” and “planning should play an active role in guiding development to 
sustainable locations”.  In the objection it is stated that the North Westgate Scheme will deliver these 
gains with over 200 dwellings, community facilities, new public spaces and connections to the 
communities to the north as well as enhancing the setting of Westgate Church and properties on 
Lincoln Road and that if the North Westgate development does not proceed there would be an 
undersupply of housing and jobs. It is argued that although there would be some economic benefits 
from the proposed QSC cinema there would not be any social or environmental benefits i.e. housing, 
community facilities to the city centre and does not represent sustainable development.

The objection is based on the premise that the Queensgate application does not represent 
sustainable development.  

This is not the case. The NPPF sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development in 
paragraph 14. In the present case, paragraph 14 requires the application to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. If the 
Council determines that the approach required by paragraph 14 of the NPPF results in a decision to 
grant planning permission, then the development proposed will constitute sustainable development. 
Indeed, in Cheshire East Borough Council v Secretary of State [2016] EWHC 571 (Admin) the 
High Court determined that there is no separate or anterior step to that set out in paragraph 14 which 
has to be followed in order to determine whether a proposed development constitutes sustainable 
development.

In any event, it is considered that the Queensgate scheme provides benefits in related to each of the 
three dimensions of sustainability:

Economic: - Creation of jobs, focus on investment in the City Centre improving its vitality and viability.  
Improved access to car parks, the mall and wider city centre to the benefit of the night time economy.  

Social:- Inclusive location accessible through a variety of transport modes. Likely to enhance social 
activity in the town centre particularly attracting visitors in the evening and at night.

Environmental:- Improved public realm in the context of the change to the interior of the mall, 
improved city centre accessibility at night time which has been a key constraint to date.  

Hawksworth suggests that if the Queensgate scheme obtains planning permission then the North 
Westgate Scheme is unlikely to be implemented.  This is because it suggests that there is only scope 
for one cinema and that without a cinema the North Westgate scheme will be unviable. Thus it is 
suggested that to grant planning permission for the Queensgate scheme will prevent the North 
Westgate scheme from coming forward. 

Further, Hawksworth suggests that the only type of regeneration scheme for the North Westgate 
Opportunity area which is likely to be viable is one that is anchored by a cinema. Thus, it contends 
that if the Queensgate scheme obtains planning permission not only would it be unlikely that the 
North Westgate scheme would come forward but also the regeneration of the North Westgate 
Opportunity area would be unlikely.

Consequently, Hawksworth contends that to grant planning permission for the North Westgate 
scheme would mean that a key objective of the Development Plan i.e. regeneration of the North 

23



18

Westgate Opportunity Area would be likely to be frustrated.

It contends that as a result the Queensgate Scheme is contrary to the Development Plan and that 
the loss of the benefits that the North Westgate scheme would deliver and the loss of the opportunity 
to regenerate the North Westgate Opportunity Area with the benefits that this delivers are material 
considerations that weigh in the balance against the grant of planning permission for the Queensgate 
scheme.

Further, Hawksworth contends that these matters are such that they outweigh the policy support 
provided to the Queensgate scheme to the extent that planning permission for the Queensgate 
scheme should be refused.

At its core, the Hawksworth objection is to the effect that the cinema should not be permitted at 
Queensgate because it should be provided on an alternative site within North Westgate which it 
considers would deliver greater public benefits.

Officers consider that there is no requirement of law or national or local planning policy which 
supports the view that it is necessary to have regard to an alternative scheme in circumstances 
where there scheme under consideration accords with the development plan.

National planning policy does not requirement any impact assessment of a proposal for a town centre 
use (such as a cinema) upon other such uses within the town centre.

The objectives of the Core Strategy envisage improvement in the quality of the commercial, retail, 
cultural, leisure and recreational facilities in the City Centre as a whole.

Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy gives effect to these objectives. It identifies the North Westgate area 
as one of a number of areas where opportunities exist to improve the offer of the city centre, with 
potential for residential, employment, retail, leisure, open spaces and other forms of development 
(Core Strategy paragraph 5.9.6). 

It identified that a City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP) would be produced to address these issues 
in detail, and to make specific proposals to enhance the City Centre (Core Strategy paragraph 
5.9.10).

The Core Strategy recognises the difficulties that are being encountered in relation to the retail offer 
within the City Centre:

“…the city centre is not without its problems, and there are issues which need to be addressed over 
both the long and short term. There has been relatively little investment in new retail outlets since 
the 1980s and the city centre has lost market share of retail expenditure from its catchment area. Its 
retail ranking has declined as a result of competition from Hampton (Serpentine Green), other retail 
centres in the East of England and East Midlands, and internet shopping.“

In particular, Policy CS4 provides:

“Expansion of retail floorspace, in particular for comparison goods, will be encouraged in accordance 
with appropriate capacity forecasts, with priority given to retail expansion in the early years in the 
North Westgate area.”

Thus, Policy CS4 supports retail expansion, particularly comparison goods, in the early years of the 
plan “in accordance with appropriate capacity forecasts”. 

CS4 of the Core Strategy refers, in the context of the expansion of retail floorspace, in particular for 
comparison goods, to ‘priority being given to retail expansion in the early years in the North Westgate 
area’. The North Westgate scheme is not a retail led scheme but rather a leisure led scheme with 
the largest single floorspace area being dedicated to a food supermarket. The North Westgate 

24



19

Scheme proposes a maximum of 7,000 sqm of Class A1/A2 floorspace. Hawksworth indicates the 
retail floorspace will provide medium size retail units but there is no detail on the form or size of the 
units proposed.   Even if it is assumed that all of the Class A1/A2 floorspace is bought forward for 
comparison use, which seems unlikely, this comprises just 14% of the total development. From this 
perspective the scheme is not a good match for the ‘priority’ and so significant weight cannot be 
given to this aspect of policy.   

In any event, Officers consider that Policy CS4 is not to read as a policy giving priority to the 
redevelopment of the North Westgate area generally, still less to leisure development within it; rather 
it is to be read as supporting retail development in the North Westgate area early in the plan period 
so far as is consistent with retail capacity forecasts. It envisaged that this was a matter that would 
be taken forward in a City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP).

Core Strategy Policy CS18 provides encouragement of new cultural, leisure and tourism facilities 
particularly in the City Centre (B1/226).

Instead of a CCAAP, the Council adopted the City Centre Plan (“the CCP”) in December 2014. The 
CCP recognised a need for the city centre to expand its “cultural offer” including a “centrally located 
cinema”. It explained that over the next 15 years there are a number of projects that would help to 
improve and enhance the city’s cultural and leisure offer including “a city centre cinema, helping to 
improve the evening economy.” 

In relation to the City Centre Core Policy Area (which includes both the Queensgate Centre and the 
North Westgate Opportunity Area)  new retail and leisure provisions is envisaged “particularly further 
improvements to the Queensgate shopping centre and the North Westgate opportunity area” 
(paragraph 5.2.12). 

Policy CC3 supports development which would strengthen the City Core Policy Area as the retail, 
leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough, but it does not specifically refer to a cinema within 
the Queensgate Centre or the North Westgate Opportunity Area. However, Officers also consider 
that Policy CC3 cannot be read as precluding a cinema in either of these locations.
 
In relation to the NWOA, Policy CC3 of the CCP provides particularly:

“Within the North West Opportunity Area planning permission will be granted for comprehensive 
mixed use redevelopment including, retail, housing, office and leisure uses, which is well integrated 
with the existing retail area….

Individual proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive redevelopment of this Opportunity 
Area will not be permitted” 

It is to be noteed that the reference to comparison retail being brought forward in the early years of 
the Core Strategy was not taken forward in the CCP.

Officers consider that the CCP does not provide any policy priority to redevelopment proposals in 
the North Westgate Opportunity Area ahead of redevelopment proposals within the City Core Area 
generally. They consider that the CCP supports leisure development in both the Queensgate Centre 
and in the North Westgate Opportunity Area, does not preclude a cinema coming forward either 
within the Queensgate Centre or the North Westgate Opportunity Area and does not provide that 
only one cinema is supported by policy to the extent that any application for a second cinema must 
be refused as being contrary to the Development Plan.

It is then necessary to consider the suggestion that any development which would harm the 
prospects of the North Westgate scheme coming forward and/or which would prejudice the prospect 
of regeneration of the North Westgate Opportunity Area generally is to be seen as being contrary to 
the development plan.

25



20

Officers do not consider that the development plan can be read in this way.

Development plan policies have to be interpreted as a whole in a way which gives effect to their 
objectives. Officers consider that the development plan supports redevelopment within the city core 
area generally. They consider that there is no express or implicit support for the view that the 
redevelopment of the North Westgate Opportunity Area is given any priority over redevelopment 
elsewhere within the city core area.

Policy OB13 of the Core Strategy lists a number of objectives including the regeneration of the city 
centre as a priority but also the creation of a vibrant, mixed-use centre and which supports growth 
elsewhere. It goes on to indicate a range of suitable uses within the city centre. The objective does 
not specifically refer to redevelopment sites and or sites allocated for development in the City Centre 
Plan. Officers do not consider that OB13 can be interpreted as giving priority to the North Westgate 
scheme or the North Westgate Opportunity Area such any development proposals which would harm 
the prospects of such redevelopment coming forward could be seen to be contrary to policy.

It is the case that policy CC3 refers to individual proposals being refused where they would “prejudice 
the comprehensive redevelopment of this area”. However, this policy is referring to proposals within 
the North Westgate Opportunity Area itself which would frustrate comprehensive development. It is 
not to be interpreted as applying to development outside of that area. It is understood from 
submissions made by Counsel on behalf of Hawksworth during the recent Judicial Review that this 
interpretation is not accepted by Hawksworth notwithstanding representations to the contrary made 
previously.

As a result, Officers consider that there is no development plan policy priority afforded to the North 
Westgate Scheme such that the development plan is to be interpreted as meaning that a 
development proposal which would harm the prospects of the North Westgate scheme coming 
forward and/or which would to the prospect of regeneration of the North Westgate Opportunity Area 
generally is to be seen as being contrary to the development plan.

The consequence of this is that Officers consider that the Queensgate scheme accords with the 
development plan and with national planning policy.

Consequently, because the Queensgate scheme is acceptable in planning terms, there is no 
requirement as a matter of law or policy to go on to consider whether the alternative proposal (i.e. 
the North Westgate scheme) would provide greater benefits to the public interest such that the 
Queensgate scheme should be refused planning permission.

Nevertheless, Members are asked to determine the application for planning permission for the 
Queensgate scheme on the basis that it is necessary to have regard to the potential impact of that 
scheme upon the North Westgate scheme and upon the redevelopment of the North Westgate 
Opportunity Area generally.

1) Would granting planning permission for the Queensgate Scheme be likely to prevent 
the North Westgate scheme from coming forward?

It is acknowledged that it is unlikely that two city centre cinema’s would be financially viable.  
However, the Queensgate scheme could only be seen to prevent the North Westgate scheme 
from coming forward if it were established that without the Queensgate scheme the North 
Westgate scheme would be viable and deliverable. 

Prior to the consideration of the previous Queensgate scheme, information was submitted by 
Hawksworth relating to the commercial interests and viability of the North Westgate scheme and 
the impact that the Queensgate scheme would have (i.e.  it would be likely to prevent the North 
Westgate scheme from going ahead in its  proposed  or another form) . In light of the information 
the applicant has commissioned a viability appraisal by CBRE of both developments (Appendix 
4).

26



21

The applicant’s assessment concludes that the North Westgate scheme is not financially viable 
in any event i.e. it is not financially viable even if the Queensgate scheme were not granted 
planning permission. The applicant contends that the Hawksworth scheme requires external 
funding to deliver the development and based on the findings of the CBRE report this will not be 
secured.  

The assessment concludes that the North Westgate Scheme will not therefore be implemented 
based on any reasonable assessment of viability even if the Queensgate scheme were refused 
planning permission.

Therefore the grant of planning permission for the Queensgate scheme would not cause the 
North Westgate scheme to be unviable since it is unviable in any event. Consequently, the 
applicant argues that the Queensgate scheme could not lead to the loss of a regeneration 
opportunity since the current North Westgate scheme will not come forward anyway.

The applicant feels that there is a risk that if planning permission is refused for the Queensgate 
development that no investment at all is made into the city centre.  The stated fear is that the city 
centre may lose out on a new cinema altogether as the market demand will be met on a site 
elsewhere in Peterborough in a less sustainable location not least because there are plans for a 
leisure scheme at Serpentine Green which could attract a cinema operator. The applicant feels 
that this would have significant impact on the city centre and that Peterborough’s retail ranking 
will decline even further and its policy vision will not be met. Further, it will then make the 
investment opportunity at North Westgate less attractive to potential investors in the future.

The applicant also contends that if the Queensgate development is implemented, it will improve 
the prospects for the regeneration of the North Westgate Opportunity Area in the future. It is 
argued that the development at Queensgate would significantly enhance the vitality and viability 
of the city centre and would regain its position as a top retail centre in the region and reverse the 
decline in its retail ranking. This would have a positive effect upon the developability of the 
Opportunity Area. 

The applicant points out that it has land interests in the North Westgate area and that it is in its 
interests to see the redevelopment of the area on a comprehensive basis. However, the applicant 
considers that for a viable scheme to be developed at North Westgate development needs to 
take place at Queensgate first.

Officer Appraisal

In the light of the viability information submitted by the applicant, a review of the viability position 
was necessary. In preparation for undertaking that review a request was made by planning 
officers to Hawksworth seeking permission to utilise the viability information previously submitted 
in relation to their development; this was request was initially denied. This meant that initially only 
the viability information submitted by the Queensgate applicant, for both its scheme and North 
Westgate could be used for the purpose of a comparative assessment.  

Because of the initial view taken by Hawksworth, the Council’s consultant Barker Storey 
Matthews (BSM) could only review the information provided by the applicant in regard of their 
own scheme and that at North Westgate (BSM report is in Appendix 5).

Hawksworth has more recently changed its stance and has released its viability information on 
condition that it is not shared with the applicant or the public. This partial co-operation is 
welcomed and has enabled the Council to engage a firm of national standing (GVA) to review 
both the Queensgate viability information and the Hawksworth information (The GVA report in 
its redacted form is  in Appendix 6.  The un-redacted report is in Appendix 7 and is not for 
publication in accordance with paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 in that it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of a particular 

27



22

person, namely Hawksworth Securities plc.  The public interest test has been applied to the 
information contained within the exempt annex and it is considered that the need to retain the 
information as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing it as to do so would disclose  
commercially sensitive information pertaining to Hawksworths business affairs.).

Nevertheless the unwillingness to share the information with the Queensgate applicant and the 
public is disappointing.  

The  applicant’s  submitted  information suggests that the viability of the North Westgate scheme 
relies on an improved market for the whole range of uses proposed, for which there is generally 
an oversupply and lack of demand in Peterborough. This means that the viability of the North 
Westgate scheme is dependent on an increase in take up, as a result of improved market 
conditions. The applicant considers that the North Westgate scheme is currently showing a 
negative return in excess of £41 million.

As above, the Council has obtained independent advice from Barker Storey Matthew (BSM). 
This review  looked at only the information on both the Queensgate scheme and the North 
Westgate schemes supplied by the applicant.  

In addition, the Council has sought independent advice from GVA.

GVA has advised that in their view the CBRE appraisal of the North Westgate scheme is overly 
pessimistic. In particular, the assumptions adopted in relation to yield are higher than 
Queensgate identified  for their own scheme causing  a  higher  development value to be  arrived  
at which together with the higher  build  cost assumptions caused a  loss  to be shown whereas  
a  profit is  shown by Hawksworths own figures. It should  be  noted  however that that the scheme 
costs for North Westgate included in the CBRE appraisal commissioned  by the Queensgate 
applicant were provided by the same firm who provided the costs in Hawksworth’s appraisal of 
their own  development, but the  latter cost were  materially lower and  therefore  would have 
strengthened  the viability position of  the proposal.  

GVA have assumed  that Hawksworth’s own (lower) cost figures are  likely to be  more accurate 
since they were produced more recently and by the party with the best knowledge of the current 
details of the North Westgate scheme. Having looked at the figures  produced  by Hawksworth 
for their  own scheme  as  well as  the figures  produced  by the applicant for their  own scheme  
at Queensgate, GVA had no significant concerns  regarding the cost, value and  yield 
assumptions used by the respective  parties for their own schemes.

GVA have advised however that the viability of the North Westgate scheme depends upon 
delivering all of its individual elements and that there are real uncertainties surrounding the 
deliverability of the office element and the foodhall.

GVA have advised that putting the cost, values/yields to one side, the North Westgate scheme 
has not insignificant deliverability issues relating to:
 land assembly,
 the  time  taken to undertaken  to do this
 Brexit expected to slow the market down (officer  comment – this would also apply to 

Queensgate but it should  be  noted  that may be  less  impacted  upon given the expected  
short timeframe for delivery) 

 the need to secure some prelets (office, supermarket, some of the food/ retail units)
 the foodhall being an unproven product in this  location
 the large amount of mezzanine floorspace  in the restaurants
 the fact that the whole of the scheme needs to be built in order for it to ‘work’ 

      
On this latter point,  Hawksworth has stated that individual elements of the North Westgate 
scheme will not be delivered unless they make an important contribution to the whole. One would 
expect this since a developer is only likely to deliver uses which are supported by market 

28



23

demand. Officers comment that if there is a lack of market demand meaning that certain aspects 
of the development, such as the office element, cannot be delivered then this may have a 
negative impact on value and overall development viability. Also some of the content of the 
scheme is unproven from a demand perspective e.g.  the food hall. 

GVA has advised that it is unclear whether there is likely to be a demand for the proposed office 
space. Discussions with Hawksworth indicated that there are 1 or 2 parties who are in early stage 
discussions although these discussions have not yet advanced to negotiation of terms. GVA 
advised that a developer would not build out the office space in the absence of a pre-let of part 
at least. Thus, the advice from GVA has the effect that in the absence of a pre-let of the office 
space and  some  other pre-lets of some of the restaurant space and the supermarket space, the 
North Westgate scheme, as  proposed,  cannot be seen as financially viable. At present there  is  
no known  firm interest in the supermarket, office  or restaurant spaces. In addition GVA 
commented  that the food hall element of  the  proposal is  an unproven concept and  there are 
concerns also regarding the whether there is demand  for the quantum of  upper  floorspace  in 
the food hall and  restaurant elements of the scheme.  A sensitivity analysis GVA modelled the 
effect of not delivering the proposed office accommodation and this moved the appraisal from a 
position of profit to a position of a loss.

GVA have concluded that  the North Westgate scheme would be unlikely to be viable / deliverable 
in the event that the  Queensgate scheme gets built out before it (this assumes that both schemes 
are  unchanged  from what is  proposed), primarily because there  is not sufficient  market 
capacity for  two  multiplex  cinemas of the scale proposed by the two schemes. Notwithstanding 
this, GVA have advised that there remains a possibility that North Westgate  could  be  built out 
in a  different way. Therefore it is not correct for Hawksworth to say that there  is  no other scheme 
that could  come forward for the North Westgate site should  the Queensgate development be  
built out first. This has not been proven by Hawksworth who have not submitted any detailed 
financial viability appraisal to prove this. This is discussed further in the next section on this 
report.

In addition, GVA advised that the outline planning permission granted in respect of the North 
Westgate scheme contains some flexibility and that in the event that an office pre-let could not 
be secured other forms of development (such as residential ) could come forward in its place. 
However, again, as there is  now, there is uncertainty as to whether such a scheme would be 
deliverable.

Officers are of the view that the financial viability position (in terms of cost, values / yields) does 
not establish that the North Westgate scheme will not come forward in any event as suggested 
by the applicant for Queensgate. However, it also does not suggest that the North Westgate 
scheme would necessarily be financially viable even if the Queensgate scheme were refused 
planning permission. There is real uncertainty as to whether the North Westgate scheme is likely 
to be deliverable even if the Queensgate scheme were refused planning permission.

GVA also examined the financial viability of the Queensgate scheme. GVA concluded that whilst 
the return on cost is at the lower end of what would be expected but the developer has stated 
that it is prepared to proceed on the basis that it enhances an existing asset. There is then no 
reason to suppose that if it were permitted the Queensgate scheme would not proceed due to 
financial viability considerations.

In addition to the question of financial viability, GVA also considered the deliverability of the North 
Westgate scheme in the absence of the Queensgate scheme.

GVA identified that there are “significant” site assembly issues associated with the delivery of the 
North Westgate scheme. This involves the acquisition of some 14 houses, 4 surrounding retail / 
industrial uses, the acquisition of Frobisher House (recently sold on the open market to a third 
party), and the acquisition of the Church (currently on the market).

29



24

Frobisher House has recently be sold to a third party. A prior approval has been granted by PCC 
in respect of the conversion of that office block into housing and it is considered likely that 
property will be converted into residential flats. If that were the case it would make the task of 
securing a CPO to implement the whole scheme more difficult. If Frobisher House were omitted 
from the North Westgate scheme, this would be likely to adversely affect the overall development 
viability of that scheme.

Officers are also aware that Westgate Church has been on the market but that the owner is 
seeking to retain the curtilage to the church and the building to the rear of the site.

GVA advise that it seems likely that compulsory purchase powers would have to be used. This 
would mean that the Council would have to be involved in the site assembly process since only 
the Council has the necessary powers of compulsory acquisition.

The City Council has made no decision on whether to use said powers. Whilst there  have  been 
some very high level and  early discussions  regarding a Joint Venture  between the City Council 
and  Hawksworth regarding the development of the North Westgate site, these  have  not 
progressed to any significant stage and the Council has  made  no  formal decision regarding the  
possibility of a  Joint Venture. 

In order to promote a CPO the Council would have to satisfy itself that there is a 'compelling case 
in the public interest' for a CPO to be granted, that justifies the private loss and interference with 
human rights which the exercise of the CPO would give rise to. Part of considering whether a 
compelling case exists involves considering whether there is any 'funding impediment' to the 
scheme for which the CPO is sought being developed. This would involve consideration of the 
financial viability of the scheme the CPO is seeking to bring forward. It would be difficult to secure 
confirmation from the Secretary of State of a CPO for a scheme which cannot be demonstrated 
to be financially viable.

The usual process for bringing a CPO forward for a town centre regeneration scheme is for the 
relevant local authority to enter into an indemnity agreement with a developer. In such an 
agreement the developer agrees to pay the costs of the authority in bringing forward a CPO 
including compensation arising from blight claims and following the compulsory purchase itself. 
The Council would need to satisfy itself that the developer has sufficient funding to meet these 
costs before it entered into such an agreement since, if the developer could not meet these costs, 
the Council would have to.

The extent to which Hawksworth ( whose 2014/15 accounts identified it having a net worth of 
£7.65m, assets of £4.79m, liabilities of £2.36m and cash of £96,000)  has access to sufficient 
funding to indemnify the Council in respect of a scheme involving costs in excess of £100m is 
unclear.

The process of securing a CPO is lengthy. It can take as much as three years to secure a CPO:

Agreeing Indemnity Agreement 1-2 months

To seek authority to commence drafting CPO – 1 month

Negotiating with owners – 6 months

Report seeking authority for the CPO to be made – 6 to 9 months

If objections are received experience elsewhere suggests that it is usual for the confirmation 
process including an inquiry into objections will take around 18 months

As can be seen, it can take around 3 years from the start of the CPO process to the end.

30



25

At the time of planning permission being granted for the North Westgate development 
Hawksworth indicated that the scheme could be delivered by summer 2018. Whilst the grant of  
permission for the Queensgate scheme along with the claim for judicial review may have had an 
impact, it should be noted that there have been no discussions  held  between the applicant and  
the Council’s planning team with regard to progressing the North Westgate scheme to a reserved 
matters submission. This factor combined with the likely need for a CPO means that Officers 
take the view that the scheme would be unlikely to commence construction until the end of 2019 
at the earliest.

Officers therefore consider that even without the Queensgate scheme there are substantial 
hurdles to be overcome before the North Westgate scheme could begin to come forward. 

This in turn feeds back into the uncertainty relating to that scheme’s financially viability, since it 
is not possible to assess with any certainty the market demand for the scheme as a whole, or 
indeed each of the elements of it, in three years’ time. Uncertainty over whether elements of the 
scheme would in fact come forward due to uncertainties in market demand in the future would 
affect the extent to which a compelling case for acquisition in the public interest could be 
demonstrated to exist and thus whether the CPO process could be used at all in order to 
assemble the land required.

By contrast, the applicant for the Queensgate scheme already owns the relevant land. Terms 
are still to be agreed with some tenants but in some cases discussions are at an advanced stage 
and in the case of the cinema solicitors have been instructed. Delivery prospects are enhanced 
by the advanced stage of occupier negotiations and the level of site control. 

Indeed, had it not been for the claim for permission to judicial review the grant of permission, the 
development was due to commence in January / February 2016. It should also be noted that 
Hawksworth has not contested the likelihood of the Queensgate scheme being viable and 
deliverable; in a letter dated 22 September 2015, Hawksworth stated that it is likely to be built 
before its own scheme.  Officers are of the view that there is no reason to suppose that if planning 
permission were granted for the Queensgate scheme that it would not come forward in short 
order.

On the basis of all of the above, a judgment has to be reached. Officers are of the view that given 
the lack of  certainty with regard to financial viability and the identified deliverability issues it is 
more likely than not that even without the Queensgate scheme being permitted, the North 
Westgate scheme would not come forward. 

The result is that if planning permission for the Queensgate scheme were refused there would 
be a real risk that no cinema would come forward within the town centre at all. It would also be 
to risk the loss of the benefits that the Queensgate scheme would deliver without the benefits of 
the North Westgate development materialising either.

Members are advised to consider the material and form their own view as to whether the North 
Westgate scheme is likely to come forward if planning permission for the Queensgate scheme 
were refused and to give this weight in the planning balance to be struck.

2) Would granting planning permission for the Queensgate scheme be likely to prevent 
the comprehensive regeneration of the North Westgate Opportunity Area altogether?

The applicant for North Westgate maintains that in the event that the Queensgate Scheme 
proceeds, not only would the North Westgate scheme not come forward but also there is no 
alternative land use that could take the place of the cinema in order to make the development 
economically deliverable again. 

The applicant for North Westgate in a  letter to the Council (22 September 2015)  indicated  that 
‘having carried  out extensive  viability  testing, there is  no other anchor, leisure , retail or  

31



26

otherwise’ that could  replace  the cinema in the scheme. The content of this viability testing has 
not been submitted to the City Council. The only material on this point that has been submitted 
consists of a number of letters in which various advisers express their opinions.

In one of the letters (dated 25 September 2015) , Savills  responded  to Hawksworth’s request 
to comment on whether  North Westgate  could  go ahead if  it was ‘predominately an office or 
residential scheme  rather than a mixed use scheme’. The focus of the letter and advice therein 
does not comprehensively explore alternative mixes of and qualities of land uses as it comments 
on either a mainly residential scheme or office scheme. In the  other letter (dated 25 September 
2015), Lunson Mitchenall express  the view that the site, because  of its size  and  distance from 
the core retail area could  not be  a successful freestanding retail scheme without  the cinema 
and that the loss  of  the cinema would reduce the critical mass of food uses and go on bring into 
question the justification for the development. These statements are not supported by any form 
of financial viability appraisal and it is not clear exactly what development scenarios were being 
considered. Given this, it is not accepted that it has been established that the loss of the 
opportunity to include a cinema necessarily means that no other scheme could be identified to 
achieve the regeneration of the area envisaged by the development plan.

GVA have advised that on the basis of the approved scheme for North Westgate, it would not be 
likely to go ahead in the event that the Queensgate proposal gets built out first. However they 
have  gone on to state that they do not see that this would render the North Westgate site 
necessarily incapable of any form of redevelopment contrary to what is stated by Hawksworth. 
GVA are of the view that a scheme with different content and scale of development (e.g. more 
housing and a boutique cinema being part of the scheme) might still be deliverable on the site. 
Accordingly, even if there were no proposal for Queensgate, there remains a possibility that the 
North Westgate site could be built out in a way which is different to that which has been granted 
planning permission.

Members are advised to consider the above and form their own view as to the likelihood that, if 
planning permission for the Queensgate scheme were granted, redevelopment of the North 
Westgate Opportunity Area might nevertheless come forward and to give this weight in the 
planning balance to be struck.

3) Relative Planning Merits

In carrying out the planning balance Members are also asked to have regard to the benefits of 
each scheme and to weigh them in the balance to be struck. 

i) City Centre Regeneration 

The applicant considers that in any event the regeneration benefits delivered by the 
Queensgate development are more beneficial to the city centre than the development of 
North Westgate.  It contends that many of the land use elements of what is being proposed 
at Queensgate would be delivered by the North Westgate proposals, these comprise a 
cinema, food and beverage units and new medium sized retail units. These uses reflect what 
is happening in many shopping centres and town centres across the UK with a big increase 
in spending on eating out and the on-going popularity of cinemas as a primary leisure activity 
for all the family.  

The applicant considers that Queensgate plays a crucial role in the city centre.  It forms the 
core attraction within the defined Central Retail Area of the city centre. It accommodates the 
majority of national multiple retailers, including major anchor retailers such as John Lewis, 
Marks and Spencer, Next and Primark. Queensgate is undoubtedly the major driver of footfall 
in the city centre as a whole and is fundamental to its overall economic success. It follows, 
therefore, that the wider success of the city centre is inter-twined with and dependent to a 

32



27

significant degree on the success of Queensgate.

The applicant considers that this is generally reflected in policy in the City Centre Plan, where 
it states the Council’s strategy is to focus development within the “heart” of the centre and 
consolidate investment in the existing shopping area. The Plan states that new development 
“should complement and strengthen the main shopping area” (para. 4.3.4). The applicant 
asserts that the Queensgate proposals are in accordance with this.

The applicant has  identified that there has been no significant investment in the Queensgate 
shopping centre since it opened in 1982 unlike other competing centres such as Leicester 
and that the centre must be brought up to modern standards. Without this investment the 
centre will decline and customers will choose other centres in an around the catchment area.

The new shop units created by the internal reconfigurations will provide accommodation for 
national multiple retailers who want to be located alongside flagship operators such as John 
Lewis and Marks and Spencer.  These opportunities can only be provided in the Queensgate 
and are fundamental to addressing the centres decline.

The applicant further states that the benefits delivered by the Queensgate proposals go wider 
than just providing new retail and new leisure opportunities and relate to the long term future 
of the shopping centre. The reconfiguration of the John Lewis store would result in significant 
enhancement to the store.  John Lewis’ needs cannot be met in the North Westgate proposal 
and if that went ahead and the Queensgate didn’t, these important benefits will not be realised 
to the detriment of the city centre as a whole.

Another operator is Next who plan to utilise the space released by John Lewis creating a 
larger store.  Next must trade in the prime retail area adjacent to national multiple retailers.  
North Westgate would not be able to provide large retail units, they wouldn’t be in the prime 
retail area and therefore couldn’t meet the needs of Next.

The application states that both Queensgate and North Westgate development would provide 
a cinema and restaurant uses.  These aspects of the Queensgate proposals specifically 
respond to the expectations of the City Council as set out in Policy CC3 as to where the 
cinema should be located in the city centre.  The Queensgate proposals would mean the 
positive impacts of the cinema and restaurant uses would be maximised as they would be 
located directly adjacent to and accessible from the highest areas of footfall in the city centre, 
the bus station and the existing car parking facilities at Queensgate. The proposed 
development means that the centre will stay open longer into the evenings increasing the 
connectivity with the city centre and the bus and railway stations.  Invesco have stated that 
funding in place to commence development immediately upon the grant of planning 
permission and the key operators have arrangements in place.  The applicant has also 
highlighted that all of the land required to facilitate the development is within Invescos 
ownership and the application is submitted in detail.  As such once the application has been 
granted the scheme will be delivered.  In contrast on top of the viability concerns over the 
North Westgate proposal the timeframes and process for bringing forward this scheme are 
significantly longer, more complicated and more risky.  A reserved matters application has 
not been submitted for North Westgate.The land is in various ownerships which is likely to 
require compulsory acquisition and funding for the scheme is not available.

The applicant asserts that from the above considerations it is therefore clear that there are 
significant benefits to the city centre.  

Nevertheless, the applicant acknowledges that a larger and wider range of potential planning 
benefits would arise from the North Westgate scheme given the size and scope of the 
proposal compared with Queensgate.  

33



28

Officers note the above but recognise that the North Westgate proposal has the following 
regeneration benefits:

 Reuse/ replacement of  inefficiently used land  and property
 Improvement in the appearance  of the area including along pedestrian 

thoroughfares 
 A sustainable location for development
 The creation of  jobs
 The  provision of  housing 
 Enhanced  retail and leisure  offer including night time economy

which are in accordance with the objectives and policies in the development plan.

GVA has expressed  the view  that they considered  the  North Westagte scheme 
prefereable  from a  regenerative perspecitive but noted that the  scheme is hampered by 
the fact that it does  not cover  the  whole  of the  opportunity area. It should  be  noted  
however  that GVA’s observations  on these two matters is beyond  their brief.

   
ii) Policy Compliance

Within this report the Queensgate scheme has been assessed against national planning 
policy and guidance as well as local planning policy. The conclusion is that the proposal 
is policy compliant. The approved North Westgate Scheme, was also found to be largely 
policy compliant albeit that:

 no affordable housing was  to be  provided (the deviation from policy was  deemed  
to be  justified  as a  consequence  of development viability issues); and

 the application site did not include all of the land identified for redevelopment under 
City Centre Plan Policy CC3 but it was  not considered  that the redevelopment of the 
excluded elements would compromise  their  subsequent delivery

In the Core Strategy (2011), under objective OB13, it is stated that:
 The regeneration of the city centre is a priority in order to drive growth, maintain 

viability and enhance vitality so that it remains at the top of the retail hierarchy in the 
region.

 That a  vibrant, mixed  use  centre  that is alive  day and night and supports growth 
elsewhere  is facilitated through increases   in the quality of  the commercial, retail, 
cultural, leisure  offer and the provision of  modern  retail  and office  floorspace and 
high density housing

Both the   Queensgate and the North Westgate schemes are compatible with the objective 
which does not express any specific locational preference.

Objective   OB21 is stated as establishing an improved leisure and cultural offer within the 
city and create a thriving night time economy. This objective is not location specific or 
locationally preferential. Therefore both Queensgate and North Westgate are compatible with 
the objective with neither scheme being better than the other.

Under Core Strategy Policy CS4, North Westgate is identified as a priority location for new 
development with regard to new retail floorspace (particularly comparison goods). It should 
be noted however that the North Westgate scheme is a leisure lead scheme and not retail 
lead and that the largest amount of retail floorspace in the scheme is put to food retail rather 
than comparison goods. Also under the Policy, it is stated that new leisure developments 
which meet the needs of the city / sub region will be encouraged and no location or priority 
is identified. It is therefore the case that neither scheme benefits from any policy preference.       

In respect of  the Council’s City Centre Plan, there is a  Leisure  Objective which mirrors that  
in the Core  Strategy as  one would  expect. The Plan identifies that there is the need to 
attract new facilities, such as a centrally located cinema, to the City. Further to this,  in the 
‘Vision’ for the City Core  Policy Area (in which both developments are  located), it is stated  

34



29

that ‘There will be  new retail and  leisure  provision, particularly further improvements  to the 
Queensgate shopping centre and  the North Westgate  Opportunity Area’. From this point of 
view the vision sees both locations as being suitable for leisure use. This  is  confirmed  in 
Policy CC3 which states that  within the North Westgate planning permission for  leisure  uses 
(amongst others) will be  granted  and   that elsewhere  in the City Centre Core  Policy Area 
(which includes  Queengate) will  expect and  support leisure  uses  (amongst others)  
including a  cinema.

In conclusion, it is  clear that the policy objectives  and  policies   within the development plan 
for the area support leisure  uses  in either location and  there is  no expression of priority or 
preference in respect of   the siting of  leisure  uses  or expressly a  cinema to a particular 
location. From this point of view both schemes are policy compliant with neither having a 
policy advantage over the other.

ii) Redevelopment of Brownfield Land / Efficient used of land  

The North Westgate scheme would bring into use a  larger site (part of which is  unattractive  
in appearance and which impacts to a degree on some heritage  assets) and deliver more 
development on land  which has  been underused  and awaiting redevelopment for more  
than 20 years. 

The Queensgate scheme is physically much smaller and would use its existing 
land and buildings more efficiently. It could be argued that this would then allow for a greater 
quantity of development to take place within the City Centre. It would be reasonable to 
conclude that the North Westgate scheme would bring about greater benefits compared to 
the Queensgate scheme in relation to the redevelopment of brownfield land.

iii) Proposed Land Uses

The uses proposed with both the Queensgate and North Westgate schemes are appropriate 
for their respective locations and are in accordance with planning policy. The North Westgate 
scheme proposes a wider range of uses, residential being the most significant (residential is 
not a feature of the Queensgate scheme). The delivery of housing within the city centre is a 
feature of the City Centre Plan. The North Westgate scheme by virtue of its larger size, range 
of land uses will result in more physical development than the Queensgate scheme to the 
greater benefit of the City Centre and the local economy. However, this too has to be 
balanced against the conclusion that there is the risk that the North Westgate scheme will 
not proceed in any event. In addition, GVA has recorded Hawksworth as having stated that 
individual elements of the scheme will not be delivered unless they make an important 
contribution to the whole. It therefore follows that Hawksworth itself accepts that the North 
Westgate scheme may not be implemented as a whole. As a result, the benefits arising from 
a comprehensive development of the site may not arise even if part of the scheme were to 
come forward.

iv) Access  & Transport

The Queensgate scheme will result in the centres car parks (recently refurbished to a  high 
standard) being open for longer meaning that they are being used more efficiently, that there 
will be a greater degree of access through the centre well beyond the existing hours of access 
to the benefit of pedestrians which to move across the city. It should  be  noted  that the 
proposal will significantly improve   the  entrance  and interior  to the mall which is currently 
below  expectation  and is adversely affected  by a low ceiling. The proposal will open up the 
entrance giving it a light, airy and modern appearance. The proposal does not result in any 
changes or alterations to the streets outside the centre. Given the content of the scheme, the 
fact that is represents an extension to the existing mall and reuses existing floorspace to a 
significant degree. The traffic  impacts  of the scheme  were considered to be negligible (the  

35



30

increase in trips in both weekday and Saturday peaks as a result of this proposal was 16 trips 
and 13 trips respectively) with no changes  or improvements needed to the public  highway 
unlike the  North Westgate scheme

The North Westgate will sever some existing access routes (pedestrian and vehicular 
including cycling) but will create some alternative routes (that provide an improved pedestrian 
environment) as well as provide an onsite car park. This onsite parking facility is not required 
under policy (given that it is a city centre location) rather it is understood to satisfy a 
prerequisite demand by the prospective cinema operator. There is no evidence to suggest 
that existing car park capacity in the City Centre would be insufficient to serve the proposed 
development. In this context the existing car parks in the City Centre would be used less 
efficiently because onsite parking is proposed. Also use of part of the site for parking could 
be seen as the land not being used as productively as it could be. With regard to traffic 
circulation, the proposal will result in significant changes to how traffic moves in and around 
the area e.g.  traffic exiting the  multi storey car park on Westgate, traffic  travelling down 
Lincoln Road, Park Road and  Westgate as well as a  less convenient arrangement for 
travelling to / from the John Lewis  click and collect point.  There are no such associated 
issues in respect of the Queengate scheme. The scale of the development together with the 
changes to the streets through and adjacent to the North Westgate site is such that it would 
impact on traffic using Crescent Bridge / Thorpe Road i.e.  There will be an average delay 
per vehicle on Thorpe Road of some 13.5 minutes per vehicle during the Saturday peak (1-
2pm).  Notwithstanding this it should be noted that officers supported the scheme and 
planning permission was granted for the scheme. 

Both schemes are conditioned to have travel plans in place which will assist in facilitating 
modal shift away from the private car,

Whilst both schemes were found to be acceptable in terms of their highway and 
transportation impacts and also policy compliant, it is evident that the North Westgate 
scheme has a greater impact on the transportation network than the Queensgate proposal. 
This is perhaps not surprising given its larger scale and location. 

v) Housing benefits (market and affordable)

The Queensgate scheme has no housing land use element to it whereas the North 
Westgate proposal does (between 150 and 200 dwellings a proportion of which will be 
lifetime homes). The provision of housing will help meet the stated housing requirement 
identified in the Core Strategy and in the City Centre DPD, though it should be noted that 
due to viability issues, no affordable housing is being provided. The proposal would  help 
meet  the Council’s  five  year land  supply situation however, it should  be  noted  that the 
Council is  currently reviewing its Local Plan and because  of the questions around   the 
deliverability of  the development and  its timing, its  contribution is  not assured.

vi) Economic and Employment benefits

It has  not been possible to establish the relative  benefits of the schemes as it is  not 
known what the net gain / loss in employees will be for each of  the developments (No 
figures  have  been provided for Queensgate and a figure  of 1117 jobs has  been given for 
North Westgate but this is not a net figure). North Westgate is physically a much larger 
development and so it seems  reasonable that it would generate more  jobs  and engage  
more  services  in the construction and post construction phases expect (although there will 
be  the loss  of the existing businesses in the  site).  

vii) Other Economic  Benefits

The North Westgate development would contribute significantly more in terms of council tax 
and new homes bonus (from the dwellings element) and business rates compared to the 

36



31

Queensgate scheme. 

North Westgate:
New Homes bonus (assuming 175 band B dwellings all delivered today at 
current rates) - £1.2
Council Tax (assumption as above) – £249K (all dwellings delivered at today’s 
rate)

It should  be  noted that there  is a pending review of  business rates and  as   the  new  
homes bonus links  to this and  in addition there has  been a  recent government 
consultation on a  review  of policy. Therefore there is no certainty regarding the level 
quotes. It has not been possible to provide an estimate of business rate income as to do 
this a rateable value has to be established by the valuation office and this has not been 
undertaken.   

viii) Night time Economy

Both the developments are leisure based proposals and so they will each contribute 
towards the Council’s stated objective of improving the night time economy. It is not 
considered that one scheme or the other performs better in respect of this issue. 

ix) Design/Public Realm Improvements

The North Westgate development will bring about significant improvements to what is in 
part underutilised area in the City which of poor physical appearance. It does this in a 
number of ways including new street frontages, new traffic free thoroughfares and 
formation of ‘public’ spaces. The enhancements are substantial given the physical scale of 
the development whereas those arising as a consequence of the Queensgate scheme are 
more modest. Nevertheless, the latter will result is a  significantly improve entrance and 
mall environment which will bring the facility right up to date and  assist the centre and  
therefore  the City Centre as a whole enhance  its  position in the retail rankings. Whilst on 
the surface it may appear that the North Westgate has  greater benefits than the 
Queensgate due to the extent of  the physical enhancements it is  considered that these 
are  actually matched because  the Centre is  to a substantial degree  the lifeblood of the 
City Centre and  if  it is  allowed  to continue  to stagnate there  is the real risk that the  
attractiveness of the centre will start to decline which would be  damaging to the city centre 
as a whole.         

x) Heritage Assets

Please see section C of this report for an assessment of the Queensgate scheme in 
respect of its relationship / impact to Heritage assets which in the main relates to Cathedral 
views the Park Conservation area. The conclusion of the assessment is that the less than 
substantial harm to the heritage assets is outweighed by the public benefits of the scheme.

By way of comparison, it could be argued that the North Westgate scheme impacts on a 
higher number of heritage assets (Cathedral views, Wortley’s Almshouses, the adjacent 
conservation area and also the asset of Westgate Church. Notwithstanding this, at the time 
the application for the development was considered, the conclusion of the assessment is 
that the less than substantial harm to the heritage assets is outweighed by the public 
benefits of the scheme.

As a consequence of the North Westgate scheme impacting on more assets it could be 
argued that it is by default more harmful than the Queensgate scheme. In such a context it 

37



32

could  be  said  that this is balanced  by the fact that the development is  likely to improve  
those  part of  the site that are currently detrimental to the appreciation of  some of the 
heritage assets. It is therefore concluded that no one scheme performs better overall than 
the other in terms of being less harmful / more beneficial to heritage assets in the locality.      

xi) Ecology

An ecological assessment of the North Westgate scheme found that several Species of 
Principal Importance nesting within the site including Starling, Cumnock and House 
Sparrow. No bats were found although not all the building on site were assessed. Nothing 
was found on site which would prevent the development from going ahead.

With regard to the Queensgate scheme, please see the ecology section below.  As with the 
North Westgate scheme, nothing was found on site which would prevent the development 
from going ahead.

There is no evidence to suggest that one of the two scheme  performs notably worse or 
better in respect of impact on or  contribution towards ecology. Both schemes need to be 
undertaken with regard to the bird  nesting season and  will have to include  measures to 
facilitate  bird nesting.   

 

xii) Resources / Energy / CO2
By virtue  of  its larger size  the North Westgate scheme will consume  more resources  
than the Queensgate scheme. In addition as a result of  the changes to the road  layouts in 
the locality and  the trips associated with the development more resources will be used by 
vehicles with an associated  increase in CO2 emissions. More positively, the buildings to be 
removed from site are unlikely to be efficient in their use  of energy.  

Whilst either scheme  is free  in principle to be  built out to a high specification that is  
required  by building regulations in order to reduce energy consumption / have  on site 
generation, the planning permission for the  North Westgate scheme is subject to a 
conditioned requiring that a higher  standard must be met (10% better than building 
regulations). The nature of  the Queensgate proposal (reuse of existing floorspace and an 
extension) means that it is  impractical to apply the  same condition to it. Whilst not 
enforceable, the proposed energy efficiency measures (see the sustainability section 
below) should be noted.

GVA has  commented  that they saw that the  North Westgate scheme   was  more 
sustainable from an energy perspective however these  comments went beyond  their brief 
and given that the North Westgate scheme is  only at outline permission stage so there are  
no confirmed  details  other than to say it will be designed to perform  105 better than 
building regulation requirements (see para above).

The Queensgate scheme performs  better than  the North Westgate proposal but only in 
the context of  it being a  significantly smaller scheme and  therefore  it will use  less 
resources by default.            

Conclusion
Officers consider that looked at in isolation the North Westgate scheme would deliver greater benefit 
to the public interest than the Queensgate scheme, if the North Westgate scheme were to come 
forward. However, the Queensgate scheme itself generates significant benefits in the public interest.

Members must look at all of these issues in the round and form a view whether, in the light of the 
questions surrounding whether the North Westgate scheme’s deliverability even if the Queensgate 

38



33

scheme is not granted planning permission, on balance the risk of the loss of the benefits of the 
North Westgate scheme and the impact upon the potential for the North Westgate Opportunity Area’s 
regeneration are such as to outweigh the policy support given to the Queensgate scheme in the 
development plan and the benefits that it would deliver.

Officers do not consider that they are of such weight as to outweigh that support and for that reason 
officers recommend that planning permission is granted for the Queensgate development.

D) Design and Visual Amenity

The existing centre is a large block and forms the back drop to the finer urban grain of the historic 
streets of Westgate and Cowgate.  The existing material palate is simple, primarily comprising buff 
brick, lead mansard roofs and glazing.  Due to the existing substantial mansard roofs most of the 
extensions would be screened by the existing roof structure.  The retained lead mansard on the north 
block restricts visibility of the majority of the new cinema volume.  It would be clad in matching 
material to blend into the mansard rather than contrast and draw attention to the increased volume.

The cinema is set back from the existing elevation edge providing space between the mansard and 
the cinema’s façade.  The southern block would be more visible but the western façade would be in 
the most part, screened by the Bus Station and multi storey car parks.  This element would be 
finished in light grey cladding panels with dark grey aluminium framing strip.

The massing of the extension would be broken up into 3 blocks with public spaces between them 
provided by the glazed malls.  The variation in materials punctuates the otherwise continuous bulk 
and mass of the extension on the west façade of the building.  Glazing to the mall elevation and roof 
is a clear glass curtain wall – the glass will restrict solar glare and unwanted heat.  The glass is self-
cleaning and low emissivity.  The restaurant courtyard is also glazed the same as the mall.

It is proposed that the varying heights of the blocks create a rhythm on the roofline and this is 
accepted.  

The west mall is the main point of connectivity from the Bus/rail station and people’s first impression 
of the city.  Current low ceilings lack natural lighting resulting in an uninviting environment. The 
introduction of the glazed west mall has provided a visual enhancement to this entrance to the QSC 
and creates a more legible route to the rest of the centre and upper floor uses.

The Peterborough Civic Society recognises the proposal’s potential to enhance the attraction of 
Queensgate through the introduction of a cinema and the inclusion of a food court and welcomes 
the increase in public accessibility.  However concern is raised regarding the proposal.  It is 
considered that the bulk of the cinema rising above the bus station is inappropriate and that the 
design and materials are out of keeping with the elevation treatment of the existing centre.

It is acknowledged that the elevational changes to the western façade are substantial however as 
stated above the majority of view of this elevation would be screened by the multi storey car parks.  
With regard to the design and use of materials, the existing building is a simple and bulky design 
with a variety of roof heights and the materials are limited to buff brick, lead mansard roof and some 
glazing aspects to the entrances.  The existing centre is also described as ‘inward facing’.  It is 
considered that the proposed materials aluminium cladding, glazing and buff brick to match the 
existing would complement and harmonise with those used in the existing building.

In addition it is considered that the design of the entrance to the western mall would provide a more 
welcoming experience for visitors to the centre. 

It is considered that whilst the roof top extensions would result in an addition to the height and mass 
of the building the design of the extensions and appropriate use of materials would harmonise with 
the proportions and appearance of the existing building and would not detract from the character 

39



34

and appearance of the city centre as a whole.  Hence the proposal accords with policy PP2 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD, policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD and section 7 of the NPPF. 

E)_ Impact on the conservation area and heritage assets

In assessing the impact upon heritage assets it is necessary to refer to section 16(2) and 66(1) of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which requires Local Planning 
Authorities to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a building or its setting, or any 
feature of special architectural or historic interest which it possessed.   Section 72(1) of the same 
Act states that special attention should be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character and appearance of Conservation Areas.

The setting of heritage assets is perhaps best defined within the Glossary to the NPPF which states 
that setting refers to: ‘The surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced. Its extent is not 
fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve. Elements of a setting may make a 
positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to appreciate 
that significance or may be neutral.’

A Townscape, Visual and Heritage Impact Assessment has been submitted in support of the 
application.  There are no listed or locally listed buildings within the application site however part of 
the site is situated within the city centre conservation area boundary and the Park Conservation area 
is to the north.  There are a number of listed and locally listed buildings nearby.  The study assessed 
three elements:  the likely effects on the character and quality of the townscape; the effects of the 
development on the significance of heritage assets; and the effect of development on views, viewers 
and their visual amenity.   Twenty-one key representative views were selected.  It is noted that due 
to the low lying nature of the site and the dense development of the city, street level views of the 
scheme are well contained to the immediate vicinity of the site. The proposed development would, 
however, been seen together with the wider roofscape of Peterborough from the elevated view 
locations of the Cathedral Tower and bridges across the railway line.

The extension is located to the north-west of the QSC roof, furthest from the historic core of 
Peterborough. This means that the majority of the views from where the extension is visible are away 
from the sensitive townscape elements and particularly the Cathedral. The change to the view from 
the Cathedral tower is likely to be neutral in the context of the existing townscape character and 
acceptable. In terms of the remaining views, all effects are either negligible or neutral (minor to 
moderate).

Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.  
When considering the impact of new development great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation. 

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/loss has occurred. 

Where harm is considered to be less than substantial, the harm should be weighed against the public 
benefit of the proposal. 

The Conservation Officer has considered the assessment and identified that the more evident part 
of the extension will be viewed form Crescent Bridge roundabout / Bourges Boulevard. In this context 
the proposed development sits broadly within the massing of the existing roof elements and the 
proposed materials would the match existing roof top materials, and so is visually acceptable.  

40



35

In addition, the shopping centre is, or forms, the backdrop to various listed buildings.  The bulk of 
the building currently has a small adverse impact on the setting of some listed buildings (e.g. Wortley 
Arms Houses, former Royal Hotel, and Westgate).  There will be some minor visual impact on long 
distance views towards and from the Cathedral.  In many locations in views of listed buildings and 
parts of the Park and City Centre Conservation areas the proposed extension will not be visible. In 
other locations the development will be seen and this will vary depending on position of the viewer. 
The extension will be set back from the northern elevation to Westgate.

The Conservation Officer recommends the application be approved and considers that the work will 
only have a slight adverse impact on the setting of certain listed and locally listed buildings but overall 
would accord with section 66(1) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  Also, 
it is considered that the work will preserve the character and appearance of the City Centre and The 
Park Conservation Areas in accordance with Section 72(1), of the Town and Country Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and is in accordance with 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and the 
National Planning Policy Framework (Heritage considerations)  

Officers agree with the conclusions of the applicant that the extension would have a negligible effect 
on surrounding townscape character. The increase in height to the north-western part of the QSC 
roof would not alter the key characteristics or setting of the identified townscape character areas 
surrounding the site. The greatest townscape changes would be to the transport corridor character 
area (around Bourges Boulevard) but due to the poor quality townscape of this area and the height 
precedent already set by the shopping centre, the effect to the character of this area as a whole 
would be negligible.

Historic England has made representation on the application and considers that the bulk and 
massing of the alterations to the Queensgate centre would result in a modest level of harm to both 
the character and appearance of the adjacent conservation area and to the significance of listed 
buildings along Westgate through impact on their setting. Historic England has referred to para 134 
of the NPPF that the Local Planning Authority will be required to weigh that harm against wider public 
benefits that would be delivered by the proposal.  

It has been noted in the above report that the existing QSC comprises a large mass of buff brick and 
as a consequence has some existing impact on the setting of some listed buildings which lie to the 
forefront of the building.  Consideration therefore is limited to the additional impact on the listed 
buildings resulting from the rooftop extensions.  It is considered that whilst extension would add large 
volumes to the existing building these would not be apparent at the street level and would only be 
visible from views further from the site where, given the scale and mass of the existing building, they 
would appear proportionate.

The impact is measured against the benefits of the proposal which would be improved vitality and 
viability for the city centre through the likely increase in visitor numbers through cinema and 
restaurant offer, increased dwell times, employment opportunities improved night time economy, and 
improved pedestrian connectivity outweighs the negligible adverse harm caused by the extension.

Historic England have stated that the improved connectivity in the city would go some way to offset 
the harm resulting from the proposal however have requested that active frontages are provided to 
the elevations fronting King Street.  

The potential to open up the ground floor elevation to King Street was considered under a previous 
scheme for the Primark extension.  At the time of the application it was considered that this was a 
flaw in the original consent for the QSC and it would not be ‘possible to turn back the clock’.  It is 
considered that this part of the centre is not included in the changes and due to the internal layout 
of this element of the QSC it would not be reasonable to request this. It is considered that the 
improved connectivity from the city centre through the QSC to the Bus/Rail stations provided by the 
Queen Street and Cumbergate entrances would be a significant improvement on the existing 
connections for the city centre. 

41



36

As per paragraph 134 of the NPPF, the development will result in less than substantial harm to the 
significance of the designated heritage assets, and this harm needs to be weighed against the public 
benefits of the proposal. Whilst great weight is to be given to the preservation of the character and 
appearance of the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, the harm is considered to 
be limited and outweighed by the benefits of the scheme including the enhancement to the vitality 
and viability of the existing city centre, economic benefits, and improved city centre pedestrian 
access.  Therefore the less than substantial harm is outweighed by the public benefits of the scheme 
and hence the proposal accords with policy CS17 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, 
policy PP17 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and section 12 of the NPPF.

F) Highway Implications
The Local Highway Authority (“LHA”) is content with the information provided within the Transport 
Statement.

There are 4 multi-storey car parks directly to the west of the QSC and in total there are 2,300 parking 
spaces.  It is not proposed that there would be any additional car parking provided, however the car 
parks would be open later into the evening for users of the cinema.  It is likely that the cinema will 
increase the demand for parking however the peak time for cinema goers is likely to be in the 
evening, outside the core shopping hours when there is likely to be spare capacity.

Cycle parking:  It is considered that there are insufficient staff cycle parking spaces available and 
further provision would be secured by condition.  There would be provision within the ‘click and 
collect’ area.

There is customer cycle parking around the city centre in numerous locations.  The LHA 
considered that further cycle parking should be proposed or at least the existing covered to 
encourage more trips by cycle.  However, subsequent to the information as originally submitted the 
applicant has provided an assessment of provision and whether these are fully utilised.  The LHA 
is satisfied that there are ample spaces around the entrances to the centre for visitor cycle parking. 

Car parking:  It is accepted that the existing car parks will open later to accommodate the proposed 
opening hours for the Cinema and associated restaurants.  It is accepted that the existing car 
parking provision within the centre accords with the adopted parking standards under policy PP13 
of the Adopted Peterborough Planning policies DPD.

Traffic impact:  A 10% discount rate has been applied to the cinema trips to take into account 
linked trips with the shopping centre or other retail uses.  However, the LHA are of the opinion that 
cinema trips are highly unlikely to link with an existing shopping trip and that the 10% discount is 
somewhat unrealistic.  It is noted that the peak hours of use for a cinema are however generated 
outside the highway network peak hours on both a weekday and Saturday.

In respect of A1, A3-A5 trips these are more likely to be linked to the cinema during the evening or 
possibly shopping trips during the day.  The application of a discount rate to these trips is therefore 
acceptable.

There would be a positive impact from the new proposals as the area of A1 retail floorspace is 
reduced which in turn would lead to a reduction in traffic to and from the shopping centre.  The 
Transport Statement shows that overall because of this there would be a decrease in overall traffic 
during the Saturday network peak hours and a small increase in the weekday peak.

The LHA have however, stated that the 10% discount applied to the cinema trips is unrealistic and 
therefore the cinema trips for the network peaks have been recalculated to remove the discount.  
The result of this is that there is an increase in trips in both weekday and Saturday peaks as a result 
of this proposal.  This increase is however, not significant being 16 trips and 13 trips respectively.

42



37

TRACK plots have now been submitted for the revised ‘click and collect’ area for the John Lewis 
store which the LHA consider to be acceptable.

It is noted that there are concerns regarding likely disruption that could be caused by the 
construction.  The team will work closely with the centre management and local authority to develop 
and coordinate the construction methodology and plan any logistical operations that may impact on 
access to the centre and schedule these for out of hours working as appropriate to mitigate 
disruption.  A Construction Management Plan will be secured by condition.

G) Travel Planning

A workplace travel plan has been submitted which has been developed with the Peterborough City 
Council Travel Choice Team.  The submission of a Travel Plan is welcomed and it is hoped that the 
plan will encourage alternative methods of travel to work which would reduce the pressure on staff 
car parking, reducing the number of single occupancy car journeys along with the environmental 
benefits.  The plan includes targets and an action plan and will be continuously reviewed and 
improved.  However, further details are required in terms of how the applicant will mitigate the impact 
of the new tenant.  These details will be secured by condition.

It is not considered that the proposal would unduly impact on the highway network and measures 
would be put in place to encourage alternative modes of transport.  Hence the proposal accords with 
policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policies CS14 of 
the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.

H) Ecology

An Ecological Assessment of the site has been undertaken and has not identified any potential 
constraints to development.  Due to the urbanised nature of the site and the lack of semi natural 
habitats the supporting value to the site in terms of flora and fauna is therefore limited and the impact 
on the wider environment as negligible.  This report identifies the biodiversity features present which 
tend to be opportunist bird species that utilise building fabric including feral pigeon and gulls and the 
specially protected black redstart was identified in the wider area with the variety of levels and vertical 
habitats (rooftop plant and ventilation ducts) potentially offering suitable habitat.  The building does 
not contain features associated with bat roosting.  The report goes on to identify mitigation measures 
that should be followed to minimise impacts including avoiding construction work during the bird 
nesting season and undertaking surveys works.  

The Wildlife Officer is satisfied with the conclusions of the report.  The Officer’s view is that as the 
building is likely to support nesting birds including the Black Redstart which is a UK BAP Priority 
Species and is listed under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (as amended).  A 
condition should be appended to the decision notice requiring Black Redstart surveys are carried 
out every two weeks in May & June and monthly in July and August during the construction period 
by a suitably qualified ecologist, as recommended in the Ecology report. Should evidence of their 
nests being found, then appropriate measures should be put in place to ensure this species is not 
disturbed.  

The report recommends a number of bird boxes to enhance the development for biodiversity. The 
provision of these bird boxes, along with confirmation of their locations for installation would be 
secured by condition.

With the recommendations being fully incorporated into the approved scheme the development 
would provide a net gain in biodiversity and accords with policies PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD.

I) Statement of community involvement

43



38

The applicant in relation to the original application undertook a programme of community 
consultation prior to the submission of the application in order to gain the views of key stakeholders 
and members of the public and to inform the scheme on areas of concern.  Pre-application 
discussions were undertaken with the Local Planning Authority and the Local Highways section.  

An evening reception was held on the 14th May 2015 where local Councillors and key stakeholders 
were invited to attend a preview of the public exhibition.  

A public exhibition was held on the 15th and 16th May 2015 at the QSC which was open to local 
employees, residents and the general public. It was attended by representatives of the development 
team to provide opportunity for customers to ask questions and offer comments. The event utilised 
paper questionnaires and exhibition stands.  290 people attended the event and over 304 responses 
were received either from the event or by post.  98% of respondents indicated that they were in 
favour of the proposals.

A briefing was also given to Members of the City Council on the 3rd July 2015 following the 
submission of the application.

The applicant has not repeated any community consultation as a part of its latest application.  

J) Stustainability

The proposal includes measures to reduce the development’s energy demand, consumption and 
associated CO2 emission include:

 Maximising internal comfort conditions by passive means
 Improving U-values for opaque and transparent elements over building regulations requirements
 Utilising energy efficient lighting systems with automated controls
 Maximising daylight use
 Enabling natural ventilation in the glazed façade to exhaust air tom the space
 Building management system to monitor mechanical systems

It is considered that the proposal would make a contribution to Peterborough City Council’s aspiration 
to become an environment capital in accordance with policy CS10 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD.

K) Conclusion

Whilst officers maintain that there is no requirement in law or in policy terms to undertake a 
comparative assessment of the Queensgate scheme against the North Westgate scheme one has 
been undertaken. It has been concluded that neither scheme benefits from any policy priority over 
the other and that both schemes are policy compliant with neither scheme performing significantly 
better than the other in planning terms. 

The North Westgate scheme has an advantage over the Queensgate scheme in terms of the extent 
of the public interest benefits it could deliver if it were to come forward as explained above.

However, having reviewed the relevant information Officers are of the view that it is more likely than 
not that the North West scheme would not come forward even if the Queensgate scheme is refused 
planning permission.

This means that if the Queensgate scheme were to be refused planning permission there would be 
a very real risk that no cinema would be delivered within the town centre in any event and that the 
benefits associated with the Queensgate scheme would be lost without the benefits of the North 
Westgate scheme materialising either. The benefits that the Queensgate scheme would deliver 
would also be lost. That would in turn give rise to the risk that Peterborough City would continue to 
lose ground in terms of its attractiveness as a regional shopping and leisure destination.  

44



39

It is for Members to consider the weight to give to the risk that the North Westgate scheme may not 
come forward even if planning permission for the Queensgate scheme were refused.

It is also for Members to consider the weight to give to the risk that granting planning permission for 
the Queensgate scheme would pose to the prospects of the North Westgate scheme and/or an 
alternative scheme for the regeneration of the North Westgate Opportunity Area coming forward.

Members should also have regard to the benefits of the North Westgate scheme and the Queensgate 
scheme and give these weight in the planning balance.

For example, if a Member reaches the view that it is very likely that the North Westgate scheme will 
come forward if the Queensgate scheme is refused but that it will not if the latter scheme is granted 
planning permission, and reaches the view that the North Westgate scheme would deliver very 
significant public interest benefits whilst the Queensgate scheme would not, then that  Member might 
consider that there are significant material considerations weighing against the grant of planning 
permission.

By contrast, if a Member reaches the view that it is very unlikely that the North Westgate scheme 
will come forward if the Queensgate scheme is refused and that Queensgate would deliver significant 
benefits in the public interest, then that Member might consider that there are no material 
considerations of significant weight weighing against the grant of planning permission.

Members are advised that it is only if the material considerations are such that they outweigh the 
support afforded to the Queensgate scheme by the development plan and the benefits of that 
scheme that planning permission should be refused.

Officers consider that the material considerations are not such as to outweigh the support of the 
development plan and that planning permission should be granted.

6 Conclusions

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed against the policies in the development and in the light of all material considerations, and 
specifically:

 the principle of a city centre cinema and restaurant provision with additional retail provision 
for the city centre is acceptable.  This is in accordance with the vision for the City Centre, 
Policy CC3 of the City Centre DPD and Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy,

 the scale, proportions, design and use of materials would harmonise with the existing centre. 
This is in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP2 of the Planning 
Policies DPD.   

 it is accepted that the resultant bulk and mass of the extension would have a negligible 
adverse effect on the setting of some listed buildings and the City Centre conservation area.  
However this is outweighed by the benefits of the scheme to the vitality and viability of the 
city centre through the likely increase in visitor numbers through cinema and restaurant offer, 
improved night time economy, employment, and improved pedestrian connectivity.  This is in 
accordance with the NPPF and Policy CS17 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP17 of the 
Planning Policies DPD.  

 the site is accessible by a choice of means of transport and the proposal is supported by a 
transport statement and travel plan and will not result in any adverse highway implications.  
This is in accordance with Policies CS14 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP12 of the 
Planning Policies DPD.   

Whilst it is accepted that some limited harm would be caused to the character and appearance of 

45



40

the conservation area and that great weight is to be given to the preservation of the same, the 
benefits of the proposed development are considered to outweigh that harm.

Whilst it is not considered that the proposed development was required to subject to a comparative 
assessment against the North Westgate scheme, such an assessment has been carried out. It has 
been concluded that:

Both schemes  are,  in solely financially terms, viable 
  That whilst  the North Westgate scheme has  some advantages  over the Queensgate 

scheme these are not so compelling  to out weight that the delivery of the former it is  less  
certain that the North Westgate scheme would come forward as  it is  at a significantly less 
advanced  stage (outline  permission, less  occupier  interest / occupier  interest not as  
advanced), has  land  use elements where demand is  weak or the uses  are untested and  
requires  a  significant amount of  land  assembly still to be  undertaken.

The implementation of  the Queensgate scheme would  not certainly prevent an alternative 
scheme  for North Westgate coming forward 

Thus, having reviewed the comparative merits of the schemes, it was not concluded that the 
refusal of planning permission for the proposed development would deliver any material advantage 
in the public interest; rather it was considered on balance that a refusal of planning permission for 
the proposed development would be likely to result in material disadvantage to the public interest 
since this would put at risk the delivery of a town centre cinema and further investment in the town 
centre coming forward.

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions:

C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended).

 

C 2 No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in the external 
elevations of the extensions hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The details submitted for approval shall include the 
name of the manufacturer, the product type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. 
The development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policies CS16 and CS17  of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-
commencement condition because it is important to ensure that the appropriate materials 
will be available at the time the above ground building work takes place given the proximity 
to the Conservation Area.

 

C 3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed Construction 
Management Plan (CMP) shall be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
The details of the CMP shall include the following:

 
* Parking turning and loading/unloading for construction traffic taking into 

consideration access/parking requirements for surrounding building occupiers 

46



41

* Method of ensuring that mud/debris is not carried on to the adjacent public 
highway including wheel/chassis cleansing (where applicable) 

* Management of the manoeuvring of large construction vehicles including details of 
the types of vehicles being used in the construction process 

 The approved CMP shall be implemented for the entire duration of the construction 
period of the approved development.

 
Reason:  In the interests of highways safety in accordance with Policy PP12 of the 

Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.   This is a pre-commencement condition as 
the details will need to be approved before any work commences on site to avoid disruption 
to the adjacent highway network.

 

C 4 Prior to the extensions being brought into use additional cycle parking for staff shall be 
provided, the number and location of which are to be agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The cycle parking shall be secure and covered and once implemented 
be thereafter maintained for the parking of cycles only.

Reason:  In the interests of promoting travel by non-car modes and in the interests of 
highway safety and in accordance with policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C 5 Prior to the extensions being brought into use a Travel Plan shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The Travel Plan shall contain SMART 
targets to encourage the reduction of car trips to the Queensgate Centre and promote the 
use of non-car modes instead and details of a review mechanism.   The Travel Plan shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  In the interests of promoting travel by non-car modes and in the interests of 
highway safety and in accordance with policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policy CS14 of the Adopted Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD.

 

C 6 Details of the locations of the bird boxes as proposed under section 4.3.1 of the Ecology 
Report shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the 
extensions hereby approved being brought in to use.

Reason  In order to provide biodiversity enhancements for the site and in accordance with 
policy PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

C 7 In the event that construction works are undertaken during the months of May to August 
targeted Black Redstart surveys shall be carried out every two weeks in May & June and 
monthly in July and August during the construction period by a suitably qualified ecologist, 
as recommended in the Ecology report. Should evidence of their nests being found, then 
appropriate measures should be put in place to ensure this species is not disturbed.

Reason: To protect features of nature conservation importance, in accordance with Policy 
CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP16 and PP19 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

47



42

C 8 Notwithstanding the details hereby approved the opening times for the car parks and 
connective routes through the Queensgate Centre shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved details shall be implemented when 
the extensions are brought into use and shall be maintained in perpetuity.

Reason:  In order to provide connectivity, particularly in the evenings to and from the city 
centre, bus station and railway station and in accordance with policy CC3 of the Adopted 
Peterborough City Centre Plan, and policies CS4 and CS18 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Core Strategy PDP.

 

C 9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 

Location Plan - BNY-SA 08 LL90 Rev B01
Proposed site plan - BNY-SA 08 LL93 Rev B02
Proposed Elevations - BNY-SA 08 LL02 Rev B02
Proposed Elevations BNY-SA LL03 Rev B02
Proposed Elevations - BNY-SA 08 LL04 Rev B01
Proposed Detail Elevations BNY-SA 08 AL05 Rev B01
Proposed Detail Elevations BNY-SA 08 AL06  B01     
Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan - BNY-SA 08 0002 Rev B02
Proposed Upper Ground Floor Plan - BNY-SA 1002 Rev B02
Proposed First Floor Plan - BNY-SA 08 2002 B01
Proposed Second Floor Plan - BNY-SA 08 3002 Rev B01
Proposed Third Floor Plan BNY-SA 08 4002 B01
Basement Floor Plan - BNY-SA 08 B102 Rev B01
Roof Plan - BNY-SA 08 5002 Rev B01
Service yard and section - BNY-SA 08 LL16 Rev B01
Click and Collect - BNY-SA 08 AL07 Rev B02
Click and Collect - BNY-SA 08 AL08 Rev B01
Proposed Section - BNY-SA 08 LL13 Rev B01
Proposed Section - BNY-SA 8 LL15 Rev B01
Proposed Section - BNY-SA 8 LL14 Rev B01
Vehicle Tracking

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning. 
 

48



Craig O’Brien BA (Hons) BTP MRTPI 

E: cobrien@savills.com 

DL: +44 (0) 117 910 0335 

F: +44 (0) 117 910 0399 

 

Embassy House 

Queens Avenue 

Bristol BS8 1SB 

T: +44 (0) 1179 100 300 

savills.com 

 

 

  

Dear Mrs MacLennan 

Planning Application 16/00252/FUL 
Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, Peterborough  

I write on behalf of Hawksworth Securities plc (‘Hawksworth’) with regard to the above referenced planning 
application concerning Queensgate Shopping Centre (QSC).  I understand it is a duplicate of the planning application 
that was granted planning permission on 16 October 2015 and given the reference 15/01013/FUL (‘Original QSC 
Application’).   

Having reviewed and compared the material submitted with both QSC applications, I note that additional information 
is contained within the Planning Statement (NLP, ref.10624914v3), namely the comparison exercise at Section 6.  A 
‘Comparative Viability Study’ (CBRE, Jan 2016) has also been submitted. 

This letter focuses on the content of the Planning Statement and matters raised in previous objection letters submitted 
by Savills on behalf of Hawksworth, dated 8

th
 and 25

th
 September 2015, in respect of the Original QSC Application.  A 

full critique of the CBRE Study will be submitted under separate cover.  

In summary, it concludes that the QSC Planning Statement does not undertake a full and proper assessment of the 
Development Plan which, when considered as a whole, prioritises the regeneration and redevelopment of North 
Westgate (‘NWG’).  The comparative analysis is contradictory and makes claims without evidence.  It cannot and 
should not be relied upon.   In line with Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Council has a 
duty to undertake such an assessment and until this is done, the Council is not in a position to assess the planning 
balance and reach a sound outcome / recommendation to Members.    

NLP acknowledges that the retail market is not as strong as it once was, that synergy is required in order to make 
mixed-use developments work and, finally, that NWG offers greater planning benefits when compared to QSC 
proposals.  Notwithstanding all of this, NLP goes on to claim that alternative uses should be found for NWG and that 
QSC should be prioritised.   

Overall, Hawksworth maintains that, in order for the Council to make an informed decision about the QSC proposals, it 
is necessary to properly assess the land use planning implications of granting planning permission for the QSC 
proposals.   This letter, once again, demonstrates the clear Development Plan priority for NWG.  It also highlights the 
implications to NWG if planning permission is granted for the QSC, which is that the NWG scheme will not be 
implemented; a point which is acknowledged in the QSC Planning Statement.  

01 April 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
Mrs J MacLennan 
Peterborough City Council  
Planning - Development Management 
Town Hall 
Bridge Street 
Peterborough 
PE1 1HF 

janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

By E-mail only 
 
 

APPENDIX 1

49



a 
 

Page | 2 
 

The QSC and NWG schemes must be regarded as alternatives to one another.  If planning permission is granted for 
QSC, this will result in the loss of the very considerable planning benefits associated with the NWG scheme.  It is 
essential that a robust comparative assessment of the merits of the two schemes is undertaken and until this is done, 
the Council is not in a position to assess the planning balance and reach a sound outcome.   As above, the Comparative 
Assessment undertaken within the Planning Statement cannot be relied upon.  This assessment relies upon the 
conclusions of the CBRE Study and for the reasons detailed under separate cover, Hawksworth is of the opinion that it 
is fundamentally flawed and, similarly, cannot therefore be relied upon.  In any event, it would only be appropriate to 
grant planning permission if the benefits associated with the QSC scheme were judged to be such as to outweigh the 
loss of the benefits associated with the North Westgate scheme. 
 
Background 
 
Hawksworth is the Applicant/Developer for the approved scheme (LPA ref. 15/01041/OUT) at North Westgate for the 
first phase of redevelopment comprising a mixed-use scheme including leisure, retail, office, residential and 
community uses which will be anchored by a multiplex cinema.   The NWG scheme was granted planning permission 
on 2 October 2015. 

NWG is an allocated site that is identified for the delivery of a mixed-use development and it is prioritised for 
redevelopment in the early years of the plan period.  The site’s delivery is key to achieving the regeneration the City 
Centre needs, that which the Development Plan identifies and seeks to secure.  The regeneration of NWG, together the 
development of other underused and vacant sites, will help to deliver the Plan’s key objectives for Peterborough 
including, increased housing provision and City Centre living; retail expansion; enhancing the City’s leisure and cultural 
offers to attract people into the City and improve the evening economy which, together, will create an integrated City 
Centre that responds to surrounding urban communities.   

The Original QSC Application and the NWG Application were heard at the same Planning and Environmental Protection 
Committee on 29 September 2015.  The QSC Application was heard first and Members resolved to grant planning 
permission for both applications. 

As above, letters of objection, together with supporting evidence, were submitted during the consideration of the 
Original QSC Application which demonstrated that the grant of planning permission for a cinema at QSC will jeopardise 
and prevent the proposed redevelopment of NWG, which is dependent on the inclusion of a cinema as its anchor 
tenant.  Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to have 
regard to the provisions of the Development Plan that are material to an application.   The importance attached to the 
redevelopment of NWG, as an allocated site, means the LPA should properly consider any likely harm to the prospect 
of the regeneration objectives for NWG being achieved, which would be in conflict the objectives of the Development 
Plan.  Any such harm is a material consideration that should be afforded significant weight because NWG is a priority 
for development within the Development Plan.   

This exercise was not undertaken and, accordingly, on 23 November 2015, Hawksworth filed a claim for permission to 
judicially review the decision of PCC to grant planning permission for the previous scheme.  The grounds of claim can 
be summarised as follows: 

1. that PCC failed to properly consider the representations and evidence submitted by Hawksworth that the 
granting of the previous QSC permission would render the North Westgate scheme unviable with the result 
that it would not proceed; and 

2. that PCC failed to undertake a proper and effective comparison between the merits of the two schemes and 
the impact if granting permission of QSC, upon the delivery of NWG, given its policy status.  

 
Peterborough City Council (PCC) and Invesco dispute the alleged grounds of claim but, in any event, the current QSC 
application seeks to undertake a comparison exercise which is considered below.  

APPENDIX 1

50



a 
 

Page | 3 
 

The substantive hearing of the judicial review application is due to be heard by the Planning Court on 15 and 16 June 
2016.  

Comments Made in Response to Current QSC Application (16/00252/FUL) 

As above, the Planning Statement submitted with the Current QSC Application includes a section entitled ‘Other 
Material Considerations: North Westgate’.  After establishing the relevant background, it considers the policy position, 
before going on to consider the impact on NWG, undertaking a comparative analysis and, finally, looking at the ‘No 
Development at QSC Scenario’.  The information contained within is considered in the same order below.  
 
Policy Priority for North Westgate  

Paragraph 6.15 of the QSC Planning Statement recognises that the statutory Development Plan must be considered as 
a whole but it fails to do so.   The letter submitted by Savills on and dated 8

th
 September 2015 (’Letter 1’, enclosed) in 

respect of the Original QSC Application considers the planning policy context surrounding NWG and QSC in full.   
 
The QSC Planning Statement first considers Core Strategy Policy CS4 and focuses solely on the Policy wording, claiming 
that the extent to which NWG is afforded priority relates only to comparison retail (para 6.15).  When considering the 
Policy within the context of the wider Development Plan, this point is wholly inaccurate and a significant flaw of NLP’s 
assessment of the weight that should be attached to the Development Plan and the allocation of NWG. 
 
To recap, the adopted Development Plan for Peterborough, includes the Core Strategy DPD (CS) and the City Centre 
Development Plan Document (CCDPD).  Together, these documents identify a number of objectives and development 
priorities for the City which, ultimately, seeks to achieve the strategic growth vision, as follows:   

‘encourage and enable new development that will maintain and enhance the vitality of the centre, whilst preserving 
and enhancing the quality of the local environment.  This will undoubtedly involve changes widening the retail, leisure, 
tourism and cultural offer, creating new jobs, making the best use of land that is currently vacant or underused and 
improving the experience and convenience for pedestrians and cyclists.’  (emphasis added) 

 
This Vision reflects Policy PB1 of the East of England Plan (now revoked) which highlighted that the strategy for 
Peterborough was for ‘growth and regeneration’, emphasising, inter alia, the need for regeneration of the City Centre 
and inner urban areas.  CS objective OB13 echoes this, stating that the regeneration of the City Centre is ‘a priority in 
order to drive growth, maintain viability and enhance vitality so that it remains at the top of the retail hierarchy in the 
East of England region’.   

 
Policy CS4 directly relates to the delivery of objective OB13, setting out the overarching policy aspirations for the City 
Centre which, ultimately, seeks to ensure Peterborough maintains its position as a centre of regional significance.  In 
achieving this, support is given to mixed-use and major new cultural and leisure developments, together with the 
creation of a significantly larger City Centre resident population.  Of particular relevance is the policy support for the 
redevelopment of NWG and priority for its delivery in the early years of the Plan Period.  Paragraph 6.12 of the 
Planning Statement states that only retail provision is given priority with regard to NWG.  The same paragraph, 
together with paragraph 6.25, acknowledges the market conditions under which the CS policy was formulated and the 
subsequent change in policy (CCDPD) as a result of the economic downturn, as well as the changing nature of town 
and city centres, particularly the growth of the leisure industry (food and beverage and leisure activities).  However, 
there is no consideration of what this means for the development of NWG and the City Centre.      
 
At the time the CS was produced the retail market was buoyant and, thus, retail uses were considered the right and 
necessary catalyst to bring forward regeneration of NWG.  This is evident from the two planning applications 
submitted for NWG in 2003 and 2007 which were both retail-led.  This changed in 2007/8 as a result of the economic 
downturn and subsequent recession.  The retail market also now faces new threats such as online shopping.  
Meanwhile, demand for leisure provision in town and city centres has increased significantly and the provision of such 

APPENDIX 1

51



a 
 

Page | 4 
 

uses has supported and diversified the offer in UK town and city centres.  It is, therefore, essential to assess what 
other uses aside from retail could drive the regeneration of NWG.   
 
The Council recognised this fundamental change in the market and the most up-to-date Development Plan Document 
(the CCDPD) encourages other uses at North Westgate, namely leisure and housing.  Hawksworth has gone to 
considerable lengths to demonstrate that, for NWG, a leisure-led scheme with a cinema anchor, is the only option that 
can kick-start regeneration and see this long awaited development site come forward.   
 
Paragraph 7.0.2 of the CS is clear that planned investment in the redevelopment of Peterborough City Centre is critical 
to facilitating its regeneration.  The approved scheme at NWG represents significant planned investment of 
£100million which will underpin the regeneration of Peterborough’s Central Core and act as a catalyst for investment 
in the City.   The Council’s long-standing commitment to see this site redeveloped is evident by virtue of the site’s 
continued allocation since 1971 when it was originally identified in the Greater Peterborough City Centre Plan.  In 
addition, paragraph 5.2.8 of the CCDPD states ‘the council will use its compulsory purchase powers where necessary for 
land assembly to ensure the optimum redevelopment solution’.  This is a clear commitment from the Council to deliver 
the land required for development of the North Westgate scheme.  
 
The above demonstrates that the Development Plan as a whole does, in fact, prioritise regeneration and the 
redevelopment of NWG.  Accordingly, significant weight should be attributed to the delivery of a long-term 
regeneration goal and development that will jeopardise this should be refused planning permission accordingly. 
 
Impact on North Westgate 

Paragraph 6.18 of the Planning Statement references a ‘CBRE Appraisals and Assumptions Report’.  It is assumed that 
the ‘Combined Viability Study’ prepared by CBRE and the referenced report are one and the same and the comments 
made within are done so on that basis.  Please advise urgently if this is not the case. 
 
Paragraph 6.20 of the Statement states that QSC will not have an adverse impact on NWG on the basis it is not a viable 
prospect in any event based on the findings of the CBRE Study.   This is contended and full assessment of the CBRE 
Study is provided under separate cover.  

 
The Statement goes on to claim that QSC will make NWG a more, not less, attractive investment opportunity (para 
6.23).   It speculates that ‘Other development options which may fall within the parameters of the permission (albeit 
without a large multiplex cinema); or within the general nature of the policy for the North Westgate Opportunity Area, 
become viable development options.’.  This is not substantiated with any evidence, whereas Hawksworth has provided 
extensive material to demonstrate that a cinema is the only viable anchor for the NWG scheme.  This is detailed and 
summarised in Savills’ letter dated 25 September 2015 (Letter 2), also enclosed.    

 
Finally, Paragraph 6.23 claims that Invesco, the owner of QSC, ‘has an inherent interest in seeing development come 
forward on this site [NWG]’.  Page 3 of Letter 2 (entitled ‘Hawksworth Attempts to Work with Owners of Queensgate’) 
provides evidence to the contrary.  Invesco has consistently failed to engage with Hawksworth and certainly has not 
shared any view that NWG would become a priority following expansion of QSC (as stated in the CBRE Study).   
 
It is clear from the above, that the Planning Statement has made a number of incorrect and / or unsubstantiated 
assumptions that means the overall assessment on the impact of NWG cannot be considered  sound.  
 
Comparative Analysis  

The comparison exercise undertaken within the Planning Statement is somewhat confusing; it is not clear why 
paragraphs 6.36 – 6.38 consider the relocation of existing major retailers in QSC to NWG.  NWG does not include units 
that would accommodate such occupiers and it is not the intention to draw across existing tenants of QSC.   Whilst the 
scheme is in outline, detailed indicative plans were submitted which shows the size and shape of these units at NWG.   

APPENDIX 1

52



a 
 

Page | 5 
 

Paragraph 6.24 of the Planning Statement reads ‘it is our view that the regeneration benefits delivered by the QSC 
proposals are more beneficial to the city centre than the development of North Westgate, in any event, so planning 
permission should still be granted for QSC’.  However, paragraph 6.25, goes on to state that ‘analysis of the two 
schemes as presented in the respective planning application material reveals a larger and wider range of potential 
planning benefits arising from the North Westgate scheme, reflecting the size and scope of that proposal, compared 
with that for QSC’.  The Statement contradicts itself in this respect but it is clear, as is recognised in the Development 
Plan, that the regeneration of NWG will bring significantly greater benefit compared to what can be offered by the QSC 
scheme.  

Having identified that QSC will cause harm to the redevelopment of NWG, the Statement dismisses this on the basis 
NWG is not viable and will not be delivered in any event.  This is simply not the case.  This conclusion is based on the 
findings of the CBRE Study which has made assumptions that are inaccurate and, thus, impact on its findings. 
Hawksworth’s detailed comments on that CBRE Study are being prepared and will be submitted under separate cover. 

The benefits identified with regard to the QSC primarily relate to the retailers which already lease units in the shopping 
centre, ‘the majority of [which are] national multiple retailers including major anchors such as John Lewis, Marks and 
Spencer, Next, BHS and Primark’(para 6.26).  The re-configuration of units does not relate to the cinema offer; indeed 
there is no tangible evidence to suggest that this could still go ahead regardless of whether a cinema is provided.  Thus, 
it is considered that these supposed benefits could be delivered in any event.  It is misleading for NLP to suggest that 
without a cinema, QSC will not seek to accommodate the requirements of its ‘major national retailers’. 

Overall the assessment is contradictory and makes claims without evidence; it cannot be relied upon.  It is evident NLP 
is aware that the retail market is not as strong as it once was and, hence, new uses are being encouraged in town and 
city centres.  It recognises the synergy required in order to make mixed-use developments work (as is the case for 
NWG).   Yet, it claims alternative uses should be found for NWG.  It is clear that QSC is very successful and acts as the 
core attraction in Peterborough City Centre.  It also acknowledges the NWG offers greater planning benefits compared 
to QSC.  Despite all of that, it considers the inclusion of a cinema at QSC should be prioritised over the regeneration of 
NWG. 

The Planning Balance  and Conclusions 

In order to make an informed decision about the QSC proposals, it is necessary to properly assess the land use planning 
implications of granting planning permission for the QSC proposals.  As per previous written correspondence, this 
letter has demonstrated that policy priority for NWG exists.  It has also highlighted the implications to NWG if planning 
permission is granted for the QSC, namely, the NWG scheme will not be implemented.  This is not disputed in the QSC 
Planning Statement.  

It is clear that the two schemes must be regarded as alternatives to one another.  If planning permission is granted for 
QSC, this will result in the loss of the very considerable planning benefits associated with the NWG scheme.   

The Committee Report for the Original QSC Application recognised that the NWG scheme ‘would be a positive 
contribution for the city centre’ but offered no further guidance about how significant those benefits would be and 
what weight should be attached to the loss of those benefits in the planning balance.  The submitted Planning 
Statement for the Current QSC Application acknowledges, through its own analysis of the two schemes, that ‘a larger 
and wider range of potential planning benefits arising from the North Westgate scheme compared to QSC’  and simply 
relies on the fact that NWG is ‘not viable anyway’ to justify why QSC should be granted planning permission.   In effect, 
it proposes that QSC should be granted by default, “just in case” NWG is not viable.  The Applicant’s proposed 
precautionary approach, giving priority to QSC over NWG, is perverse as that approach would clearly be contrary to key 
objectives of the Development Plan.  If there is to be a precautionary approach, it should be in favour of NWG rather 
than QSC given its Development Plan support.  

In conclusion, it is essential that a robust comparative assessment of the merits of the two schemes is undertaken.  The 
comparative analysis in the Planning Statement and the CBRE Study cannot be relied upon for reasons detailed in this 

APPENDIX 1

53



a 
 

Page | 6 
 

letter.   Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the City Council to have regard to the 
provisions of the adopted Development Plan that are material to an application for planning permission.  The 
importance that is attached to the allocated NWG site’s development and regeneration in the Core Strategy not only 
obliges the Council to take proper account of any likely harm to the prospect of that being achieved as an important 
and significant material consideration but also means that any material harm of that sort could result in conflict with 
the Development Plan and prejudice to the achievement of its objectives.  Thus, the Council has a duty to undertake a 
comparison assessment independently and until this is done it is not in a position to assess the planning balance and 
reach a sound recommendation to Members.   In any event, it would only be appropriate to grant planning permission 
if the benefits associated with the QSC scheme were judged to be such as to outweigh the loss of the benefits 
associated with the North Westgate scheme. 

I trust this letter is helpful in your consideration of the QSC application and I would be grateful for your response to the 
concerns raised.  Please do not hesitate to contact me should you require further information or wish to discuss.  
 
Yours sincerely  
 

pp  

Craig O’Brien BA (Hons) BTP MRTPI 
Director 
 
Enclosed: 
Savills Letter, dated 8

th
 September 2015 

Savills Letter, date 25
th

 September 2015 
 

 

  
 

APPENDIX 1

54



Jonathan Lambert MRTPI MRICS 

E: jlambert@savills.com 

DL: +44 (0) 117 910 0362 

F: +44 (0) 117 910 0399 

 

Embassy House 

Queens Avenue 

Bristol BS8 1SB 

T: +44 (0) 1179 100 300 

savills.com 

 

bc 
 

  

Dear Mrs MacLennan 

Planning Application 16/00252/FUL 
Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, Peterborough - Viability 

I write on behalf of Hawksworth Securities plc (‘Hawksworth’) with regard to the above referenced planning 
application concerning Queensgate Shopping Centre (QSC).   
 
You will recall that Craig O’Brien wrote a letter of objection to Peterborough City Council ('the City Council') in 
relation to the QSC application on 1 April 2016, which indicated that further submissions would follow in 
relation to the issue of viability. 
 
This letter focuses on the content of the Comparative Viability Study (CBRE, January 2016) which was based 
around a comparative financial assessment of the proposed schemes at QSC and North Westgate (NWG), 
Peterborough. CBRE came to the conclusion within its report that the QSC proposals were profitable and 
deliverable and the NWG scheme was unviable and had no reasonable prospect of being delivered. 
 
There are three important introductory points that we would wish to emphasise before responding in more 
detail to the CBRE document. 
 

1. It is clear that the CBRE assessment cannot properly be regarded as either rigorous and robust, nor 
fair and balanced.  Any such assessment of the potential viability of a proposed development, would 
naturally seek to discuss the issue with those most closely connected with the development in order 
to check assumptions, gather relevant information and discuss any issues arising.  The report would 
then take account of that input.  That has not happened.  The failure to take those steps has resulted 
in an assessment that is based on a number of important false assumptions and is unsound and 
unreliable as a result.  If the City Council did wish to adopt the approach urged upon it by the 
Planning Statement submitted in support of the QSC application, and conclude that the NWG 
scheme is not viable and will not come forward whatever decision is made on the QSC scheme, it 
would first need to undertake its own independent and impartial assessment of viability, informed by 
discussions with Hawksworth and its advisers.  Any such assessment should consider the viability of 
both schemes, and also the effect on the viability of the NWG scheme (and any other realistic 
alternative) of a grant of planning permission for the QSC scheme. Hawksworth would be content to 
co-operate in such an exercise, provided that appropriate safeguards were put in place to ensure 
commercially sensitive information was not placed in the public domain, and it was given a fair 
opportunity to comment on and respond to the assessment undertaken on behalf of the City Council. 
 

13 April 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
Mrs J MacLennan 
Peterborough City Council  
Planning - Development Management 
Town Hall 
Bridge Street 
Peterborough 
PE1 1HF 

janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

By E-mail only 
 
 

APPENDIX 1

55



a 
 

Page | 2 

2. As the City Council is well aware, Hawksworth has spent a great deal of time, effort and money in 
promoting its proposed redevelopment of the NWG site, and seeking to bring it to fruition.  This has 
included not only the successful application for planning permission, and subsequent land assembly, 
but also embarking upon judicial review proceedings and detailed discussions with the City Council 
on the possibility of a Joint Venture to implement the scheme.  It has only done so because - as an 
experienced developer - it regards the NWG scheme as a viable and attractive commercial 
proposition (provided there is no cinema in the QSC).  Commonsense suggests that it would not be 
acting in this way if the scheme would produce a negative return in the order of £41,000,000 as the 
CBRE report implausibly asserts.  This only serves to underline the significance of the fact that CBRE 
has produced its report, and reached its conclusions, without any input from those who are in the 
best position to understand the NWG scheme's viability. 
 

3. The CBRE document provides no substantive evidence whatsoever for the assertion made in the 
QSC Planning Statement that the QSC development will improve the prospects of the NWG site 
coming forward in the future (see paragraph 6.20).  No alternative future scheme has been identified, 
let alone assessed, in order to reach this conclusion.  There is no suggestion as to what alternative 
use might successfully anchor such an alternative future scheme, let alone how the conclusion is 
reached that such a scheme - without a cinema  - would be able to make a positive return in 
circumstances where it is claimed that the current scheme - with a cinema - would produce a 
negative return of £41,000,000.  In short, the case presented by QSC in its planning statement is not 
just entirely unsupported by the CBRE assessment, it is impossible to square with its central 
conclusion about the viability of the current NWG scheme.  At least one of the Planning Statement's 
conclusions must be wrong.  In fact, both are. 

 
Having set out those important introductory points, there are a number of more detailed reasons why CBRE’s 
conclusion relating to the viability of NWG is unsound: 
 

1. In the context of relevant S.106 negotiations during the course of its planning application (ref. 
15/01041/OUT), Hawksworth  submitted a viability appraisal to the City Council, which was determined 
in September 2015. This information was provided to the City Council willingly and on an open book 
basis. The most recent viability appraisal is submitted by Hawksworth in August 2015 which concluded 
the scheme was viable and deliverable. It was incumbent upon the City Council to critically assess 
Hawksworth’s appraisal and viability.  At no stage during these discussions, did the City Council 
challenge the viability information nor did it raise any significant concerns. The City Council endorsed 
this position through the grant of outline planning permission.  It should be noted that since the time of 
the last appraisal, market conditions have improved both as regards values and demand. That viability 
appraisal demonstrated a range of scenarios all showing the scheme with a net surplus. 
 

2. In addition to the viability information provided by Hawksworth, there is  the delivery aspect to consider, 
namely the ongoing discussions that are taking place with developers, occupiers and investors relating 
to the implementation of the scheme on the back of the planning consent. The City Council is aware of a 
number of these discussions. This is relevant given that viability does not relate solely to the outputs of a 
financial appraisal but also the ‘lettability’ of the scheme itself and attractiveness to end occupiers and 
investors.  The quality of the occupiers will also directly impact its value (yield).  The CBRE report fails to 
consider this issue adequately or at all.  Again, this underlines the significance of the fact that it has been 
compiled without any input from those in the best position to provide the information needed to 
undertake a realistic, robust and reliable assessment of commercial viability. 
 

3. We consider the scheme is of the correct critical mass and has the right balance of leisure, retail, office 
and residential to be attractive to the market. As we stated above, Hawksworth is  continually refining the 
scheme with the support of its agency advisors to reflect changing market conditions and occupier 
interest. Such refinement is within the parameters of the planning permission. Relevant to this is 
Hawksworth’s opinion that the City Centre can sustain either the NWG scheme or the QSC scheme and 
not both; hence the objection to this planning application on the impact if permission were granted for  
QSC, upon the delivery of NWG. This is from not only a planning perspective but also that of occupier 

APPENDIX 1

56



a 
 

Page | 3 

demand.  There are a number of assumptions within the CBRE Report that we feel are inaccurate and, 
thus, impact on its findings. These can be summarised as follows: 

 
a. Floorspace – CBRE has assumed areas that are inaccurate and do not reflect Hawksworth’s 

current scheme iteration. For example the residential sales areas have been underestimated.  
  

b. GDV – the fact that the incorrect residential areas have been applied and a pessimistic view on 
values that do not reflect recent sales in Peterborough has resulted in the GDV of this element 
being underestimated by over £12m. In fact, CBRE have assumed that the NWG scheme only 
has a GDV of £90m. Our assessment is that this will be in excess of £120m. 

 
c. Construction Costs – the construction costs applied by CBRE to the NWG scheme are not 

consistent with the cost advice provided by Gardiner and Theobald to  Hawksworth. This has 
resulted in the CBRE assumptions being over estimated by  £10m. 

 
d. Pessimistic rents and yields – we have concluded that a number of the assumptions relating to 

rents and yields are pessimistic. The retail rents in particular are not consistent with the advice 
that Hawksworth has received from its agent, Lunson Mitchenall, of £40-45 per square foot and 
the ongoing discussions with occupiers. Some of these assumptions are material. On yield 
CBRE have assumed yields for the retail and leisure based around what they describe as 
“weaker covenants” based on “weak demand” for this location. What this analysis fails to 
address is the NWG scheme aims to establish a new high quality leisure and retail attraction for 
the City centre. Given this, we are of the view that yields would be better than the “good 
secondary” yield of 6.50% quoted in the CBRE report. This relates to our view that the City 
Centre can sustain either the NWG scheme or the QSC scheme and not both. 

 
e. Based on the above, the CBRE report highlighting a negative return of £41,000,000 is 

inaccurate. The development appraisal provided to the Council in August 2015 as well as our 
assessment through the critique of the CBRE report shows the scheme makes a profit. 

 
f. It is unclear, within the CBRE Report, whether the rents and yields applied with the NWG 

appraisal have been applied on the assumption that the QSC scheme receives consent and is 
implemented ahead of NWG. In other words,  whether it assumes NWG is implemented instead 
of  or in addition to QSC. This is relevant to the point made in 3) above. 

 
4. It is not the purpose of this letter to carry out a full critique of CBRE’s appraisal assumptions for QSC. 

However, it is noted that the £4.2m profit of the QSC scheme is based around an assumption that there 
is a £10m Scheme Value Uplift for the whole of the shopping centre on the back of this being delivered. 
 

We have not sought to provide a fully updated viability appraisal of the NWG scheme at this stage.  Such an 
exercise would take several months, and as a matter of practicality could not therefore be completed in time 
to meet the deadlines for determination of the QSC application. In any event, for the reasons summarised 
above, it is not necessary in order to show that the CBRE report is neither robust nor reliable.  As we have 
said, the most appropriate course of action would be for the City Council to commission its own independent 
and impartial appraisal, which should consider the viability of both schemes, and also the effect on the 
viability of the NWG scheme (and realistic alternatives) of a grant of planning permission for the QSC 
scheme.  Hawksworth would be content to co-operate in that exercise, subject to agreeing suitable 
safeguards to protect commercially sensitive information. 
 
In conclusion, we strongly disagree with CBRE’s conclusion that the NWG scheme is unviable and that there 
is no prospect of the scheme being delivered. Hawksworth has openly engaged with the Council on viability 
throughout the process and this position has not been challenged.  We believe the CBRE Report has been 
produced with the intention of focusing on pessimistic assumptions in order for  the viability of the NWG 
scheme to be discredited.  It is neither fair nor balanced, and the conclusions it reaches are not robust or 
reliable.   

APPENDIX 1

57



a 
 

Page | 4 

 
The ongoing dialogue taking place between Hawksworth and a number of key occupiers, developers and 
investors supports the viability position tabled as part of its planning application and confirms the strong 
interest that exists in the NWG scheme as whole.  Also, Hawksworth has conducted discussions with all the 
principal cinema operators which have all expressed strong views that a multiplex in the NWG scheme is 
preferable to a rooftop location above Queensgate.  
 
Hawksworth is, therefore, keen to continue its dialogue with the Council on the implementation of its planning 
permission and the City Council’s overall policy objective for Peterborough. Aside form the above, the Council 
has also offered a Joint Venture to develop NWG, including preferable rates of finance, which it has access to 
via Government, and assistance with infrastructure / public realm costs.  It has referred to a JV model similar 
to that at Fletton Quays.  Clearly these measures are designed to ensure the delivery of the scheme which, in 
turn, will assist with the commercial viability of the scheme which is not taken into account in the CBRE 
analysis.  The site is also the subject of a commitment, stated in its adopted policy, that the Council is willing 
to CPO the site in order to deliver its regeneration.   
 
As the City Council is aware, NWG is a strategic regeneration site in the heart of Peterborough's City Centre.  
It has long been allocated for redevelopment but has suffered a series of 'false starts' over the past few 
decades.   We had understood that the City Council is committed to seeing the site brought forward for 
redevelopment, and to using its powers and influence to achieve this.  The City Council has a strong track 
record of supporting development and investment in the City.  Paragraph 6.44 of the Planning Statement in 
support of the QSC scheme effectively invites the City Council to abandon that commitment and to adopt a 
significantly more pessimistic approach to the prospects of ever achieving the development plan's objectives 
for this crucially important city centre site.  To accept that invitation would not only result in another 'false 
start' for the regeneration of the NWG site, it would also send out a very negative and discouraging message 
to all those wanting to invest in Peterborough and hoping for the active support of the City Council in 
achieving the regeneration of the City Centre in accordance with the development plan's key objectives. 
Indeed, the Council has quoted the site as a sequentially preferable in the context of other out-of-centre 
planning applications which, by definition, means that it considers NWG to be viable.   
 
I trust this letter is helpful in your consideration of the QSC application. Should you have any queries please 
direct these initially through Craig O’Brien and Chloë Clark who are the Savills lead points of contact. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 

 
 

Jonathan Lambert MRTPI MRICS 
Director - Development 
 
cc  Peter Breach, Hawksworth Securities 
 Craig O’Brien, Savills 
 Chloë Clark, Savills 

APPENDIX 1

58



Craig O’Brien BA (Hons) BTP MRTPI 

E: cobrien@savills.com 

DL: +44 (0) 117 910 0335 

F: +44 (0) 117 910 0399 

 

Embassy House 

Queens Avenue 

Bristol BS8 1SB 

T: +44 (0) 1179 100 300 

savills.com 

 

 

Offices and associates throughout the Americas, Europe, Asia Pacific, Africa and the Middle East.                            

 

 

 

Savills (UK) Limited. Chartered Surveyors. Regulated by RICS. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No. 2605138. 
Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD 

 

Dear Mrs MacLennan 

Planning Application 15/01013/FUL 
Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, Peterborough  

I write on behalf of Hawksworth Securities plc in respect of the above referenced planning 
application concerning Queensgate Shopping Centre (QSC) which seeks planning permission for:   
 
‘Part demolition, alteration and extension including change of use and erection of roof top 
extension to provide for uses within A1, A3- A5 (shops, restaurants & cafes, drinking establishments 
and hot food take-away), D2 (assembly and leisure) and other associated works.’ 
 
The supporting information to the QSC Application states that the leisure provision will include 
food and drink uses and a cinema.  
 
You will be aware that on 30th June 2015, Savills, on behalf of Hawksworth Securities, submitted 
an outline planning application (LPA ref. 15/01041/OUT) for the first phase of redevelopment of 
the North Westgate Development Area which is located immediately north-west of QSC.  North 
Westgate is an allocated site that is identified for the delivery of a mixed-use development and it is 
prioritised for redevelopment in the early years of the plan period.  The site’s delivery is key to 
achieving the regeneration the City Centre needs; that which the Development Plan identifies and 
seeks to secure.  The regeneration of North Westgate, together with other underused and vacant 
sites, will help to deliver key objectives for Peterborough including increased housing provision and 
City Centre living, retail expansion, leisure and cultural offers, to attract people into the City and 
improve the evening economy, an integrated City Centre that responds to surrounding urban 
communities.  The first redevelopment phase at North Westgate will achieve all of these objectives 

8th September 2015 
pcc080915ltcob 

 
 
 
Mrs J MacLennan 
Peterborough City Council  
Planning - Development Management 
Town Hall 
Bridge Street 
Peterborough 
PE1 1HF 

janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

By E-mail only 
 
 

APPENDIX 1

59



a 
 

Page | 2 
 

through the delivery of a mixed-use scheme including leisure, retail, office, residential and 
community uses which will be anchored by a multiplex cinema.   
 
The proposals for North Westgate represent significant planned investment (£100mil) that will 
underpin the regeneration of Peterborough’s Central Core and act as a catalyst for investment in 
the City.  From direct discussions with cinema operators Hawksworth and it’s agent, Lunson 
Mitchenall, has established that there is confirmed interest from a number of cinema operators in 
occupying the North Westgate scheme but this is conditional upon an alternative scheme at QSC 
not proceeding alongside North Westgate.  There is a real risk that the proposal for a new cinema 
at QSC, in such close proximity to North Westgate, will threaten its delivery and prevent the ability 
to fulfil the Development Plan objective to regenerate this site and, in turn, the City Centre.   
 
In light of the above, it is clear that the harm to the delivery of North Westgate is a material 
consideration in the determination of the QSC Application.  Consideration must therefore be given 
to the planning harm that would result by granting planning permission for a cinema at QSC; thus, 
preventing the redevelopment of North Westgate. 

In order to consider this in detail, it is necessary to identify and understand the planning policy 
context which informs the plan-making and decision-making in Peterborough. 
 

Planning Policy Context  

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out Central Government’s planning policy 
guidance for local planning authorities and decision-takers both in drawing up plans and as a 
material consideration in the determination of planning applications.   
 
It is relevant to note that the origins of NPPF relate back to the ‘Open Source Planning Green 
Paper’ released by the Conservative Party where it considered the previous planning system to be 
‘broken’ because it was not delivering the growth that the Country needed.  The NPPF has, 
therefore, been designed to facilitate positive growth; making economic, environmental and social 
progress for this and future generations by delivering sustainable development without delay.   
 
At the heart of the NPPF is the ‘presumption in favour of sustainable development’ (paragraph 14) 
which should be seen as ‘the golden thread through both plan-making and decision-taking’.   
 
Sustainable development has three dimensions - economic, social, and environmental – which 
gives rise to the need for the planning system to perform a number of roles: 

‘an economic role – contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by 
ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and at the right time to 
support growth and innovation; and by identifying and coordinating development requirements, 
including the provision of infrastructure; 

a social role – supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by providing the supply of 
housing required to meet the needs of present and future generations; and by creating a high 

APPENDIX 1

60



a 
 

Page | 3 
 

quality built environment, with accessible local services that reflect the community’s needs and 
support its health, social and cultural well-being; and 

an environmental role – contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural, built and historic 
environment; and, as part of this, helping to improve biodiversity, use natural resources prudently, 
minimise waste and pollution, and mitigate and adapt to climate change including moving to a low 
carbon economy.’ (paragraph 7, NPPF) 
 
Paragraph 8 is unequivocal that these roles ‘should not be undertaken in isolation because they are 
mutually dependent’. Therefore, the planning system should seek gains across the three 
dimensions of sustainable development ‘jointly and simultaneously’. Paragraph 9 continues that 
sustainable development involves seeking positive improvements in the quality of the built, natural 
and historic environment as well as in people’s quality of life including but not limited to: 

 ‘making it easier for jobs to be created in cities, towns and villages; 

 moving from a net loss of bio-diversity to achieving net gains for nature; 

 replacing poor design with better design; 

 improving the conditions in which people live, work, travel and take leisure; and 

 widening the choice of high quality homes.’ 
 
Paragraph 10 recognises that decisions need to take local circumstances into account so that they 
respond to different opportunities for achieving sustainable development in different areas. 
 
With regard to Plan-making the NPPF states that local planning authorities should have ‘a set of 
agreed priorities for the sustainable development of the area’ in the Local Plan which should 
include strategic policies to deliver:   

 ‘the homes and jobs needed in the area; 

 the provision of retail, leisure and other commercial development; 

 the provision of infrastructure for transport, telecommunications, waste management, 
water supply, wastewater, flood risk and coastal change management, and the provision of 
minerals and energy (including heat); 

 the provision of health, security, community and cultural infrastructure and other local 
facilities; and 

 climate change mitigation and adaptation, conservation and enhancement of the natural 
and historic environment, including landscape.’ (paras. 155 and 156) 

 
The current Development Plan for Peterborough includes, inter alia, the Core Strategy DPD (PCS) 
and the City Centre Development Plan Document (CCDPD).  These policy documents identify a 
number of objectives and development priorities for the City which, ultimately, seeks to achieve 
the strategic growth vision set by the Core Strategy.  This is to:  

APPENDIX 1

61



a 
 

Page | 4 
 

‘encourage and enable new development that will maintain and enhance the vitality of the centre, 
whilst preserving and enhancing the quality of the local environment.  This will undoubtedly involve 
changes widening the retail, leisure, tourism and cultural offer, creating new jobs, making the best 
use of land that is currently vacant or underused and improving the experience and convenience 
for pedestrians and cyclists.’  
 
This reflects Policy PB1 of the East of England Plan (now revoked) which highlighted that the 
strategy for Peterborough was for ‘growth and regeneration’, emphasising, among other things, 
the regeneration of the City Centre and inner urban areas.  PCS Objective OB13 echoes this, 
stating that the regeneration of the City Centre is ‘a priority in order to drive growth, maintain 
viability and enhance vitality so that it remains at the top of the retail hierarchy in the East of 
England region’.   
 
Core Strategy Policy CS4 relates directly to the delivery of objective OB13, setting out the 
overarching policy aspirations for the City Centre which, ultimately, seeks to ensure Peterborough 
maintains its position as a centre of regional significance.  In achieving this, support is given to 
mixed-use and major new cultural and leisure developments, together with the creation of a 
significantly larger City Centre resident population.  Of particular relevance is the policy support 
for the redevelopment of North Westgate and priority for its delivery in the early years of the Plan 
Period.    
 
Paragraph 7.0.2 makes it clear that whilst the primary implementation responsibility of the Core 
Strategy lies with Peterborough City Council, delivery and investment will need to come from the 
private sector, including house building companies, developers, retailers and business companies 
as well.   
 
Planned investment in the redevelopment of Peterborough City Centre is critical to facilitating its 
regeneration.  Indeed, paragraph 2.1.4 of the PCS states that Peterborough has been growing for 
many years, with a mixture of redevelopment of vacant and derelict sites within the urban area, 
and peripheral expansion. It states that there remain vacant and underused sites close to the City 
Centre which offer the opportunity for further investment to regenerate the area.   
 
North Westgate is one of those sites and the Council’s commitment to its redevelopment is long-
standing, having originally been allocated in the Greater Peterborough City Centre Plan (1971) and 
currently for mixed-use redevelopment in the adopted Development Plan (Core Strategy, CCDPD 
and Policies Map Insert 2).    
 
The redevelopment of North Westgate is required in order to drive the regeneration of this part of 
the City.  It is important to recognise the difference between redevelopment and regeneration.  
The former, in planning terms, focuses on monetary investment and physical changes whereas 
regeneration is a holistic process which aims to reverse the economic, social and physical decline of 
places where market forces alone will not suffice.  The planning process provides the opportunity 
to enhance the role and capacity of communities, as well as balancing community, business, 

APPENDIX 1

62



a 
 

Page | 5 
 

environmental and individual needs. Effective regeneration requires active and meaningful long-
term community engagement and involvement, as well as changes to the physical environment. 
 

Hawksworth has relied on these policies and statements made by the council in bringing forward a 
compliant, beneficial and viable scheme. 

 
Sustainable Development for Peterborough and meeting the Objectives of the Development Plan  

It is relevant to note the planning history of North Westgate.  In 2003 and then again in 2007 
planning applications were submitted for retail-led redevelopment proposals.  However, as a result 
of the economic downturn and subsequent recession from 2007/2008 onwards, these schemes 
were not pursued.  The Council’s evidence base and, consequently, adopted local planning policy 
recognises these fundamental market changes and the most up-to-date Development Plan 
Document, the CCDPD, encourages the introduction of other uses at North Westgate, namely 
leisure and housing.   
 
The Council’s Retail Study (2009) and subsequent Retail Update (2013) acknowledge that the North 
Westgate site has been prioritised in policy for many years.  Whilst the findings of the studies 
identify need for additional town centre retailing, they also recognise market challenges and 
recommend that planning policy must embrace greater flexibility of uses in order to maintain a 
healthy town centre.  In particular, the report advises that Peterborough City Centre ‘should 
include a diversity of town centre mix through daytime and evening eating/drinking, cinema, health 
type leisure facilities (yoga/pilates/gyms/personal training etc), snooker/pool halls, children’s 
play/activity destinations, community facilities, libraries and crèche facilities, for example. The 
greater the mix of uses, the greater the opportunity for linked trips and more frequent trips’ (para. 
7.25).  
 
With particular regard to leisure provision, Core Strategy Policy CS18 (Culture, Leisure and Tourism) 
states that there will be a particular focus on the provision of new and improved cultural, leisure 
and tourism facilities in the City Centre and that this will include the identification of areas to 
promote and focus these uses through mixed-use development.  North Westgate is one of those 
areas.   
 
The CCDPD reflects the Core Strategy approach, promoting the City Centre as the first choice and 
focus for cultural and leisure uses (para 4.6.8).  Paragraph 4.6.9 identifies a number of projects that 
will help to improve and enhance the City’s cultural offer which, amongst other things, including a 
City Centre cinema.    
 
Queensgate and North Westgate fall within the City Core Policy Area (Policy CC3).  The Policy 
makes no specific provision for Queensgate.  The following is stated in relation to North Westgate: 

‘North Westgate Opportunity Area (CC3.5) planning permission will be granted for comprehensive 
mixed-use development including retail, housing, office and leisure uses, which is well integrated 
with the existing retail area.  This must also include improvements to pedestrian connectivity 

APPENDIX 1

63



a 
 

Page | 6 
 

between the site and the railway station.  The design, layout and access arrangements must 
enhance the transition between the residential area to the north and the City Centre.’   
 
Paragraph 5.2.8 of the CCDPD states in relation to the North Westgate Opportunity Area, “The 
council will use its compulsory purchase powers where necessary for land assembly to ensure the 
optimum redevelopment solution.”  There is therefore a clear commitment from the Council to 
deliver the land required for development of the North Westgate scheme. This is reinforced by 
Hawksworth who have been negotiating with landowners to assemble the site. 
 
The proposed development at North Westgate achieves the above policy aspiration in its entirety 
and will deliver the roles of sustainable development for the following reasons: 

 Socially, it will deliver housing, health and wellbeing through the provision of a mix of uses 
including a variety of houses and community facilities; a significantly improved public realm 
area which will result in improvements to the streetscape and encourage cohesion; a design 
that provides a safe and secure environment. 

 Economically, it will create an estimated 1,117 potential jobs through the new leisure, retail 
and office facilities, together with over 112 FTE temporary construction jobs; provision of a 
mix of new leisure, retail, commercial and business uses, as well as residential uses 
compatible with the existing City Centre.  This will complement the existing offers 
surrounding the site and, overall, will act as a catalyst for further investment.  

 Environmentally the scheme offers significant enhancements to the heritage and the built 
environment.  The high quality design enables the commercial elements to achieve a 
BREEAM ‘Very Good’ rating and all residential dwellings to meet the local authority 
aspirations for 10% betterment of building regulations.  The public realm, landscape 
strategy which includes sustainable urban drainage, offers numerous benefits to 
Peterborough’s residents, the city’s biodiversity and its environmental quality.  Ease of 
movement in and around the site as well as to the rail and bus stations will also contribute 
to reducing travel by car.  

 
North Westgate offers a very specific opportunity to achieve sustainable development on a scale 
that no other site within Peterborough’s City Core that has the ability to do.  The above identified 
benefits will be achieved jointly and simultaneously which, in the round, should be attributed 
significant weight in the decision making process.   
 
If development of North Westgate does not proceed then the implications for Peterborough’s Core 
Strategy include the undersupply of housing and jobs, both of which are fundamental to the 
growth strategy and achieving sustainable development, as identified above.  This undersupply will 
lead to applications for residential development on non allocated sites which may need to be 
approved to provide a 5 year housing land supply. 

APPENDIX 1

64



a 
 

Page | 7 
 

In line with NPPF paragraph 10, it is for the Local Planning Authority to consider the local 
circumstance that are relevant when considering the implications QSC will have on North Westgate 
i.e. that it will prevent its redevelopment.   

In the context of NPPF paragraph 9, QSC proposals will not: 

 replace poor design with better design or enhance the historic environment 

 improve the conditions in which people live, work, travel and take leisure 

 improve the public realm 

 improve connections within the City Centre and between it and transport hubs 

 integrate the surrounding residential communities with the city centre, particularly that to 
the north of the Central Core 

 widen the choice of high quality homes  

 achieve net gains for nature 

 
The limited benefit and notable failings of QSC must be considered within the context of the far-
reaching benefits of North Westgate.  A balance must be struck and weight attributed to the 
schemes, recognising that if planning permission is granted for a cinema at QSC, North Westgate 
will not be delivered.  Indeed, taking into account these local circumstances, the Council should 
consider whether, despite the identified failings of QSC, it can still be considered sustainable 
development.  Hawksworth contends that it cannot.  
 
Overall, the inclusion of a cinema at Queensgate will actively prevent the planned £100mil 
investment for the regeneration of North Westgate that will fulfil the Council’s longstanding 
allocation and policy objectives for the site.  To expand on the above, identified net gains across 
the three pillars of sustainability, North Westgate will have significant and far-reaching benefits 
including: 

 Provision of a significant new leisure facility in the form of an 8 screen cinema which will be 
complemented by restaurants and cafes, making a meaningful contribution to the 
expansion of the evening economy in the City Centre; 

 A food hall that will act as a leisure and cultural attraction in itself, being the first in 
Peterborough; 

 New and improve community facilities including a Church Hall, bookshop, health centre, 
worship/community room; 

 A new public square centred on Westgate Church and wider public realm improvements 
that improve connectivity within and around the site, in particular to the bus and rail 
stations; 

APPENDIX 1

65



a 
 

Page | 8 
 

 Expansion of the retail offer along Westgate which will add to expand and complement the 
existing mix by providing smaller units for new and bespoke businesses, as well as a new 
convenience store; 

 New apartments that will making a meaningful contribution to creating a City Centre living 
and a new community in this part of the City;  

 Much needed modern office space with easy access to bus and rail stations; 

 Significantly improve the setting of a number of heritage assets including the City Centre 
Conservation Area, Westgate Church, 16 – 18 Lincoln Road and the Grade II listed Wortley 
Almshouses. 

 
Conclusions 
The redevelopment of North Westgate will facilitate redevelopment and, therefore, kick-start 
regeneration elsewhere in the City Centre.   However, the proposed leisure-led scheme is 
dependent on the inclusion of a cinema which acts as its anchor.  The inclusion of and grant of 
planning permission for a cinema at QSC will jeopardise this and prevent the North Westgate 
scheme coming forward.   
 
The NPPF clearly states that there should be a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 
 
Sustainability has three dimensions: economic, social and environmental (paragraph 7).  Paragraph 
8 states that these roles should not be undertaken in isolation; to achieve sustainable development 
economic, social and environmental gains “should be sought jointly and simultaneously” and  
“planning should play an active role in guiding  development to sustainable locations”.  
 
As set out above, North Westgate will deliver economic, social and environmental gains, including 
the regeneration of this key City Centre site, with an estimated 1117 potential jobs, the delivery of 
over 200 dwellings, community facilities, new public spaces and connections to the communities to 
the north as well as enhancing the setting of Westgate Church and properties on Lincoln Road.   
 
North Westgate clearly meets the requirements of the NPPF by jointly and simultaneously 
facilitating net gains across the three pillars of sustainability.   
 
If the development of North Westgate does not proceed then the implications for the 
Peterborough Core Strategy includes the undersupply of housing and jobs, both of which are key to 
the growth strategy and sustainability.   
 
The cinema in Queensgate delivers some economic gains in terms of jobs but it does not offer any 
regeneration benefits for the City Centre and offers no social or environmental gains such as 
housing, community facilities and new public realm.  It does not represent sustainable 
development and it will prejudice the opportunity to deliver sustainable development in 
Peterborough City Centre as proposed in the Development Plan policies  CS4 and CC3. 
 

APPENDIX 1

66



a 
 

Page | 9 
 

 
 
Policy CS4 of the PCS gives policy support for the redevelopment of North Westgate and priority 
for its delivery in the early years of the Plan Period. 
 
Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan DPD, regarding development in the City Core, states that 
proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive development of North Westgate Opportunity 
Area will not be permitted.  
 
In conclusion, Queensgate does not benefit from a policy allocation and the adopted Development 
Plan makes no reference to the expansion of leisure facilities within the QSC.  Given the policy 
priory afforded to North Westgate, which is allocated and offers the delivery of significant planned 
investment in the City Centre, it is imperative that planning permission is refused for a cinema at 
Queensgate. 
 
The reasons for refusal of the Queensgate scheme can be summarised as follows: 
 
1.  The scheme does not provide the joint and simultaneous delivery of the three elements of 
sustainability required by the NPPF and does not respond to the opportunity to achieve sustainable 
development in Peterborough City Centre.  It is, therefore, contrary to paragraphs 8 and 10 of the 
NPPF, Policy PP1 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and Policy CC1 of the City Centre DPD. 
 
2.  The scheme would prejudice the delivery of the regeneration and sustainable development of 
North Westgate which is a priority within the Development Plan.  It is, therefore, contrary to Policy 
CS4 of the Core Strategy and Policy CC3 of the CCDPD. 
 
I trust this letter is helpful in your consideration of the application.  Please do not hesitate to 
contact me should you have any queries.  
 
Yours sincerely  

pp  

Craig O’Brien BA (Hons) BTP MRTPI 
Director 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1

67



This page is intentionally left blank

68



APPENDIX 1

69



APPENDIX 1

70



APPENDIX 1

71



APPENDIX 1

72



APPENDIX 1

73



This page is intentionally left blank

74



Item no 1 

 

 1 

Planning and EP Committee 29 September 2015 
 
Application Ref: 15/01013/FUL  
 
Proposal: Part demolition, alteration and extension including change of use and 

erection of roof top extension to provide for uses within A1, A3- A5 
(shops, restaurants & cafes, drinking establishments and hot food take-
away), D2 (assembly and leisure) and other associated works 

 
Site: Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, Peterborough,  
Applicant: IREEF Queensgate Peterborough Propco S.a.r.l 
Agent: Miss Hannah Fortune 
 Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners 
Site visit: 24.08.2015 
 
Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan 
Telephone No. 01733 454438 
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and surrounding area: 
 
The application site is at the north west corner of the Queensgate Shopping Centre (QSC) which lies 
at the heart of the city centre retail area.  The site primarily involves the area occupied by John Lewis 
and the former Waitrose store. It covers an area of approximately 1.8 hectares, providing c. 36,000 
sqm Gross Internal Area (GIA) of Class A1-A5 floorspace.   The site is bounded to the north by 
Westgate and the ‘Westgate Development Opportunity Area’, to the south by Cowgate and to the 
west by the Bus Station, multi storey car parks and Bourges Boulevard beyond.  The surrounding 
area comprises a mix of uses including retail, leisure, offices and further afield, residential.  The site 
abuts the Park Conservation Area and the City Centre Conservation Area to the north and south 
respectively and lies in close proximity to a number of listed and locally listed buildings. 
 
The site lies adjacent to the Bus Station and is within a five minute walk of the railway station.  There 
are four multi-storey car parks adjoining the centre which offer 2,300 car parking spaces. The site 
offers good pedestrian and cycling links to nearby residential properties.  
 
Proposal 
 
The application seeks planning consent for the addition of roof extensions to provide a multi-screen 
cinema (D2) and food and beverage areas (A1-A5).   
 
Cinema:  The Cinema would occupy part of the centre occupied by John Lewis at the second floor 
and would extend over the former Waitrose unit.  An additional floor would be provided by a roof 
extension above the John Lewis store to create a third floor, including a mezzanine, to provide the 
cinema.  The additional D2 floor space required to accommodate the cinema would be 3729 sqm 
and an additional 688 sqm for the Mezzanine floor. 
 
The height of roof extension accommodating the cinema element would be 3.7m above the existing 
Mansard Roof of the John Lewis store to the north.  The IMAX element of the cinema would be an 
additional 3m in height and would be set in from the west elevation of the building by 32m. 
 
Restaurant Cluster:  Two additional floors would be added at roof level above the former Waitrose 

APPENDIX 2

75



Item no 1 

 

 2 

Store to provide for food and beverage uses.   The food and beverage area will form a cluster located 
within the extensions providing 2000sqm at first floor level and 457 sqm at second floor level.   
The extension above the former Waitrose Store, the southern element, accommodating part of the 
cinema and restaurants would have staggered roof heights, the highest element being the cinema 
at 14.9m. 
 
The roof of the west mall would be removed at the upper ground floor level to be replaced with a 
full height glazed mall.  This would provide natural light and a visual connection to the activity on 
the upper floors. 
 
Changes are proposed to the John Lewis service yard and ‘click and collect’ facility to include a 
ramped access and additional customer parking. 
 
The total gross internal area of the Queensgte Centre following development would be 48,516 
sqm; an increase of 6,858 sqm.  The following table sets out the composition of floor space/uses 
within the Centre. 
 

Use Existing GIA 
(sqm) 

GIA to be 
lost by 
change of 
use or 
demolitions 
(sqm) 

Total GIA 
New 
Floorspace 
(including 
change of 
use) (sqm) 

Net 
Additional 
GIA 
following 
development 
(sqm) 
 

Total 
Floorspace 

A1 (Retail) 35,849 5,252 64 -5,188 30,661 

 
A3-A5 
(restaurants & 
cafes, drinking 
establishments 
& Hot-food 
takeaways) 

 
242 

 
116 

 
2,450 

 
2,334 

 
2,576 

 
D2 (Leisure) 

0 0 4,278 4,278 4,278 

 
Scheme ‘other’ 

 
5,579 

 
249 

 
5,683 

 
5,434 

 
11,013 

 
Total 

 
41,670 

 
5,617 

 
12,475 

 
6,858 

 
48,528 

 
 
The overall amount of A1 (retail) floorspace will decrease due to the increase in A3-A5, D2 and other 
uses including improved pedestrian circulation and dining space. 
 
It is proposed that the QSC car parks would be open later during the evenings to accommodate the 
cinema goers. 
 
The malls to the QSC would also be accessible during the evenings providing links to Cathedral 
Square from Queens Street and Cumbergate providing connectivity through the QSC with the 
Bus/Rail Station. 
 
Internal reconfigurations:   
The proposal would involve internal reconfigurations, the details of which are provided below.  The 
internal works do not require the benefit of planning permission and are provided for information 
only. 
 
The works to the centre would involve the reconfiguration of the John Lewis Store and the utilisation 
of back-of-house areas which are no longer required.  John Lewis is retracting its shop floor coverage 

APPENDIX 2

76



Item no 1 

 

 3 

and Waitrose has relocated which has provided the opportunity for additional retail units.  New retail 
units would be provided on the upper ground floor and first floor levels of the John Lewis store.  The 
former Waitrose store will provide a new retail unit and a circulation core/access to the new 
restaurant and leisure offer to be constructed above.  The roof top extension created above the 
former Waitrose store would provide restaurants.  The restaurants would overlook the west mall with 
terraces surrounding a double height internal courtyard.  The circulation core/access continues on 
this level to access the restaurants and cinema above on the second floor. 
 
The second floor would accommodate the multi-screen cinema.  The cinema lobby would be to the 
south with the majority of screens accessed via a bridge over the west mall.  The Mezzanine cinema 
level is proposed to link both blocks across the enhanced mall space. 
 
2 Planning History 
 

Reference Proposal Decision Date 
10/01426/FUL Extension to provide additional retail floor 

space, development of new service corridor 
and lift core in basement service yard, 
construction of new mansard roofs and 
elevation works to King Street and Queen 
Street elevations 

Permitted  31/01/2011 

11/00980/DISCHG Discharge of conditions C2 ( Archaeological 
work) , C3 ( Materials) and C5 ( Site 
Investigations) of planning permission 
10/01426/FUL - Extension to provide 
additional retail floorspace, development of 
new service corridor and lift core in 
basement service yard, construction of new 
mansard roofs and elevation works to King 
Street and Queen Street elevations 

Determined  19/08/2011 

11/01052/NONMAT Non-material amendment to planning 
permission 10/01426/FUL - Extension to 
provide additional retail floor space, 
development of new service corridor and lift 
core in basement service yard, construction 
of new mansard roofs and elevation works 
to King Street and Queen Street elevations 

Comments  02/08/2011 

11/01456/DISCHG Discharge of condition C4 (Construction 
Management Plan) of planning permission 
10/01426/FUL (Extension to provide 
additional retail floor space, development of 
new service corridor and lift core in 
basement service yard, construction of new 
mansard roofs and elevation works to King 
Street and Queen Street elevations) 

Determined  09/11/2011 

12/00578/FUL Installation of a new fire door to King Street 
(east side). 

Permitted  06/06/2012 

12/00641/NONMAT Non-material amendment to planning 
permission 10/01426/FUL dated 
31/01/2011 (Extension to provide additional 
retail floor space, development of new 
service corridor and lift core in basement 
service yard, construction of new mansard 
roofs and elevation works to King Street 
and Queen Street elevations) for 
amendments to conditions C8 and C9 

Comments  17/05/2012 

 

APPENDIX 2

77



Item no 1 

 

 4 

12/00735/FUL Installation of metal gate on the King Street 
Alley Way 

Permitted  06/07/2012 

12/00956/DISCHG Discharge of condition C7 (contamination) 
of planning permission ref. 10/01426/FUL 
dated 31/01/2011 - Extension to provide 
additional retail floorspace, development of 
new service corridor and lift core in 
basement service yard, construction of new 
mansard roofs and elevation works to King 
Street and Queen Street elevations 

Determined  19/07/2012 

12/01080/ADV Two internally illuminated Primark blue 
external letter signs, one internally 
illuminated projecting banner sign and four 
Primark blue vinyl text to glazing  
 

Permitted 10/09/2012 

12/01377/NONMAT Non-Material amendment to planning 
application 10/01426/FUL - Extension to 
provide additional retail floor space, 
development of new service corridor and lift 
core in basement service yard, construction 
of new mansard roofs and elevation works 
to King Street and Queen Street elevations 

Determined  27/09/2012 

12/01414/FUL Installation of street furniture at external 
entrances to Queensgate shopping centre, 
comprising new PAS rated bollards (static, 
removable and rising variations), vehicle 
blockers and PAS rated cycle racks. New 
gatehouse to be installed at one service 
entrance 

Permitted  26/11/2013 

15/00989/ADV 6 no. New, non-illuminated signs to replace 
existing like for like, all these signs are 
either external to the mall building or visible 
from the road 

Permitted  07/08/2015 

 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions  
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
it possesses. 
 
Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions.  
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses. 
 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 
 
Section 2 - Retail, Leisure and Office Development Outside Town Centres  
Should be subject to an Impact Assessment on existing, committed and planning public/private 
investment in a centre(s) and on town centre vitality and viability. If there is no local threshold, 2,500 

APPENDIX 2

78



Item no 1 

 

 5 

sq m will apply. Proposals which would have an adverse impact should be refused. 
 
Section 4 - Assessment of Transport Implications  
Development which generates a significant amount of traffic should be supported by a Transport 
Statement/Transport Assessment.  It should be located to minimise the need to travel/to maximise 
the opportunities for sustainable travel and be supported by a Travel Plan. Large scale developments 
should include a mix of uses. A safe and suitable access should be provided and the transport 
network improved to mitigate the impact of the development. 
 
Section 7 - Good Design  
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; optimise 
the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities and transport 
networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate innovation; 
create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of good architecture 
and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for development of poor 
design. 
 
Section 8 - Safe and Accessible Environments  
Development should aim to promote mixed use developments, the creation of strong neighbouring 
centres and active frontages; provide safe and accessible environments with clear and legible 
pedestrian routes and high quality public space. 
 
Section 8 - Social, Cultural and Recreational Facilities  
Developments should plan for the provision and use of shared space, community services and other 
local services; guard against the unnecessary loss of valued services/facilities; allow established 
shops, facilities and services to develop/modernise; and ensure an integrated approach to the 
location of housing, economic uses and communities facilities and services. 
 
Section 11 - Contamination  
The site should be suitable for its intended use taking account of ground conditions, land stability 
and pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation. After remediation, as a 
minimum, land should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
Section 11 - Noise  
New development giving rise to unacceptable adverse noise impacts should be resisted; 
development should mitigate and reduce to a minimum other adverse impacts on health and quality 
of life arising. Development often creates some noise and existing businesses wanting to expand 
should not be unreasonably restricted because of changes in nearby land uses. 
 
Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets  
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.  
When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation.   
 
Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred. 
 
Section 12 - Development Affecting Non-Designated Heritage Assets  
A balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm and the significance 
of the heritage asset.  Where the assets is demonstrably of equivalent significance to a Scheduled 
Monuments it should be subject to the policies for designated heritage assets. 
 

APPENDIX 2

79



Item no 1 

 

 6 

 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS04 - The City Centre  
Promotes the enhancement of the city centre through additional comparison retail floor space 
especially in North Westgate, new residential development, major new cultural and leisure 
developments and public realm improvements, as well as protecting its historic environment. 
 
CS10 - Environment Capital  
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK. 
 
CS14 - Transport  
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for residents. 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
CS17 - The Historic Environment  
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non 
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance. 
 
CS18 - Culture, Leisure and Tourism  
Development of new cultural, leisure and tourism facilities will be encouraged particularly in the city 
centre. 
 
CS15 - Retail  
Development should accord with the Retail Strategy which seeks to promote the City Centre and 
where appropriate the district and local centres. The loss of village shops will only be accepted 
subject to certain conditions being met. 
 
CS21 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation  
Development should conserve and enhance biodiversity/ geological interests unless no alternative 
sites are available and there are demonstrable reasons for the development. 
 
CS22 - Flood Risk  
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate. 
 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built and 
natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is sufficiently 
robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, 
public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other 
disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 

APPENDIX 2

80



Item no 1 

 

 7 

groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety. 
 
PP13 - Parking Standards  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made in 
accordance with standards. 
 
PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees and 
natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity. 
 
PP17 - Heritage Assets  
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits. 
 
 
Peterborough City Centre Plan (2014) 
 
CC1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Development should contribute to the City's Environment Capital ambition and take steps to address 
key principles of sustainable development. 
 
CC2 - Retail  
Proposals for retail development will be determined in accordance with Policies CS4 and CS15 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.  Within Primary Retail Frontages, development within use 
classes A1 and A3 will, in principle, be acceptable. 
 
CC3A - City Core Policy Area (a) General principles  
The Council will seek development of the highest quality which strengthens the area as the retail, 
leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough and its sub-region.  New development must: 
improve the quality of the public realm; protect important views of the Cathedral; preserve or enhance 
the heritage assets of the area; and protect and enhance existing retail areas.  The Council will also 
support development which results in a net increase in dwellings, improved connectivity, 
employment, conservation of historic shop fronts and development which encourages trips into the 
City Centre. 
 
North Westgate Opportunity Area  
Planning permission will be granted for comprehensive mixed-use development including retail, 
housing, office and leisure. This must also include improvements to the connectivity with the railway 
station and be integrated with the existing retail area. 
 
Individual proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive development of this area will not be 
permitted. 
 
CC11 - Transport  
Within the area of the City Centre Plan, all development which has transport implications will be 
expected to make a contribution to the delivery of the City Centre Transport Vision. 
 
The provision of additional car parking spaces will be resisted within the City Core Policy Area. 
 
Elsewhere in the City Centre new residential development within classes C3 and C4 will be expected 
to make provision for car parking in accordance with Policy PP13 of the Planning Policies DPD.  
There will be no minimum requirement for car parking spaces in association with any other type of 
development. Additional spaces will only be allowed if the development has provided a fully 
justification. 
 

APPENDIX 2

81



Item no 1 

 

 8 

Planning practice guidance (PPG) – Department for Communities and Local Government 
(2014) 
 

 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

 Design 

 Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

 Travel plans, transport assessments and statements in decision-taking 
 
The Park Conservation Area Appraisal Report and Management Plan 
 
The City Centre Conservation Area Appraisal Report and Management Plan 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
PCC Transport & Engineering Services – No objections – Staff cycle parking should be secured 
by condition.  The existing car parks are sufficient to meet the needs of the development.   
 
Travel Plan:  The submission of a Travel Plan is welcomed.  It includes targets and an action plan.   
 
Traffic impact:  The peak hours of use for a cinema are generally outside the highway network peak 
hours on both a weekday and Saturday. 
 
The TRACK plots submitted for the revised ‘click and collect’ area for the John Lewis store are 
acceptable. 
  
PCC Lead Local Drainage Authority – No objections – No comments to make in relation to this 
application as the surface water drainage as the footprint of the centre and ground level hard 
standings are not due to be changed. 
 
PCC Conservation Officer – No objections - The proposed development has the potential to impact 
on the setting of a number of listed and locally listed building in the vicinity at Lincoln Road, Westgate, 
Long Causeway, Exchange Street, Cumbergate, Cathedral Square and Cowgate. Also the site is 
located adjacent to the City Centre Conservation area and the Park Conservation area is to the 
north.  
 
The more evident part of the extension will be viewed form Crescent Bridge roundabout / Bourges 
Boulevard. The proposed development sits broadly in the massing of the existing roof elements and 
the proposed materials - grey cladding and glazing - match the existing roof top materials. 
 
The shopping centre is, or forms, the backdrop to various listed buildings.  The bulk of the building 
currently has a small adverse impact on the setting of some listed buildings (e.g. Wortley Arms 
Houses, former Royal Hotel, Westgate).  There will be some minor visual impact on long distance 
views towards and from the Cathedral.   
 
In many locations in views of listed buildings and parts of the Park and City Centre Conservation 
areas the proposed extension will not be visible. In other locations the development will be seen and 
this will vary depending on position of the viewer. The extension will be set back from the northern 
elevation to Westgate. 
 
Overall the effect of the extension adding height to the centre is considered at worst to have a 
negligible adverse effect on the setting of some listed buildings and the City Centre conservation 
area.  
 
PCC Wildlife Officer – No objections – The Wildlife Officer is satisfied with the Ecology report’s 
assessment of the impacts on protected species.  The Ecological Assessment has identified that the 
existing building is likely to support nesting birds including various more common species as well as 
the black redstart which is a UK BAP Priority Species and is listed under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife 

APPENDIX 2

82



Item no 1 

 

 9 

and Countryside Act (as amended).  The Officer recommends targeted Black Redstart surveys are 
carried out every two weeks in May & June and monthly in July and August during the construction 
period by a suitably qualified ecologist, as recommended in the Ecology report. Should evidence of 
their nests being found, then appropriate measures should be put in place to ensure this species is 
not disturbed.  
 
The Wildlife Officer recommended a number of bird nesting and bat roosting features are provided 
to enhance the development for biodiversity. The applicant has subsequently advised that a range 
of bird boxes would be provided and the Wildlife Officer is satisfied that these details can be secured 
by condition. 
 
PCC Pollution Team - No objection - Details of filtration equipment for cooking odours would not be 
required as due to the surrounding uses it would be impossible to pin point the A3/A5 uses in 
Queensgate as a potential source of nuisance. 
 
Archaeological Officer – No objection - Due to the history of development, the subject site is 
deemed to have negligible archaeological potential. As a result, there is no need to condition a 
programme of archaeological work. 
 
PCC Rights of Way Officer – No objections – no comments to make. 
 
PCC Sustainable Travel Officer – No objection - Following the receipt of recommended changes 
the Travel Plan now  reflects more of a strategic and active focus on encouraging staff to travel 
sustainably to work.   Updated travel survey information from 2015 is required and minor changes 
have been sought.   
 
Environment Agency – Has no comments to make on this application. 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer – No objections – No recommendations or further comments 
to make. 
 
Peterborough Local Access Forum – Both the Queensgate development and the North Westgate 
development were discussed at our meeting and the following points were raised:  
 

 There seemed to be several problems with access by car, cycle, taxi, bus and walking where the 
two application sites meet along Westgate. The North Westgate plans show priority vehicular 
access from the 2 existing car park exits only, whilst the Queensgate plan Design and Access 
statement shows car park access and exit from the 3 more points straight onto what could be a 
shared surface in the new development. How will this work in practice?   

 The main vehicular access and exit for the bus station and the taxi rank is also across this narrow 
area, which is shown on the North Westgate plan as being a 24 hour pedestrian route and access 
point into the shared surface. No pedestrian routes to access the North Westgate development 
are shown on the Queensgate Design and Access statement 8.1 and 8.2 Vehicular & pedestrian 
access and cycle access. This sounds difficult to police and not at all encouraging for walkers 
and cyclists.  

 Concern regarding the lack of connectivity between the two developments. We feel this is an 
opportunity missed as it does not seem at all easy to get from the new Queensgate development 
into the public Open Space around Westgate on foot, without going through the car park or bus 
station. How will this impact cyclists, mums with buggies and less able users? The Queensgate 
development makes much of taking the lid off Queensgate and letting the natural light flood in 
but seems to remain turning its back on the public open space just outside.  
Officer response:  Whilst the initial North Westgate scheme has been subject to revision since 
its initial submission, these are two separate applications.  There are no changes to the access 
and egress from Queensgate as a result of the application and the Local Highways Authority 
have raised no objections. 

 

APPENDIX 2

83



Item no 1 

 

 10 

 The North Westgate includes a Pedestrian level wind microclimate assessment which concludes 
that the Lawson Comfort criteria will be met, but it takes no account of the inevitable changes to 
wind patterns when the existing John Lewis building is increased in height. The height of the 
surrounding buildings is an important factor in the 'feel' of a public area.  It does seem to us that 
there are still many access issues still be resolved for this application to become a successful 
project. 
Officer response:  It is considered that given the bulk, mass and height of the existing building 
the rooftop additions are unlikely to have a significant impact on the microclimate at street level. 
 

Peterborough Civic Society –  

 Recognises that this application has the potential to enhance the attractions of Queensgate both 
through cinema and food court.  

 Welcome the proposal to increase the public accessibility of the centre/City Centre, outside 
normal shopping hours.  

 No objection to the reconfiguration of the retail units or the extension of retail trading space into 
parts of the John Lewis not currently in retail use.  

 

However, we also have the following serious concerns:  

 The bulk of the cinema extension rising above the bus station is inappropriate.  

 Its design and materials are out of keeping with the elevational treatment of the existing centre.  

 The scheme will undermine the viability of the current long-awaited regeneration scheme for the 
North Westgate area.  

 Should the City Council be minded to grant consent we suggest that this application offers the 
opportunity to negotiate for planning gain in the form of the illumination of Crescent Bridge.  
Officer response:  The illumination of Crescent Bridge is not necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms, it is not directly related to the development and it is unreasonable 
to request this and therefore contrary to para. 204 of the NPPF. 

 
Historic England - Do not wish to comment in detail but offer the following observations 

 Part of the site lies outside the Conservation Area however the proximity of the development is 
such that it will have some impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area 
and on the setting of Listed Buildings in Westgate. 

 Historic England has concluded that the bulk and massing of the alterations to the Queensgate 
centre would result in a modest level of harm to both the character and appearance of the 
adjacent conservation area and to the significance of listed buildings along Westgate through 
impact on their setting.  Whilst the harm may be modest in accordance with paragraph 134 of 
the NPPF it will be necessary for the LPA to weigh that harm against wider public benefits that 
would be delivered by the proposal. 

 The application would address the connectivity issues to the city during closing hours.  Whilst 
this is welcomed and would go some way to offsetting the harm from the bulky roof extensions 
there are further opportunities.  The current Queensgate Centre severs the route from King Street 
the Primark extension has prevented the route but this could be improved by providing active 
frontages.  The improved connectivity should be secured by condition or S106. 

 
Environment Agency - No comment to make on this application. 
 
 Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 253 
Total number of responses: 4 (2 from Savills) 
Total number of objections: 2 
Total number in support: 0 
 
 
Savills/Hawksworth -  objection 
 

APPENDIX 2

84



Item no 1 

 

 11 

An objection has been received from the Savills acting on behalf of Hawksworth Securities Plc; the 
applicant for the adjacent North Westgate development (15/01041/OUT).  The conclusion of the 
letter is provided below.  A full copy of the objection letter is provided at Attachment 1. 
  

 The  redevelopment  of  North  Westgate  will  facilitate  redevelopment  and,  therefore,  kick-
start regeneration  elsewhere  in  the  City  Centre.    However,  the  proposed  leisure-led  
scheme  is dependent  on  the  inclusion  of  a  cinema  which  acts  as  its  anchor.   The  
inclusion  of  and  grant  of planning  permission  for  a  cinema  at  QSC  will  jeopardise  this  
and  prevent  the  North  Westgate scheme coming forward.  

 The NPPF clearly states that there should be a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 

 Sustainability has three dimensions: economic, social and environmental (paragraph 7).   
Paragraph 8 states that these roles should not be undertaken in isolation; to achieve sustainable 
development economic,  social  and  environmental  gains  “should  be  sought  jointly  and  
simultaneously”  and “planning should play an active role in guiding development to sustainable 
locations”. 

 As set out above, North Westgate will deliver economic, social and environmental gains, 
including the regeneration of this key City Centre site, with an estimated 1117 potential jobs, the 
delivery of over 200 dwellings, community facilities, new public spaces and connections to the 
communities to the north as well as enhancing the setting of Westgate Church and properties 
on Lincoln Road.  

 North  Westgate  clearly  meets  the  requirements  of  the  NPPF  by  jointly  and  simultaneously 
facilitating net gains across the three pillars of sustainability.  

 If  the  development  of  North  Westgate  does  not  proceed  then  the  implications  for  the 
Peterborough Core Strategy includes the undersupply of housing and jobs, both of which are 
key to the growth strategy and sustainability.  

 The cinema in Queensgate delivers some economic gains in terms of jobs but it does not offer 
any regeneration  benefits  for  the  City  Centre  and  offers  no  social  or  environmental  gains  
such   as housing,  community  facilities  and  new  public  realm.   It  does  not  represent  
sustainable development  and  it  will  prejudice  the  opportunity  to  deliver  sustainable  
development  in Peterborough City Centre as proposed in the Development Plan policies CS4 
and CC3. 

 Policy CS4 of the PCS  gives policy support for the redevelopment of North Westgate and  
priority for its delivery in the early years of the Plan Period. 

 Policy  CC3  of  the  City  Centre  Plan  DPD,  regarding  development  in  the  City  Core,  states  
that proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive development of North Westgate 
Opportunity Area will not be permitted.  

 In conclusion, Queensgate does not benefit from a policy allocation and the adopted 
Development Plan  makes  no  reference  to  the  expansion  of  leisure  facilities  within  the  
QSC.   Given  the  policy priority afforded to North Westgate, which is allocated and offers the 
delivery of significant planned investment in the City Centre, it is imperative that planning 
permission is refused for a cinema at Queensgate. 

 The reasons for refusal of the Queensgate scheme can be summarised as follows: 
- The  scheme  does  not  provide  the  joint  and  simultaneous  delivery  of  the  three  elements  

of sustainability required by the NPPF and does not respond to the opportunity to achieve 
sustainable development in Peterborough City Centre. It is, therefore, contrary to 
paragraphs 8 and 10 of the NPPF, Policy PP1 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
and Policy CC1 of the City Centre DPD. 

- The scheme would prejudice the delivery of the regeneration and sustainable development 
of North Westgate which is a priority within the Development Plan. It is, therefore, contrary 
to Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy and Policy CC3 of the CCDPD. 

 

The agent has responded to the representations made by Hawksworth, Peterborough Civic Society, 
Peterborough Local Access Forum and River Island and this is provided at Attachment 2 of this 
report for information.  
 

APPENDIX 2

85



Item no 1 

 

 12 

River Island – No objections in principle 
 

 Concern regarding the lack of consultation with the existing retailers within Queensgate. 

 Consultation may have addressed the concerns  regarding  the  potential  disruption  (to  the  
trade  of  existing occupiers) caused by the construction  phase  and the effect on the vitality and 
viability of existing businesses.   

 Request that a focussed consultation with existing occupiers of the QSC.  Officer response:  The 
applicant has responded to the points made regarding public consultation and have reiterated 
that all managers of all the store in the QSC were invited to a preview event to the public 
consultation held on 14th May 2015.  Furthermore the QSC Management issue monthly 
newsletters to all stores which provide updates on the scheme. 

 Suggest a Construction Management Plan be provided prior to any decision being issued.  
Officer response:  A Construction Management Plan will be required to be submitted and agreed 
prior to the commencement of development.  The Plan will ensure that disruption caused by the 
development will be managed and minimised as far as practicably possible.   

 
Gladstone Connect (Community Group) 
Object – Our area has suffered planning blight for 15 years or more.  If the further development 
proposals at Queensgate were to threaten the viability of North Westgate scheme, then we would 
oppose them.  These proposals should not be allowed to stand in the way of the very long overdue 
regeneration of North Westgate.     
 
1 additional representation has been made stating the following: 
 

 As far as I can see, this is going to make using the bus station problematic, at least. The bus 
station is too small now. Slamming a road through the middle will make it dangerous and restrict 
buses even further. Quite why a shopping precinct needs a road shoving into it, I have no idea. 
It negates the whole concept of a safe area to shop without motor vehicles. This ridiculous 
application should be thrown out.  Officer response:  It is unclear which road is being referred to 
and the comments possibly refer to North Westgate as there are no alterations proposed to the 
Bus Station. 

 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
Background 
 
Invesco – purchased the Centre and associated land holdings at North Westgate in January 2014.  
The proposal is part of a programme of works including the refurbishment of car parks (completed), 
internal mall refurbishments and improvements to Westgate Arcade (completed).  Investment in the 
centre is important to ensure the centre remains attractive, in the context of changes in shopping 
trends.   
 
An application is also under consideration for the Westgate Opportunity Area (15/01041/OUT).  This 
is an outline application (with all matters other than access reserved) for a mixed use scheme, to 
include, a cinema (Class D2), restaurants and cafes (Class A3), retail units (Classes A1, A2) a food 
hall (Classes A1, A3, A4, A5), office space (Class B1a), a hotel (Class C1), community and health 
care facilities (Class D1), residential (Class C3), together with associated car parking, vehicular 
access, servicing arrangements, public realm works and landscaping.   
 
The principle of development 
 
QSC is located within the city centre core policy area and the vision for this area is for development 
that will strengthen Peterborough’s sub-regional role as a key shopping destination.  Paragraph 
5.2.12 of the City Centre Plan states that as part of the vision for the city centre, there ‘will be new 
retail and leisure provision, particularly further improvements to the Queensgate shopping centre 
and the North Westgate Opportunity Area.’  Furthermore Policy CC3 of the Adopted Peterborough 
City Centre Plan DPD seeks ‘development which encourages trips into the city centre for shopping, 

APPENDIX 2

86



Item no 1 

 

 13 

leisure (including cinema), social and cultural purposes’.  There is an identified need for the city 
centre to expand its cultural offer and the need to attract new facilities particularly a centrally located 
cinema and more bars and restaurants.     
 
The cinema has the potential to attract large numbers of people and its location within the city centre 
is appropriate due to accessibility to a range of transport modes along with the provision of existing 
car parks/cycle parking provision and the likelihood of linked trips being made and to enhance the 
vitality and viability of the city centre.  It is a key objective of national and local planning policy to 
have strong city centres.     
 
The food and beverage provision would address a deficiency of these uses in the existing QSC.  
Investment has already been made in the city to enhance the restaurant provision within the city 
centre for example Carluccios and The Handmage Burger Company.  It is considered the restaurant 
cluster would  provide a complementary offer to the QSC, the cinema and other restaurant uses 
within the city centre.  Ultimately encouraging visits to the city centre during the day and evening and 
increasing dwell time and enhancing the viability and vitality of the city centre.  
 
In addition, although not for consideration under this planning proposal the reconfiguration of the 
John Lewis Store and the former Waitrose Store will provide large retail units which would encourage 
new retail operators to the city. 
 
Policy CC3 of the adopted Peterborough City Centre Plan supports improved connectivity for 
pedestrians and cyclists and particularly to the rail station.  The proposal would provide improved 
connectivity for pedestrians from the city centre to the Bus/Rail station through the extended opening 
hours of the QSC malls.  Also the Policy states that new development must, where appropriate 
‘protect and enhance existing retail areas.’  The proposal, by virtue of its content clearly satisfies this 
aspect of the policy.      
 
It is considered that the provision of a cinema and associated restaurant offer will strengthen the 
existing city centre core, extending retail hours and dwell times and improve the evening and night 
time economy for the city centre.  The principle of development is therefore supported and accords 
with the Council’s vision for the City Centre and policy CC3 of the Adopted Peterborough City Centre 
Plan DPD, policies CS4 and CS18 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. 
 
North Westgate Development Opportunity Area 
 
The Peterborough Civic Society have raised concern that the scheme will undermine the viability of 
the current long-awaited regeneration scheme for the North Westgate area.  The proposed scheme 
for North Westgate is leisure-led and will provide similar facilities to the Queensgate scheme but with 
the added planning gain of securing the major objective of regeneration for this part of the city.  
 
In addition, an objection letter on behalf of Hawksworth Securities plc; the applicant for the North 
Westgate Development, has been received.  The letter argues that, essentially, the approval of the 
QSC cinema would jeopardise the delivery of the North Westgate redevelopment which is anchored 
on the provision of a cinema. 
 
The objector makes reference to the national planning policy which by implication supports the 
delivery of the North Westgate Scheme, i.e. ‘a presumption in favour of sustainable development’ 
and that the three dimension:  “economic, social and environmental gains should be sought jointly 
and simultaneously” and “planning should play an active role in guiding development to sustainable 
locations”.  In the objection it is stated that the North Westgate will deliver these gains with over 200 
dwellings, community facilities, new public spaces and connections to the communities to the north 
as well as enhancing the setting of Westgate Church and properties on Lincoln Road and that if the 
North Westgate development does not proceed there would be an undersupply of housing and jobs. 
It is argued that although there would be some economic benefits from the proposed QSC cinema 
there would not be any social or environmental benefits i.e. housing, community facilities to the city 
centre and does not represent sustainable development. 

APPENDIX 2

87



Item no 1 

 

 14 

 
The objection is based on the premise that the QSC application does not represent sustainable 
development.  This is not the case.  Whilst the NPPF identifies three strands to sustainability, it does 
not require developments to deliver against all three in order to be acceptable.  The Queensgate 
proposal and the North Westgate proposal, whilst having some similar elements i.e. cinema, food 
and beverage units and retail, also has differences i.e. housing, public realm etc.  Clearly not all 
schemes can contain the same elements as each other, but this does not mean, in the context of 
the NPPF that the lesser schemes must be refused permission.  Contrary to what has been 
suggested, the Queensgate scheme would benefit the three dimensions of sustainability: 
Economic: - Creation of jobs, focus of investment in the City Centre improving its vitality and viability.  
Improved access to car parks, the mall and wider city centre to the benefit of the night time economy.   
 
Social:- Inclusive location accessible through a variety of transport modes. 
 
Environmental:- Improved public realm in the context of the change to the interior of the mall, 
improved city centre accessibility at night time which has been a key constraint to date.   
 
Thus it can be seen that the Queensgate scheme is ‘sustainable’ in its own right and is not contrary 
to the NPPF.   
 
The applicant for the North Westgate scheme has stated that if the Queensgate scheme obtains 
planning permission then the North Westgate scheme cannot be implemented.  This is 
acknowledged as it is unlikely that two city centre cinema’s would be financially viable.  However, 
this is a matter of competition between the developers and not a matter of planning policy (not least 
because there is not a national or local planning policy that seeks to refuse policy compliant 
development within the city centre that has the potential to prevent the redevelopment of the North 
Westgate site.)  
 
It is acknowledged that the North Westgate Development, if implemented, would be a positive 
contribution for the city centre, providing city centre housing and so on.  However, the location of the 
QSC for the cinema is considered to be sustainable in that it would be accessible by a variety of 
transport modes.  Furthermore, the provision of a cinema and restaurant quarter would contribute to 
the sustainability of the city centre in terms of job creation and input to the local economy. 
 

The letter goes on to refer to planning policies CS4 of the Core Strategy which gives support for the 
redevelopment of North Westgate, and policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan which states that 
proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive development of North Westgate Opportunity 
Area will not be permitted.   Furthermore, Queensgate does not benefit from a policy allocation and 
the adopted Development Plan  makes  no  reference  to  the  expansion  of  leisure  facilities  within  
the  QSC.   Given the policy priority afforded to North Westgate, which is allocated and offers the 
delivery of significant planned investment in the City Centre, it is imperative that planning permission 
is refused for a cinema at Queensgate. 
 
There are numerous shopping centres with food courts/quarters and cinemas and it is clear that this 
provision is lacking for the QSC.  In addition the city centre faces increased competition from out of 
centre retail parks such as the Brotherhood Retail Park and Serpentine Green District Centre and in 
order to remain viable the city centre as a whole has to reinvent itself to be a place where people 
want to visit.  One of the objectives of the Core Strategy is to regenerate the city centre in order to 
maintain viability and enhance vitality so that it remains at the top of the retail hierarchy in the East 
of England region. 
 
It is accepted that there are no policies within the development plan for the redevelopment of 
Queensgate per se however, policies CS4 and CC3 state that development that encourages trips 
into the city centre for shopping, leisure (including cinema), social and cultural purposes will be 
supported to strengthen the area the city centre core area.   
 
It is considered that the proposal for a cinema accords with the vision for the City Centre and the 

APPENDIX 2

88



Item no 1 

 

 15 

associated planning policy.  Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan talks about the need for a cinema 
within the city centre core however, it does not state that the cinema has to be on the North Westgate 
site.   
 
Both applications will be considered on their merits and in accordance with relevant planning policy.  
As discussed above the proposal for a cinema on the QSC would accord with relevant planning 
policy. 
 
It would not be reasonable to refuse the application on the basis that the approval of the QSC would 
prejudice the development of North Westgate. It is the case officer’s view that the meaning of the 
policy within CC3 that ‘individual proposals that would prejudice the comprehensive redevelopment 
of this area will not be permitted’ is to prevent a development within the site that would compromise 
the comprehensive redevelopment of the allocated site.  It is not applicable to sites outside the 
allocation. 
 
In addition there is no guarantee that the North Westgate Development would be delivered.  As 
stated in the objection letter, the North Westgate Opportunity Area was allocated for redevelopment 
in the 1971 City Centre Plan and there is still a pending application dating back to 2007.  On the 
other hand Invesco has indicated that it expects to implement the scheme early next year and the 
operator for the Cinema is confirmed as ‘Odeon’.   
 
Design and Visual Amenity 
 
The existing centre is a large block and forms the back drop to the finer urban grain of the historic 
streets of Westgate and Cowgate.  The existing material palate is simple, primarily comprising buff 
brick, lead mansard roofs and glazing.  Due to the existing substantial mansard roofs most of the 
extensions would be screened by the existing roof structure.  The retained lead mansard on the north 
block restricts visibility of the majority of the new cinema volume.  It would be clad in matching 
material to blend into the mansard rather than contrast and draw attention to the increased volume. 
The cinema is set back from the existing elevation edge providing space between the mansard and 
the cinema’s façade.  The southern block would be more visible but the western façade would be in 
the most part, screened by the Bus Station and multi storey car parks.  This element would be 
finished in light grey cladding panels with dark grey aluminium framing strip. 
 
The massing of the extension would be broken up into 3 blocks with public spaces between them 
provided by the glazed malls.  The variation in materials punctuates the otherwise continuous bulk 
and mass of the extension on the west façade of the building.  Glazing to the mall elevation and roof 
is a clear glass curtain wall – the glass will restrict solar glare and unwanted heat.  The glass is self-
cleaning and low emissivity.  The restaurant courtyard is also glazed the same as the mall. 
 
It is proposed that the varying heights of the blocks create a rhythm on the roofline and this is 
accepted.   
 
The west mall is main point of connectivity from the Bus/rail station and people’s first impression of 
the city.  Current low ceilings lack natural lighting resulting in an uninviting environment. The 
introduction of the glazed west mall has provided a visual enhancement to this entrance to the QSC 
and creates a more legible route to the rest of the centre and upper floor uses. 
 
The Peterborough Civic Society recognises the proposal’s potential to enhance the attraction of 
Queensgate through the introduction of a cinema and the inclusion of a food court and welcomes  
the increase in public accessibility.  However concern is raised regarding the proposal.  It is 
considered that the bulk of the cinema rising above the bus station is inappropriate and that the 
design and materials are out of keeping with the elevation treatment of the existing centre. 
 
It is acknowledged that the elevational changes to the western façade are substantial however as 
stated above the majority of view of this elevation would be screened by the multi storey car parks.  
With regard to the design and use of materials, the existing building is a simple and bulky design 

APPENDIX 2

89



Item no 1 

 

 16 

with a variety of roof heights and the materials are limited to buff brick, lead mansard roof and some 
glazing aspects to the entrances.  The existing centre is also described as ‘inward facing’.  It is 
considered that the proposed materials aluminium cladding, glazing and buff brick to match the 
existing would complement and harmonise with those used in the existing building. 
 
In addition it is considered that the design of the entrance to the western mall would provide a more 
welcoming experience for visitors to the centre.  
 

It is considered that whilst the roof top extensions would result in an addition to the height and mass 
of the building the design of the extensions and appropriate use of materials would harmonise with 
the proportions and appearance of the existing building and would not detract from the character 
and appearance of the city centre as a whole.  Hence the proposal accords with policy PP2 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD, policy CS16 of the Adopted Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD and section 7 of the NPPF.  
 
Impact on the conservation area and heritage assets 
 
A Townscape, Visual and Heritage Impact Assessment has been submitted in support of the 
application.  There are no listed or locally listed buildings within the application site however part of 
the site is situated within the city centre conservation area boundary and the Park Conservation area 
is to the north.  There are a number of listed and locally listed buildings nearby.  The study assessed 
three elements:  an assessment of the likely effects on the character and quality of the townscape; 
the effects of the development on the significance of heritage assets; and an assessment of the 
effect of development on views, viewers and their visual amenity.   Twenty-one key representative 
views were selected.  It is noted that due to the low lying nature of the site and the dense 
development  of the city, street level views of the scheme are well contained to the immediate vicinity 
of the site. The proposed development would, however, been seen together with the wider roofscape 
of Peterborough from the elevated view locations of the Cathedral Tower and bridges across the 
railway line. 
 
The extension is located to the north-west of the QSC roof, furthest from the historic core of 
Peterborough. This means that the majority of the views from where the extension is visible are away 
from the sensitive townscape elements and particularly the Cathedral. The change to the view from 
the Cathedral tower is likely to be neutral in the context of the existing townscape character and 
acceptable. In terms of the remaining views, all effects are either negligible or neutral (minor to 
moderate). 
 
The Conservation Officer has considered the assessment and identified that the more evident part 
of the extension will be viewed form Crescent Bridge roundabout / Bourges Boulevard. In this context 
the proposed development sits broadly within the massing of the existing roof elements and the 
proposed materials would the match existing roof top materials, and so is visually acceptable.   
 
In addition, the shopping centre is, or forms, the backdrop to various listed buildings.  The bulk of 
the building currently has a small adverse impact on the setting of some listed buildings (e.g. Wortley 
Arms Houses, former Royal Hotel, Westgate).  There will be some minor visual impact on long 
distance views towards and from the Cathedral.  In many locations in views of listed buildings and 
parts of the Park and City Centre Conservation areas the proposed extension will not be visible. In 
other locations the development will be seen and this will vary depending on position of the viewer. 
The extension will be set back from the northern elevation to Westgate. 
 
The Conservation Officer recommends the application be approved and considers that the work will 
only have a slight adverse impact on the setting of certain listed and locally listed buildings but overall 
would accord with section 66(1) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  Also, 
it is considered that the work will preserve the character and appearance of the City Centre and The 
Park Conservation Areas in accordance with Section 72(1), of the Town and Country Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and is in accordance with 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and the 

APPENDIX 2

90



Item no 1 

 

 17 

National Planning Policy Framework (Heritage considerations)   
 
Officers agree with the conclusions of the applicant that the extension would have a negligible effect 
on surrounding townscape character. The increase in height to the north-western part of the QSC 
roof would not alter the key characteristics or setting of the identified townscape character areas 
surrounding the site. The greatest townscape changes would be to the transport corridor character 
area (around Bourges Boulevard) but due to the poor quality townscape of this area and the height 
precedent already set by the shopping centre, the effect to the character of this area as a whole 
would be negligible. 
 
Historic England has made representation on the application and considers that the bulk and 
massing of the alterations to the Queensgate centre would result in a modest level of harm to both 
the character and appearance of the adjacent conservation area and to the significance of listed 
buildings along Westgate through impact on their setting. Historic England has referred to para 134 
of the NPPF that the Local Planning Authority will be required to weigh that harm against wider public 
benefits that would be delivered by the proposal.   
 
It has been noted in the above report that the existing QSC comprises a large mass of buff brick and 
as a consequence has some impact on the setting of some listed buildings which lie to the forefront 
of the building.  Consideration therefore is limited to the additional impact on the listed buildings 
resulting from the rooftop extensions.  It is considered that whilst extension would add large volumes 
to the existing building these would not be apparent at the street level and would only be visible from 
views further from the site where, given the scale and mass of the existing building, they would 
appear proportionate. 
 
The impact is measured against the benefits of the proposal which would be improved vitality and 
viability for the city centre through the likely increase in visitor numbers through cinema and 
restaurant offer, increased dwell times, employment opportunities improved night time economy, and 
improved pedestrian connectivity outweighs the negligible adverse harm caused by the extension. 
 
Historic England have stated that the improved connectivity in the city would go some way to offset 
the harm resulting from the proposal however have requested that active frontages are provided to 
the elevations fronting King Street.   
 
The potential to open up the ground floor elevation to King Street was considered under a previous 
scheme for the Primark extension.  At the time of the application it was considered that this was a 
flaw in the original consent for the QSC and it would not be ‘possible to turn back the clock’.  It is 
considered that this part of the centre is not included in the changes and due to the internal layout 
of this element of the QSC it would not be reasonable to request this. It is considered that the 
improved connectivity from the city centre through the QSC to the Bus/Rail stations provided by the 
Queen Street and Cumbergate entrances would be a significant improvement on the existing 
connections for the city centre.  
 
As per paragraph 134 of the NPPF, the development will result in less than substantial harm to the 
significance of the designated heritage assets , and this limited harm needs to be weighed against 
the public benefits of the proposal, namely an enhancement to the vitality and viability of the existing 
city centre, economic benefits, and improved city centre pedestrian access.  Therefore the less than 
substantial harm is outweighed by the benefits of the scheme and hence the proposal accords with 
policy CS17 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, policy PP17 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and section 12 of the NPPF. 
 
Highway Implications 
A LHA is content with the information provided within the Transport Statement. 
 
There are 4 multi-storey car parks directly to the west of the QSC and in total there are 2,300 parking 
spaces.  It is not proposed that there would be any additional car parking provided, however the car 
parks would be open later into the evening for users of the cinema.  It is likely that the cinema will 

APPENDIX 2

91



Item no 1 

 

 18 

increase the demand for parking however the peak time for cinema goers is likely to be in the 
evening, outside the core shopping hours when there is likely to be spare capacity. 
 
Cycle parking:  It is considered that there are insufficient staff cycle parking spaces available and 
further provision would be secured by condition.  There would be provision within the ‘click and 
collect’ area. 
 
There is customer cycle parking around the city centre in numerous locations.  The LHA 
considered that further cycle parking should be proposed or at least the existing covered to 
encourage more trips by cycle.  However, subsequent to the information as originally submitted the 
applicant has provided an assessment of provision and whether these are fully utilised.  The LHA 
is satisfied that there are ample spaces around the entrances to the centre for visitor cycle parking.  
 
 
Car parking:  It is accepted that the existing car parks will open later to accommodate the proposed 
opening hours for the Cinema and associated restaurants.  It is accepted that the existing car 
parking provision within the centre accords with the adopted parking standards under policy PP13 
of the Adopted Peterborough Planning policies DPD. 
 
Traffic impact:  A 10% discount rate has been applied to the cinema trips to take into account 
linked trips with the shopping centre or other retail uses.  However, the LHA are of the opinion that 
cinema trips are highly unlikely to link with an existing shopping trip and that the 10% discount is 
somewhat unrealistic.  It is noted that the peak hours of use for a cinema are however generated 
outside the highway network peak hours on both a weekday and Saturday. 
 
In respect of A1, A3-A5 trips these are more likely to be linked to the cinema during the evening or 
possibly shopping trips during the day.  The application of a discount rate to these trips is therefore 
acceptable. 
 
There would be a positive impact of the new proposals as the area of A1 retail floorspace is reduced 
which in turn would lead to a reduction in traffic to and from the shopping centre.  The Transport 
Statement shows that overall because of this there would be a decrease in overall traffic during the 
Saturday network peak hours and a small increase in the weekday peak. 
 
The LHA have however, stated that the 10% discount applied to the cinema trips is unrealistic and 
therefore the cinema trips for the network peaks have been recalculated to remove the discount.  
The result of this is that there is an increase in trips in both weekday and Saturday peaks as a result 
of this proposal.  This increase is however, not significant being 16 trips and 13 trips respectively. 
 
TRACK plots have now been submitted for the revised ‘click and collect’ area for the John Lewis 
store which the LHA consider to be acceptable. 
 

It is noted that there are concerns regarding likely disruption that could be could be caused by the 
construction.  The team will work closely with the centre management and local authority to develop 
and coordinate the construction methodology and plan any logistical operations that may impact on 
access to the centre and schedule these for out of hours working as appropriate to mitigate 
disruption.  A Construction Management Plan will be secured by condition. 
 
Travel Planning 
A workplace travel plan has been submitted which has been developed with the Peterborough City 
Council Travel Choice Team.  The submission of a Travel Plan is welcomed and it is hoped that the 
plan will encourage alternative methods of travel to work which would reduce the pressure on staff 
car parking, reducing the number of single occupancy car journeys along with the environmental 
benefits.  The plan includes targets and an action plan and will be continuously reviewed and 
improved.  Revisions to the TP initially submitted were requested by the Travel Choice Officer and 
these have been taken on board.  However, undated survey information for 2015 is missing therefore 
the details would be secured by condition. 

APPENDIX 2

92



Item no 1 

 

 19 

 
It is not considered that the proposal would unduly impact on the highway network and measures 
would be put in place to encourage alternative modes of transport.  Hence the proposal accords with 
policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD and policies CS14 of 
the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. 
 
Ecology 
An Ecological Assessment of the site has been undertaken and has identify any potential constraints 
to development.  Due to the urbanised nature of the site and the lack of semi natural habitats the 
supporting value to the site in terms of flora and fauna is therefore limited and the impact on the 
wider environment as negligible.  This report identifies the biodiversity features present which tend 
to be opportunist bird species that utilise building fabric including feral pigeon and gulls and the 
specially protected black redstart was identified in the wider area with the variety of levels and vertical 
habitats (rooftop plant and ventilation ducts) potentially offering suitable habitat.  The building does 
not contain features associated with bat roosting.  The report goes on to identify mitigation measures 
that should be followed to minimise impacts including avoiding construction work during the bird 
nesting season and undertaking surveys works.   
 
The Wildlife Officer is satisfied with the conclusions of the report.  The Officer’s view is that as the 
building is likely to support nesting birds including the black redstart which is a UK BAP Priority 
Species and is listed under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (as amended) a condition 
should be appended to the decision notice requiring black Redstart surveys are carried out every 
two weeks in May & June and monthly in July and August during the construction period by a suitably 
qualified ecologist, as recommended in the Ecology report. Should evidence of their nests being 
found, then appropriate measures should be put in place to ensure this species is not disturbed.  
worded condition. 
 
The Wildlife Officer has also recommended that a number of bird nesting and bat roosting features 
are provided to enhance the development for biodiversity. These details would be secured by 
condition. 
 
With the recommendations being fully incorporated into the approved scheme the development 
would provide a net gain in biodiversity and accords with policies PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD. 
 
Statement of community involvement 
The applicant has undertaken a programme of community consultation prior to the submission of the 
application in order to gain the views of key stakeholders and members of the public and to inform 
the scheme on areas of concern.  Pre-application discussions were undertaken with the Local 
Planning Authority and the Local Highways Section.   
 
An evening reception was held on the 14th May where local Councillors and key stakeholders were 
invited to attend a preview of the public exhibition.   
 
A briefing was also given to Members of the City Council on the 3rd July following the submission of 
the application. 
 
A public exhibition was held on the 15th and 16th May at the QSC which was open to local employees, 
residents and the general public. It was attended by representatives of the development team to 
provide opportunity for customers to ask questions and offer comments. The event utilised paper 
questionnaires and exhibition stands.  290 people attended the event and over 304 responses were 
received either from the event or by post.  98% of respondents indicated that they were in favour of 
the proposals. 
 
Sustainability 
The proposal includes measures to reduce the development’s energy demand, consumption and 
associated CO2 emission include: 

APPENDIX 2

93



Item no 1 

 

 20 

 

 Maximising internal comfort conditions by passive means 

 Improving U-values for opaque and transparent elements over building regulations requirements 

 Utilising energy efficient lighting systems with automated controls 

 Maximising daylight use 

 Enabling natural ventilation in the glazed façade to exhaust air tom the space 

 Building management system to monitor mechanical systems 
 
It is considered that the proposal would make a contribution to Peterborough City Council’s aspiration 
to become an environment capital in accordance with policy CS10 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD. 
 
  
6 Conclusions 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 
 
- the principle of a city centre cinema and restaurant provision with additional retail provision for the 
city centre is acceptable.  This is in accordance with the vision for the City Centre, Policy CC3 of the 
City Centre DPD and Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy, 
-  the scale, proportions, design and use of materials would harmonise with the existing centre. This 
is in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP2 of the Planning Policies DPD.    
-  it is accepted that the resultant bulk and mass of the extension would have a negligible adverse 
effect on the setting of some listed buildings and the City Centre conservation area.  However this is 
outweighed by the benefits of the scheme to the vitality and viability of the city centre through the 
likely increase in visitor numbers through cinema and restaurant offer, improved night time economy, 
employment, and improved pedestrian connectivity.  This is in accordance with the NPPF and Policy 
CS17 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP17 of the Planning Policies DPD.   
-  the site is accessible by a choice of means of transport and the proposal is supported by a transport 
statement and travel plan and will not result in any adverse highway implications.  This is in 
accordance with Policies CS14 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP12 of the Planning Policies DPD.    
 
7 Recommendation 
 
The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 

the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended). 
  
 
C 2 No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in the external 

elevations of the extensions hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The details submitted for approval shall include the name 
of the manufacturer, the product type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. The 
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policies CS16 and CS17  of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-
commencement condition because it is important to ensure that the appropriate materials will 

APPENDIX 2

94



Item no 1 

 

 21 

be available at the time the above ground building work takes place given the proximity to 
the Conservation Area. 

  
 
C 3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed Construction 

Management Plan (CMP) shall be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
The details of the CMP shall include the following: 

    

 Parking turning and loading/unloading for construction traffic taking into consideration 
access/parking requirements for surrounding building occupiers  

 Method of ensuring that mud/debris is not carried on to the adjacent public highway 
including wheel/chassis cleansing (where applicable)  

 Management of the manoeuvring of large construction vehicles including details of 
the types of vehicles being used in the construction process  

 The approved CMP shall be implemented for the entire duration of the construction period of 
the approved development. 

    
 Reason:  In the interests of highways safety in accordance with Policy PP12 of the Adopted 

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.   This is a pre-commencement condition as the details 
will need to be approved before any work commences on site to avoid disruption to the 
adjacent highway network. 

  
 
C 4 Prior to the extensions being brought into use additional cycle parking for staff shall be 

provided , the number and location of which are to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The cycle parking shall be secure and covered and once implemented be 
thereafter maintained for the parking of cycles only. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of promoting travel by non-car modes and in the interests of highway 

safety and in accordance with policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD. 

  
 
C 5 Prior to the extensions being brought into use a Travel Plan shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The Travel Plan shall contain SMART 
targets to encourage the reduction of car trips to the Queensgate Centre and promote the 
use of non-car modes instead and details of a review mechanism.   The Travel Plan shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

    
 Reason:  In the interests of promoting travel by non-car modes and in the interests of highway 

safety and in accordance with policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD and policy CS14 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. 

  
 
C 6 Details of the numbers, locations and design of bird boxes shall be submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the extensions hereby approved being brought in to use. 

  
 Reason  In order to provide biodiversity enhancements for the site and in accordance with 

policy PP16 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning Policies DPD. 
  
  
 
C 7 In the event that construction works are undertaken during the months of May to August 

targeted Black Redstart surveys shall be carried out every two weeks in May & June and 
monthly in July and August during the construction period by a suitably qualified ecologist, 

APPENDIX 2

95



Item no 1 

 

 22 

as recommended in the Ecology report. Should evidence of their nests being found, then 
appropriate measures should be put in place to ensure this species is not disturbed. 

  
 Reason: To protect features of nature conservation importance, in accordance with Policy 

CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP16 and PP19 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 8 Notwithstanding the details hereby approved the opening times for the car parks and 

connective routes through the Queensgate Centre shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved details shall be implemented when 
the extensions are brought into use and shall be maintained in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason:  In order to provide connectivity, particularly in the evenings to and from the city 

centre, bus station and railway station and in accordance with policy CC3 of the Adopted 
Peterborough City Centre Plan, and policies CS4 and CS18 of the Adopted Peterborough 
Core Strategy PDP. 

  
 
C 9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans:  
   

 Elevation - BNY-SA 08 LL03 Rev B01 
 Click and Collect – BNY-SA 08 AL07 Rev B01 
 Click and Collect - BNY-SA 08 AL08 Rev B00 
 Floor Plan – BNY-SA 1002 Rev B01 
 Floor Plan – BNY-SA 08 002 Rev B01 
 Proposed site plan – BNY-SA 08 LL93 Rev B01 
 Elevation – BNY-SA 08 LL02 Rev B01 
 Floor Plan – BNY-SA 08 B102 Rev B00 
 Roof Plan – BNY-SA 08 5002 Rev B00 
 Floor Plan – BNY-SA 08 2002 B00 
 Section – BNY-SA 08 LL13 Rev B00 
 Location Plan – BNY-SA 08 LL90 Rev B00 
 Elevation – BNY-SA 08 AL06 Rev B00 
 Service yard and section – BNY-SA 08 LL16 Rev B00 
 Floor Plan – BNY-SA 08 3002 Rev B00 
 Elevations – BNY-SA 08 LL04 Rev B00 
 Floor Plan – BNY-SA 08 4002 Rev B00 
 Section – BNY-SA 8 LL15 Rev B00 
 Section - BNY-SA 8 LL14 Rev B00 
 Section – BNY-SA 08 AL05 Rev B00 

 
  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.  
  
 

 

APPENDIX 2

96



 

 

BRIEFING UPDATE 
 

P & EP Committee 29 September 2015 
 

ITEM NO APPLICATION NO SITE/DESCRIPTION 

 

S . 15/01013/FUL 

Queensgate Shopping Centre Westgate Peterborough , Part 
demolition, alteration and extension including change of use and 
erection of roof top extension to provide for uses within A1, A3- 
A5 (shops, restaurants & cafes, drinking establishments and hot 
food take-away), D2 (assembly and leisure) and other 
associated works 

 
A letter from the North Westgate applicant Hawksworth Securities dated 22nd September 2015, is 
appended in Appendix 1. 
 
A further letter and additional information has been received on behalf of Hawksworth Securities dated 
25th September 2015.  This is appended in Appendix 2. 
 
4 additional representations have been received since the issue of the Committee Report.  The following 
comments have been raised: 
 

 As parish priest of St Mark's (82, Lincoln Road) our parish boundary embraces North Westgate and 
adjoins the Queensgate site. We are very concerned that priority should be given to the 
regeneration of North Westgate which has been a blighted area for some years and has an ideal 
opportunity to be renewed with an imaginative scheme including a major investor of a cinema that 
would attract visitors and build the local economy. A rival scheme proposed to bebuilt within 
Queensgate would detract from this opportunity for North Westgate. Queensgate has quite 
enoughdevelopment and should retain its current role and footprint and not attempt to offer 
entertainment and evening restaurant facilities as well. 

 

 The North Westgate Development desperately needs to happen - with a cinema. The area is in dire 
need of regenerattion.  PLEASE do not allow Queensgate's quickly put together plans intended to 
scupper this much needed development to be approved - it would be absolute madness. I have read 
comments you made that you said you want to help them find another anchor for the development.  

 

 They have made it clear that they do not want this - North Westgate will simply not happen and the 
area will remain like a 'ghetto'. The North Westgate plans were put forward long before 
Queensgate's. Only one Cinema is needed - and it is needed at North Westgate. 

 

 Julian Bray, NUJ Equity 
 

1.  You will have received a nine page letter from a firm of property surveyors Savills Ltd from  
their Bristol Office, signed and submitted on behalf of their Bristol based client Mr Breach of  
Hawksworth Securities, by a West Country resident Craig O’Brien BA (HONS) BTP MPTPI. The  
astonishingly aggressive tone of Mr O’Briens thinly veiled threat on behalf of his Bristol  
based client contained therein has greatly concerned the readers of the Peterborough  
Tribune blog (over 584,100 page views, of which 9,000 hits in August 2015 alone).   
  
2.  Although Peterborough based PR firm Athlone hired by Hawksworth Securities possibly to  
assist with local knowledge, and are fully aware of the scope of the Peterborough Tribune  
[PT], and indeed has in the past contracted Julian Bray directly to provide a media training  
instructional session for it clients, still chose to exclude the PT from the media distribution  
list.  
  
 3.  Simply The Peterborough Tribune was not included in the initial press distribution of Mr  
O’Briens letter to you. We have since obtained the documents referred to above, directly  
from Planning Control.   
   
4.  Interestingly Mr O’Brien appears not to be a qualified Chartered Surveyor. We could be  
wrong, but his property related surveying qualification would have appeared on the Savills  
subsidiary Bristol based company redacted letterhead, it seems to be missing.   

APPENDIX 2

97



 

 2 

  
5.  As the Editor of the Peterborough Tribune Blog, I have been asked by readers to assist the  
PPC Planning Committee, to ensure PCC Planning officers are not misled or possibly  
confused by the nine page strongly worded, but in our view wholly misguided and possibly  
mischievous letter from Mr O’Brien.   
    
6.  Reading between the lines, and in view of the specific threat contained on Page 8, Paragraph  
35 headed Conclusions, it appears that Mr Breach is possibly paving the way for a discreet  
withdrawal from the whole project, but possibly attempting to save face with his financial  
backers, the thinking being the justification for ‘canning the project’ or making a short term  
gain for his Bristol based company, by selling on the outline planning permission or as in the  
case of the Peterborough District Hospital Site,  renegotiating with the PCC to reduce Mr  
Breachs’ firms financial liability, and would then be in a position to publicly lay the blame for  
the collapse of this scheme at the City Councils doorstep, thus maintaining faith with his own  
backers. Happily we have seen through this ruse.  
 
7.  Having looked at the year on year ‘slender’ financials of Hawksworth Securities, and in turn  
the heavy reliance they are placing on outside funding, consultants, consideration should be  
given to the simple fact that Northgate is for Mr Breachs’ modest firm ‘a project too far’ as  
their own audited accounts with a high level of gearing do not suggest they are comfortable  
progressing a multifaceted major City core regeneration project of this size. If they are  
unable to complete the initial due diligence process ‐ which would have quickly revealed  
that long established planning permission for other major D2 cinema and theatre spaces  
already exist and within walking distance of the proposed Northgate development. We have  
helpfully provided the Planning references above.   
   
8.  Therefore as representative of Peterborough residents, and not in any way connected with  
the current parties mentioned, we intend to  show the ‘objection’ letter is little more than a  
theatrical marketing device contrived to favour a speculative ‘sometime in the future’  
possible development.  
  
9.  Clearly this is the core thrust of a considered campaign to recast the perceived value of the  
NWD future project, possibly to the detriment of existing, immediately viable and fully viable  
retail and catering, café bar operations already operating and the Council must recognise  
these as EXISTING major revenue earners in terms of business rates and attracting shoppers,  
increasing much needed footfall into the City Centre and not simply a qualified claim for  
something  that could well fail as evidenced at Page 7 paragraph 34.  
    
10. The letter submitted by Savills, is in our considered view factually incorrect and inconsistent  
with Savills publicly stated aim to“apply our in-depth understanding and knowledge of local  
and national markets to ensure robust viability evidence,founded on commercial reality.”  
 
11. The 9 page document is also being heavily promoted, ‘touted around media circles’ by a  
Peterborough based PR Company who probably have the only real day‐to‐day connection with the  
City of Peterborough. They are however complicit in managing an effective, widespread but in our  
view highly misleading media public relations campaign, and as a result attracted substantial editorial  
comment from local and regional media, and possibly the wider international property trade press.  
For example as part of the so called ‘consultation process’ Hawksworth securites suggest they hads  
only one (repeat one) vote in favour of retaining The Brewery Tap. If Hawsworth Securities and their  
agents Savills truly had ‘local knowledge’ they would have known that many, many thousands of  
votes had been cast over the last few years in the “Save The Tap” campaign, the results made known  
to PCC members and inter alia Hawksworth Securities own PR firm.  
   
12. Clearly Peterborough City Councils actions and those of the Planning Committee, in dealing with this  
matter will continue to be under the critical media spotlight. 
 
13. At no time has the nine page objection letter been published in full, just we contend highly misleading  
selective quotes from the Savills Bristol based client Hawksworth Securities who are behind the  
speculative NWD scheme have been printed and editorialised without the claims being subjected to  
deeper journalistic and legal scrutiny.   
  
14. The objection letter submitted seeks to rubbish the application by Queensgate Shopping Centre, as  

APPENDIX 2

98



 

 3 

they have dared to include a modest multiscreen cinema as part of the continuing high quality  
improvement of the QSC generally, and new development and refurbishment contained in their  
application. The PCC should be aware that Queensgate Shopping Centre IS ALREADY contributing  
substantial revenues to the City of Peterborough treasury. Something the PCC should never forget.   
 
15. The Bristol based Saville client is simply suggesting a speculative financial return sometime in the  
distant future.   
  
16. Before we deal with the Savill objection letter in detail, it is important to establish exactly how Savills  
are seeking to influence the planning process: The content (or copy) below is taken directly from the  
Savill website and is particularly relevant:   
   
17. “Economic and policy conditions continue to put pressure on the profitability and deliverability  
of development projects. Viability appraisals and evidence are increasingly becoming the key  
to unlocking constraints and bringing forward development.  
 
18. Our main goal is to help clients de-risk affordable housing within schemes and  
deliver financially viable planning consents….. 
 
19. The members will recall that in the recent case of the re-negotiation of the contract for  
the Former Peterborough District Hospital site, the London based property developer  
in that case successfully argued a planning strategy which “helped de-risk affordable  
housing within schemes and deliver financially viable planning consents….” In fact the  
requirement for affordable housing has vanished AND the property developers  
financial liability further reduced – after ithad already been discounted! We repeat  
“Our main goal is to help clients de-risk affordable housing within schemes  
and deliver financially viable planning consents….. That goal in the District  
Hospital case, seems to be working, and in that case the developers’ goal was  
more than achieved…. 
 
20. There are other markers which help to define the high impact strategy being employed by  
both the developers and their several consultants in the North Westgate Development and  
appear throughout the nine page letter of objection.  
 
21. The letter:  
 
22. Page 1 Paragraph 1 to 3 This sets out ‘the stall’ the basis for the application by Queensgate  
and is particularised in PBROTRIB Document 1.  
 
23. Page 2 Paragraphs 4 Issue has to be taken with the style and tone, as several assertions of  
fact are made by Savills, when in reality, it is at this stage, can be no more than speculation,  
or at least an educated guess. No one has fully signed up as far as we can tell.  
 
24. The letter suggests the first phase of redevelopment of the North Westgate development area  
will achieve regeneration ofthe City Centres needs.  
 
25. In reality, this is a phased development spread over many years, no immediate short or  
medium term financial return is offered to this City.  
 
26. Phase one alone will have little immediate impact apart from inflicting continuing building  
works on an area that has already endured the snail like progress of Bourges Boulevard,  
where the contractors seemed to work weekday office hours and abandoned that site at  
weekends. 
 
27. It is not clear if the cinema complex proposed by North Westgate is to be operating before the  
completion of phase One but in any event to have a functioning community and a viable  
audience for that unproven cinema is well down the line and not likely to be achieved without  
substantial marketing whereas QSC has its marketing already in place, has the potential  
audience, ever increasing footfall numbers and currently operating – to the benefit of the City  
of Peterborough. The QSC also carries out regular high impact seasonal television  
advertising campaigns featuring Peterborough, as does the Bill Kenwright company, who are  
currently presenting their second Winter season at the 1,000 seat Broadway Theatre and  

APPENDIX 2

99



 

 4 

Cinema.  
 
28. To be helpful if the North Westgate development contained an IMAX cinema; now that might  
act as a prime anchor. But looking at the existing planning consents issued by the City of  
Peterborough over the years, if as the developers say, it is the anchor for phase one, then  
clearly the author of the objection letter is blissfully unaware of the planning precedent for  
approval of D2 Cinema and Theatre use in the central area of Peterborough and we refer to  
PBROTRIB Document 3 Planning Permission  99/01541/FUL Modernisation and extension  
of existing Cinema  to create a multi‐use auditorium building linked to adjacent development  
(revision to 97/PO184)   
   
29. The Queensgate proposal for a cinema will immediately have a ready generated audience for  
a multiplex cinema which will be up and running several years before the overall North  
Westgate development reaches its final stage. In addition, the regeneration of The Broadway  
Theatre with a second winter and Christmas season of West End musicals produced by Bill  
Kenwright, and opening mid November 2015 will see a steady injection of some 2 to 3,000  
extra people in the city centre on each and every performance day, week in, week out.  
 
30. The last time this happened, two years ago, the entire season sold out, and the then hard  
pressed City Centre benefited substantially from increased footfall.  
 
31. The following year when the theatre was dark, it had a negative effect on Christmas retail and  
hospitality trade and indeed two major high volume nightspots closed down immediately after  
New Year.  
 
32. The point being the City of Peterborough urgently needs revenue generation now, and it  
makes sound commercial sense for Queensgate to complete all building and redevelopment  
works in one early phase and ideally before the major several years of disruption of the North  
Westgate Development.  
 
33. Page 2 Paragraph 5 The Savills letter suggests North Westgate proposals “represent  
significant planned investment” it is of course only a proposal, and the Bristol based  
developers do not as of todays date have substantive secured funds firmly in place to start to  
acquire the hundreds of freeholds required to progress their outline proposal.  
 
34. Midway through this paragraph the Savills Bristol letter suggest our West Country developer  
has confirmed interest, but then furiously backpedals ‘this is conditional upon the alternative  
scheme at QSC not proceeding alongside North Westgate!’  
 
35. Clearly if the Broadway Theatre with its existing planning permission: PBROTRIB Documents  
Namely: PTRIB Document 3  Planning Permission  99/01541/FUL Modernisation and  

extension of existing Cinema  to create a multi‐use auditorium building linked to adjacent  
development (revision to 97/PO184)  and PTRIB Document 4  Planning Permission  
04/01560/FUL Use as Theatre and Cinema (D2) was to re-activate or alternate live 
 
performance with 1,000 seater cinema presentations, (possibly Bollywood film productions  
which have substantial family appeal to our Asian communities) then the highly conditional  
interest to operate the North Westgate Cinema, said to be on the table according to the  
Savills Bristol letter would in fact go away. They have no firm offer, and clearly not in a  
position to dictate and counter already granted D2 permissions as evidenced in PTRIB  
Document 3 and PTRIB Document 4.  
  
36. The Savills 9 page letter, and this is something new, not disclosed before, and must be very  
worrying as it at length spells out the fragile financial nature of the whole North Westgate  
proposition. Clearly the authors not understanding or aware that substantial planning  
consents for cinema and theatrical use already exist, and have existed for many years, and  
within the City centre.   
  
 37. Contrary to Savills assertion the existing permissions meet all regional development plan  
objectives see  PTRIB Document 3  Planning Permission  99/01541/FUL Modernisation and  
extension of existing Cinema  to create a multi‐use auditorium building linked to adjacent  
development (revision to 97/PO184)  and PTRIB Document 4  Planning Permission  

APPENDIX 2

100



 

 5 

04/01560/FUL Use as Theatre and Cinema (D2).  
  
38. By now it is painfully clear the Savills Bristol letter from Page 2 Paragraph 8 to Page 6  
paragraph 30 is a justification for restraining trade in Peterborough, simply doing nothing,  
but possibly from a lack of local knowledge or incomplete research ignores the substantive  
D2 permissions already in place for the Broadway Theatre & Cinema.  Having exhausted that  
line, a straight threat to pull out, is contained at Page 7 Paragraph 34, Savills on behalf of  
their Bristolian client says in effect, grant QSC cinema D2 planning permission and the whole  
£100 million Northgate development goes away. Needless to say, the £100 million is a  
possible figure, plucked out of the air by yet another industry consultant to the Bristol‐based  
firm.  
   
39. It logically follows that based on existing planning permissions as evidenced by the  
documents, if you accept the Savills 9 page letter at face value the game is therefore already  
over, and the developers Hawksworth Securities are clearly planning a discreet withdrawal,  
from North Westgate.   
  
40. They cannot refute the key related documents we have:  PTRIB Document 1  Full Planning  
Application 15/01013/FUL Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate,  Peterborough, PTRIB  
Document 2  
   
41. Outline Planning Permission Hawksworth Securities 15/01041/OUT North Westgate  
Development  
  
42. Key related documents:   
 
43. PTRIB Document 3  Planning Permission  99/01541/FUL Modernisation and extension of  

existing Cinema  to create a multi‐use auditorium building linked to adjacent development  
(revision to 97/PO184) PTRIB Document 4  Planning Permission 04/01560/FUL Use as  
Theatre and Cinema (D2).   
  
44. Clearly none of this rings true, if the entire so called £100 million investment in North  
Queensgate relies solely on a 20 
th 
 Century Cinema concept, clearly the City should call  
Hawkshead Securities bluff, go with the proposal that puts almost immediate sustained  
additional revenues into this City, namely the well presented, and commercially viable QSC  
multiplex, which already has already made audience and substantial footfall to sustain it.    
  
 45. Finally, the nine page Savill letter lays great store in referring to Planning Policy Context  
(Page 2 Paragraph 8 to Page 7 Paragraph 32 inclusive). We would specifically draw your  
attention to Notice of Planning Permission Ref 04/01560/FUL Decision date 20 December  
2004 Use as Theatre and Cinema (D2). “The application is therefore considered to be in  
keeping with Policy RLT20 of the Adopted Peterborough Local Plan and CC4 of the  
Replacement Local Plan.” This effectively rubbishes the laboured and ultimately flawed  
Savill assertions set out over 4 folios.   
  
46. We would submit there is no valid reason for not applying a like logic in approving the  
‘shovel ready’ Full Planning Application 15/01013/FUL Queensgate Shopping Centre,  
Westgate, Peterborough, and its proposal for a small multiplex cinema. The cinema  
proposed will have little or no bearing on the North Westgate future development as it  
already has a well defined audience sustained by regular Tv camapigns attracting footfall to  
the City Centre and thus a positive benefit for any completed Phases of the North Westgate  
scheme.  
  
 47. Without a vibrant Queensgate Shopping Centre producing day on day substantial financial  
revenues for the City Council, the council deficit would be clearly much larger and continue  
to grow. The QSC has new owners who are well resourced, know this region well, employ  
hundreds of local people, they are securely funded and are considerably improving and  
renovating an ‘elderly’ shopping centre, in our view a valuable City centre core asset, sadly  
neglected by its previous owners, who decided Peterborough had no future, as the High  
Speed Railway was routed through Birmingham where they now operate from. It would be  

APPENDIX 2

101



 

 6 

commercial suicide by the City Council not to nurture and encourage new business and  
create new opportunities. To cave into the style of ‘threats’ contained within the Saville  
letter, would show to prospective Times Top 100 companies, that they too would meet  
objections from Savill, Bristol on behalf of their client if they also dared as QSC is seeking to  
do, to increase the attractiveness of their retail or presentational offer in the City Centre,   
Other potential new business would soon be aware of the QSC Cinema Planning decision, if  
only that Saville Bristol will use it as a case history promoting their mantra:   
  
48. “Economic and policy conditions continue to put pressure on the profitability and  
deliverability of development projects. Viability appraisals and evidence are  
increasingly becoming the key to unlocking constraints and bringing forward  
development. Our main goal is to help clients de-risk affordable housing within schemes and  
deliver financially viable planning consents….” Savill Website 
 
 
4.  An email from the Peterborough Civic Society stating ‘Peterborough Civic Society have already 
submitted written comments raising concerns about this Application and intends to speak against the 
Application at the Planning Committee on 29 September.’ 
 

S . 15/01041/OUT 

North Westgate Development Area Westgate Peterborough , 
Outline application (with all matters other than access reserved) 
for a mixed use scheme, to include, a cinema (Class D2), 
restaurants and cafes (Class A3), retail units (Classes A1, A2) a 
food hall (Classes A1, A3, A4, A5), office space (Class B1a), a 
hotel (Class C1), community and health care facilities (Class 
D1), residential (Class C3), together with associated car parking, 
vehicular access, servicing arrangements, public realm works 
and landscaping.  The demolition of all buildings, excluding 
Westgate Church, the Brewery Tap, 16-18 (in part), 30-36 
Lincoln Road and Lincoln Court 

 
1. 11 further letters of support have been received, raising the following issues:- 
 

  A city centre cinema will be beneficial, and will enhance the city.  It would be good to have all 
    these amenities within walking distance of Netherton and West Town. 

 This area needs regeneration, and a cinema.  Do not allow Queensgate to scupper these plans, or  
   the area to remain a ghetto.   

 North Westgate has been talked about for years, however it is vital for the vitality of the city.  It  
   would create an attractive area and gateway into the city from the rail station.  The site is    
   designated for regeneration, and could take Peterborough forward.  The most important thing is for  
   this site to be redeveloped in a way that is a credit to the city and not overshadowed or diluted by  
   other areas that could compromise it.  This current proposal would deliver an excellent scheme for  
   Peterborough.  The proposal needs the cinema as the corner stone of the development and is  
   fundamental to giving the area life.   

 The proposal will bring more jobs, and will help the city economically. 

 This proposal will give people more choice and variety of where to spend the day in the city.   

 With the increase in London property prices, Peterborough should make the most of this  
   opportunity to provide attractive housing for the London commuter market.   

 An increase in population and demographic variety could increase the demand and provision of  
   more arts and culture, and eventually a University.   
 
1 letter has been received asking where people working in the shops will park.  Peterborough doesn’t 
have a park and ride facility, and some people need to use their cars.  Parking should be factored in 
otherwise staff retention may be a problem.   
 

2.  A letter from the applicant Hawksworth Securities dated 22nd September 2015 is appended in  
Appendix 1.    

 
3. A viability appraisal has been submitted by the applicant, which has been assessed by Officers. 
 

The appraisal was based on 148 residential units, with no allowance for the PCC policy requirement 

APPENDIX 2

102



 

 7 

of 44 Affordable Units.  The appraisal does not include any allowance for CIL, any liability will be 
determined at the submission of Reserved matters. 
 
The following details have been submitted in support of the viability appraisal: 
 
Build Costs A comprehensive cost indication and a schedule showing funding cost calculation has 
been submitted to support the total Build Costs from quantity surveyors Gardiner Theobald who 
have considerable experience as cost consultants in retail led urban regeneration projects. The 
estimated costs are based on Q2 2015. There has been no allowance made for Tender Inflation or 
Construction Inflation. Also, no allowance has been made for abnormal ground conditions or 
contamination issues. Officers consider that the figures provided by Gardiner Theobold are realistic. 
 
Land Acquisition Costs have been submitted based on projected costs. We have been provided a 
letter dated 26th August 2015 by the Agent from Savills in Peterborough that confirms the sums 
assumed for the land acquisition costs are realistic. 
 
Ground Works including Demolition This cost is estimated in the quantity surveyors Gardiner 
Theobald analysis. 
 
Contingencies The general contingency adopted for design and construction is acceptable for a 
project of this nature.  
 
Interest Officers have accepted similar levels of interest for other viability appraisals that have 
recently reviewed and therefore Officers are willing to accept the submitted rate. 
 
Incentives This relates to rent free periods and the warm fit out of the cinema. The figures have 
been provided by letting agents Lunson Mitchenall. 
 
Fees and On-Costs This sum contains fees for Architects / Quantity Surveyors etc. which based on 
previous appraisals that we have reviewed seem acceptable. 
 
The residential values are based on information from Josh Hurford Estate Agents. The proposed 
residential floor-space for the residential element is 13,079m² or 148 units. The figures do not 
include any provision for Affordable Units, PCC policy requires the delivery of 44 Affordable 
dwellings based on a scheme of 148 units. 
 
Residential schemes that have previously submitted viability appraisals support the anticipated 
residential income, therefore Officers are willing to accept that the anticipated revenue for the 
residential element of the proposal is reasonable. 
 
The commercial revenues have been supplied by letting agents Lunson Mitchenall.  
 
In relation to the Commercial Rents we have sought the advice from Barker Storey Matthews (BSM) 
who have provided the following feedback: 
 
Retail Rents  
In comparison to other retail pitches in the city centre and in out of town locations BSM advise that 
these general level of rents look high and in excess of what would be anticipated as the top end of 
the range. 
  
Another factor to consider is effectively the proposal is a new retail destination currently occupying a 
very secondary position.  Without a significantly sized retail anchor to the scheme, and general lack 
of critical mass for the retail element, it is anticipated that generating retail led pedestrian flows to 
this location could be difficult.  
  
The estimated total rents particularly for the larger units look high in the context of other shops in the 
city centre outside of Queensgate.  
  
The rent applied to the food store does not appear unreasonable albeit there is no car parking 
allocated. This may well affect appetite for the location from potential occupiers, and consequently 
adversely affect the level of rent that could be achieved. 
  

APPENDIX 2

103



 

 8 

Restaurant Rents  
BSM considered rents achieved both in the city centre and out of town (Hampton) for restaurant 
units of a similar size. The rent applied by the developer does look on the high side but it is 
anticipated a premium to be paid given the proximity to the cinema. 
  
BSM further commented that most of the operators would not require the mezzanine floors, and 
therefore the inclusion of these (and the rent attributed to them) may be viewed as optimistic. 
  
Office Rents   
It appears that the office space will have no dedicated car parking which will be a significant 
drawback in securing tenants in this location.  The estimated rent is well in advance of what is 
currently being achieved for grade A1 office space pre-let at Hampton with a good provision of on-
site car parking.   
  
Cinema  
BSM were unable to provide any specific comment but noted that if the cinema operator is the 
anchor to a scheme they will be able to negotiate a ‘soft deal’ with the developer. 
  
Hotel Rents   
BSM provided PCC advice in 2012 where they identified hotel rents within a range per room,  
consequently Officer are willing to accept the proposed room rate contained in the viability 
submission 
  
Yields   
BSM have advised that the range of adopted yields does not appear unreasonable and is consistent 
with evidence of other retail schemes sold elsewhere. 
 

Conclusion 
 

Officers suggest that the minimum level of return for the proposed scheme would not be achieved 
based on the submitted details. Also, taking into account the greater risks associated with a 
regeneration site a higher return than that associated with less complicated proposals would be a 
reasonable expectation.  
 

Officers are therefore of the view that the submitted information adequately demonstrates that the 
scheme is unable to deliver any of PCC’s  Affordable Housing requirement as part of this outline 
application based on viability issues.   

 
 

APPENDIX 2

104



Item no 2 

 

 1 

Planning and EP Committee 29 September 2015 
 
Application Ref: 15/01041/OUT  
 
Proposal: Outline application (with all matters other than access reserved) for a 

mixed use scheme, to include, a cinema (Class D2), restaurants and 
cafes (Class A3), retail units (Classes A1, A2) a food hall (Classes A1, A3, 
A4, A5), office space (Class B1a), a hotel (Class C1), community and 
health care facilities (Class D1), residential (Class C3), together with 
associated car parking, vehicular access, servicing arrangements, public 
realm works and landscaping.  The demolition of all buildings, excluding 
Westgate Church, the Brewery Tap, 16-18 (in part), 30-36 Lincoln Road 
and Lincoln Court 

 
Site: North Westgate Development Area, Westgate, Peterborough,  
Applicant: Hawksworth Securities PLC 
Agent: Miss Chloe Clark 
 Savills (UK) Ltd 
Site visit: 03.07.2015 
 
Case officer: Ms A McSherry 
Telephone No. 01733 454416 
E-Mail: amanda.mcsherry@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions 
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and surroundings 
 
The site covers an area of approximately 4.6 hectares, and is located within the City Centre, 
adjacent to but not within the City Centre Conservation Area.  It is positioned between the 
Queensgate shopping centre/associated multi storey car parks and the bus station to the south, 
and the residential area of Millfield to the north.  The site is bounded to the west by the A15 
(Bourges Boulevard) beyond which is the new Waitrose store and railway station.  Bright Street 
bounds the site to the north, Lincoln Road to the east, and Westgate to the south.  The application 
site excludes two parcels of land, within the allocated North Westgate Opportunity area, in the 
north west and north east corners of the site (0.45ha and 0.37 ha respectively) they are within the 
landownership Invesco, the owners of the Queensgate shopping centre.     
 
The application site is a relatively flat site.  It contains 4 surface level car parks that are within the 
applicant’s ownership.  It has a row of terraced residential properties on Cromwell Road, between 
Bright Street and Westgate, which is severed in the middle by a car park, following the demolition 
of former buildings.  There is a 3 storey empty office building Frobisher House on the corner of 
Cromwell Road and Westgate.  The site also contains Westgate Church and its two associated 
outbuildings, which are used for community activities and a book shop.  Adjacent to the church 
there is a private hire taxi business and café at ground floor with residential accommodation above.  
There is a Locally Listed Building of importance 16-18 Lincoln Road.  The site also contains the 
Brewery Tap public house.    
 
There are no Listed Buildings within the site, the closest is the Wortley Almshouses, located on the 
opposite side of Westgate to the south east corner of the site.   
 
Proposal 
 

APPENDIX 3

105



Item no 2 

 

 2 

Outline planning permission is sought for a mixed use scheme of up to 50,000sqm to include:- 
 

 A cinema (Class D2) 

 Restaurants and cafes (class A3) 

 Retail units (Classes A1 and A2) 

 A Foodhall (Classes A1, A3, A4 and A5) 

 Office space (Class B1a) 

 A hotel (Class C1) 

 Residential (Class C3) 

 Community and health care facilities (Class D1), including a Church Hall, health centre,  
 worship and community rooms 

 Car parking, new access arrangements for vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists, public  
 realm improvements and landscaping. 
 
Under this outline planning application all matters, with the exception of access, are reserved for 
future applications and consideration.  Therefore Members are being asked to consider the 
principle of the proposed development, the acceptability of the masterplan principles and the key 
parameters within the Parameter Plans e.g. maximum floorspace, building heights, block locations 
etc.  An illustrative masterplan has also been submitted to help illustrate one possible way the site 
could be redeveloped.  It also shows a potential layout of how the two excluded parcels of land 
might also be redeveloped in future.  This is to demonstrate that redevelopment of the current 
application could be achieved without prejudicing the comprehensive redevelopment of the wider 
Opportunity area.  The Council’s aspiration would be for the 2 excluded parcels of land to also be 
redeveloped in future, to give cohesive regeneration to this part of the city centre.  The access and 
highway works have been submitted for approval under this outline application and are not 
reserved for consideration in future.   
 
The proposed development will involve the demolition of all buildings on the application site, except 
Westgate Church, the Brewery Tap, 16-18 Lincoln Rd (in part), 30-36 Lincoln Rd and Lincoln 
Court.  It will also include the stopping up and diversion of some highways within the site, along 
with the creation of new streets and highway works.  The highway works include the stopping up of 
Deacon Street and Cromwell Road, and restricting the movement of cars on Westgate between 
Lincoln Road and Bourges Boulevard.        
 
The applicant will seek to acquire the sites not currently within their ownership, within the submitted 
Phase 1 red line application site boundary, to deliver the development, but Compulsory Purchase 
may need to be considered should agreement not be reached with existing landowners.   
 

APPENDIX 3

106



Item no 2 

 

 3 

2 Planning History 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
15/00004/SCREEN EIA screening opinion Comments  29/06/2015 
    
14/00007/SCREEN EIA screening opinion Comments  18/11/2014 
    
07/01463/OUT Comprehensive redevelopment for a mixed 

use scheme to include the demolition of 
existing buildings and structures, the 
construction of new buildings and 
structures, the stopping up, diversion and 
alteration of public highways and the 
internal and external alteration and change 
of use of buildings and structures to be 
retained on site to provide: (i) retail uses 
(Classes A1, A2, A3, A4 and A5), offices 
(Class B1), residential (Class C3), 
community uses (Class D1) and leisure 
uses including a cinema (Class D2) to the 
east of Bourges Boulevard;(ii) hotel (Class 
C1), offices (Class B1) or residential (Class 
C3) to the west of Bourges Boulevard; 
together with ancillary and associated 
development, pedestrian circulation and car 
parking (including two new multi-storey car 
parks), vehicular access, servicing facilities, 
highway works, plant and machinery, 
landscaping, a new bus lay over and bus 
station incorporating 19 stands, bus station 
facilities and all necessary enabling works 
 

Pending 
Considerati
on  

 

03/00141/OUT Redevelopment to provide mixed uses 
including retail, residential, leisure, 
healthcare, parking and ancillary facilities 

Withdrawn  10/07/2015 

 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions  
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses. 
 
Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions.  
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 
 
Section 1 - Economic Growth  
Planning should encourage sustainable growth and significant weight should be given to 

APPENDIX 3

107



Item no 2 

 

 4 

supporting economic development. 
 
Section 4 - Assessment of Transport Implications  
Development which generates a significant amount of traffic should be supported by a Transport 
Statement/Transport Assessment.  It should be located to minimise the need to travel/to maximise 
the opportunities for sustainable travel and be supported by a Travel Plan. Large scale 
developments should include a mix of uses. A safe and suitable access should be provided and 
the transport network improved to mitigate the impact of the development. 
 
Section 7 - Good Design  
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; 
optimise the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities 
and transport networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate 
innovation; create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of 
good architecture and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for 
development of poor design. 
 
Section 8 - Safe and Accessible Environments  
Development should aim to promote mixed use developments, the creation of strong neighbouring 
centres and active frontages; provide safe and accessible environments with clear and legible 
pedestrian routes and high quality public space. 
 
Section 10 - Development and Flood Risk  
New development should be planned to avoid increased vulnerability to the impacts of climate 
change. Inappropriate development in areas of flood risk should be avoided by directing it away 
from areas at higher risk. Where development is necessary it shall be made safe without 
increasing flood risk elsewhere. Applications should be supported as appropriate by a site-specific 
Flood Risk Assessment, a Sequential Test and, if required, the Exception Test. 
 
Section 11 - Biodiversity  
Development resulting in significant harm to biodiversity or in the loss of/deterioration of 
irreplaceable habitats should be refused if the impact cannot be adequately mitigated, or 
compensated.  Proposals to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be permitted and 
opportunities to incorporate biodiversity into new development encouraged.   
 
Development within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest or other specified sites should 
not normally be permitted  where an adverse effect on the site's notified special interest features is 
likely. An exception should only be made where the benefits clearly outweigh the impacts.  
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development does not apply where development 
requiring Appropriate Assessment under the Birds or Habitats Directives is being considered or 
determined. 
 
Section 11 - Contamination  
The site should be suitable for its intended use taking account of ground conditions, land stability 
and pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation. After remediation, as a 
minimum, land should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets  
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.  When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given 
to the asset’s conservation.   
 
Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 

APPENDIX 3

108



Item no 2 

 

 5 

total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS02 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development  
Provision will be made for an additional 25 500 dwellings from April 2009 to March 2026 in 
strategic areas/allocations. 
 
CS03 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Employment Development  
Provision will be made for between 213 and 243 hectares of employment land from April 2007 to 
March 2026 in accordance with the broad distribution set out in the policy. 
 
CS04 - The City Centre  
Promotes the enhancement of the city centre through additional comparison retail floor space 
especially in North Westgate, new residential development, major new cultural and leisure 
developments and public realm improvements, as well as protecting its historic environment. 
 
CS08 - Meeting Housing Needs  
Promotes a mix of housing the provision of 30% affordable on sites of 15 of more dwellings (70% 
social rented and 30% intermediate housing), 20% life time homes and 2% wheelchair housing. 
 
CS10 - Environment Capital  
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK. 
 
CS14 - Transport  
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents. 
 
CS15 - Retail  
Development should accord with the Retail Strategy which seeks to promote the City Centre and 
where appropriate the district and local centres. The loss of village shops will only be accepted 
subject to certain conditions being met. 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
CS17 - The Historic Environment  
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non 
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance. 
 
CS18 - Culture, Leisure and Tourism  
Development of new cultural, leisure and tourism facilities will be encouraged particularly in the city 
centre. 
 
CS21 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation  
Development should conserve and enhance biodiversity/ geological interests unless no alternative 
sites are available and there are demonstrable reasons for the development. 
 
CS22 - Flood Risk  
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate. 

APPENDIX 3

109



Item no 2 

 

 6 

 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Applications which accord with policies in the Local Plan and other Development Plan Documents 
will be approved unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Where there are no relevant 
policies, the Council will grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
PP09 - Development for Retail and Leisure Uses  
A sequential approach will be applied to retail and leisure development. Retail development 
outside Primary Shopping Areas or leisure development outside any centre will be refused unless 
the requirements of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy have been satisfied or compliance with the 
sequential approach has been demonstrated. 
 
PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety. 
 
PP13 - Parking Standards  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards. 
 
PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity. 
 
PP17 - Heritage Assets  
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits. 
 
PP20 - Development on Land affected by Contamination  
Development must take into account the potential environmental impacts arising from the 
development itself and any former use of the site.  If it cannot be established that the site can be 
safely developed with no significant future impacts on users or ground/surface waters, permission 
will be refused. 
 
Peterborough City Centre Plan (2014) 
 
CC1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Development should contribute to the City's Environment Capital ambition and take steps to 
address key principles of sustainable development. 
 
CC2 - Retail  
Proposals for retail development will be determined in accordance with Policies CS4 and CS15 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD.  Within Primary Retail Frontages, development within use 

APPENDIX 3

110



Item no 2 

 

 7 

classes A1 and A3 will, in principle, be acceptable. 
 
CC3A - City Core Policy Area  
The Council will seek development of the highest quality which strengthens the area as the retail, 
leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough and its sub-region.  New development must: 
improve the quality of the public realm; protect important views of the Cathedral; preserve or 
enhance the heritage assets of the area; and protect and enhance existing retail areas.  The 
Council will also support development which results in a net increase in dwellings, improved 
connectivity, employment, conservation of historic shop fronts and development which encourages 
trips into the City Centre. 
 
North Westgate Opportunity Area  
Planning permission will be granted for comprehensive mixed-use development including retail, 
housing, office and leisure. This must also include improvements to the connectivity with the 
railway station and be integrated with the existing retail area. 
 
Individual proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive development of this area will not be 
permitted. 
 
CC11 - Transport  
Within the area of the City Centre Plan, all development which has transport implications will be 
expected to make a contribution to the delivery of the City Centre Transport Vision. 
 
The provision of additional car parking spaces will be resisted within the City Core Policy Area. 
 
Elsewhere in the City Centre new residential development within classes C3 and C4 will be 
expected to make provision for car parking in accordance with Policy PP13 of the Planning Policies 
DPD.  There will be no minimum requirement for car parking spaces in association with any other 
type of development. Additional spaces will only be allowed if the development has provided a fully 
justification. 
 
CC10 - City North Policy Area  
Development will be acceptable provided that it respects the character and form of the surrounding 
area.  Housing proposals must assist in improving the quality of the housing stock and the 
residential environment.  Residential intensification through sub-division or the creation of HMOs 
will not be supported. 
Development will be supported in principle where it: 
 
- Involves replacement dwellings (subject to a density control) 
- Improves the mix of uses, including especially open space and community facilities 
- Complement/support community regeneration projects 
- Improve pedestrian/cycle connectivity to the city core, especially to North Westgate. 
 
The Stanley Recreation Ground will be protected and enhanced.  Proposals for adjoining 
development should help to reconnect it and enhance the sense of safety. 
 
Planning practice guidance (PPG) – Department for Communities and Local Government 
(2014) 
 

 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

 Design 

 Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

 Travel plans, transport assessments and statements in decision-taking 

 Viability 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 

APPENDIX 3

111



Item no 2 

 

 8 

PCC Transport & Engineering Services  
No objections – Subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
PCC Conservation Officer  
No objections 
 
PCC Archaeological Officer  
No objections – An archaeology desk based assessment, geophysical survey and trial trenching 
has taken place.  None of these archaeological investigations uncover any significant heritage 
assets.  Therefore subject to a watching brief archaeological condition, no further archaeological 
investigation works are required.   
 
PCC Lead Local Drainage Authority  
No objections – Subject to the imposition of a surface water drainage condition.   
 
PCC S106 Planning Obligations Officer  
As this is an outline application, the liability notice confirming the amount of CIL that is due will not 
be issued until after receipt of the reserved matters details. 
 
PCC Tree Officer  
No objections - Mitigation planting has been identified for the unavoidable tree loss due to the 
proposal. It is noted that the majority of the trees that would be removed are low quality or have 
little long term retention value. 
 
At reserved matters a Finalised Tree Protection Plan and an updated Method Statement to identify 
the exact RPA infringements and associated methodologies to reduce any potential impact would 
be required. In additional full and detailed landscape details would be required along with 
implementation and maintenance plans. 
 
PCC Wildlife Officer  
No objections - Subject to the imposition of conditions in respect of further detailed surveys of 
buildings for bats prior to demolition, lighting design to minimise impact on bats, provision of a 
range of bird boxes.  The inclusion of green roofs, rain gardens, storm planters, reed-bed 
technology and trees as part of the development are to be welcomed.  Details of which will be 
secured at the reserved matters stage.  The landscaping scheme should include native plant and 
shrub species.     
 
PCC Pollution Team  
No objection – Subject to the imposition of conditions in respect of noise mitigation for proposed 
residential properties, dust management during construction/demolition works, and contamination.    
 
PCC Minerals And Waste Officer (Policy) 
No objection - The proposals do not affect any allocated mineral and wastes or designated areas. 
The developer should be encouraged to maximise the re-use, recycling and recovery of inert waste 
streams from construction and demolition operations. 
 
Highways England 
No objections 
 
Sustrans  
Object – Sustrans would not object if there were restrictions on cycling in some areas, as well as at 
least one good high quality east-west and one good north-south route through the development 
 but they object to an outright ban on cycling in the site. For the east-west route they feel the 
minimum requirement would be a high quality coherent route available 24 hours per day and 
linking the Waitrose Crossing of Bourges Boulevard with the Westgate/ Lincoln Road junction. And 
for North-South they suggest a route along the Cromwell Road alignment that links well with the 
Bus Station and new residential area and with Cromwell Road (North of Bright Street). In principle 

APPENDIX 3

112



Item no 2 

 

 9 

they think this is a good location for development, but believe that the current proposal needs to be 
changed to one that favours sustainable transport and is in line with Council policies.   
 
Peterborough Cycling Forum 
Object – The scheme makes inadequate provision for cyclists.  Closes off existing cycle routes, 
and is therefore is a barrier to sustainable transport modes.  Undermine the new Toucan crossing 
on Bourges Boulevard.  Good design will allow pedestrian safety with cyclists.  Local Transport 
Plan encourages strong enhancements to pedestrian/cycle routes.  The scheme increases car 
parking and bans cycling.   
 
Historic England  
No objections - General observations:- the permanent severance of Westgate should be 
approached with caution.  [Officer comment – The severance is no longer proposed.]  The amount 
of car parking in this central location is questioned, and if needed active ground floor frontages on 
its eastern elevation should be proposed to give activity to the new pedestrian route.  It is not clear 
how much of the locally listed building 16-18 Lincoln Road is to be retained.  It is recommended 
that the portion of the building to be retained relates to the plan of the building and includes the 
principal rooms.    
 
Peterborough Civic Society  
Supports the general nature of the scheme, and looks forward to new homes, shops, restaurants, 
offices and hopefully a cinema.  Concerned numerous land ownerships could lead to delays in 
delivery of Phase 1 and there may be a need for Compulsory Purchase Orders.  Agree with 
Historic England’s concerns about the permanent severance of Westgate [Officer comment – The 
severance is no longer proposed], the need for ground floor activity on the eastern side of the car 
park/cinema block along the new pedestrian street and the retention of a coherent amount of 
No.16-18 Lincoln Road rather than just its façade.  Concerned about the difficulty in achieving a 
satisfactory juxtaposition between the retained 16-18 Lincoln Road and the new Foodhall, they feel 
it is currently overbearing.  Concerned about the lack of an open east-west 24 hour public 
pedestrian route north of the foodhall to link up with Lincoln Road and North Street.  Disappointed 
that there will be a ban on cycling through the site, feel that there should be an east-west and 
north-south route provided for cyclists.  The provision of cycle parking facilities should conditioned.  
Viewpoint 13 shows a harsh closure to the existing Cromwell Road through the site.  The north 
elevation of the cinema will have to be designed to minimise any overbearing impact.  Feels the 
scale of buildings on Westgate is overbearing, too high, too uniform, and that the storeys should be 
set back from the frontage above 3rd storey level.  No account appears to have been taken of views 
from the Railway for travellers approaching Peterborough from the north.       
 
Environment Agency  
No objections – Subject to the imposition of conditions in respect of contamination, foul and 
surface water drainage.   
 
Anglian Water Services Ltd  
No objections - Subject to the imposition of conditions in respect of foul and surface water 
drainage.   
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer  
No objections – For ‘Access Only’, with all other design matters reserved.  The Design, Access and 
Planning Statements, cover all necessary elements detailing the applicant’s aspirations in terms of 
adequately addressing Community Safety and Vulnerability to Crime for the future development of 
this site. 
 
Natural England - Consultation Service  
No objection – The proposed development is not likely to have a significant effect on the interest 
features for which the Nene Washes SSI, Ramsar Site, SAC and SPA have been classified.  An 
appropriate Assessment is not required.  Natural England has Standing Advice on protected 
species.  Measures to enhance the biodiversity of the site should be secured.        

APPENDIX 3

113



Item no 2 

 

 10 

 
Network Rail - Eastern  
No observations to make.   
 
Peterborough Local Access Forum  
There appears to be problems of potentially conflicting movements between vehicles, cycles, 
buses, pedestrians on Westgate.  The new shared/improved space on Westgate will need to 
accommodate vehicles from Queensgate, buses, taxis and pedestrians.  There is a lack of 
connectivity between Queensgate and North Westgate.  Queensgate appeared to have turned 
their back on the public open space outside their site.  The wind/microclimate report submitted 
does not take into account the increased height of the Queensgate extension.    
 
British Transport Police  
No comments received 
 
Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service  
No objection – Subject to the imposition of a planning condition to secure fire hydrant provision.   
 
Stewart Jackson MP 
Support – The regeneration offered by this proposal is important and needed.  The public 
engagement and consultation undertaken by the applicant has been strong, which demonstrates 
their interest in the future of the area.  Concerned that this proposal will be considered at the same 
time as the Queensgate extension proposal, and that the financial viability of this scheme may be 
undermined by this other application.   
 
Gladstone Connect (Community Group) 
Support – Our area has suffered planning blight for 15 years or more.  We might not agree with 
every detail of the scheme, but we want development to proceed as soon as possible.  If the 
further development proposals at the Queensgate were to threaten the viability of this North 
Westgate scheme, then we would oppose them.  We would like conditions applied to prioritise 
employment opportunities for local people.  Perhaps new apprenticeships in the building trade for 
the young people of the Gladstone Area.   
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 576 
Total number of responses: 31 
Total number of objections: 22 
Total number in support: 3 
 
23 letters of objection have been received raising the following issues:- 

 No need to duplicate the provisions of cinemas in this or the Queensgate site, nor the 
amount of restaurants.  Better to provide more residential uses to bring life back to the city. 

 Inconsistency between the application form and demolition plan. 

 The plans should be adapted to retain Frobisher House on site, which is earmarked for 
demolition.  This building offers good quality space, in a relatively new building. 

 Routes for cyclists should be prioritised so cycling is actively encouraged in the city.   

 Object to the cycling ban proposed and general anti-cycling stance.  This is at odds with the 
Environment Capital agenda.   

 Cycling is not prohibited in Cathedral Square and Cowgate 

 There should be good cycle access from the station, west and north. 

 Signage should be used to make clear that Westgate and Lincoln Road are for use by 
cyclists, as well as other transport modes. 

 The development should provide access for cycles, and allow the site to be used as a 
through route for cyclists. 

 No allowance for cycling is contrary to the Local Transport Plan. 

APPENDIX 3

114



Item no 2 

 

 11 

 Other cities e.g. Copenhagen, manage to incorporate cyclists in streets with a café culture, 
in cycle lanes or shared spaces, without issue. 

 Anti-cycling stance of Peterborough City Council. 

 Excludes cycling from Westgate and Lincoln Road, where it is currently permitted 

 The proposal includes 500 parking spaces, and so encourages cars, but discourages 
cycling. 

 Good quality cycle parking proposed is applauded.  However it is unlikely people will get off 
their bikes and walk their bike through the site, and this will lead to conflicts.   

 Manual for Street 2 and TAL 9/93 say that cyclists should be allowed in new pedestrian 
areas from the outset and only if problems arise should they be restricted.   

 Impact on bus services.  The closure of Westgate proposed will add time and mileage to 
existing bus services making them less attractive to passengers and more costly for 
Operators.  [Officer comment – The closure of Westgate is no longer proposed.]   

 The surfacing and design of the stretch of road on Westgate between the bus station and 
Lincoln Road needs careful consideration, due to the weight and frequency of bus 
movements using this stretch of road.  It needs not only to look nice, but to be able to 
practically accommodate the bus traffic using it.      

 Unacceptable high density/overdevelopment of the site 

 Overbearing, out of scale with the character of the existing residential development in the 
area 

 Unacceptable impact on the residential amenity of surrounding sites, in terms of noise, 
disturbance, overlooking, loss of privacy and overshadowing 

 Car parking is already a problem in neighbouring residential areas, this will make the 
situation worse 

 Adverse effect on highway safety and convenience of road users. 

 I will have to move from the area, as the increase in people will lead to further increases in 
anti-social behaviour.  I already have problems from anti-social behaviour in the car park on 
Cromwell Road, which is poorly managed and has no security cameras.  Increase in 
littering, and noise pollution in evenings.  The Brewery Tap already causes problems with 
people loitering, and being drunk and disorderly.  This scheme will have a direct impact on 
my quality of life and those of fellow residents. 

 Object to any further traffic loading on Bright Street.  Bright Street is a very congested road, 
therefore entrance/exits to a car park, and provision of a supermarket goods delivery point 
on it are poor.   

 Shoppers should have easy access for carrying their goods to transport points e.g. car 
parks, bus/train stations and taxi rank.  Therefore the proposed Foodhall and supermarket 
should be moved closer to these points.  This could also make deliveries easier.    

 Concern raised about the detrimental impact of the proposed 100 bed hotel on the nearby 
Great Northern Hotel. 

 Concerned about the impact on existing roads.  The removal of cars along Westgate.  
Access to Queensgate car parks only from Bourges Boulevard.  Removal of Deacon Street.  
The loss of the taxi business on site, for travellers.  No drop off/pick up point for cars near 
bus station.   

 Should block all motorised vehicles (apart from deliveries), and make the area a pedestrian 
and cycle friendly environment only.      

 The proposal will result in the demolition and loss of an existing successful mini cabs taxi 
business, which relocated to the site in 2011.  This site should be excluded from the 
proposals, or an alternative location for it found.  Dedicated pick up/drop off points are 
required, taxi waiting/parking point, and on site taxi call office.       

 It was thought that No.60 Westgate would be retained, when redevelopment proposals 
were planned for the area.  Therefore considerable investment was made in the last 3 
years to convert the ground floor into an A3 restaurant use, with 4 x 1 bed flats above.   

 The Queensgate application should be given priority, as that is the only one guaranteed to 
happen.  The city does not need another promise to develop land that doesn’t happen.  The 
redevelopment does not take account of staff parking, and takes away existing staff parking 
for the city centre.   

APPENDIX 3

115



Item no 2 

 

 12 

 
9 letters of support have been received:- 

 The area needs regeneration and forms a logical footfall route from train station to the 
centre of town 

 Delighted this proposal has at last come forward, as the area has been in decline for quite a 
number of years.  It is vital for the city that the scheme proceeds and that the Council 
provides all necessary support. 

 A much needed development for Peterborough, and will bring additional venues which are 
much needed.   

 This will improve the arrival experience, first impressions of Peterborough 

 This scheme should not fail because of Queensgate’s proposal.  The anchor cinema is 
needed on this site, not in Queensgate.  This scheme will bring community benefits, the 
Queensgate proposal will not.       

 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main issues are:- 
 

a) Planning History 
 
An outline planning application, reference 03/00141/OUT, was submitted by Hawksworth in 2003 
for the redevelopment of the site to provide mixed uses including retail, residential, leisure, 
healthcare, parking and ancillary facilities.  This application was not progressed and was recently 
withdrawn, on submission of this current application.   
 
A further outline planning application, reference 07/01463/OUT, was submitted in 2007 by the then 
owners of the Queensgate shopping centre, for the comprehensive redevelopment of the site for a 
mixed use scheme to include the demolition of existing buildings and structures, the construction of 
new buildings and structures, the stopping up, diversion and alteration of public highways and the 
internal and external alteration and change of use of buildings and structures to be retained on site 
to provide: (i) retail uses (Classes A1, A2, A3, A4 and A5), offices (Class B1), residential (Class 
C3), community uses (Class D1) and leisure uses including a cinema (Class D2) to the east of 
Bourges Boulevard;(ii) hotel (Class C1), offices (Class B1) or residential (Class C3) to the west of 
Bourges Boulevard; together with ancillary and associated development, pedestrian circulation and 
car parking (including two new multi-storey car parks), vehicular access, servicing facilities, 
highway works, plant and machinery, landscaping, a new bus lay over and bus station 
incorporating 19 stands, bus station facilities and all necessary enabling works.  There has been 
no activity on this planning application for quite a number of years, and it remains undetermined at 
the agent’s request.   
 

b) Proposed uses 
 
Residential 
 
The scheme proposes up to a maximum of 15,000sqm of C3 residential floorspace which, 
dependent on the final mix of units proposed could be in the region of about 150 to 200 residential 
units.  Policies CS2 and CS4 of the Core Strategy promotes the city centre as a location for 
substantial new residential development of a range of different densities depending on their 
location, to deliver 4,300 additional dwellings.   Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan seeks also to 
broaden the range of uses within the city core, and to include more city centre living.  The North 
Westgate CC3.5 allocation under this Policy, identifies indicatively that around 200 dwellings could 
be accommodated on the site.  Therefore what is proposed as part of this planning application 
would be considered acceptable and in accordance with the development plan policies CS2 and 
CS4 of the Core Strategy and CC3 of the City Centre Plan.  There would also be scope for further 
residential accommodation to be provided on the excluded Invesco land as part of a future phases 
of redevelopment, should the Landowners wish to pursue this as an option in the future.     
 

APPENDIX 3

116



Item no 2 

 

 13 

In accordance with Policy CS8 of the Core Strategy 30% of the residential units proposed should 
be affordable, with the tenure split 70% social rented and 30% Intermediate housing.  The 
applicant has submitted a viability appraisal for consideration as they have calculated that the 
scheme could not be delivered if this level of affordable housing was required as it would not be 
financially viable.  The financial information is currently being considered and Members will be 
notified of the Officer’s recommendation in respect of affordable housing and the scheme’s 
financial viability in the Update report.   
 
Offices 
 
Up to a maximum of 5,000sqm of B1 Office floorspace is proposed.  The Core Strategy Policies 
CS3 and CS4 seek to encourage mixed use development (horizontally or vertically) which 
incorporates employment development, with an emphasis on B1 or service sector development, 
together with residential, leisure and/or retail, on sites, and in particular on sites within the city 
centre.  Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan also encourages mixed use developments, which 
integrate well within the existing retail area.  The office development proposed is therefore 
considered to be acceptable and in accordance with the development plan policies CS3, and CS4 
of the Core Strategy and CC3 of the City Centre Plan.   
 
Cinema 
 
The City Centre DPD identifies that there is a need to attract new leisure/cultural facilities, such as 
new built leisure uses, particularly a centrally located cinema.  It is considered that a city centre 
cinema will help to improve the evening economy.  Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan seeks to 
support development that encourages trips into the city centre for shopping, leisure (including a 
cinema), social and cultural purposes.  The North Westgate area is identified as being suitable for 
a mixed use development including retail and leisure uses.  The inclusion of a Class D2 Cinema of 
up to a maximum of 5,000sqm (approximately an 8 screen multiplex), is therefore considered to be 
acceptable on this site and in accordance with Policy CC3 of the City Centre DPD and Policy CS18 
of the Core Strategy.  Under the previous 2007 planning application reference 07/01463/OUT a 
cinema was proposed.           
 
Hotel 
 
A C1 Hotel, of up to a maximum of 8,000sqm is proposed.  The actual number of bedrooms 
proposed would depend on the operator and final floorspace proposed under any reserved matters 
application, however this could be in the region of between 100 and 200 bedrooms.  The 
masterplan submitted for illustrative purposes only shows the provision of a 120 bedroom hotel.  It 
is considered that a hotel would be an acceptable use as part of this mixed use city centre site, and 
would accord with Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan.  Business competition between this proposal 
and existing city centre hotels is not a material planning consideration that could be taken into 
consideration in the determination of this planning application.   
 
Retail/Restaurants/Cafés and Foodhall 
 
The development proposes:- 
 

1. Retail (Class A1/A2) up to a maximum of 7,000sqm, and 
2. Restaurants and cafes (Class A3) up to a maximum of 5,000sqm, and  
3. Foodhall (Mixture of Classes A1, A3, A4 and A5) up to a maximum of 2,000sqm 
 

The site is located within the city centre where the principle of retail, restaurants and cafes uses is 
acceptable.  Many of the restaurants and cafes will complement the proposed cinema, as well as 
providing facilities for the wider city and local residents.  Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy looks to 
expand the provision of retail floorspace within the city centre, with priority given to the expansion 
within North Westgate site.  Smaller format retail units with mezzanine floors are likely to be 
proposed to complement the existing retail offer within the city centre.  The new Foodhall concept 

APPENDIX 3

117



Item no 2 

 

 14 

is considered to be appropriately sited within this mixed use city centre site.  These proposed uses 
are therefore all considered to accord with the requirements of policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan 
and CS4 of the Core Strategy.   
 
Community facilities    

 
To compensate for the loss of the 2 church outbuildings which currently provide community spaces 
and a book shop, it is proposed to provide up to a maximum of 3,000sqm of Class D1 to provide a 
Church Hall, Worship/Community Room and Health centre.  The main church building is being 
retained.  These D1 uses are considered to be acceptable for the site, in accordance with policies 
CC3 of the City Centre Plan and CS4 of the Core Strategy.   
 

c) Masterplan 
 
The applicant’s vision for the redevelopment of the site is to create a new city quarter that expands 
the existing active boundary of city centre and brings a new mixed use development of leisure, 
retail, employment and residential to the site, which is currently under used and in need of 
regeneration. 
 
The main focus of the masterplan is the creation of a new civic square around the Westgate 
Church.  This is to give both space and prominence to the valuable Locally Listed Church building, 
and to create a new public space to act as a focal point to the site.  Radiating out from the square 
would be new pedestrianised streets to give east-west and north-south linkages through the site.  
The mixture of uses throughout the site is intended to add to the vibrancy of the newly created 
public realm and create both daytime and evening activity on site.  The development would provide 
improved urban connections between the railway station and city centre, and between the 
residential community to the north and the city centre.  An integrated sustainability strategy is 
proposed, to incorporate greenery, planting and water into the public realm.     
 
The masterplan submitted with the planning application is illustrative only and represents one way 
in which the site could be developed.  As with any outline proposal the exact details of the scheme 
will be submitted as part of future reserved matters applications, at which point the scheme may 
have evolved and changed.  Therefore eight general masterplan principles have been identified, to 
form the basis of all future reserved matters applications for this outline proposal.  These are:- 
 

1. Urban Regeneration and Mixed use development 
2. Delivering sustainable development 
3. Design and Landmark buildings 
4. Connectivity and accessibility 
5. Civic spaces and public realm 
6. City centre living 
7. Key views and landmarks 
8. A managed development process. 

 
Not only does the illustrative masterplan show one possible way in which the application site could 
be redeveloped, it also shows one possible way in which the two excluded parcels of Invesco land 
could be redeveloped and incorporated into a comprehensive masterplan for the whole North 
Westgate Opportunity Area designation.  This is considered to be key because Policy CC3 of the 
City Centre Plan states ‘Individual proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive 
redevelopment of the Opportunity Area will not be permitted.’  Therefore whilst the illustrative 
masterplan demonstrates only one possible way in which the application site and the 2 excluded 
parcels of land  could be redeveloped comprehensively, it does give Officers sufficient comfort that 
recommending approval of this application would not prejudice the comprehensive redevelopment 
of the whole of the Opportunity area.  The proposal in this respect, would therefore be in 
accordance with the requirements of Policy CC3 of the City Centre Plan.      
 

d) Parameter Plans  

APPENDIX 3

118



Item no 2 

 

 15 

 
The application seeks approval of a range of Parameter plans on which subsequent reserved 
matters applications will be based.  The parameter plans set out an overarching framework to 
inform the future detailed design of the scheme.  They cover issues such as maximum building 
heights, the general locations of the buildings footprints, the minimum widths of proposed streets 
etc.  The Parameter Plans give developers an agreed set of parameters from which to work to, 
when designing the final detailed scheme.     
 
Parameter Plan 01 – Site Boundary Plan 
 
This plan sets out the land that is included within the application site boundary.   
 
Parameter Plan 02 - Demolition Plan 
 
This plan identifies the buildings within the application site that will be retained and those that are 
proposed for demolition.  None of the buildings to be demolished are listed.  The Local Listed 
Building, 16-18 Lincoln Road is to be retained in part.  The exact details of the amount of building 
to be retained and demolished will be secured by way of a Planning condition to ensure the parts 
of the building worthy of retention are suitably retained.  The Conservation Officer raises no 
objection on this basis and it is considered this would address the comments of Historic England 
and the Civic Society in this respect.   
 
03 – Lower ground level 
 
It is proposed that car parking will be excavated down to a maximum of 7m Above Ordnance 
Datum (AOD), which is approximately 3.3 -3.6m below existing ground level.  The principle of 
basement car parking in the location shown on the Parameter Plan is considered to be acceptable 
in principle, and will reduce the overall height of the building on Bright Street.  The technical reports 
in respect of contamination and water table level might dictate the actual depth of excavation and 
the technical solutions needed to ensure the basement is water tight.   
 
04 – Active frontages 
 
This parameter plan sets out the location of active frontages, semi-active frontages and non-active 
frontages within the application site.  On the whole, active frontages are proposed on most public 
elevations on the new blocks of accommodation throughout the scheme.  All the proposed 
frontages around the church and new public square are to be active, together with the new east-
west pedestrianised street through the site known as ‘The Causeway’.  The amount of active 
frontage on the proposed eastern elevation of Block C on the north to south route between blocks 
A and C is limited.  This has been raised as a concern by Historic England and the Civic Society as 
active frontages add to the quality of streets and public routes.  Whilst this concern is understood, it 
has not been possible for the applicant to provide activity along this frontage due to the car parking 
and cinema uses proposed behind this elevation.  Active and semi frontages are proposed along 
the opposite side of this new pedestrianised route.  Therefore on balance whilst not ideal, due to 
the nature of the uses proposed, and the total level of active, non-active and semi active frontages 
along this new route it is considered to be acceptable.  At the reserved matters the design and 
materials of the external elevations of these buildings, particularly in the areas of non and semi 
active frontages will be key to the quality and success of this streetscene.        
 
05 – Ground level Plan  
 
This plan has been submitted for approval to agree the general positions and footprints of the 
proposed blocks of accommodation on site.  Horizontal limits of deviation for the proposed blocks 
positions are shown in order to give flexibility at the reserved matters stage.  This plan also 
therefore seeks to agree the minimum width of the new streets and areas of public realm within the 
development.   
 

APPENDIX 3

119



Item no 2 

 

 16 

During the course of the planning application amendments have been made to this plan to agree 
minimum distances between the proposed blocks of accommodation and the Church.  This is to 
ensure sufficient separation distance between the new built form and the church and to respect 
and give prominence to the Church’s setting.  It is also to ensure there is sufficient space on site 
for the creation of a new public square and area of public realm.  Officers consider that this plan 
demonstrates an acceptable relationship between the new blocks of accommodation and the 
Church.   
 
This plan has also been amended during the course of the application, to agree minimum 
distances between the new blocks of accommodation for the two new pedestrianised streets 
through the development, both north to south and east to west.  The north- south route will be a 
minimum width at Bright Street of 15m narrowing to a minimum of 9.5m at its most southerly point 
within the site.  The positioning of this new street was also important in respect of trying as far as 
possible to align it with the existing Cromwell Road alignment to the north of the site.  It has not 
been possible to provide the new route in exact alignment with Cromwell Road to the north.  
However the plan sets the parameters of its maximum east and west alignment to show what 
Officers consider to be the limits of an acceptable off set position to integrate the scheme into its 
surrounding urban context. 
 
Officers consider the proposed 16m minimum width of the east-west route the site, ‘The 
Causeway’ to be acceptable, and sufficient to provide outdoor café seating areas, the landscaped 
rain garden features, and pedestrian circulation space.   
 
This plan also shows the proposed 3m wide pedestrian/cycle link along the Westgate edge of the 
development.  
 
The Building blocks positioning with the Locally Listed 16-18 Lincoln Road are considered to be 
acceptable and the exact extent of the retained part of the locally listed building will be secured by 
condition.           
 
06 – Vertical limits of deviation 
 
This plan has been submitted to agree the vertical limits of deviation on the proposed building 
block and to agree the maximum heights of buildings in different areas of the site, on which any 
future reserved matters applications should be based.   
 
This plan has been amended during the course of the planning application, to respond to areas 
where the heights were considered to be too great in relation to the two Locally Listed Buildings on 
site, the Church and No.16-18 Lincoln Road.  This involved the reduction in height of part of Block 
D, immediately to the south of 16-18 Lincoln Road to improve the visual relationship and transition 
between this retained and proposed block.  The detailed design of the proposed building, as part of 
any future reserved matters application, will be key to ensure a successful transition and visual 
relationship between these two buildings.  The vertical heights of Block B have also been amended 
at Officers request to protect the setting of the Church, when viewed from Westgate and an 
acceptable relationship is now considered to be proposed.  Again the detailed design of Block B, at 
reserved matters stage, will be key to safeguarding the setting of the church.   
 
There are variable heights proposed on some blocks of accommodation within the scheme, 
however the maximum heights of each block proposed is Block A (adjacent to Deacon Street)– 
21.5m, Block C (to north of the Church)– 23m, Block D (to east of church) – 21m, Block B (to west 
of church) – 21m, and Block E (adjacent to Acland Street) – 26.5m.   
 
The maximum heights proposed in all parts of the scheme, and in particular on existing road 
frontages, and in relation to the existing surrounding built form is considered to be acceptable.  
Whilst the buildings proposed on site, would be higher than some of those of the surrounding 
streetscape, in particular on Bright Street and Lincoln Road, it is considered that the separation 
distances and relationships between them would be acceptable in this city centre urban setting.     

APPENDIX 3

120



Item no 2 

 

 17 

 
07 – Pedestrian Access Plan 
 
The pedestrian access plan shows the proposed pedestrian routes through the site and how these 
would connect to the existing pedestrian routes beyond the site.  It shows good pedestrian links 
through the site and how these would logically connect to the existing pedestrian crossing and 
streets beyond the site.  It also shows one possible way in which potential additional pedestrian 
linkages could be created in future redevelopment phases, if the two currently excluded parcels of 
land were also to come forward.    
 
It is considered that the pedestrian links proposed are acceptable and will allow both ease of 
movement through the site and connection to the existing network of streets and pedestrian 
crossing points.   
 
08 – Vehicle access/routes plan 
 
The vehicle access plan shows how vehicles will manoeuvre around and access the site.  It also 
shows how service vehicles can manoeuvre around the site.  The Local Highway Authority 
considers this plan to be acceptable in highway safety terms and demonstrates how traffic routes 
can be acceptably achieved both around and within the site.   
 

e) Highway Implications 
 

Access is a reserved matter that is being committed and considered under this current outline 
planning application.  A Transport Assessment, and Workplace and Residential Travel Plans have 
been submitted in support of the application.   
 
The site is located in a highly accessible city centre location, with the Peterborough bus station 
positioned immediately to the south of the application site, within the Queensgate shopping centre.   
The Railway Station is also approximately 250m to the west, linked to the site by the new at grade 
pedestrian/cycling crossing facilities across Bourges Boulevard.  There is also a taxi rank opposite 
the site on Westgate, adjacent to the bus station.          
 
The proposal involves the stopping up of Deacon Street and Cromwell Road.  If planning 
permission is approved, this will be secured by a separate legal process.  The application originally 
also proposed the stopping up of Westgate between the bus station and the Multi storey car parks, 
due to the siting of a new block of accommodation over the existing carriageway.  The proposal 
has been amended and this block of accommodation reduced in size so that it no longer extends 
over the carriageway, therefore this section of Westgate is no longer proposed to be stopped up.  
Through the imposition of highway signage however it is proposed to alter the existing traffic flows 
along the section of Westgate between Lincoln Road and Bourges Boulevard.  All traffic exiting the 
multi storey car parks on Westgate will have to turn left and leave via Bourges Boulevard, they will 
not be permitted to turn right and travel along Westgate.  They will also have to enter the multi 
storey car parks from the north via Bourges Boulevard and Westgate, and will not be permitted to 
turn right at the bottom of Lincoln Road onto Westgate and travel westwards.   Therefore the only 
traffic that will be able to travel westwards along Westgate having turned right at the bottom of 
Lincoln Road will be buses, taxis, cycles, and service delivery vehicles.  Customers visiting the 
John Lewis Click and Collect service will be able to exit the facility onto Westgate, but will have to 
enter the facility from the Crescent Bridge roundabout to the south, rather than Westgate.  At 
present such vehicles do have the option to enter for either Crescent Bridge roundabout or 
Westgate.  The proposed highway works are considered to be acceptable in highway safety terms.  
There may be issues with the 3 lanes of traffic exiting the Queensgate car parks on Westgate and 
all turning left into one lane carriageway.  It may therefore be preferable to narrow the 3 lanes 
down to a maximum of 2 to allow better integration and flow of traffic from the cars parks on to the 
highway.  It is considered the exact details of this can be considered by way of a planning 
condition.     
 

APPENDIX 3

121



Item no 2 

 

 18 

The proposed development due to its city centre location will be serviced as a ‘street access’ 
scheme, with service access to the site being managed as an ‘out of hours’ operation by a 
management and security team, usually during the hours of 6am and 10am.  Tracking and plans 
have been submitted to demonstrate that suitable access and manoeuvring space could be 
provided on site to serve the proposed development.  The exact service details arrangements will 
be agreed at the detailed stage.  Concern was raised during the course of the planning application 
as to how the existing service/delivery vehicles that serve the existing sites on Lincoln Road would 
be able to turn and leave the area due to the proposed closure of Westgate.  Alternative service 
routes using North Street and Park Road were explored but not fully resolved, hence why the 
scheme was amended to re-open the Westgate route for service vehicles.  If the re-routing of 
existing service vehicles and bus routes was resolved in future, this would allow the applicant to re-
consider the option of closure of Westgate.     
 
The existing taxi rank adjacent to the bus station will be retained, and taxis will be permitted to 
travel in both directions along the full length of Westgate.  Whilst the concerns of the mini cab taxi 
business in respect of the demolition and loss of their city centre premises is understood.  The taxi 
business relocated to this Opportunity Area site about 4 years ago, knowing that the site was 
designated for redevelopment in the Peterborough Local Plan and that there were two live planning 
applications with the Council references 03/00141/OUT and 07/01463/OUT, which both proposed 
the redevelopment of the Opportunity Area, including the loss of their site.  There is no requirement 
in planning policy terms for the retention of a mini-cab taxi business within the Opportunity Area or 
the wider City Centre.  Therefore whilst the loss of this business is regrettable, its retention or re-
provision with the scheme is not required in planning policy terms.  The occupier is freely able to 
discuss securing a new premises on the site just as any other occupier that is displaced from their 
current location.  The regeneration of this key city centre site and the significant public benefits it 
would bring should not be resisted on the basis of retention/re-provision of this or any other 
business within the site.        
 
The trip generation and distribution as a result of the proposed development has been modelled.  
The impact of the proposed development will result in an average delay per vehicle on Thorpe 
Road of some 13.5 minutes per vehicle during the Saturday peak (1-2pm).  The AM peak is 
capable of accommodating the proposed development, however the PM peak will result in 
additional queuing at the Crescent Bridge roundabout.  Whilst the proposed development will result 
in additional traffic generation and queuing during the evening PM peak and the Saturday peak, it 
is expected that the wait times will be less than the model predicts as drivers will divert to 
alternative/more appropriate routes.  The resultant impact on the highway network is not 
considered to be so harmful as to warrant refusal of planning permission on this key city centre 
regeneration site.  Officers consider the regeneration benefits of the proposed redevelopment of 
this site would outweigh the harm to the city centre traffic flows in the Saturday and PM peak 
periods.     
 
Buses 
 
As a result of Westgate no longer being proposed to be stopped up, there is now no longer a need 
to re-route any of the arrival bus services to the bus station.  As a result of the closure of Deacon 
Street however the departure routes of the following bus services Citi 3, 101, 102, 201 and X1 will 
have to be re-routed.  The options available for the re-routing of these bus services are considered 
to be acceptable and no objections or comments have been received from any of the bus 
operators.   
 
Parking 
 
The existing 4 surface level car parks within the application site will be redeveloped as part of this 
proposed planning application, resulting in the loss of 220 car parking spaces.  With the addition of 
the existing private car parking spaces on site, the total number of car parking spaces to be lost as 
a result of this development is 309.  This outline planning application seeks permission for up to a 
maximum of 500 car parking spaces.  Therefore a net increase of 191 spaces, should all 500 

APPENDIX 3

122



Item no 2 

 

 19 

spaces be proposed.  The illustrative masterplan submitted proposes around 300 car parking 
spaces, with a new multi-storey car park, which is accessed from Bright Street, with opening hours 
to serve the proposed new cinema.  It is also envisaged that some dedicated car parking spaces 
would be required for the new residential development on site.  A car parking condition is 
recommended to agree the exact details of the proposed car parking, and in particular those 
dedicated for the residential units.    
 
Cycling 
 
The proposed development does not affect any designated cycle routes.  Cyclists will still be able 
to use Bright Street, Lincoln Road and the newly improved Bourges Boulevard as cycle routes as 
they do presently.   
 
A new 3m wide shared cycle/pedestrian footpath is proposed as part of this development on the 
northern side of Westgate to provide an improved east/west cycle route adjacent to the application 
site.  This will provide an enhanced cycle route between the railway station and city centre, along 
Westgate.   
 
As a result of the stopping up of Deacon Street and Cromwell Road within the site there will be no 
north to south vehicle routes through the site, and all routes within the site will be pedestrianised.  
The existing north to south routes along Lincoln Road and Bourges Boulevard around the site will 
be still be available for cyclists.  The applicant does not propose to allow cycling within the 
pedestrianized zones of the application site due to the potential conflicts and safety issues that 
arise between cyclists and pedestrians in busy city centre environments.  The applicant welcomes 
cyclists to dismount and push their cycles through the pedestrianized zones when visiting or 
passing through the site, and proposes to provide secure cycle parking with CCTV coverage at key 
points within the site.  Secure cycle storage areas will also be proposed for the new residential 
development and for the staff of the new businesses within the site.   
 
It is always difficult to balance the needs of cyclists and pedestrians within pedestrian zones of city 
centre sites, however the safety of pedestrians should be given priority.  The Government advice in 
Manual for Streets and TAL 9/93 does support the inclusion of cyclists in pedestrianised areas, 
however this advice is based on consideration of the context of the surrounding area and whether 
cycle routes are required through the development site.  In view of the existing cycle routes around 
the application site and the proposed enhancement to the cycle route along Westgate, it is not 
considered essential that a cycle route be required through the site.  Due to the pedestrianised 
nature of the routes through the site, the likelihood of outdoor seating areas, landscaping, public art 
etc, the space available for the movement of pedestrians and cyclists will be limited.  Therefore in 
reality, particularly at busy times, cycling around the site rather than through it would be likely to be 
a quicker and easier option for cyclists.  Therefore whilst the comments of objectors in respect of 
allowing cycling through the site have been considered, in this instance due to the potential 
conflicts between pedestrians and cyclists, and the provision of improved cycle routes around the 
site, it is not considered that cycling through the site is required, or could be insisted upon.    
 

f) Public Realm 
 

The applicant’s public realm strategy for the site is based on the Stone Route and the Green Route 
proposed by Gordon Cullen in the 1970’s.  The Stone route runs between the Cathedral and St 
John’s Church, and the Green route runs along Bridge Street and Long Causeway.  It proposes to 
introduce a third route from Bourges Boulevard through the site called the Water Route.  The 
pedestrian route through the site would incorporate the principles of Water Sensitive Urban Design 
to create a unique identity for the area, reduce flood risk, use water more sustainably, as well as 
promoting urban cooling.  Rainwater could be used imaginatively within the streetscene to create 
attractive public spaces.  As this is an outline proposal the exact details of the proposed public 
realm is not as yet known, therefore a public realm strategy to include the proposed street 
furniture, lighting, signage, CCTV, landscaping, water features, public art etc will need to be 
secured by condition.   

APPENDIX 3

123



Item no 2 

 

 20 

 
g) Impact on the Historic Environment 

 
There are no statutory designated buildings within the application site.  However lying to the south 
of Westgate, opposite the site, there is the Grade II Wortley’s Almhouses.  Officers have 
considered the impact of the proposed development on the Listed Buildings within the vicinity of 
the site and concluded that the proposed development would not have an adverse impact on the 
character or appearance of any Listed Buildings.     
 
The site is not located with a Conservation Area, however it is located adjacent to the City Centre 
Conservation Area, the boundary of which is Lincoln Road to the east of the site.  Officers consider 
the proposed development would preserve the character and appearance of the adjacent part of 
the City Centre Conservation area.     
 
Westgate Congregational Chapel/Church is located in the site, accessed from Westgate.  It is a 
building of local importance, due to it forming an important part of the streetscene.  Its scale, 
appearance and function serves as a local landmark.   
 
16-18 Lincoln Road is the other building of local importance within the site, as it is well 
proportioned and retains most of its original features.  It also has distinctive detailing and its size 
makes a significant contribution to the area, appearing as a local landmark.   
 
The impact of the proposed development on the two locally listed buildings to be retained as part of 
this development is considered to be acceptable.    
 
The impact of the proposed development on views of the Peterborough Cathedral and 
Conservation area has also been assessed.  The assessment concludes that the proposed 
development will have no adverse impact on views of Peterborough Cathedral from the immediate 
area and only a marginal impact on longer distance views.  Officers are in agreement with the 
findings of this assessment and are satisfied that no unacceptable adverse impact would result on 
the existing Cathedral views, or Conservation area.  As per paragraph 134 of the NPPF, the 
development will result in less than substantial harm to the significance of designated heritage, and 
this harm needs weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, and this scheme will bring 
significant regeneration benefits to the city centre.     
 
Therefore it is considered that the proposed development does not have an adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of listed buildings and would accord with section 66(1) Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and preserve the character and appearance of this 
part of the City Centre Conservation Area in accordance with Section 72(1), of the Town and 
Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and would be 
in accordance with Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
(2012) and the National Planning Policy Framework (Heritage considerations).   
 

h) Contamination 
 
A Phase 1 Environmental Assessment has been submitted in support of the application.  The 
purpose of this report is to determine the potential land contamination liabilities or constraints 
associated with the development of the site. 
 
The report recommends further intrusive investigation across the entire site, to give a clearer idea 
of contaminants within the soil and groundwater, and as a part of this further ground gas 
monitoring.  Officers are satisfied that this ground investigation can be secured by way of a 
planning condition.   
  
The site is underlain by a Secondary A Aquifer, which is classified as a controlled water by the 
Environment Agency and therefore requires protection from contamination.  The proposed below 
ground level car parking area is proposed to be approximately 9m above ordnance datum (AOD), 

APPENDIX 3

124



Item no 2 

 

 21 

which is approximately 1.5m below current ground level.  From a report of previous groundwater 
levels, the finished floor level of the car park could be beneath the groundwater level.  The 
recommended further intrusive investigation will provide more up to date information on the 
underlying groundwater regime, which will inform the car park design and construction.   
 
Officers accept the findings and recommendations of this report, and are satisfied that the further 
intrusive investigation can be secured by condition, together with any necessary 
mitigation/remediation required as a result of the findings.   
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance Policy PP20 of the Planning Policies 
DPD.   
 

i) Drainage/Flood Risk 
 
Flood Risk 
 
A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted in support of the application.   
 
The site is located within Flood Zone 1, therefore in accordance with National Planning Policy 
Guidance all of the proposed uses are considered to be appropriate within this flood zone 
category, and the risk of flooding is low.  
 
The risk of flooding from groundwater is considered to be low to moderate, though this is likely to 
be limited to subsurface development such as car parks and basements (which if constructed 
below the groundwater table, could potentially produce localised ‘damming effects’).  If planning 
permission is granted, further site investigation should be undertaken prior to construction to better 
quantify the risk of groundwater flooding to the site.  If the results show that the groundwater 
flooding would be an issue for subsurface features e.g. car park, then suitable mitigation would be 
required e.g. installation of an impermeable lining etc.   
 
Drainage 
 
At this outline stage, the exact drainage design for the site is not known, and so will be subject to a 
planning condition.  The applicant has however submitted an outline Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Strategy (SUDS) to demonstrate how surface water onsite could be managed sustainably, and 
how SUDS could be integrated into the proposed development layout.   
 
The outline strategy proposes the use of Rills (open channels, covered with iron grating) to act as 
surface water conveyance features, which receive rainwater from the surrounding rooftops and 
paved surfaces on side streets.  The rills drain into storm planters/rain gardens, which slow and 
cleanse the water along its route.  It also proposes a mist pool water feature to attenuate surface 
water during significant storm events, but will be predominately dry or only contain shallow water at 
other times.  Permeable paving in certain areas of the site is also proposed, green roofs and a 
designated flood storage area.   
 
Officers agree with the principles set out in the Outline SUDS Strategy, and are satisfied that the 
exact details of the final drainage strategy proposed can be secured by way of a planning 
condition.   
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with the NPPF, and Policy CS22 of the 
Core Strategy.   
 

j) Archaeology 
 

The planning application is supported with an Archaeological Desk Based Assessment, an 
Archaeological Geophysical Assessment and some targeted Trial Trenching.   
 

APPENDIX 3

125



Item no 2 

 

 22 

The desk based assessment identified that the redevelopment of this site had the potential to 
impact upon archaeological remains.  Whilst the site is located outside the medieval nucleus, 
records indicate that human burials have been found in the vicinity of the site.  The area has the 
potential for prehistoric, Roman, early-medieval and medieval remains.  Some ground disturbance 
has been caused by 19th and 20th century foundations, utilities and service runs, however more 
deeply buried deposits may survive beneath this.  As demolition, ground preparation and 
construction works may impact on archaeological assets, a geophysical survey (GPR) was 
undertaken.   
 
The GPR survey results identified several anomalies that could belong to archaeological features, 
and relate to activity predating the composition of the city centre.  There were several rectilinear 
features positioned on a different alignment to the modern town layout, which could belong to 
former human activity.  Throughout the survey there were also several anomalies of weaker 
patterning detected.  On this basis it was considered that further investigation was required to 
understand their archaeological significance.  Therefore a programme of trial trenching was agreed 
and undertaken across all of the car park sites with Hawksworth landownership.  No archaeological 
remains were found as a result of these archaeological digs.  Therefore Officers are content the 
redevelopment is unlikely to impact on archaeological remains, however a Watching brief 
archaeology condition is recommended to monitor the proposed groundworks, as a precaution 
should any archaeological assets are uncovered during construction.       
 
The proposed development is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policies CS17 of the 
Core Strategy and PP17 of the Planning Policies DPD.   
 

k) Ecology 
 

A Phase 1 Habitat survey, bat survey and breeding birds survey were submitted in support of the 
planning application.   
 
Officers are satisfied with the assessments in respect of the proposed impacts on protected 
species.  The Bat Report found no evidence of bat roosts being present within the site’s trees or 
buildings.  Overall bat activity around the site was low.  However it is important to note that not all 
buildings that currently provide suitable opportunities for roosting bats were surveyed, due to lack 
of access.  Therefore in line with the recommendations of the report, Officers recommend that:- 
 
 1. Further detailed internal inspections are carried out in all buildings identified as proving suitable 
opportunities for bats, prior to demolition;  
2.  That further surveys be carried out at Westgate Church should development affect this building; 
and  
3. that proposed lighting is designed to minimise the disturbance to bats.  These can be secured by 
way of a planning condition.   
 
The bird survey found evidence of several Species of Principal Importance nesting within the site 
including Starling, Dunnock and House Sparrow, however no Black Redstart were found.  
Avoidance of works that could damage nests within the bird nesting season of 1st March until 31st 
August will be required, unless surveys can demonstrate that nesting birds are not present.  As per 
the recommendations of the report, a range of nesting features to cater for Swift, House Sparrow 
and Starling should be incorporated within the development, the details of which can be secured by 
a planning condition.    
 
The illustrative landscape masterplan submitted includes green roofs, rain gardens, storm planters, 
reed-bed technology and trees, which are welcomed.  Opportunities for roofs to incorporate 
‘brownfield’ features should also be explored given the potential for Black redstarts in the area.  
Soft landscaping should also include a range of native plant and shrub species.  The exact details 
of the landscaping proposals will be secured at the Reserved Matters Stage.   
 
The proposed development is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policies CS21 of the 

APPENDIX 3

126



Item no 2 

 

 23 

Core Strategy and PP16 of the Planning Policies DPD.   
 

l) Trees 
 
An arboricultural assessment was submitted in support of the planning application.   
 
It identifies that the development proposed will require the removal of 23 Category ‘C’ trees and 3 
groups of trees.  Category C trees are generally regarded as low quality trees and ones which are 
not considered to be significant constraint on development.  Officers consider that the tree loss 
proposed is acceptable and that satisfactorily mitigation could be achieved by a scheme of new 
tree planting.  A proposed Landscape Masterplan has been submitted with the application and 
whilst it is illustrative only at this outline stage, it does show a possible scheme that would mitigate 
for the proposed trees loss.   
 
The assessment also mentions the need for works within the Root Protection Area (RPA) of nine 
offsite Category U trees.  Therefore at the detailed reserved matters stage, a Finalised Tree 
Protection Plan and an updated Method Statement would be required, to identify the exact Root 
Protection Area infringements and associated methodologies to reduce any potential impact on the 
retained trees. In additional full and detailed landscape details would be required, along with 
implementation and maintenance plans. 
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy PP16 of the Planning Policies 
DPD.   
   

m) Noise 
 
A noise assessment was submitted in support of the planning application.  This assessment 
included assessing both the suitability of the site for the proposed uses, and the impact of the 
development on potentially sensitive receptors in the vicinity of the site. 
 
The main source of noise impacting upon the site is road traffic noise, as the site is bounded by the 
A15 (Bourges Boulevard), Bright Street, Lincoln Road and Westgate.  The noise impacts from the 
Brewery Tap public house on site were also considered in the assessment.  The report concludes 
that in all bar one of the locations tested on site, acceptable internal noise levels could be achieved 
for the new residential properties with closed double glazing and a standard trickle ventilator.  In 
one location on site, upgraded double glazing and ventilation would be required to secure 
acceptable internal noise levels.  In addition to the types of glazing and ventilation that can be used 
to secure acceptable noise attenuation, the internal layouts of the properties can also be designed 
to have less noise sensitive rooms on facades facing the noise source etc.  Therefore to ensure 
acceptable noise levels are achieved for the new residential properties, a noise mitigation strategy 
condition is recommended to agree the exact layout details and glazing/ventilation specifications 
etc proposed.   
 
Any outdoor amenity areas for the residents proposed, should also similarly be designed in a way 
to help mitigate against the adverse impacts of noise.   
 
The construction hours proposed of 8am to 6pm Mondays to Fridays, 8am to 1pm on Saturdays 
and no working on Sundays/Bank Holidays is acceptable and in line with Industry standards.    
 
At this outline stage no details of the proposed building services plant are known.  At the detailed 
design stage when the location, number and type of plant proposed is known, the design will have 
to ensure that it meets the relevant noise criteria in respect of maximum noise levels permissible in 
relation to the closet existing or proposed residential properties.     
 
The proposed development would have an impact on traffic flows on existing roads in the area, 
both during construction and once the development is operational.  The assessment considered 
the impact of this on existing residential properties located along surrounding roads and 

APPENDIX 3

127



Item no 2 

 

 24 

considered that at worst the impact of traffic noise would be minor negative, and typically it would 
be negligible.  Therefore it is considered that the increase in traffic as a result of this development 
would not unacceptably impact on the existing noise levels enjoyed by surrounding residential 
properties.    
 

n) Air Quality Assessment 
 
An air quality assessment has been submitted in support of the proposal.   
 
It concludes that dust emissions from construction demolition can be adequately controlled using 
on-site management practices.  With appropriate mitigation measures there would be a slight to 
negligible and no significant impact with respect to potential effects on health and amenity. 
 
The impact of additional vehicle emissions on surrounding receptors has been modelled and it has 
found that the impact from the additional vehicle emissions of the proposed development on local 
air quality will be negligible and not significant.   
 
Officers consider the findings of the assessment to be acceptable, and would impose a 
demolition/construction management plan condition to deal with the mitigation of noise and dust 
during the demolition and construction periods.     

 
o) Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
Peterborough City Council now have an adopted CIL Charging Schedule. Peterborough City 
Council are obliged to collect the CIL from liable parties (usually either developers or landowners).  
All applications identified as CIL liable will incur a CIL charge.  As this is an outline application we 
will not be able to issue a liability notice confirming the amount of CIL that is due until we receive 
reserved matters details. A CIL Questions form has been submitted by the applicant which sets out 
the proposed details of demolition and new build.   
 
The proposed highway works, new public realm works (including pedestrian and cycle links), 
CCTV, public art, fire hydrants and implementation of travel plans will be secured by way of 
planning conditions, rather than a S106 Legal agreement.  
 

p)     Other Matters 
 

1) Crime and Disorder – There is no evidence to suggest that the development in principle will 
result in significant crime and disorder in the locaility. 

2) Loss of Frobisher House – Whilst this building may have the potential to the re-used, it has 
no special architectural merit/qualities that would justify requiring its retention.   

 
6 Conclusions 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of the 
development plan and specifically: 
 

 The principle of the mixed used retail, housing, office, leisure etc uses are considered to be 
acceptable on this city centre site.  This is in accordance with Policy CC3 of the City Centre 
DPD and Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy. 

 The masterplan principles identified, and maximum and minimum limits of deviation shown 
in the Parameter plans are considered to be acceptable, to form the basis of any future 
reserved matters applications.   

 The proposed access arrangements, parking and traffic impacts are considered to be 
acceptable.  There are no highway safety concerns with the development proposed.  The 
development is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy PP12 of the Planning 
Policies DPD.    

APPENDIX 3

128



Item no 2 

 

 25 

 The proposed development would not result in substantial harm to the character and 
appearance or setting of any listed or locally listed buildings and would preserve the 
character and appearance of this adjacent City Centre Conservation Area.  The limited 
harm arising is outweighed by the economic, social and environmental benefits of the 
scheme.  This is in accordance with Policies CS17 of the Core Strategy and Policy PP17 of 
the Planning Policies DPD. 

 Issues of impact on trees, ecology, archaeology, contamination and flood risk have all be 
considered and have not been found to be such that the development is inappropriate.  The 
limited impacts can be mitigated by the use of planning conditions.  The development is 
therefore considered to be in accordance with Policies PP16, PP17, and PP20 of the 
Planning Policies DPD and Policies CS17, CS21 and CS22 of the Core Strategy.    

 
7 Recommendation 
 
The case officer recommends that Outline Planning Permission is 
 
 
C1  Approval of details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (hereinafter called 'the 

reserved matters') shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any 
development is commenced. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development meets the policy standards required by the 
development plan and any other material considerations including national and local policy 
guidance. 

 
C2 Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 1 above, relating to 

the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale shall be submitted in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development meets the policy standards required by the 
development plan and any other material considerations including national and local policy 
guidance. 
 

C3 Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning 
Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason: In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended). 

  
C4 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of five years 

from the date of this permission or before the expiration of two years from the date of 
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

 
Reason: In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended). 

 
 

C5 Planning permission is hereby granted is for a mixed use development of up to a maximum 
of 50,000sqm of floorspace.  The exact quantum of floorspace for each particular use will 
be determined through the reserved matters submissions, however the following maximum 
floorspace parameters apply:- 

 
1. Retail (Class A1/A2) up to a maximum of 7,000sqm 
2. Foodhall (Mixture of Classes A1, A3, A4 and A5) up to a maximum of 2,000sqm 
3. Restaurants and cafes (Class A3) up to a maximum of 5,000sqm 
4. Office (Class B1) up to a maximum of 5,000sqm 
5. Residential (Class C3) up to a maximum of 15,000sqm 

APPENDIX 3

129



Item no 2 

 

 26 

6. Hotel (Class C1) up to a maximum of 8,000sqm 
7. Church Hall, Worship/Community Room, Health centre (Class D1) up to a maximum of 

3,000sqm 
8. Cinema (Class D2) up to a maximum of 5,000sqm 
9. Parking up to a maximum of 500 spaces 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

C6 The reserved matters applications to be submitted shall be in accordance with the following 
approved plans and documents:- 
   

 Parameter Plan 01 – Site Boundary Plan – 0010 02 

 Parameter Plan 02 – Demolition Plan – 0800 P02 

 Parameter Plan 03 – Lower ground level below ground excavation – 0801 P03 

 Parameter Plan 04 – Active frontages – 0802 P03 

 Parameter Plan 05 – Ground level Plan – 0810 P03 

 Parameter Plan 06 – Vertical Limits of Deviation – 0815 P04 

 Parameter Plan 07 – Pedestrian access Plan – 0830 P02 

 Parameter Plan 08 – Vehicle access/Routes – 0831 P02 

 Highway Layout – NWPB-AEC-XX-XX-DR-HY-SKO1 Rev 1 

 Site Location Plan – 0001 00 

 Existing site plan – 0005 00 

 Masterplan Principles June 2015 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
 

C7 Prior to each phase of development approved by this planning permission (or such other 
date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority), no development shall take place until a scheme that includes the following 
components to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall each be 
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority: 
 
1) A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: all previous uses, potential 
contaminants associated with those uses, a conceptual model of the site indicating 
sources, pathways and receptors and potentially unacceptable risks arising from 
contamination at the site. 
2) A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed 
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site. 
3) The results of the site investigation and detailed risk assessment referred to in (2) and, 
based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the 
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken. 
4) A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are complete and 
identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance 
and arrangements for contingency action. 
 
Any changes to these components require the express written consent of the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 
 
Reason: National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 109 states that the 
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by  
preventing both new and existing development from contributing to or being put at 
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of water 
pollution. Government policy also states that planning policies and decisions should also 

APPENDIX 3

130



Item no 2 

 

 27 

ensure that adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is 
presented (NPPF, paragraph 121). 
 

C8 No occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take place until a verification 
report demonstrating completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and 
the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the 
local planning authority.  The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried 
out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site 
remediation criteria have been met.  It shall also include any plan (a "long-term monitoring 
and maintenance plan") for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and 
arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification plan. The long-term 
monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as approved. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any remediation that may be required at the site is verified as 
completed to agreed standards to protect controlled waters. 
 

C9 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the 
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to 
the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with 
and obtained written approval from the local planning authority. The remediation strategy 
shall be implemented as approved. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any unforeseen contamination encountered during development is 
dealt with in an appropriate manner to protect controlled waters.   
 
 

C10 No building works which comprise the erection of a building required to be served by water 
services shall be undertaken in connection with any phase of the development hereby 
permitted until full details of a scheme including phasing, for the provision of mains foul 
water drainage on and off site has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details as may be 
approved. No building shall be occupied until the works have been carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme.  
 
Reason: To prevent flooding, pollution and detriment to public amenity through provision of  
suitable water infrastructure. 
 

C11 No development shall commence until a surface water management strategy and detailed 
drainage scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The detailed scheme should be based on the Surface Water Drainage Strategy 
June 2015 and Outline SUDS Drainage Strategy July 2015.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved strategy and scheme. 

 
The details to be submitted in the strategy/scheme shall include (but not limited to) :- 
 

 Full and up to date design details of the proposed drainage systems 

 Confirmation of the extent of green roofs throughout the development 

 Details of ground investigations  

 Calculations associated with final drainage design 

 Confirmation from Anglian Water that they are willing to accept the proposed runoff 
rates 

 Confirmation of who will be maintaining surface water drainage systems serving the 
site if not adopted by the local authority, along with the proposed maintenance 
regime 

 Confirmation of how overland flood flows will be managed 

APPENDIX 3

131



Item no 2 

 

 28 

 Confirmation that drainage of the site will not be to the detriment of the drainage of 
the adjacent land and buildings  

 
Reason: To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding. 

 
C12 No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the 

express written consent of the local planning authority, which may be given for those parts 
of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to 
controlled waters. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approval 
details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any infiltration systems, such as soakaways, do not increase the  
potential for contaminant migration.  Soakaways should not be constructed in potentially  
contaminated ground. 
 
 

C13 Prior to the commencement of any development hereby approved, details of the proposed 
off-site highways works shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
The details shall include the following: 

 

 Restrictions on traffic movements between the Royce Car Park access and the bus 
station access on Westgate and immediately to the west of Lincoln Road. To be 
implemented  using CCTV/ANPR technology  which shall include the initial system, 
monitoring regime and physical highway works and signing/lining. 

 Alterations to the bus station access onto Westgate. 

 Realignment and alterations to width, levels, surfacing and signage and lining 
(where appropriate) on Westgate. 

 Alterations to the existing highway to close Deacon Street and Cromwell Road 
including removal of highway rights by the stopping up of the highway. 

 Alterations to signage and lining in Lincoln Road and North Street. 

 Alterations to the alignment of Bright Street Road, including the provision of loading 
bays, alterations to existing crossing facilities, signing, lining (where appropriate). 

 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policy PP12 of the adopted 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-commencement condition because the off site 
highway works are required to make the development acceptable and in addition to 
planning approval  will require permission from the Highway Authority under the Highways 
Act. 

 
C14 Prior to the commencement of any development hereby approved, details of the proposed 

accesses to the site from the highways from Bright Street and Westgate shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the following: 

 

 The service accesses to the site from Westgate including the access layout vehicle 
with visibility splays of 2.4m x 33m and pedestrian visibility splays of 2m x 2m being 
provided from the access points. 

 The service accesses and car park access to the site from Bright Street including 
the access layout vehicle with visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m and pedestrian visibility 
splays of 2m x 2m being provided from the access points. 
 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policy PP12 of the adopted 
Planning Policies DPD (2012). 
 

C15 Prior to the commencement of any development hereby approved, details of the proposed 
junctions of the exit roads from the car parks onto Westgate shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the following: 

APPENDIX 3

132



Item no 2 

 

 29 

 

 The exit from the ‘Royce’ car park being reduced to single lane where it meets the 
carriageway of Westgate. 

 The exit from the ‘Cavell’ car park being reduced to 2 lanes where it meets the 
carriageway of Westgate including appropriate realignment of the carriageway, 
surfacing, signing and lining. 

 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policy PP12 of the adopted 
Planning Policies DPD (2012). This is a pre-commencement condition because the 
highway works are required to make the development acceptable.   

 
C16 Adequate space shall be provided within the site for all vehicles associates with the use of 

the site to park, turn and load/unload clear of the public highway and to enter and leave the 
site in forward gear. 

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policy PP12 adopted 
Planning Policies DPD. 
 

C17 Prior to the occupation of any phase of the development cycle parking shall be provided 
with details of the number and type of cycle parking spaces for each element of the 
proposal to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any of the 
development to which they relate. 

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to encourage travel by sustainable modes in 
accordance with policy CS14 of the adopted Core Strategy. 
 

C18 A car parking strategy for each phase of the development shall be submitted to and agreed 
by the Local Planning Authority.  This will provide full details and justification of the number 
of car parking spaces proposed and their associated use. The car parking shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any of the 
development to which they relate, and maintained as such thereafter. 

  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to encourage travel by sustainable modes in 
accordance with policy CS14 of the adopted Core Strategy. 

 
 

C19 Prior to the commencement of any development a Demolition/Construction Management 
Plan (CMP) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
D/CMP shall include details of (but not exclusively) the following: 
 

 The phasing of the construction. 

 Parking, turning and loading for construction vehicles. 

 Location of all storage compounds and welfare facilities. 

 Temporary Construction Access points. 

 Management of delivery vehicles. 

 Haul routes to and from the site 

 Wheel washing facilities. 

 Hours of working. 

 Details of noise and dust management 

 Temporary Traffic management including any proposed 
   highway works. 

 
The D/CMP shall be in place prior to the commencement of the demolition/development 
and shall be adhered to throughout the entire period of demolition/construction of the 
development. 

APPENDIX 3

133



Item no 2 

 

 30 

 
C20 Within 3 months prior to the first occupation of any phase of the development a full travel 

plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
travel plan shall be written in accordance with current industry best practice including 
guidance of the Department of Transport. The development shall thereafter be 
occupied/operated in accordance with the approved travel plan or a plan as subsequently 
modified and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of promoting sustainable transport and development in 
accordance with policy CS14 of the adopted Peterborough Core Strategy. 
 

C21 No development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, 
have secured the implementation of a watching brief to be undertaken by an archaeologist 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in order that the excavation may be observed and 
items of interest and finds recorded.  The watching brief shall be in accordance with a 
written programme and specification, which has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 Reason: To secure the obligation on the planning applicant or developer to mitigate the 

impact of their scheme on the historic environment when preservation in situ is not 
possible, in accordance with paragraphs 128 and 141 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-commencement 
condition because archaeological watching brief will need to be agreed before development 
begins, to ensure suitable care is taken during the construction works. 

 
C22 Prior to the commencement of construction of any residential unit, in line with the Noise 

Assessment June 2015 full details of the proposed windows and means of ventilation shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.  This is to ensure 
that appropriate acoustic windows are proposed where needed on site, particularly in living 
room and bedroom windows to achieve acceptable noise levels and appropriate means of 
ventilation.  Thereafter the development shall not be carried out expect in accordance with 
the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure acceptable noise levels and levels of residential amenity are achieved, 
in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011).   
 

C23 The development shall be constructed so that it achieves a Target Emission Rate of at least 
10% better than building regulations at the time of building regulation approval being 
sought. 

      
Reason: To be in accordance with Policy CS10 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011). 
 

C24 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling a scheme of bird boxes including details of their 
location and design shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This shall include a range of nesting features to be installed within the site 
buildings that cater for Swifts, House Sparrow and Starling.  The development shall 
therefore be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
  
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity in accordance with policy CS21 of the adopted Core 
Strategy and the NPPF. 
 

C25 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Bat Survey 2015-06-30, and in particular: 

 

 Further detailed internal inspections are carried out of all buildings identified as 

APPENDIX 3

134



Item no 2 

 

 31 

providing suitable opportunities for bats, prior to demolition taking place.  

 Further surveys are carried out at Westgate Church should development affect this 
building 

 Lighting be designed to minimise disturbance to bats, adhering to the recommendations 
set out in Section 6.3.2 of the Bat Survey Report 

 
Details of the above building inspections and surveys if required, shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter all works shall be carried out 
in accordance with the agreed inspections/surveys.  
 
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity in accordance with policy CS21 of the adopted Core 
Strategy and the NPPF. 
 

C26 If within 2 years from the date of this consent no development works have taken place, 
further updated ecological surveys will have to be undertaken and submitted to and 
approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter all works shall be carried 
out in accordance with the agreed surveys.  
 
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity in accordance with policy CS21 of the adopted Core 
Strategy and the NPPF. 
 

C27 Prior to the commencement of any demolition works affecting or associated with No.16-18 
Lincoln Road.  Full details of the amount of 16-18 Lincoln Road to be retained and 
incorporated into the scheme, including elevation and floor plans, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details.   

 
 Reason: In order to preserve the special architectural and historic character of the Locally 

Listed Building in accordance with the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended), Policy CS17 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012).  This is a pre-commencement condition because the retention of a 
visually logical part of the Locally Listed building is integral to the design and appearance of 
scheme and surrounding Conservation Area setting. 

 
C28 Prior to the commencement of the development a Public Realm Strategy shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall be based on the 
public realm principles set out in the Design and Access Statement, Water Route 
Landscape & Public Realm Straegy and Masterplan Principles Document.  The Strategy 
shall include details of (but is not limited to) the following: 
 

 Proposed materials 

 Street furniture 

 Public Art 

 Lighting 

 Signage 

 CCTV and security/management measures 

 Landscaping 

 Water features and external SUDS features 

 Site servicing arrangements, including refuse and recycling collection 
  

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 
 

APPENDIX 3

135



Item no 2 

 

 32 

C29 Prior to the commencement of the development a Phasing Plan of proposed demolition and 
construction shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter the demolition/construction will be carried out in accordance with the approved 
phasing plan.   

 
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 
C30 20% of all residential units shall be constructed as Lifetime Homes. The plans and 

particulars of each relevant reserved matters application to be submitted under condition 1 
shall demonstrate compliance with these standards.  The residential units shall thereafter 
be built in accordance with the approved details and thereafter maintained as such.        

 
Reason: In order to meet housing need in accordance with Policy CS8 of the Adopted Core 
Strategy. 
 

C31 Prior to the commencement of development, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, a scheme for the provision of fire hydrants shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

   
Reason: To ensure sufficient facilities for firefighting in accordance with policy CS16 of the 
Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. 
 

C32 As per Parameter Plan 05 – Ground level Plan – 0810 P03, the reserved matters 
applications to be submitted under condition 1, shall demonstrate compliance with the 
following criteria:- 

 
1. The proposed east to west pedestrianised street between Blocks A and B shall be a 

minimum width of 16m, 
2. The proposed north to south fully open pedestrianised street between Blocks A and C 

shall be a minimum width of 15m at its most northerly point adjacent to Bright Street, 
and a minimum of 9.5m at the most southerly point on site between these two blocks, 

3. The maximum east and west alignments of the new Blocks A and C shall be within the 
horizontal deviations shown on this plan.   

4. The minimum distances shown on the plan between Block D to Westgate Church. 
 

Reason:  For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory built form and pleasant 
public realm, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 
Informatives 
 
1. An application to discharge trade effluent must be made to Anglian Water and must 

have been obtained before any discharge of trade effluent can be made to the public 
sewer.  Anglian Water recommends that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car 
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of such facilities 
could result in pollution of the local watercourse and may constitute an offence.  Anglian 
Water also recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat traps on all 
catering establishments. Failure to do so may result in this and other properties 
suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and consequential environmental and 
amenity impact and may also constitute an offence under section 111 of the Water 
Industry Act 1991.” 
 

2. Anglian Water has assets close to or crossing this site or there are assets subject to an 
adoption agreement.  Therefore the site layout should take this into account and 

APPENDIX 3

136



Item no 2 

 

 33 

accommodate those assets within either prospectively adoptable highways or public 
open space. If this is not practicable then the sewers will need to be diverted at the 
developers cost under Section 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991. or, in the case of 
apparatus under an adoption agreement, liaise with the owners of the apparatus. It 
should be noted that the diversion works should normally be completed before 
development can commence. 
 

3. It is an offence to take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while it is being built 
or in use. Trees, scrub and/or structures likely to contain nesting birds between 1st 
March and 31st August are present on the application site. You should assume that 
they contain nesting birds between the above dates unless survey has shown it is 
absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present. Planning consent for a 
development does not provide a defence against prosecution. The protection of nesting 
wild birds remains unchanged even when planning permission is granted. For further 
information on surveys contact Peterborough City Council’s Wildlife Officer 
(wildlife@peterborough.gov.uk). 

 
4. The Council's Environmental & Public Protection Service has powers to control noise 

and disturbance during building works. Normal and reasonable working hours for 
building sites are considered to be from 8.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. Monday to Friday, from 
8.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on Saturday and not at all on Sunday. If any activities take place 
on the site beyond these times, which give rise to noise audible outside the site, the 
Council is likely to take action requiring these activities to cease. For further information 
contact the Environmental and Public Protection Services Division on 01733 453571 or 
email eppsadmin@peterborough.gov.uk. 

 
5. The development will result in the creation of new street(s) and/or new dwelling(s) 

and/or new premises and it will be necessary for the Council, as Street Naming 
Authority, to allocate appropriate street names and property numbers.  Before 
development is commenced, you should contact the Technical Support Team Manager 
- Highway Infrastructure Group on (01733) 453461 for details of the procedure to be 
followed and information required.  This procedure is applicable to the sub-division of 
premises, which will provide multiple occupancy for both residential and commercial 
buildings. 
 
Please note this is not a function covered by your planning application but is a statutory 
obligation of the Local Authority, and is not chargeable and must be dealt with as a 
separate matter. 

 
6. This development involves the construction of a new or alteration of an existing 

vehicular crossing within a public highway. 
These works MUST be carried out in accordance with details specified by Peterborough 
City Council. 
Prior to commencing any works within the public highway, a Road Opening Permit must 
be obtained from the Council on payment of the appropriate fee.  
Contact is to be made with the Transport & Engineering - Development Team on 01733 
453421 who will supply the relevant application form, provide a preliminary indication of 
the fee payable and specify the construction details and drawing(s) required. 
 

7. The development is likely to involve works within the public highway in order to provide 
services to the site.  Such works must be licenced under the New Roads and Street 
Works Act 1991.  It is essential that, prior to the commencement of such works, 
adequate time be allowed in the development programme for; the issue of the 
appropriate licence, approval of temporary traffic management and booking of road 
space.  Applications for NR & SWA licences should be made to Transport & 
Engineering – Street Works Co-0rdinator on 01733 453467. 

 

APPENDIX 3

137

mailto:wildlife@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:eppsadmin@peterborough.gov.uk


Item no 2 

 

 34 

8. The development involves extensive works within the public highway. Such works must 
be the subject of an agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980.  It is 
essential that prior to the commencement of the highway works, adequate time is 
allowed in the development programme for; approval by the council of the designer, 
main contractor and sub-contractors, technical vetting, safety audits, approval of 
temporary traffic management, booking of road space for off-site highway and service 
works and the completion of the legal agreement.  Application forms for S278 
agreements are available from Transport & Engineering - Development Team on 01733 
453421. 

 
9. The development involves the stopping up public highway. This must be the subject of 

an agreement under Section 247 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The 
applicant will need to make an application to the Department for Transport for the order 
and  application forms and guidance notes may be found online at the following 
address: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/stopping-up-and-diversion-of-highways 
 

 

APPENDIX 3

138

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/stopping-up-and-diversion-of-highways


 
 

 

 

                          

 

                           

 

Comparative Viability Study: 
Queensgate Shopping 
Centre Extension and the 
North Westgate 
Development 
 

January 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

APPENDIX 4

139



 
 

 

 
CONTENTS 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................. 1-2 

 
2. INTRODUCTION 

INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................... 3-5 

       
3. QUEENSGATE EXTENSION 

QUEENSGATE DEVELOPMENT ASSUMPTIONS ............................................ 6-11 

  
4. NORTH WESTGATE DEVELOPMENT 

NORTH WESTGATE DEVELOPMENT ASSUMPTIONS ................................... 12-22 

 
5. CONCLUSION 

CONCLUSION ......................................................................................... 23-24 

 
6. APPENDICES 

GARDINER & THEOBALD QUEENSGATE COST REPORT ..................................... I 
GARDINER & THEOBALD NORTH WESTGATE COST REPORT ............................ II 
QUEENSGATE APPRAISAL ............................................................................... III 
NORTH WESTGATE APPRAISAL........................................................................ IV 
NORTH WESTGATE SCHEME PLANS ................................................................ V 
LETTER FROM INVESCO ................................................................................. VI 
LETTER FROM SAVILLS ................................................................................... VII 
NORTH WESTGATE PROPERTY COST ESTIMATE ............................................ VIII 
GARDINER A& THEOBALD NORTH WESTGATE AREAS SCHEDULE ................... IX 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 4

140



 
 

1 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

 

 1 
 

APPENDIX 4

141



 
 

 
1.0 Executive Summary 

1.1 CBRE is instructed to undertake a comparative financial assessment of the proposed schemes 
at Queensgate and North Westgate, Peterborough.  Where possible, equivalent assumptions have 
been made on common uses and the Shopping Centre Development Team of CBRE has taken 
guidance from department heads of other teams within CBRE where additional uses are proposed. 

1.2 Costs have been provided by Gardiner and Theobald and all other assumptions included are 
either equivalent to respective schemes or specific to circumstances.  Development appraisals have 
been prepared to illustrate potential viability of the respective schemes and full review of all inputs 
and assumptions are set out in the supporting information contained in this report.  Much of the 
base values and market conditions are supported by the letter from William Rose of Savills dated 
25 September 2015 (Appendix 7) which was submitted to the Council. The North Westgate 
scheme is reviewed in its entirety based upon scale plans submitted and the stated aims of 
regeneration submitted to the Council. 

1.3 This study can conclude that the proposals for the Queensgate Shopping Centre are in line 
with trends across the UK to support similarly ranked shopping centres with a greater diversity of 
uses and furthermore to accommodate key tenants in units of appropriate size for their identified 
needs.  The Queensgate development proposals are integrated within the existing shopping centre 
environment and can be expected to significantly support the centre going forward with a ripple 
effect of benefits to the wider town centre.  The scheme in this context is profitable and deliverable 
and to the benefit of the town centre. 

1.4 North Westgate is an ambitious mixed use scheme that proposes a mix of uses over different 
levels and new blocks. The scheme has been financially modelled as a single phase based upon 
the drawings submitted.  Land assembly estimates have been calculated based upon compulsory 
purchase basis of assessment which we consider to be reasonable, whether CPO powers are used, 
or the properties are acquired by negotiation.  The appraisal shows that the scheme is not 
financially viable in its current form and will not become viable within any reasonable variation of 
the assumption (sensitivity). 

1.5 Our conclusion is that the Queensgate proposal would be implemented by any reasonable 
owner or asset manager of the centre and this is evidenced by the statement from Invesco.  North 
Westgate, whilst also including a cinema and restaurants for which there is an established 
demand, relies upon a collection of wider uses for which there is an identified oversupply and 
limited demand, the degree of time that the scheme will be affected by this dynamic will depend 
on take up going forward but land values are likely to increase as a result of the renewed vibrancy 
of the town centre following the implementation of the proposals for the Queensgate Shopping 
Centre.  The North Westgate scheme can be demonstrated to have a negative return in excess of 
£41,000,000 in its identified format, even including the cinema, at which level, alterations within 
the parameters of the outline consent would not have any significant effect on likelihood of it 
proceeding. 

 

 

 2 
 

APPENDIX 4

142



 
 

2 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 3 
 

APPENDIX 4

143



 
 

2.0 Introduction 

2.1 CBRE was instructed on 15th December 2015 to prepare a financial comparison of the 
development proposals submitted by Lendlease in respect of Queensgate and Hawksworth in 
respect of North Westgate.  The instruction progressed on the basis of taking the scheme 
description from the planning documents and scale plans provided.  This was supported by input 
from cost consultants and specialist teams within CBRE to determine appropriate inputs and 
assumptions.  This information was modelled by the Shopping Centre Development team which 
has extensive experience of complex mixed use schemes in town centres. 

2.2 In the following sections each scheme is analysed independently, where relevant, equivalent 
assumptions are used to calculate expected costs and revenues.  It is understood that the planning 
submission of Hawksworth is an outline application with flexibility to alter the balance of uses 
according to the market requirements.  For the purposes of the review, the scale plans submitted 
with the application have been reviewed and it is assumed that the developer presents these as the 
most effective and profitable use of the potential consent.   

 

2.3 Scheme Summaries 

2.3.1 Whilst detailed analysis of the schemes follows, it is important to understand the schemes in 
the context of their scale and content, together with high level outputs of their potential income 
and value.  Below is a table illustrating the key elements of the respective schemes for illustrative 
purposes. 

2.3.2 The Queensgate scheme is considerably more advanced than the North Westgate scheme 
and as you would expect, terms are now agreed with key tenants.  All these commercial factors are 
included in the analysis but some figures have been summed to avoid commercially sensitive 
material being in a form that would enable a complete unit by unit breakdown and breach 
confidentiality. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4 
 

APPENDIX 4

144



 
 

 
 Queensgate Shopping 
Centre Development  

 North Westgate 
Development  

Retail / MSUs     
Net Area 58,628 sq ft 52,039 sq ft 
Average Rate psf £25.14 £25.00 
ERV £1,153,500 £1,300,977 
Restaurants     
Net Area 26,363 sq ft 41,486 sq ft 
Average Rate £34.33 £35.00 
ERV £865,600 £1,452,012 
Cinema     
Net Area 42,098 sq ft 43,933 sq ft 
Average Rate psf £16.00 £15.00 
ERV £699,430 £658,999 
Residential     
Sales Area N/A 102,794 sq ft 
Average Rate Cap Val psf N/A £240 
Receipt N/A £24,670,442 
Offices     
Net Area N/A 18,222 sq ft 
Average Rate psf N/A £15.00 
ERV N/A £273,336 
Hotel     
No. of Rooms  N/A   108 rooms  
Rate per Room  N/A  £3,500 
ERV  N/A  £378,000 
Foodhall     
Area N/A 14,531 sq ft 
Average Rate psf N/A £22.50 
ERV N/A £326,957 
Supermarket     
Net Area N/A 8,388 sq ft 
Average Rate psf N/A £15.00 
ERV N/A £125,818 
Car Park     
No. of Car Parking 
Spaces 

 N/A  
                                            

328  
Average Rate/space  N/A  £1,000 
ERV  N/A  £328,000 
Other     
Area N/A 12,411 sq ft 
Average Rate psf N/A £10.00 
ERV N/A £124,109 
Commercialisation     
ERV £50,000 £50,000 
Advertising Screen     
ERV £30,000 £30,000 
Scheme Uplift £9,934,792 N/A 
Total Income (excl. resi) £3,167,796 £5,048,208 
Total Value £61,000,000 £90,761,000 
Total Development Cost £56,783,300 £132,530,000 
Total Profit                    £ 4,210,000  -£41,770,000 

 

  

 5 
 

APPENDIX 4

145



 
 

3 
 
 
 

QUEENSGATE 
DEVELOPMENT 

  

 6 
 

APPENDIX 4

146



 
 

QUEENSGATE DEVELOPMENT  
 

3.0 Anchor & MSUs  

Unit/Tenant Area (sq ft) ERV Cap Con  Rent Free  
(mths) 

JLP 199,456 £369,266  N/A 

MSU 1   35,000 £544,000  6 months 

MSU 2  5,477 £178,000  6 months 

MSU 3  5,477 £178,000  6 months 

MSU 4  12,674 £253,500  6 months 

Total 258,084  £1,522,766 p.a. £11,653,500 24 months 

 

3.1 JLP 

3.1.1 JLP will downsize their store from 296,646 sq ft to 175,152 sq ft across first and second 
floors. They are currently on a 125 year lease which expires in 2103. JLP has confirmed that the 
revised store size is consistent with the Peterborough catchment. It will lead to greater efficiencies 
from updated modern premises. We have therefore capitalised the income against this store at an 
improved yield of 5%. 

3.1.2 Their capital contribution will be paid in three instalments: in 29 February 2016, June 
2016, and December 2017. 

3.1.3 The vacant downsized space from JLP is occupied by MSUs 1, 2, 3 and 4. It is assumed that 
the construction of all four MSUs is completed one month prior to PC in May 2018. 

 

3.1.4 MSU 1 / Unit 79 

3.1.5 Terms have been agreed for Next to renew in their current Unit 79 for 5 years. This renewal 
is expected to complete by January 2016, at a rent of £225,000 per annum, with no rent free 
period.  

3.1.6 Once MSU 1 is ready for occupation, assumed to be May 2018, Next will surrender the 
lease of Unit 79 and relocate to MSU 1.  

3.1.7 In MSU 1, Next will occupy 13,235 sq ft on the Upper Ground floor level and 21,765 sq ft 
on the First floor, above MSU 2 and 3 as well as its own footprint- totalling to 35,000 sq ft. 

3.1.8 On Next vacating Unit 79, a 6 month letting void has been placed on the unit, at which 
point it is then relet at an ERV of £225,000 per annum with 6 months’ rent free. 

 

 7 
 

APPENDIX 4

147



 
 

3.1.9 MSU 2 & 3  

3.1.10 MSUs 2 and 3 are 5,477 sq ft each, on the Upper Ground Floor level only. It’s assumed 
both units are taken on a 10 year lease from May 2018 with 6 month’s rent free. 

 

3.1.10 MSU 4  

3.1.11 MSU 4 is also taken on a 10 year lease from May 2018 with 6 month’s rent free. The unit 
is 5,975 sq ft on the Upper Ground level and 6,699 sq ft on the First floor, totalling 12,674 sq ft. 

 

3.2 Cinema 

Unit/Tenant Area (sq. ft.) ERV Cap Con Rent Free 

Cinema 42,098 £699,430 £5,500,000 6 months 

 

3.2.1Terms are agreed with Odeon who will occupy the 37,125 sq ft second floor cinema at a 
rent of £17.50 sf and the 4,973 sq ft mezzanine floor at a rent of £10 psf, totalling 40,134 sq ft 
at a global rent of £699,430.  

  

3.2.2 Lush and Greggs 

3.2.3 Lush and Greggs currently occupy units 96 and 97 respectively on the Upper level. In order 
to accommodate the leisure entrance, a leisure core of 3,178 sq ft is required and replaces these 
units. 

3.2.4 It is therefore assumed extinguishment cost for both units can be achieved at a cost of 2 x 
ERV. 

3.2.5 Lush is currently over-rented so an ERV of £72,800 has been adopted for the calculation of 
the extinguishment costs. Greggs is rack rented with an ERV of £82,300.  

3.2.6 Interim income is received from both tenants until VP date of January 2017.  

 

3.3 Restaurants 

Unit/Tenant Area (sq ft) ERV Cap Con Rent Free 

Restaurant 1  3,322 £142,000 none 12 months 

Restaurant 2 2,531 £114,000 none 9 months 

Restaurant 3 4,413 £132,400 £66,200 6 months 

Restaurant 4 4,370 £142,000 £71,000 6 months 

Restaurant 5 2,531 £88,600 £44,300 6 months 

 8 
 

APPENDIX 4

148



 
 

Restaurant 6 4,173 £146,100 £73,050 6 months 

Restaurant 7 5,023 £100,500 £50,250 6 months 

 

3.3.1 The restaurants will be located in part of the newly developed space above the proposed 
H&M (the ex-Waitrose unit) and the current Lush and Greggs units. There will be 7 restaurants in 
the foodcourt totalling 26,363 sq ft. 

3.3.2 All restaurants will be on the same lease terms of 10 years with rents varying from £20 psf to 
£45 psf. Restaurants 1 & 2 already have terms agreed with operators and these have been 
outlined above and reflected in the appraisal.  

 

3.4 Commercialisation – outside JLP 

3.4.1 Through the negotiations that Lendlease has had with JLP, a relaxation of the current lease 
provisions has allowed the space outside the JLP store to be utilised as commercialisation. As such 
the new income attributed to this, c. £50,000 per annum has been reflected from August 2017, 
with no rental void and a 9 month rent free period. A capital cost of £100,000 has been added to 
the G&T costs to make the space usable for this purpose, as advised by Lend Lease. 

 

3.5 Advertising Screen 

3.5.1 Demand has been identified for the provision of video media. This additional income of 
£30,000 per annum is capitalised at a yield in line with the wider retail element of the scheme 
(5.50%). A cost of £40,000 has been reflected in the appraisal along with 6 months’ rent free. 
This cost has also been accounted for in G&T’s cost report (Appendix 1). 

 

3.6 Total Development Costs  

3.6.1 There is no CIL charge applicable to the Queensgate scheme – the Council does not levy a 
charge for restaurant (A3-a5) or cinema uses (D2) – only supermarkets which is Class A1 food 
retail. The QSC scheme falls within the “all other development” category which is nil charge. 

3.6.2 The G&T costs, dated 29/06/2015, (Appendix 1) have been reflected and include 
preliminaries, overheads and profit, a 5% contingency and inflation.  

3.6.3 On top of these costs is £100,000 capital expenditure to install the commercialisation 
outside JLP. 

3.6.4 Therefore, a total construction cost of £29.24m is produced, after accounting for updated 
preliminaries, overheads and profit, a 5% contingency and inflation. 

3.6.5 A build period of 24 months has been reflected, as advised by Benoy, with a Start on Site 
date of June 2016 and thus a Practical Completion date of June 2018. 

3.6.6 Professional fees are 15% of construction costs as advised by the Development Manager 
and total £4,386,000. Agent’s fees of 10% and Legal fees of 5% have been assumed. 

3.6.7 The total capital contributions against the new development are £17,570,800, which is 

 9 
 

APPENDIX 4

149



 
 

equivalent to c.16 years of new ERV. 

3.6.8 Extinguishment Costs for Lush and Greggs: £145,600 & £164,600 respectively. 

3.6.9 A project contingency of 5% has been reflected and equates to £2.6m. 

3.6.10 Total Development Cost: £56,783,300 including interest. 

 

3.7 Asset Enhancement and Development Viability 

Additional Scheme Uplift 

3.7.1 It has been recognised by the owners of Queensgate Shopping Centre that a diversity of 
offer within modern shopping centres has a fundamental effect on the attraction of the centre to 
the catchment.  Centres should have a correct balance of anchor stores, full range medium sized 
units and with recognised brands being correctly sized to their product ranges, restaurants for the 
convenience of shoppers and as identified by latest shopping patterns, a cinema. Trading within 
this environment will increase footfall through introducing families and extended peak trading. 

3.7.2 The proposed scheme consolidates existing and new retailers into the heart of 
Peterborough.  The centre will be brought up to date to accommodate retailers in the units they 
want for their product ranges, in addition the restaurants and cinema will increase footfall through 
new customers, families and longer dwell times. 

3.7.3 The appraisal recognises that the comprehensive improvements to the centre will enable it to 
outperform its rental expectations in a ‘no scheme world’.  We have assumed that, following the 
development, rental values in the wider scheme would grow by an additional 1% per annum in 
addition to the current rental growth expectations in its present format.  This would compound over 
5 years through the review cycle. This equates to a £9.93m uplift which has been reflected in the 
appraisal being the present day value of the capitalised additional rental growth. 

3.7.4 This is supported by the fact that at Silverburn, Hammerson have seen the following benefits 
as a result of the Winter Garden which provided an additional 50,000 sq ft, 14 screen cinema 
plus TGI Friday’s and Cosmo, Zizzi and Pizza Express: 

 

- Dwell Time +21% (16 Minute increase) 

- Footfall +6.3%  

- Total Centre Sales +19%  

- F&B Sales +107% (Total volume sales) 

 

3.7.9 At British Land’s Whiteley Shopping Centre, in Fareham, the 9 screen Cineworld and 8 
restaurants opening in phase 2 has grown foot fall for the retail centre by 30% since opening last 
year. Similarly, at their Chester Broughton Shopping Park, the new 11 screen Cineworld has 
resulted in a 25% increase in footfall since opening in May 2015. 

 

 10 
 

APPENDIX 4

150



 
 

3.8 Development Viability 

3.8.1 Based upon the above assumptions and inputs we believe the Queensgate development to 
be viable producing a profit of £4.21m (7.43% profit on cost). Although this is some way off what 
developers are typically targeting in the market today (15% profit on cost), it significantly improves 
the schemes offer, maintains its regional standing and protects Invesco’s investment. A copy of the 
Queensgate Development appraisal is attached in Appendix 3. 

3.8.2 The Letter from owners Invesco in Appendix 6 supports the intention of the owners to 
implement the scheme based on this analysis, once planning is achieved.  

  

 11 
 

APPENDIX 4

151



 
 

 

4 
 
 
 

NORTH WESTGATE 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

 12 
 

APPENDIX 4

152



 
 

NORTH WESTGATE DEVELOPMENT 
 
4.0 Background 

4.1 The North Westgate Development Area has a site coverage of c.4.6 hectares and is located 
on the northern edge of Peterborough City Centre. Outline planning permission was granted on 2 
October 2015 for a mixed use scheme of up to 50,000 sq m to include: 

 

• Cinema 

• Restaurants 

• Retail units 

• A foodhall 

• Offices 

• Hotel 

• Residential dwellings 

• Community and health care facilities, including a Church Hall, health centre, worship and 
community rooms 

• Car parking, new access 

 

4.1.1 Although this is a parameter scheme (Appendix 5), we have calculated areas based upon 
the scale drawings submitted with the application which are assumed to show maximum coverage 
in the optimum mix of uses (Appendix 9). 

 

4.2 Residential 

4.2.1 Peterborough’s housing stock is similar to the region overall, and is weighted towards 
houses rather than flats, which only account for 15% of stock. Semi-detached homes account for 
31%, followed by detached properties (28%) and terraced homes (25%). The housing stock of 
central ward (the ward in which Peterborough Town Centre is located) is more reflective of an 
urban area with a dominance of flats and terraced housing, which account for 35% and 30% of 
stock respectively.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 13 
 

APPENDIX 4

153



 
 

Chart 8: Housing Stock 

 

Source: ONS, Census 2011 

4.2.2 The flats across central ward are predominantly housed in purpose built blocks. These 
account for 71% of flats in the area, with converted/shared houses making up a further 21% of 
flats in the ward. 

Chart 9: Flats, Central Ward, Peterborough 

 

Source: ONS Census 2011 

4.2.3 In terms of new build sales, the market has remained fairly robust. From 1998 to 2014 new 
build sales have accounted for an average of 14% of total transactions. This equates to an 
average of 481 new build sales per year. With declining overall sales volumes, new build units 
have accounted for a larger proportion of transactions in recent years. Between 2011 and 2014 
new build units have accounted for a fifth of all transactions across Peterborough. 

4.2.4 According to Land Registry figures, the average price of a flat sold in 2015, in postcode PE1 
(where the North Westgate site and Queensgate Shopping Centre are located) was £94,688 (Q1-
Q3 2015). 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Central Ward Peterborough East of England

Pr
op

ot
io

n 
of

 H
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

Detached Semi-detached Terraced Flats

Purpose-Built Block 
71% 

Part of Converted or 
Shared House 

21% 

In Commercial 
Building 

8% 

 14 
 

APPENDIX 4

154



 
 

4.2.5 Rightmove 

4.2.6 Between April and September 2015, according to Rightmove, the average price that a flat 
sold for in Peterborough, PE1 was £98,498 with a total of 48 transactions in this period. Granted 
some of these sales will have included the sale of 2 or even 3 bed flats, assuming an average flat 
area of 550 sq ft, this equates to a capital value rate of £179 psf. 

 

4.2.7 Zoopla 

4.2.8 According to Zoopla, the average price for a flat in Peterborough, PE1 over the last 12 
months was £98,689 with 76 transactions in this period. Zoopla do provide an analysis of floor 
area and calculate this to be a capital value rate of £161 psf. 

4.2.9 The PE1 postcode covers a much larger area than our Peterborough city centre focus here. 
Demand for flats is focused in the city centre, so it can therefore be assumed that these figures 
incorporate a slightly diluted pool, with cheaper, less desirable stock outside the city centre but still 
within the PE1 postcode, included in these figures.  

4.2.10 We therefore we expected that the residential element in the proposed North Westgate 
command a slightly higher capital value rate psf than the analysis on the above Rightmove and 
Zoopla data. 

 

4.2.11 St James House - Priestgate, Peterborough 

4.2.12 Priestgate is located in Peterborough city centre, south of the Queensgate Shopping 
Centre, just behind Church Street. It is a modern apartment block with the following currently up 
for sale: 

4.2.13 -1 bed flat quoting £90,000. Assuming a floor area of 550 sq ft area (we actually believe 
these flats to be slightly smaller than this) equates to £164 psf capital value. 

4.2.14 - 2 Bed flat on the third floor quoting £115,000. This flat is 669 sq ft, thus equating to 
£172 sq ft capital value. 

4.2.15 This is highly comparable in terms of location, being just behind the desirable Cathedral 
Square and established food quarter on Church Street. However, from the limited information we 
have been able to gather on the block, we expected that the residential element in the proposed 
North Westgate to be of a better specification and therefore command a slightly higher capital 
value rate psf. 

 

4.2.16 Hereward Tower – New Road, Peterborough 

4.2.17 Pelican Partners LLP have appointed FW Properties as Development Manager, to convert 
the former Inland Revenue office block on New Road, Peterborough into 33 residential units. 

4.2.18 The scheme comprises the refurbishment and conversion of 6 existing levels and the 
construction of a new floor at the top of the building for 3 penthouse units. 

 

 

 

 15 
 

APPENDIX 4

155



 
 

Flat Type / Size Quoting Price Capital Value psf 

1 bed / 532 sq ft £100, 000 - £140,000* £188 - £263 psf 

2 bed / 673 sq ft £120, 000 - £165,000* £178 - £245 psf 

2 bed / 883 sq ft £150, 000 - £210,000* £170 - £237 psf 

*Quoting prices varies in relation to floor number 

 

4.2.19 Due to the fact that this residential scheme is a refurbishment of an office block, we have 
assumed that the flat specifications in the North Westgate development is better than that of 
Hereward Tower and therefore will command a higher capital value rate psf. 

4.2.20 Taking the above evidence into account we feel that a capital value rate of £240 psf 
applied to the residential element of the proposed North Westgate scheme is sufficient to reflect 
both its location and lack of specific information/specification 

 

4.3 Offices 

4.3.1 The office market in Peterborough has an estimated office stock 4.5m sq ft. This ranks the 
centre 43 out of the Office PROMIS centres, in terms of floor space.  

4.3.2 Office take up was up considerably in the 6 months to the end of Q3 2015, when 
compared to the Rest of Great Britain. However this is entirely due to the deal whereby Thomas 
Cook, an incumbent occupier, agreed to a major pre-let at the former Lynch Wood House/West 
Point. Thomas Cook have been based in Peterborough since 1977 and will be relocating to from 
their current premises in Bretton. Consequently, this deal alone has increased take up above that 
seen in both 2013 and 2014, (PMA, 2015). 

4.3.3 Typically, office deals in Peterborough a below 15,000 sq ft lettings. However, over the last 
few years, there has been a shortage of deals across all size-bands with annual take up declining 
year on year to 2014. 

4.3.4 Interestingly the largest deal for 2014 involved prime space at Unex House in the town 
centre with the building now fully let. Elsewhere, demand was low with take up falling back to near 
record lows. Resultantly there is little demand for Grade A office space in Peterborough in the 
town centre. 

4.3.5 Further pressure is placed on the town centre office market by the out-of-town competition. 
Indeed since 2013, the demand in Peterborough Town Centre/Out-of-Town split has been 10% / 
90%, compared to a national average split of 66% / 55%, (PMA, 2015). 

4.3.6 In recent years, new development completions in Peterborough have been very low - indeed 
since 2010, with the exception of two mid-sized purpose built developments in 2012, there have 
been no office completions in the market. 

4.3.7 Furthermore, there is currently no office space under construction across the Peterborough 
market. We believe that this is a result of very low demand for new Grade A offices. In terms of 
speculative office development, which is what the North Westgate development is proposing, one 

 16 
 

APPENDIX 4

156



 
 

would look to spec to the “Peterborough” quality - A/C, raised floors, suspended ceilings (mineral 
fibre) and LG7 lighting (not LED). It might even be preferred to deliver a property to shell and core 
standard and then provide any incoming tenant with a budget to fit out the Cat A works (to their 
desired standard), saving on cost and risk. 

4.3.8 In terms of rental levels PROMIS notes that, in Q2 2015, top headline rents in Peterborough 
remained static at £12.50 psf. This is supported by CBRE’s view that most office rents in 
Peterborough are between £10 - £13 psf. However, this is largely weighted to the out-of-town 
offer and therefore we anticipate town centre office space to be more like £15 - £18 psf, offering 
slightly better spec than the abundant Grade B stock available in the town centre which is at the 
£10 - £13 psf level. 

4.3.9 The chart below shows the profile of office yields in Peterborough against the office PROMIS 
average and demonstrates that Peterborough is a secondary location when compared to the 
national average with prime yield at 7.25%. When compared to CBRE’s December yield sheet, this 
places Peterborough in between Good Secondary (6.50%) and Secondary (9.00%).  

 

 

4.3.10 We have therefore adopted a rent of £15 psf across the net area of 18,222 sq ft allocated 
as office accommodation, capitalised at 7.25%. A 12 month incentive package has also been 
assumed. 

 
 

4.4 Retail and Leisure 

4.4.1 Location is of paramount importance in the high street investment market. There is 
approximately £40bn worth of both domestic and overseas capital earmarked for investment into 
the UK property market. There is however, a lack of prime, good quality stock on which to focus. 
In short, demand for quality high street investments is strong. 

4.4.2 As Central London becomes ever more competitive, we have started to see a shift in 
concentration toward Greater London and further afield into the prime Cathedral cities/regional 
cities across the UK. Institutions remain the buyer of prime, with aggressive bidding for the very 
best opportunities in the finest locations. Investor confidence is returning in these locations with 
positive stories surrounding retailer trade and rental growth prospects.  

 17 
 

APPENDIX 4

157



 
 

4.4.3 Prime high street equivalent yields in our view stand at 4.00/4.25%. Until recently this has 
been for a handful of locations, however there is a view that the parameters for prime are 
widening.  

4.4.4 Secondary yields have been weakening since 2008 and now stand at 6.50% for good 
secondary and 9.00% for secondary. The gap between prime yields and secondary is wide and in 
time there could be an argument to see secondary yields sharpen when confidence in this sector 
strengthens. Investor demand for secondary assets has been limited to those with sound underlying 
property fundamentals and where pricing has moved out sufficiently to attract opportunistic buyers.  

4.4.5 Whilst investor sentiment for core Central London has remained robust, investor confidence 
for High Street in major retail centres appears to be returning. With rents falling back so 
aggressively over the last four years there is an expectation that the retail sector will start to pick up 
and outperform the other traditional sectors. Opportunities offered to the market 12 months ago 
would attract at most two or three institutions; however more recent opportunities have had six or 
seven funds considering. There appears to be a greater weight of money in the market which is 
likely to put pressure on pricing.  

4.4.6 Queensgate Shopping Centre commands a considerable premium when compared to rents 
in other parts of the city, where there has been a sharp fall in rents. According to Promis, there has 
been little tenant movement recently on Long Causeway and rental evidence is therefore limited. 
Agents estimate that Zone A rents here are around £65-70 psf, falling to around £35-£40 psf 
moving northwards from Cathedral Square. The most recent letting to Linens Direct in August 
2015, achieved £56 psf Zone A for a unit towards the northern end of the pitch. Zone A rents on 
Westgate are said to be around £40-£45 psf with local agents estimated Zone A rents on Bridge 
Street at £35-£75 psf, with those stores located closer to Cathedral Square commanding the 
higher rents. 

4.4.7 We do not have Zone A areas for the retail element for the outlined scheme. We have 
therefore rentalised this at a flat rate of £25 psf over the net lettable area of 54,778 sq ft. An 
incentive package of 18 months is in line with the market. 

4.4.8 The most recent high street transaction in Peterborough is the sale of the adjoining TK Maxx 
(expiring 2020) and New Look (expiring 2021) at 62/68 Bridge Street by Picton Capital in 
September 2014 to Threadneedle. The property had an AWULT of 6.5 years and a passing rent of 
£625,000 per annum. Threadneedle bought the property for £9.45m, reflecting a yield of 6.50%. 

4.4.9 Indeed, prior to the opening of the Queensgate Shopping Centre, Peterborough's prime 
pitch was in fact Bridge Street. The western side of Bridge Street has relatively large units, mainly 
occupied by mass-market multiples, including a second Marks & Spencer store, WH Smith, 
Waterstone's alongside the New Look and TK Maxx at 62/68 Bridge Street. 

4.4.10 According to Promis, agent sources placed prime retail yields in Peterborough at 7.25% at 
mid-2015. In October 2013, Hammerson and Aviva Investors reportedly sold Queensgate 
Shopping Centre to Invesco for £202 million, reflecting an initial yield of 6.1%. 

4.4.11 It is our view that there is limited demand for additional retailing outside of the prime 
Queensgate Shopping Centre and the established retailing circuit along Long Causeway and into 
Cathedral Square/Church Street/Exchange Street. Consequently, we have applied a weaker yield 
to the retail element within the North Westgate appraisal at 7.25%. 

4.4.12 The outline plans in Appendix 5 clearly show a large A3 presence proposed. For this 
exercise we have reflected 43, 670 sq ft of A3 uses and rentalised it at a rate of £30 psf with 12 

 18 
 

APPENDIX 4

158



 
 

month’s incentive packages.  

4.4.13 The most recent investment transaction in the leisure sector in Peterborough is the sale of 
the Bills unit at 7/8 Church Street in July 2015. This had a passing rent of £85,000 per annum, 
had a 14 years unexpired term and was quoting £1.4m, (5.75% NIY). The purchase price was 
keener than expected at £1.605m, reflecting a net initial yield of 5%. 

4.4.14 This is an established restaurant pitch, fronting Peterborough's Cathedral Square and lines 
up alongside other A3 operators including Pizza Express, Prezzo and Chimichanga and Nando’s. 
The proposed A3 line up in the North Westgate development, although similar in that it fronts a 
church square with the presence of Westgate Church, would not be prime and it is therefore 
expected to attract weaker covenants, commanding a more secondary yield of circa 7%. 

 

4.5 Cinema 

4.5.1 Despite Odeon’s competitive terms agreed for the Queensgate scheme at £17.50 psf (£10 
psf on mezzanine level) we don’t not believe that this would be echoed in the North Westgate 
scheme. There is only one c.40,000 sq ft cinema requirement in Peterborough from the cinema 
operator The Light who would likely pay c. £15 psf on net lettable area and expect a 28 months 
incentive package. 

4.5.2 Kier recently developed The Light Cinema in Walsall. This is a £12m development and 
includes an eight screen multiplex with a Hungry Horse restaurant, Bella Italia, Pizza Express and 
Chiquito and is expected to open during the early stages of 2016. 

4.5.3 The land was sold by Kier as a forward commitment to Standard Life, in June 2015 for 
£15.5m with the cinema element reflecting 7.25% initial yield. This is highly comparable so we 
have therefore adopted 7.25% on the cinema element. 

 

4.6 Car Park 

4.6.1 Adopting a typical ratio of 1 car parking space/18 sq m, the 5,900 sq m (63,583 sq ft) car 
park we have adopted in the appraisal for the scheme equates to 328 car parking spaces. These 
have then been rentalised at £1,000 per space.  

4.6.2 Whilst in the last fifteen years, we have observed an increasing trend for municipalities 
seeking car park operators to provide parking solutions for both on- and off-street parking, we are 
seeing landlords, particularly shopping centre owners agreeing leases to car park operators with 
strong covenants thereby, maximising the investment value of the development. It is however, our 
view that that the car park outlined in this development would not attract interest from the major 
operators like Q-Park or NCP due to the strong car parking offer found in the Queensgate Car 
Park directly opposite the site. Consequently, it is likely that this investment would only receive 
interest from secondary operators and therefore command a yield of circa 7.00%. 

  

 19 
 

APPENDIX 4

159



 
 

4.7 Super Market and Foodhall 

4.7.1 The supermarket store outlined in the North Westgate scheme plans detail a c.11, 000 sq ft 
gross (c.8,000 sq ft sales) store, for which we believe there would be little demand. This size of 
store sit’s in between the two format sizes that the supermarket operators are aligning their 
business models on: the convenience offer, i.e. one that can trade on a Sunday unrestricted, a 
maximum of 3,014 sq ft sales and the large format offer which provides a full food offer, 
measures circa 40,000 sq ft - 45,000 sq ft sales often with a further 20,000 sq ft storage. 

4.7.2 It is therefore not the right size unit to interest for Tesco, Sainsbury’s or Waitrose. Morrison’s 
M Local format was very flexible and would have suited this sized store having acquired Newbury 
(13,281 sq ft on ground only), Manchester (11,052 sq ft) and Birmingham (9,257 sq ft). However, 
Morrison’s sold off their 140 M Local stores, in September 2015, after it failed to compete with 
rivals Tesco and Sainsbury’s. 

4.7.3 M&S do not have any formal Simply Food property requirements sheets, but it is understood 
they would consider this store and site, looking at each opportunity on a case by case basis.  

4.7.4 Aldi have strict requirements as follows: 

• Minimum 1.25 acre, ideally 1.5 acre, size to accommodate an 18,300 sq ft gross unit 
and 120 dedicated parking spaces. 

• Prominent main road frontage with good visibility 

• Freehold or leasehold 

• Town centre or edge of centre 

• Retail Parks  

• Conversion/refurbishment of existing units 

4.7.5 The North Westgate development does not meet the above criteria and therefore Aldi would 
not consider it as a store location.  

4.7.6 Furthermore, Aldi will consider a development opportunity of c. 0.7 acres to facilitate a 
smaller store format (c.10, 000 sq ft gross) with 40 dedicated parking spaces. However, this is 
strictly only for locations within London and therefore the North Westgate development would not 
qualify for this format. 

4.7.7 Lidl are only acquiring unit sizes between 20,000 and 28,000 sq ft gross. Therefore, when 
compared to the supermarket of c. 11,000 sq ft outlined in the North Westgate scheme plans, it 
would not be considered as a potential site by Lidl. 

4.7.8 We have therefore reflected a rate of £15 psf across the 11,000 sq ft unit and applied a 
yield of 6.25%. 

4.7.9 We would require more information on the specifics of the foodhall but for this exercise we 
have applied an indicative rate of £22.50 psf across the gross area, capitalised at a yield of 8% 
which we feel is in line with the market norm. 

 

 

 20 
 

APPENDIX 4

160



 
 

4.8 Hotel 

4.8.1 Whitbread (Premiere Inn) do have a requirement in Peterborough for a standalone model in 
the city centre, with a room target of up to 120 rooms. Travelodge have also an expressed 
requirement for a hotel in Peterborough. Therefore the assumption of a 108 room hotel is 
sufficient for this exercise and satisfies the operator’s requirements who will pay c.£3,500 per 
room. Such a line-up will achieve a 6% yield in the market, possibly sharpening to 5.75% with 
Whitbread on the hook.  

 

4.9 Commercialisation 

4.9.1 £50,000 per annum as commercialisation income has also been reflected in this appraisal, 
to mirror the Queensgate appraisal. Similarly, a capital cost of £100,000 has been added to the 
G&T cost. 

 

4.10 Advertising Screen 

4.10.1 Demand has been identified for the provision of video media. This additional income of 
£30,000 per annum is capitalised at a yield in line with the wider retail element of the scheme 
(7.50%). A cost of £40,000 has been reflected in the construction cost along with 6 months’ rent 
free. 

 

4.11 Other 

4.11.1 In line with the scheme drawings Gardiner and Theobald have identified 12,411 sq ft of 
basement space that we have applied a flat rate of £10 psf to, accounting for general storage or 
ancillary space. It is unlikely that any such space would command a higher rental value than this 
and further information on the letting strategy would be required. 

 

4.12 Property Cost Estimate 

4.12.1 We have produced a Property Cost Estimate (full report attached in Appendix 8). This work 
has included Land Registry searches and estimates the cost of acquiring the property interests 
within the Westgate scheme boundary through CPO, as at the date of the estimate (December 
2015). 

4.12.2 The findings are summarised below: 

Property Value £              8,165,900  
  Disturbance £              2,165,806  
  Statutory Payments £                  578,950  
  Professional Costs £                  623,000  
  Total £            11,533,656  say £  11,550,000  

 

 21 
 

APPENDIX 4

161



 
 

4.13 Total Development Costs 

4.13.1 The Property Costs Estimate is £11.55m. 

4.13.2 Supermarkets (generally defined by PCC as +500 sq m net sales) are subject to a CIL fee 
of £150 per sq m which has been applied to the supermarket in the North Westgate scheme. This 
produces a cost of £166,888. 

4.13.3 The G&T costs, dated 23/12/2015, (Appendix 2), which totalled £91m have been 
reflected along with the costs for the commercialisation and advertising screen of £140,000. 

4.13.4 A build period of 24 months has been reflected for ease of comparison, but in reality this 
figure is likely to be higher due to the site assembly required for scheme to be developed. 

4.13.5 Professional fees of 12.5% of construction costs have been assumed and total 
£11,392,500. Agent’s fees of 10%, Legal fees of 5% and Sales fees on the residential of 1% have 
been assumed. 

4.13.6 The total capital contributions against the new development are £5,446,114. 

4.13.7 A project contingency of 5% has been reflected and equates to c. £5.8m. 

4.13.8 Total Development Cost: £132,530,000 including interest. 

 

4.14 Development Viability 

4.14.1 Based upon the above assumptions we believe Hawksworth’s North Westgate proposed 
development is unviable. Our appraisal (Appendix 4) produces a negative profit of over £41m. 
This is significantly underwater and would require a significant shift in the market- from improved 
yields and rents, to decreasing costs of construction, stronger tenant demand and decreased 
capital incentives; all of which is beyond the our expectations. 

14.14.2 Furthermore, any such increase in demand from occupiers in the North Westgate scheme 
would also be linked to the success of the proposed Queensgate scheme, which will have a 
positive knock-on effect on the surrounding town centre areas, including the Hawksworth site, 
boosting its attractiveness to potential occupiers. Consequently, increasing land values in such a 
scenario will put further pressure on the viability of the North Westgate scheme, despite the 
improved market.  

 

  

 22 
 

APPENDIX 4

162



 
 

5 
 
 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
 
 

 

 

 23 
 

APPENDIX 4

163



 
 

5.0 CONCLUSIONS 

5.1 This report is a financial assessment of the potential viability of the respective Queensgate and 
North Westgate schemes.  This has been completed using established valuation practices and 
where possible using equivalent values and assumptions.  It has been demonstrated that on no 
reasonable commercial metric can the Hawksworth scheme be considered viable based upon 
existing and expected market conditions or the scheme content as submitted. 

5.2 The Queensgate cinema and remodelling proposal is a financially viable enhancement to the 
existing centre that will support its position as a shopping and leisure facility.  It should be 
implemented by any commercial owner and the attached document in Appendix 6 supports the 
intention of the owners to implement the scheme based upon this analysis when planning is 
achieved.   

5.3 It has been identified that the feasibility of the North Westgate scheme relies on an improved 
market for the wide collection of uses proposed, for which there is generally  an oversupply and 
lack of demand in  Peterborough. Consequently, the viability of the North Westgate scheme is 
dependent on an increase in take up, as a result of an improved market, all of which will drive 
land values higher and negatively impact the prospect of the North Westgate scheme which is 
currently shows a negative return in excess of £41,000,000. 

 

 

  

 24 
 

APPENDIX 4

164



 
 

6 
 
 
 

 APPENDICES 
 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

165



 
 

 

 

 

I 
 GARDINER & 

THEOBALD 
QUEENSGATE COST 
REPORT 

  

  

  
 

APPENDIX 4

166



QUEENSGATE, PETERBOROUGH - Retail/ Cinema Extension

for

Lend Lease

ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE- Planning

29 June 2015 

APPENDIX 4

167



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

CONTROL ISSUE SHEET

Prepared By Authorised By

(name / position / 

date)

(name / position / 

date)

- Feasibility

Richard Oliver

 Executive Surveyor

14/08/14

Ian Purton

Partner

14/08/14

A Feasibility

Richard Oliver

 Associate

13/02/15

Ian Purton

Partner

13/02/15

B Feasibility

Richard Oliver

 Associate

26/02/15

Ian Purton

Partner

26/02/15

C Planning

Richard Oliver

 Associate

29/06/15

Ian Purton

Partner

29/06/15

Revision Status

2

APPENDIX 4

168



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

CONTENTS

1 Executive Summary

2 Scope of Works / Project Description

3 Basis of Estimate / Assumptions

4 Exclusions

5 Schedule of Areas

6 Details of Estimate

Appendix A:  Schedule of Design Information

3

APPENDIX 4

169



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

Gross Internal Area (m²) :

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Total   (£)

CONSTRUCTION COST

1 Strip Out / Alterations and demolitions 2,440,000

2 Landlord works to JLP 650,000

3 New MSU's 1 - 5 520,000

4 New A3 1,000,000

5 Malls 1,990,000

6 Cinema 3,780,000

7 Cinema 3rd level including escape corridor 670,000

8 Developer Warm Shell 2,910,000

9 WC's -

10 Landlord cores and circulation 3,040,000

11 Taking off Existing Mall Roof 1,470,000

12 Plant Screens and Decks 340,000

13 Service Diversions/ Upgrades 1,150,000

14 Bus Station Link Excl

15 Media Wall (2m x 2m) 40,000

16 Works to JLP store 1,730,000

Sub Total 21,730,000

13 Main Contractor’s Preliminaries 16% SAY 3,200,000

14 Main Contractor’s Overheads and Profit 5% SAY 1,160,000

Building Works Total 26,090,000

15 Contingency 5% SAY 1,304,500

27,394,500

16 Tender Inflation Estimate to SOS 2Q 16 1.5% 1,222,628

17
Construction Inflation to mid point of 

estimated completion 2Q 17 
3.0% 513,504

Total Estimated Construction Cost 29,130,632

TOTAL ROUNDED CONSTRUCTION COST 29,130,000

Job No.:

Sub Total

Client :

4

APPENDIX 4

170



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

Gross Internal Area (m²) :

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Total   (£)

Job No.:

Client :

FURTHER ALLOWANCES

Professional  Fees - Allowance 15% 4,369,500

POTENTIAL SCOPE REQUIREMENTS

Shopfronts at mall level 320,000

Shopfronts at upper level 230,000

JLP new Goods lifts (2Nr) 200,000

Upgrade works to  bridge link across bus 

station 120,000

Tenant screeds 685,000

5

APPENDIX 4

171



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

NJN Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

Gross Internal Area (m²) :

RECONCILIATION

Total   (£)

FEBRUARY  2015 Cost Plan 26,190,000

ADJUSTMENTS TO SCOPE

Enclosing low level mall bridge with glass 144,000

Adding cinema 3rd level -  high level bridge 

fo cinema, and upper level foyer, including 

extending lifts

350,000

New escape corridor at 3rd level, including 

extending fire lift
320,000

Land lords works to JLP units, including 

reducing sprinkler tank
1,730,000 Incl Prelims

Additional unit ( additional wall and service 

connections) 
60,000

Preliminaries on above 139,840

OHP on above 50,692

Contingencies on above 139,727 2,934,259

Inflation allowance incl

balance 5,741

Revised Construction budget 29,130,000

Job No.:

Client :

6

APPENDIX 4

172



32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

BASIS OF ESTIMATE

1 PROJECT OVERVIEW

1 The project comprises

2 PROGRAMME

1 TBC

3 INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS ESTIMATE

1

2 We have made a number of assumptions/exclusions which will require to be confirmed 

4 STATUS OF DESIGN

1 Feasibility

5 KEY ASSUMPTIONS

1 Please refer to the detailed build up for all other key assumptions and allowances.

2 Estimated costs are construction costs at current prices (2nd Qtr 2015)

3 Allowances have been included for main contractor preliminaries costs (16%) 

and overheads and profit (5%)

4 Existing mall services are maintained no allowance for replacement

6 TENANTS WORKS

1

2

3 Assumed screeds by tenant

7 PROCUREMENT

1 Costs are based on two stage design and build competitive tendering of the works under one main

contract.

8 INFLATION

1 Inflation to start on site and construction inflation have been calculated based on the following

2015 5%

2016 4%

2017 4%

Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Job No. :

Client :

Strip out of retail units at ground and existing level to create a new unit within 

the existing JLP store and core to provide access to the new leisure facilities 

within the existing structure

To construct two new roof boxes, one at 2nd floor above existing Waitrose store 

and the second at 3fd floor above the existing JLP store. These will house new 

A3 units and cinema with double height atriums. 

An allowance  is included for enhanced specification requirements for Cinema warm shell

The basis of this estimate as per the document list included later in this section.

Assumed shopofronts are by tenants

7

APPENDIX 4

173



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

NJN Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

EXCLUSIONS

The following should be read in conjunction with the Executive Summary and are a list of items not yet able

to be included within this cost plan, however we would like to discuss them further with yourselves and your

advisors to determine whether some or all of the following can be included in the cost plan: 

1 Design Fees

2

3

4 Value Added Tax

5 Land acquisition costs and fees

6 Client finance costs

7 Legal costs

8 Project insurances

9 Fittings, furnishings and equipment

10 Currency fluctuations

11 Statutory changes

12 Asbestos removal beyond stated allowance

13 Replacement of mall services

14 Shopfronts - Assumed by tenant

15 Upgrade to existing standby generator and UPS systems

16 Upggrade of finishes to  bus station link bridge - budget allowance below line

17 Imax screen for cinema. 

18 Replacement of mall flooring 

19 Screeds - Assumed by tenants

20 Refurbishment / Replacement of Waitrose substation B

21 New WC's

Job No. :

Contractors pre construction fees.

Contractors design and build fees.

8

APPENDIX 4

174



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

AREA SCHEDULE

Unit/ Location

Lower Grnd 

Floor

Upper 

Grnd Floor 1st Floor 2nd Floor 3rd Floor

M2 M2 M2 M2 M2 M2 SF

MSU1 1,230 1,231 2,461 26,490

MSU2 1,018 1,019 2,037 21,926

MSU 3 555 622 1,177 12,669

MSU4 2,251 2,251 24,230

A3units 1,794 467 2,261 24,337

A3 seating 192 115 307 3,305

New mall 210 470 310 990 10,656

WC 180 180 1,938

Cinema 4,005 4,005 43,110

Core 400 597 1,180 750 2,927 31,506

Reconfigured 

JLP deliveries 500 500 5,382

New JLP area 

within Hi Bay 420 420 420 1,260 13,563

Total 900 6,461 6,928 6,067 - 20,356 219,112

Previous areas

Areas are based on the drawings noted in the Schedule of Design Information

Job No. :

Client :

Total

9

APPENDIX 4

175



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP

Strip Out / Demolitions & Alterations

Strip out existing retail areas back to shell 14,289 m2 85 1,214,565

Demolish existing JLP plant room structure, 

including strip out of plant 817 m2 150 122,550

Demolish existing JLP roof for cinema, 

including crashdeck 3,780 m2 125 472,500

EO allowance for temporary support steel 25 t 2,000 50,000

Hoardings to mall 1,800 m2 75 135,000

Remove existing finishes to roof above existing 

Waitrose 3,262 m2 35 114,170

Remove JLP staircase and infill 3 flrs 22,000 66,000

Tapered insulation, 50mm screed to roof 

structure 3,262 m2 80 260,960

2,435,745

Say 2,440,000

Landlord Works to JLP

Service yard adaptions

Demolish slab to loading bay , including 

crashdeck 480 m2 75 36,000

Adapting external service yard wall 1 Item 10,000 10,000

Pad foundations 192 m2 100 19,200

New yard slab 192 m2 120 23,040

Steelwork 11 t 2,000 22,000

JLP dock levellers excl

JLP new delivery area - to shell only, strip 

out existing customer collect area and minor 

mods 1 Item 30,000 30,000

Allowance for phasing to maintain deliveries 1 Item 25,000 25,000

Shell works

Infill existing Hi bay warehouse area, 150mm 

slab on metal deck, UG, 1st & 2nd 1,368 m2 80 109,440

Steelwork to infills 75 t 2,000 150,000

New goods lift shaft walls, blockwork 500 m2 120 60,000

Lift pits 2 Nr 10,000 20,000

New Goods lifts Excl

New stairs and blockwork  walls 3 flr 25,000 75,000

Temporary Hoarding  to facilitate new works 900 m2 75 67,500

Diversion of service moving plant shopfit works Excl

647,180

Say 650,000

Job No. :

10

APPENDIX 4

176



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP

Job No. :

MSU units

Demise walls 2,560 m2 110 281,600

Screed - By tenant 7,926 m2 excl

Form holes in slab for 2 level trading, vertical 

circulation by tenant 3 Nr 25,000 75,000

Service connections 5 Nr 30,000 150,000

Doors 5 Nr 2,000 10,000

516,600

Say 520,000

A3 units

Frame 2,568 m2 200 513,600

Roof 582 m2 150 87,300

External walls 155 m2 350 54,250

Demise walls 1,100 m2 110 121,000

Screed - By tenant 2,568 m2 excl

Service connections 6 Nr 35,000 210,000

Doors 6 Nr 2,000 12,000

Seating areas - By tenant excl

998,150

Say 1,000,000

Mall

Frame to new build areas 780 m2 200 156,000

Roof 310 m2 150 46,500

Floor 990 m2 180 178,200

Ceiling 990 m2 100 99,000

Forming shopfront line/ bulkhead 343 m 1,000 343,000

Pilasters 90 m 500 45,000

Balustrades and edge decoration 66 m 1,500 99,000

Allowance for features 1 item 100,000

M&E services 990 m2 450 445,500

Escalator 4 Nr 80,000 320,000

Lift 2 Nr 100,000 200,000

Pits 6 Nr 10,000 60,000

Finishes to seating areas 307 m2 330 101,310

1,991,010

Say 1,990,000

11

APPENDIX 4

177



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP

Job No. :

WC's - Excluded

Walls to WC shell 0

Base service connections to WC 0

Fitting out WC 0

0

Say 0

12

APPENDIX 4

178



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

TBC Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP

Cinema

New steel grillage to cinema above JLP store
150 tn 2,000 300,000

Frame 4,005 m2 160 640,800

Floor on top of grillage 2,720 m2 80 217,600

External Walls 1,240 m2 400 496,000

Internal demise walls 1,120 m2 250 280,000

E/O bridge 70 m2 750 52,500

Glass to mall bridge 144 m2 1,000 144,000

Walls to Mall 1,300 m2 350 455,000

Roof 4,005 m2 150 600,750

Escape stairs 3 Nr 75,000 225,000

Service connection 1 Nr 50,000 50,000

Sprinklers

New Tank 1 Item 250,000 250,000

Allowance for installation (Excl auditorium) 

as not operator requirement 1,305 m2 50 65,250

3,776,900

Say 3,780,000

Warm Shell 

Suspension grid system to auditoria 2,700 m2 45 121,500      

Mass barrier insulation and 2 layers of 

plasterboard to roof 4,005 m2 75 300,375      

Auditoria walls 4,530 m2 170 770,100      

EO for projection suite knock out panels 12 No 500 6,000          

Acoustic lining to external walls 2,640 m2 100 264,000      

Stepped stadia seating, precast concrete 

plank systems on structural steel frame, 

intermediate precast steps to gangways 2,700 m2 375 1,012,500    

Insulation to underside of auditoria 2,700 m2 60 162,000      

Drainage 1 Item 30,000 30,000        

Projection suite slab 660 m2 250 165,000      

Primary support for tenant signage 1 Item 10,000 10,000        

Allowance for acoustic testing auditoria 12 Nr 5,000 60,000        

Stair 1 Nr 10,000 10,000        

2,911,475

Say 2,910,000

Job No. :

13

APPENDIX 4

179



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

TBC Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP

Job No. :

Mall Roof

Take off roof 680 m2 600 408,000

Allowance for structural works to mall 

square interface to allow removal of star 

wars bulkhead 1 Item 75,000 75,000

Floor finish excl -

New mall roof 680 m2 1,000 680,000

Services 680 m2 450 306,000

1,469,000

Say 1,470,000

14

APPENDIX 4

180



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

TBC Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP

Cinema - upper level

Frame 600 m2 250 150,000

E/O bridge 80 m2 750 60,000

Walls to bridge 100 m2 1,000 100,000

Extend up 1 lift 1 Nr 20,000 20,000

Extend stair 1 Item 15,000 15,000

345,000

Say 350,000

Escape corridor

Frame 400 m2 250 100,000

E/O bridge 50 m2 750 37,500

Corridor wall 500 m2 150 75,000

Landlord services to corridor, sprinkler , 

lighting 400 m2 150 60,000

Extend up  fire mans 1 lift 1 Nr 25,000 25,000

Extend stair 1 Item 25,000 25,000

322,500

Say 320,000

Job No. :

15

APPENDIX 4

181



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

TBC Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP 

Landlord Cores 

New lit pit in ground slab 1 Nr 10,000 10,000

Cutting out waffle slab within existing 

structures  for new stairs and lifts 326 m2 500 163,000

Infill slab adjacent to new mall lifts 1 Item 47,000 47,000

Works to service corridors, construction of 

new structure,landlords services 1,577 m2 1,120 1,766,240

Works to service corridors, ,landlords 

services within existing structure 1,350 m2 400 540,000

Allowance for works to loading bay roller 

shutters 1 Item 30,000 30,000

New staircases 4 nr 75,000 300,000

New goods lift 1 Nr 100,000 100,000

Extending lift G16 1 Item 30,000 30,000

Allowance for refurbishing existing goods 

lift 1 Nr 50,000 50,000

3,036,240

Say 3,040,000

Plant Screens

Plant Screens/ Mansard 480 m2 500 240,000

Plant decks 1 Item 100,000 100,000

340,000

Say 340,000

Service Upgrades

Allowance for works to landlord sprinkler 

tank 1 Item 75,000 75,000

Allowance for replacement and relocation of 

Substation B currently on roof of Waitrose  - 

Excluded Excl 150,000 -

Upgrade and extending BMS systems 1 Item 300,000 300,000

New substations to serve MSU 1-4 and 

Cinema 5 Nr 80,000 400,000

Allowance for Gas 1 Nr 75,000 75,000

Allowance for water 1 Nr 50,000 50,000

900,000

Say 900,000

Job No. :

16

APPENDIX 4

182



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

TBC Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client : Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

COST BUILD UP 

Job No. :

Service Diversions

Service Diversions 1 Item 250,000 250,000

250,000

Say 250,000

17

APPENDIX 4

183



Job No. tbc Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client: Lendlease Base Date : 2Q15

SUMMARY

£ £

Utilities

1 Item £25,000 25,000

1 Item £2,500 2,500

1 Item £50,000 50,000

1 Item £30,000 30,000 107,500

500 m2 £150 75,000

1 Item £150,000 150,000

1 Item £125,000 125,000 350,000

1 Item £250,000 250,000 250,000

1 Item £15,000 15,000 15,000

1 Item £100,000 100,000

1 Item £75,000 75,000 175,000

1 Item £150,000 150,000 150,000

Allowance for a new comms room with incoming fibre cables - Review with 

JLP to reduce allowance for serviceways to new room only

Service yard/Customer collect

Provision of 1 dock leveller and 1 scissor lift - Relocate existing only

Existing High Bay Area

Removal of High bay warehouse Racking and pickers

Upgrade roof structure and insulation as necessary

Comms Room Relocation

Demolition/Strip-out

Demolition of Mezzanine floor within the upper level - area assumed as not 

currently drawn (currently houses JLP AHU's)

Removal of AHU's and chillers

Allowance for existing services/switch rooms/battery units and the like to be 

removed

Plant Relocation

Allowance for strengthening to structure to facilitate JLP's new plant 

locations

QUEENSGATE, PETERBORUGH - CINEMA & RESTAURANT EXTENSION

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

Diversion of existing landlord services to supply JLP's new layout - assumed 

capped off services near to the new demise wall

New BT containment route to JLP demise

Provision of new risers for distribution to new boiler plant room

New Mains Water transfer pump and break tank

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\Estimate planning 290615JLP18

APPENDIX 4

184



Job No. tbc Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Client: Lendlease Base Date : 2Q15

SUMMARY

£ £

QUEENSGATE, PETERBORUGH - CINEMA & RESTAURANT EXTENSION

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

1 Item £450,000 450,000 450,000

1 Item £0 0 0

1 Item £100,000 100,000 100,000

1 Item £50,000 50,000 50,000

Sub-Total 1,647,500

Contingency @ 5% 82,375

TOTAL 1,729,875

SAY 1,730,000

Allowance for creating new dry risers and smoke vents - dependent on 

review of strategy

Customer Collect

Allowance for creating temporary customer collect provision - Subject to 

JLP final arrangement

Sprinkler Tanks

Sprinkler Tank works - Previously advised but not in the Estimate

Standby Generator

Allowance for builders work required to facilitate a new route which 

enables the generator to be left insitu. (Existing Generator remains within 

JLP demise) - Not required

Dry Risers & Smoke Control

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\Estimate planning 290615JLP19

APPENDIX 4

185



Queensgate, Peterborough

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

32470 Issue Date : 29-Jun-15

Lend Lease Base Date : 2Q15

SCHEDULE OF DESIGN INFORMATION

The compilation of this document is on the basis of the following design information:-

Architectural - Benoy

Drawing No. Date Issued Revision

June 2015 planning application drawings

Structural 

Drawing No. Date Issued Revision

M&E

Drawing No. Date Issued Revision

Description

Job No. :

Client :

Description

Description

20

APPENDIX 4

186



 
 

 

 

 

 

II 
 GARDINER & 

THEOBALD NORTH 
WESTGATE COST 
REPORT 

  

  
 

APPENDIX 4

187



Mixed Use Scheme

FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE

23 DECEMBER 2015

North Westgate - Peterborough

Leandlease

for

APPENDIX 4

188



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

CONTROL ISSUE SHEET

Prepared By

(name / position / date)

Feasibility
Richard Oliver - Associate 

23.12.2015

Ian Purton - Partner       

23.12.15

(name / position / date)

Authorised By

-

North Westgate - Peterborough

FEASIBILITY COST ESTIMATE

StatusRevision

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughControl Issue Sheet 2

APPENDIX 4

189



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

CONTENTS

1 Executive Summary

2 Basis of Estimate

3 Assumptions

4 Exclusions

5 Details of Estimate

North Westgate - Peterborough

FEASIBILITY COST ESTIMATE

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughContents - ALL 3

APPENDIX 4

190



32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

Gross Internal Area (ft²) : 456,555

SUMMARY

Total   (£) £/ft² %

CONSTRUCTION COST - Mixed Use

1
960,000 24 1.1

2 7,260,000 129 8.0

3 14,020,000 55,857 15.5

4 10,000,000 189 11.0

5
14,980,000 - 16.5

6
20,700,000 159 22.8

7 3,970,000 244 4.4

8 7,080,000 52 7.8

9 3,500,000 8 3.9

82,470,000 181 90.9

10 Design Development Risk Allowance 5.0% 4,120,000 -
4.5

11 Construction Risk Allowance 5.0% 4,120,000 - 4.5

90,710,000 199          100.0 

12 Tender Inflation Estimate up to start on 

site
Excl. - -

13 Construction Inflation Estimate Excl. - -

90,710,000 199 100

TOTAL ROUNDED CONSTRUCTION COST 

Demolitions, Enabling Works & Site 

Clearance

Landscaping

Block 'E': Retail & Residential

Block 'D': Foodhall, Retail, Residential & 

Commercial

Block 'C': A3, Retail Hotel, Supermarket & 

Residential

Block 'B': A3 & Residential

Block 'A': Car Park, Cinema & A3

Basement across Block A & C; shell only

Building Work Total

North Westgate - Peterborough

FEASIBILITY COST ESTIMATE

Job No.:

Client :

Sub Total

Total Estimated Construction Cost

£91,000,000

Infrastructure/Service Diversions

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - PeterboroughExecutive Summary4

APPENDIX 4

191



32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

BASIS OF ESTIMATE / ASSUMPTIONS

1 PROJECT OVERVIEW

-

-

-

-

2 PROGRAMME

-

3 INFORMATION USED TO PREPARE THIS ESTIMATE

-

4 STATUS OF DESIGN

- Feasibility

5 KEY ASSUMPTIONS

- Please refer to the build up for all other key assumptions and allowances.

6 PROCUREMENT

-

7 INFLATION

-

Client :

The project comprises the demolition and excavation as required to facilitate the proposed 

scheme.

The tallest building, Block E is the tallest at c.37m AOD.

North Westgate, Peterborough - Design and Access Statement Dated June 2015

Landscaping of surrounding public realm and realignment of local highways as required

Construction of five 'blocks' A-E which include a mix of Residential, Retail, Leisure, Hotel and 

Commercial accomodation

North Westgate - Peterborough

FEASIBILITY COST ESTIMATE

Costs are based on a single lump sum Contract, competitivly tendered and undertaken in a 

single phase, except the Demolition which, it assumed, will be procured under a separate 

Contract.

Inflation has been excluded

The programme is unknown at this stage.

Job No. :

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughBasis 5

APPENDIX 4

192



32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

ASSUMPTIONS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 No Comfort cooling to the apartments

9

10 It is assumed that the commercial space build cost allows for a Cat A fit-out only.

11

12

13

North Westgate - Peterborough

FEASIBILITY COST ESTIMATE

Job No. :

The following should be read in conjunction with the Executive Summary and detailed estimate 

and are a list of assumptions which have been made in order to prepare the order of cost 

estimate. It should be noted that limited information in relation to this scheme and the existing site 

is available at this stage. 

It is assumed that the residential will be built to allow for Lifetime Homes where possible

No works to the existing church has been allowed for

Residential specification is assumed to be of a standard appropriate to a net sales value of 

£200/sq.ft for private sales.

It is assumed that no works are required to be undertaken on Bourges Boulevard

It is assumed that the tenants of the Retail & A3 units will install and pay for their own 

shopfronts and signage

The ' lower ground floor' of Multi-Storey Car Park is assumed to be c.3.5m below surrounding 

ground level although it can still be naturally ventilated

It is assumed that the residential units are all private and there is a 75% Net to Gross 

efficiency.

It is assumed that all retail & A3 units are built to 'Shell & Core' only with capped off services 

to the back of the units

It is assumed the Net to Gross efficiency of the commercial space is 80:20

Floor to floor heights are assumed to be 3m

The Hotel is assumed to be of a specification similar to that of a 'Travelodge' or 'Premier Inn'

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughAssumptions 6

APPENDIX 4

193



32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

EXCLUSIONS

1 Value Added Tax

2

3 Client finance and legal costs

4 Marketing costs

5

6

7 Project insurances

8

9 S106 costs / S278 costs / CIL

10 Licenses / permissions required to work on roads or land not owned by the Client

11 Statutory charges 

12 Abnormal ground conditions

13 Site investigations, including Archaeological investigations and exploratory works

14 FF&E to the residential building

15 Management set up costs, public relations and publicity costs

16 Public Art contributions

17 Community facilities.

18 Grey and black water recycling and rainwater recycling

19 Green roofs.

20 Provision of energy from renewable sources

21

22 Reinforcement of services off site.

23

24 Tenant fit-out to retail units

25 Signage

Restrictive working hours due to proximity of neighbouring properties

Job No. :

The following should be read in conjunction with the Executive Summary and detail and are a list 

of items not able to be included within this cost plan, however we would like to discuss them further 

with yourselves to determine whether some or all of the following can be included in the cost plan: 

Shopfronts to retial units

North Westgate - Peterborough

FEASIBILITY COST ESTIMATE

Professional Fees

Planning and Building Control Fees

Design and other fees. Main contractor's design fees or costs associated with rights of light 

agreement, party wall awards, oversailing agreements etc.

Land acquisition costs and associated fees and payments to existing tenants and landlords

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - PeterboroughExclusions7

APPENDIX 4

194



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

North Westgate - Peterborough

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

Detail

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughFlysht 8

APPENDIX 4

195



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

DETAILS OF ESTIMATE - Residential & retail

£ £

SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR DEMOLITIONS AND BUILDING WORKS

Demolition & Site Clearance

40,602 ft² £12 487,222

184,161 ft² £2.0 368,323

1 item £100,000 100,000

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £960,000

Basement across Block A & C; shell only

56,468 ft² £129 7,257,097

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £7,260,000

Block 'A': Car Park, Cinema & A3

251 space £16,000 4,016,000

46,985 ft² £190 8,927,123

9,322 ft² £115 1,071,987

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £14,020,000

North Westgate - Peterborough

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

Demolition of existing buildings and breakout hardstanding; 

assume buildings are 2 storeys

Allowance for site strip; assume 0.25m depth 

Construction of New multi store car park; incl. 1 level below 

ground

Excavation and construction to Shell only; minimum level +7 

AOD

Allowance for removal of contaminated waste/ obstructions

Construction of new cinema above Car Park and retail with 

ground floor lobby; built to warm shell

A3 Units - Shell & Core only with capped off services; Shopfronts 

are excluded

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughDetail (2) 9

APPENDIX 4

196



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

DETAILS OF ESTIMATE - Residential & retail

£ £

North Westgate - Peterborough

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

Block 'B': A3 & Residential `

19,892 ft² £110 2,188,106

33,067 ft² £161 5,336,396

24,800 ft² £100 2,480,026

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £10,000,000

Block 'C': A3, Retail Hotel, Supermarket & Residential

5,457 ft² £86 471,515

108 Key £55,000 5,940,000

5,845 ft² £115 672,158

11,399 ft² £105 1,196,903

32,141 ft² £133 4,286,471

24,106 ft² £100 2,410,598

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £14,980,000

New residential Units - Shell & Core + Landlord Fit-Out

New residential Units - Private; assume 75% NIA:GIA

A3 Units - Shell & Core only with capped off services; Shopfronts 

Retail Units - Shell & Core only with capped off services; 

New residential Units - Shell & Core + Landlord Fit-Out

New residential Units - Private; assume 75% NIA:GIA

Construction of a new supermarket - Shell & Core; Tenant Fit-

Out is excluded

A3 Units - Shell & Core only with capped off services; Shopfronts 

Construction of New Hotel; assume similar spec to Travelodge. 

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughDetail (2) 10

APPENDIX 4

197



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

DETAILS OF ESTIMATE - Residential & retail

£ £

North Westgate - Peterborough

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

Block 'D': Foodhall, Retail, Residential & Commercial

14,531 ft² £78 1,133,449

37,276 ft² £105 3,913,952

62,173 ft² £133 8,257,105

46,630 ft² £100 4,662,965

16,264 ft² £140 2,277,017

13,012 ft² £35 455,403

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £20,700,000

Block 'E': Retail & Residential

2,497 ft² £115 287,184

16,264 ft² £151 2,459,655

12,198 ft² £100 1,219,830

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £3,970,000

Landscaping

135,605 ft² £50 6,780,244

1 Item £300,000 300,000

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £7,080,000

Cat A office fit-out; assume 80% Net:Gross

Allowance for water feature to main square

A3 Units - Shell & Core only with capped off services; Shopfronts 

Retail Units - Shell & Core only with capped off services; 

New commercial space - Shell & Core

New residential Units - Shell & Core + Landlord Fit-Out

New residential Units - Private; assume 75% NIA:GIA

Allowance for landscaping incl. lighting, carriageways, street 

realignment, signage, planting and hard landscaping

New residential Units - Private; assume 75% NIA:GIA

New residential Units - Shell & Core + Landlord Fit-Out

Construction of a new foodhall - Shell & Core; Tenant Fit-Out is 

excluded

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughDetail (2) 11

APPENDIX 4

198



Job No. : 32470 Issue Date : 23-Dec-15

Client : Lendlease Base Date : 4Q2015

DETAILS OF ESTIMATE - Residential & retail

£ £

North Westgate - Peterborough

PRELIMINARY ORDER OF COST ESTIMATE

Infrastructure/Service Diversions

1 Item £2,500,000 2,500,000

Allowance for Highways works

1 Item £500,000 500,000

1 Item £500,000 500,000

TOTAL     Current Day Costs SAY £3,500,000

Allowance for Service diversions

Allowance for new site-wide services and substations

K:\GDG\Jobs\32000\32470 - Queensgate Centre - Cinema and leisure\Cost Technical\Estimates and Cost Plans\Estimate and Cost Plan\04 North Westgate Review\North Westgate - 

PeterboroughDetail (2) 12

APPENDIX 4

199



 
 

 

 

 

 

III 
 QUEENSGATE 

APPRAISAL 
  

  

 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

200



Queensgate Peterborough 01-Feb-16

Development Appraisal

VALUE

Total GIA 

sq ft

 ERV

Say 

Initial 

Yield

 Gross 

Capital

Value 

 Purchasers

Costs 

Net 

Capital

Value 

JLP (downsize including T/O top up) 199,456             369,266                   5.00% 20.00 £7,385,320 5.80% £6,980,000

New MSU 1 35,000               544,000                   5.50% 18.18 £9,890,909 5.80% £9,349,000

New MSU 2 5,477                 178,000                   5.50% 18.18 £3,236,364 5.80% £3,059,000

New MSU 3 5,477                 178,000                   5.50% 18.18 £3,236,364 5.80% £3,059,000

New MSU 4 12,674               253,500                   5.50% 18.18 £4,609,091 5.80% £4,356,000

Odeon (including mezz) 42,098               699,430                   5.50% 18.18 £12,716,909 5.80% £12,020,000

Restaurant 1 3,322                 142,000                   5.50% 18.18 £2,581,818 5.80% £2,440,000

Restaurant 2 2,531                 114,000                   5.50% 18.18 £2,072,727 5.80% £1,959,000

Restaurant 3 4,413                 132,400                   5.50% 18.18 £2,407,273 5.80% £2,275,000

Restaurant 4 4,370                 142,000                   5.50% 18.18 £2,581,818 5.80% £2,440,000

Restaurant 5 2,531                 88,600                     5.50% 18.18 £1,610,909 5.80% £1,523,000

Restaurant 6 4,173                 146,100                   5.50% 18.18 £2,656,364 5.80% £2,511,000

Restaurant 7 5,023                 100,500                   5.50% 18.18 £1,827,273 5.80% £1,727,000

New Commercialisation outside JLP 50,000                     5.50% 18.18 £909,091 5.80% £859,000

Advertising Screen 30,000                     5.50% 18.18 £545,455 5.80% £516,000

Scheme Value Uplift £9,934,792

Interim Income  Years to VP PV

Unit 79 - Currently Next 225,000                   6.00%                     2.19 2.00 £450,084 £450,084

Lush 96,875                     6.00%                     0.95 0.90 £86,820 £86,820

Greggs 82,500                     6.00%                     0.95 0.90 £73,937 £73,937

 Years to VP YP to VP

(less Lush lost income) 1,271                 96,875                     6.00%                     0.95 15.77 £1,527,764 5.80% £1,444,000

(less Greggs Lost income) 1,429                 82,500                     6.00%                     0.95 15.77 £1,301,063 5.80% £1,230,000

(less JLP lost income) 58,628               108,542                   5.00%                     0.44 19.57 2,124,234 5.80% £2,008,000

NET DEVELOPMENT VALUE 267,917           £3,167,796 £56,754,290 £61,000,000

COST Unit Price Total Cost

Construction

Construction Costs 21,830,000         

Main Contractor’s Preliminaries 3,200,000           

Main Contractor’s Overheads and Profit 1,160,000           

Contingency 1,309,500           

Inflation 1,736,132           £29,240,000

Professional fees 15.00% £4,386,000

Letting and Extinguishment Costs

Agents Fees - Lettings 10% 279,853              

Legal Fees - Lettings 5% 158,390              

Lush Extinguishment Cost 145,600              

Greggs Extinguishment Cost 164,600              £748,443

Total Capital Contirbutions 17,570,800       

Project Contingency 5% £2,600,000

NET DEVELOPMENT COSTS £54,545,243

Plus Interest  - annual rate, monthly rate, % of cost, period (months) 4.50% £2,238,057

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS £56,783,300

PROFIT £4,216,700

EFFECTIVE NET PROFIT £4,216,700

Say £4,210,000

Profit on Cost 7.43%

IRR PC 20.90%

Rent and Yield Sensitivity Yield

JLP Yield 6.00% £4,216,700 5.00% 5.25% 5.50% 5.75% 6.00%

MSU Yield 5.50% 110% 15,017,172            12,017,172            9,017,172              7,017,172              5,017,172              

Cinema Yield 5.50% 105% 12,121,936            9,121,936              7,121,936              4,121,936              2,121,936              

Restaurant Yield 5.50% Rental Change 100% 9,216,700              6,216,700              4,216,700              2,216,700              216,700                  

100% 95% 6,321,464              4,321,464              1,321,464              678,536-                  2,678,536-              

90% 3,416,229              1,416,229              583,771-                  2,583,771-              4,583,771-              

YP in perp 

APPENDIX 4

201



 
 

 

 

 

 

IV 
 NORTH WESTGATE 

APPRAISAL 
  

  

 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

202



North Westgate 01-Feb-16

Development Appraisal

VALUE

Total NIA 

sq ft

 Rate

psf 

 ERV

Say 

Initial 

Yield

 Gross 

Capital

Value 

 Purchasers

Costs 

Net 

Capital

Value 

(or ITZA)

Block A

Car Park 328                   1,000                 328,000           7.00% 14.29 £4,685,714 5.80% £4,429,000

Cinema 43,933              15.00                 658,999           7.25% 13.79 £9,089,641 5.80% £8,591,000

A3 13,539              35.00                 473,864           7.00% 14.29 £6,769,480 5.80% £6,398,000

Total 57,800            £19,418,000

Block B

A3 18,897              35.00                 661,405           7.00% 14.29 £9,448,639 5.80% £8,931,000

Resi 23,831              240.00               5,719,559        £5,719,559 5.80% £5,406,000

Total 42,729            £14,337,000

Block C

Supermarket 8,388                15.00                 125,818           6.25% 16.00 £2,013,083 5.80% £1,903,000

Hotel 108 rooms 3,500                 378,000           6.00% 16.67 £6,300,000 5.80% £5,955,000

A3 9,050                35.00                 316,744           7.00% 14.29 £4,524,917 5.80% £4,277,000

Retail 14,255              25.00                 356,369           7.25% 13.79 £4,915,436 5.80% £4,646,000

Resi 22,927              240.00               5,502,557        £5,502,557 5.80% £5,201,000

Total 54,728            £21,982,000

Block D

Retail 35,412              25.00                 885,299           7.25% 13.79 £12,211,016 5.80% £11,542,000

Food Hall 14,531              22.50                 326,957           8.00% 12.50 £4,086,956 5.80% £3,863,000

Resi 44,531              240.00               10,687,360      £10,687,360 5.80% £10,101,000

Commercial 18,222              15.00                 273,336           7.25% 13.79 £3,770,147 5.80% £3,563,000

Total 112,696          £29,069,000

Block E

Retail 2,372                25.00                 59,310             7.25% 13.79 £818,064 5.80% £773,000

Resi 11,504              240.00               2,760,966        £2,760,966 5.80% £2,610,000

Other 12,411              10.00                 124,109           7.50% 13.33 £1,654,786 5.80% £1,564,000

Total 26,287            £4,947,000

Commercialisation 50,000             7.50% 13.33 £666,667 5.80% £630,000

Advertising Screen 30,000             7.50% 13.33 £400,000 5.80% £378,000

NET DEVELOPMENT VALUE £29,718,650 £90,761,000

COST Unit Price Total Cost

SiteAssembley

Property Cost Estimate £11,550,000

Pre-Development

CIL 150                    psm £116,888

Construction £91,000,000

Commercialisation build cost 100,000           

Advertising screen build cost 40,000             

Professional fees 12.50% £11,392,500

Letting Costs

Residential Sales fees 1% 246,704             

Agents Fees - Lettings 10% 504,821             

Legal Fees - Lettings 5% 252,410             £1,003,936

Incentives

Cinema Incentive 28                     months 1,537,664          

A3 Incentive 12                     months 1,452,012          

Retail Incentive 18                     months 1,951,466          

Office Incentive 12                     months 273,336             

Supermarket Incentive 24                     months 251,635             

£5,466,114

Project Contingency 5% £6,033,472

NET DEVELOPMENT COSTS £126,702,909

Plus Interest  - annual rate, monthly rate, % of cost, period (months) 4.50% 0.37% 24 £5,829,918

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS £132,530,000

PROFIT -£41,770,000

EFFECTIVE NET PROFIT -£41,770,000

Say -£41,770,000

Profit on Cost -31.52%

Office 7.25%

Cinema 7.25%

Hotel 6.00%

Retail 7.25%

A3 7.00%

Foodhall 8.00%

Car Park 7.00%

Supermarket 6.25%

Other 7.50%

Commercialisation and Advertising 7.50%

YP in perp 

APPENDIX 4

203



 
 

 

 

V 
NORTH WESTGATE 
SCHEME PLANS 
 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

204



JUNE 2015 
JUNE 2015 

INDICATIVE FUTURE PHASE 
BY OTHERS

INDICATIVE FUTURE PHASE 
BY OTHERS

APPENDIX 4

205



 
 

 

VI 
LETTER FROM 
INVESCO 
 

 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

206



APPENDIX 4

207



 
 

 

VII 
LETTER FROM 
SAVILLS 
 

 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

208



APPENDIX 4

209



APPENDIX 4

210



 
 

   

VIII 
NORTH WESTGATE 
PROPERTY COST 
ESTIMATE 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

211



Peterborough Westgate Property Cost Estimate 
 
OVERVIEW AND INSTRUCTION 
 

This is our opinion of the costs of acquiring the property interests within the Westgate 

scheme boundary by compulsion, taking into account the assumptions set out, as at the 

date of the estimate (December 2015). The actual date of assessment of compensation 

will, however, usually be the date of possession (following Notice of Entry) or vesting 

(following a General Vesting Declaration). It is likely that due to additional information 

becoming available or through property market fluctuations both property values and 

other compensation figures will have changed, perhaps significantly, by that date. Payment 

of compensation post the date of possession is subject to an addition for Statutory Interest 

which accumulates from the date of possession until compensation is paid. 

The PCE includes: 

i) an estimate of property value 

ii) business property disturbance compensation 

iii) associated statutory loss payments (where it is possible to estimate these) and  

iv) Professional fees that we anticipate will be incurred by the claimants’ professional 

advisers in completing negotiations in accordance with the so called compensation 

code.  

We have only provided an estimate in respect of the interests identified to us.   

This exercise has been undertaken as a ‘desktop’ study reliant on the information provided 

to us and none of the premises has been visited.  We have had limited visibility to title 

information and none to lease documentation relating to the properties considered in this 

PCE. It is recommended that a more detailed property cost estimate is undertaken as 

further information becomes available.    

The figures included for ‘disturbance’ are based on our knowledge and experience and 

incorporate the typical heads of claim under the Compensation Code.  It is also an 

assumption in the disturbance compensation assessment that most businesses will relocate 

to suitable alternative premises in the town.  

For claimants over 60yrs old the option is available for their compensation to be assessed 

based on total extinguishment (closure) of the business and in addition there may be other 

claimants for whom relocation is not possible or does not materialise within the project 

timescale. In these cases the disturbance compensation increases to reflect loss of 

goodwill, such figures are extremely difficult to estimate without sight of trading accounts 

and whilst provision can been made for risk it should be noted that due to the relatively 

small number of businesses being displaced, if the proportion of total extinguishment cases 

is high, the allowance for disturbance compensation may not be sufficient. However, 

because of the small numbers involved it is more logical to anticipate that there would be 

sufficient property available in the area to decant the retailers that want to continue in 

business.  

No allowance is made for professional costs of the Acquiring Authority and their 

APPENDIX 4

212



Development Partner. 

 
WORKING METHOD 
 

Valuation of property interest 

In the course of providing this estimate we have relied on the following: 

 Leaseholders in occupation are assumed to receive compensation for business 

disturbance and up to 1 x the property rateable value. 

 Freehold owner occupiers are valued on an investment basis on an estimated rental 

value, with an allowance for costs to acquire a replacement reinvestment.   

 Other individual case by case assumptions are set out below. 

o It is assumed the residential properties, with the exception of those located 

on Cromwell Street, are let on standard Assured Shorthold Tenancies, that 

possession can be secured using estate management.  The compensation 

for these occupiers is assessed as nil.  

o The following properties are not to be acquired for the scheme; 

 Wortley Alms House (public house) 

 Westgate Church, 70 Westgate 

 The Brewery Tap (public house) 

For these properties we have made an allowance for legal fees and 

disturbance, but no allowance for their acquisition. 

o Land listed as in the ownership of Hawksworth Properties or Invesco in the 

Westgate, Peterborough Design & Access Statement have been excluded 

from the estimate. 

We have made a general assumption that the market value of a property lies principally 

within the freehold or long leasehold interest and that the leasehold occupational interests 

have only a small market value reflecting profit rent until the next review.  

Rule 5 – Equivalent Reinstatement 

Properties which are put to a purpose for which there is no general market or demand are 

compensated on the basis of the cost of equivalent reinstatement (r5 s5 LCA1961).  

Properties where this applies include religious property and member owned sports clubs.  

The costs of acquisition can escalate when incurred on this basis. 

It has been assumed that there are no properties where rule 5 applies 

Compensation for Disturbance 

We have not been able to carry out a detailed property condition inspection, nor have we 

inspected any of the premises. As more information becomes available the figures given 

may need to be revised. 

As stated above we have made estimates of the disturbance element of claims 

predominately based on our experience of similar cases. The key elements of any business 

APPENDIX 4

213



disturbance claim are as follows: 

 Temporary or partial permanent loss of profits 

 Relocation and removal costs 

 Special adaptation/compensation for existing fixtures and fittings  

 Acquisition costs of new premises 

 Any other reasonable costs incurred as a direct consequence of the acquisition 

Other statutory Payments  

Allowance has been made for the Basic, Occupiers, and Home Loss Payments as required 

by the Land Compensation Act 1973 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004.  

Property Cost Estimate Contingency  

Until detailed discussions have taken place including investigation of the validity of a 

claimants position and occupation it should be recognised that there could be significant 

individual claimant variation from the disturbance estimate given. In the context of these 

issues a contingency is recommended in addition to the figures provided in this report. 

Other Rights  

It is too early in the process to make any allowance for the possible effect of the 

development on third party rights, such as rights to light, party wall, crane over sailing and 

claims resulting from the construction and use of the development. This should be subject 

to review at a later date. 

Statutory Interest 

Statutory interest is payable on the outstanding balance of compensation between the 

valuation date and the date of payment and accrues daily, on simple basis, at a rate of 

0.5% below the base rate. It runs from the date of vesting or entry on outstanding 

compensation until paid to the claimant. No allowance is provided in the figures in this 

report. 

It should be noted that interest rates are likely to vary as will the time taken to settle claims. 

Acquisition of property by agreement or settlement of claims prior to vesting or entry may 

reduce this liability but holding costs may counter any benefit gained. It is our experience 

that a proportion of claims will be settled in advance of the vesting date and this 

proportion is capable of being managed through a site assembly strategy.  

CPO Inquiry and Upper Tribunal Costs 

The costs of a Public Inquiry & possible referral of disputed compensation claims to the 

Upper Tribunal (Lands Chamber) have not been incorporated into this PCE figure. It is not 

possible to determine accurately the likely costs of any Inquiry at this stage, or indeed if 

one can be avoided through negotiation with the potential objectors in advance of the 

CPO. Given the scale of this proposal it might be prudent to allow a figure of £500,000, 

or greater, to cover the Acquiring Authority and their Development Partners costs at Public 

Inquiry. 

Stamp Duty Land Tax  

APPENDIX 4

214



The Acquiring Authority is likely to be exempt from SDLT when the acquisition made 

follows confirmation of the CPO. However the liability may arise when an interest is 

acquired in advance by the acquiring authority or acquired by or transferred to a third 

party.  At this stage it is suggested you take advice on this issue. 

Special Categories of Land 

This category includes Crown Land, land used for operational purposes by Statutory 

Undertakers, common land and open space. 

Acquiring Authorities do not have the power to compulsorily acquire land owned or 

occupied by the Crown. Crown interests include Governmental Departments such as DWP 

and DEFRA. These property interests must be acquired by agreement. 

Statutory Undertakers include the bodies running railways, road transport and water 

transport or those responsible for supplying electricity, gas, telecommunications or water. 

Their interests can only form part of the compulsory purchase order if the Minster 

responsible for its affairs certifies that the land can be taken without serious detriment to 

the carrying on of the undertaking, or if purchased, it can be replaced by other land 

without serious detriment to the undertaking.  

Common or open lands are subject to special procedures. We can advise further if any 

land under this category is discovered to be within the development site. At this stage it 

would not be envisaged. 

 

CONCLUSION  

This is an initial property cost estimate carried out using the information available as set 

out earlier in this report. 

The property cost estimate will need to be revised at regular intervals as the scheme 

progresses and more information becomes available. 

The figures estimated for property costs, as detailed in this report are as follows 

Property Value £              8,165,900  
  Disturbance £              2,165,806  
  Statutory Payments £                  578,950  
  Professional Costs £                  623,000  
  Total £            11,533,656  say £  11,550,000  

 

APPENDIX 4

215



Address Use Tenure Title Freeholder
Landlord or Owner occ (L) 

or tenant (T)
VOA Area

Rateable 

Value or 

Council Tax 

Band

Value of Interest Disturbance
Statutory Loss 

Payment 
Professional Costs Total Information

Land at Bright Street Public Highway Freehold CB254017  £                    1,000  £                  1,000  £                    1,000  £                            1,000  £               4,000 Public highway, nominal payment

1-4 Lincoln Court, 

Lincoln Road

Office Freehold CB53719  £            1,300,000  £                75,000  £                  75,000  £                          25,000  £        1,475,000 

1-2 Lincoln Court, 

Lincoln Road

Office Leasehold unregistered Bauer Media (T) 568  £        55,000  £                  55,000  £              160,000  £                    5,500  £                          20,000  £           240,500 

3 Lincoln Court, 

Lincoln Road

Office Leasehold unregistered unknown 250  £        25,500  £                  25,500  £                80,000  £                    2,500  £                          15,000  £           123,000 

4 Lincoln Court, 

Lincoln Road

Office Leasehold unregistered unknown 291  £        30,000  £                  30,000  £                80,000  £                    3,000  £                          15,000  £           128,000 

36 & 36a Lincoln Road 3 storey Office Freehold CB56686  £                220,000  £                12,500  £                  16,500  £                          15,000  £           264,000 

36 Lincoln Road Land forming 

courtyard

Freehold CB54406  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 36 & 36a Lincoln Road

36 Lincoln Road Office Leasehold unregistered unknown 61  £          8,100  £                    8,100  £                18,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             37,100 

36a Lincoln Road Office Leasehold unregistered Red Rock Partnership (T) 125  £        10,750  £                  10,750  £                37,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             58,750 

34 & 34a Lincoln Road Café with office 

upper parts

Freehold CB28628  £                130,000  £                  7,500  £                    9,750  £                          10,000  £           157,250 

34 Lincoln Road Offices Leasehold 63  £          7,800  £                    7,800  £                29,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             47,800 

34a Lincoln Road Café Leasehold Vilamoura 55  £          5,100  £                    5,100  £                35,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             51,100 

32 Lincoln Road - Flats 

1 - 4 & 32C & 32D

Freehold CB131851  £                430,000  £                20,468  £                  32,250  £                          15,000  £           497,718 include 4 studio flats @ £50k each

32 Lincoln Road Shop Leasehold Marisan Café 79  £          7,900  £                    7,900  £                60,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             78,900 

32c Lincoln Road Studio Leasehold CB362246 English Rose tattoo 88  £          8,600  £                    8,600  £                30,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             49,600 

32d Lincoln Road Store Leasehold unknown 89  £          4,300  £                    4,300  £                20,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             35,300 

Flat 1 32 Lincoln Road Flat  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 32 Lincoln Rd

Flat 2 32 Lincoln Road Flat  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 32 Lincoln Rd

Flat 2 32 Lincoln Road Flat  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 32 Lincoln Rd

30 Lincoln Road inc 

units A & B, Flats 1 & 2

Freehold CB371132  £                165,000  £                  4,500  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           192,000 Investment value of retail plus 2x £50k for small studio flats

30a Lincoln Road Shop Leasehold Unregistered Laptop Shop 21  £          3,350  £                    3,350  £                30,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             44,350 

30b Lincoln Road Shop Leasehold Unregistered Quick Snack 18  £          2,900  £                    2,900  £                40,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             53,900 

Flat 1 30 Lincoln Road Residential Leasehold Unregistered  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 30 Lincoln Rd

Flat 2 30 Lincoln Road Residential Leasehold Unregistered  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 30 Lincoln Rd

30c & 30d Lincoln 

Road

Office Freehold CB294341  £                140,000  £                  3,864  £                  10,500  £                          15,000  £           169,364 30d believed merged into 30c

30c Lincoln Road Office Leasehold CB362246 One Call recruitment 90  £        11,250  £                  11,250  £                55,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             77,250 

30d Lincoln Road  -  -  -  -  £                      -   Assumed to have been incorporated into 30c

24 Lincoln Road Freehold CB61825  £                430,000  £                24,768  £                  32,250  £                          15,000  £           502,018 

24 Lincoln Road Shop Leasehold Unregistered Spice Cottage (T) 52  £          7,600  £                    7,600  £                45,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             63,600 

24a Lincoln Road Club Leasehold Unregistered Café 24 85  £        11,000  £                  11,000  £                40,000  £                    1,100  £                          10,000  £             62,100 

24b Lincoln Road Club Leasehold Unregistered Pool hall 149  £        14,250  £                  14,250  £                60,000  £                    1,500  £                          10,000  £             85,750 

22 & 22a Lincoln rd Freehold CB323892  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    - owned by hawkmoor, not included in assessment

Cromwell business 

centre (demolished)

Freehold CB64532  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    - owned by hawkmoor, not included in assessment

16 Lincoln Road Office Freehold CB54893  £                320,000  £                15,000  £                    1,000  £                          15,000  £           351,000 

16 Lincoln Road Office Leasehold Unregistered Nacro 330  £        25,750  £                  25,750  £              128,000  £                    2,500  £                          10,000  £           166,250 

Carpark Freehold CB53823  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   owned by hawkmoor, not included in assessment

Willey 50 westgate Freehold CB58488  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   owned by hawkmoor, not included in assessment

Wortley Alms House Public House Freehold CB47160  £                           -    £                20,000  -  £                          10,000  £             30,000 Pub is not to be acquired. Spot figure adopted for 

disturbance claim 

60 Westgate Freehold CB119756  £                560,000  £                32,256  £                  42,000  £                          15,000  £           649,256 Residential value based on £100k spot price based on 

comparable properties

APPENDIX 4

216



60 Westgate Café / Restaurant Leasehold Unregistered Megabite café 125  £        16,000  £                  16,000  £                65,000  £                    1,500  £                          10,000  £             92,500 

60a Westgate Residential Leasehold Unregistered  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 60 Westgate

60b Westgate Residential Leasehold Unregistered  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 60 Westgate

60c Westgate Residential Leasehold Unregistered  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 60 Westgate

60d Westgate Residential Leasehold Unregistered  A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 60 Westgate

62 - 64 Westgate Shop Freehold CB27498  £                395,000  £                19,000  £                  30,000  £                          15,000  £           459,000 

62 - 64 Westgate Shop Leasehold Unregistered Taxi Firm 122  £        19,250  £                  19,250  £                40,000  £                    2,000  £                          10,000  £             71,250 

62a Westgate Residential Freehold CB27498 A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 62-64 Westgate

62b Westgate Residential Freehold CB27498 A  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed as part of 62-64 Westgate

Westgate Church Church Freehold CB281455  £                           -    £                10,000  £                           -    £                          10,000  £             20,000 Church not to be acquired, allowance made for legal fees and 

disturbance

68 Westgate Shop Freehold CB281455  £                145,000  £                  4,000  £                  11,000  £                          10,000  £           170,000 Investment value of retail plus £50k spot value for upper 

parts

68 Westgate Shop Leasehold unregistered Peterborough Christian 

Bookshop Ltd

88  £          9,500  £                    9,500  £                30,000  £                    1,000  £                          10,000  £             50,500 

68a Westgate Church Hall Freehold CB281455  £                  10,000  £              150,000  £                    2,500  £                          25,000  £           187,500 Church hall equivalent reinstatement

68b Westgate Church Hall Freehold CB281455  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Assessed with 68a above

Frobisher House, 72 

Westgate

Office Freehold CB101833  £            1,675,000  £                95,000  £                  75,000  £                          20,000  £        1,865,000 RV appealed and artificially low; adopted £9 psf @ 8.5% yield 

x15,832 sq ft

Frobisher House, 72 

Westgate

Office Leasehold unregistered unknown 1295 80000  £                  80,000  £              418,750  £                    8,000  £                          15,000  £           521,750 May be presently vacant

Land to rear of 9 

Cromwell Road

Car parking Freehold CB23264  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   Car parking included in valuation of Frobisher house

9 Cromwell Road Residential Freehold CB135873  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

11 Cromwell Road Residential Unregistered -  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

13 Cromwell Road Residential Freehold CB34123  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

15 Cromwell Road Residential Freehold CB374351  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

17 Cromwell Road Residential Freehold CB23841  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

19 Cromwell Road Residential Freehold CB30492  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 converted terrace and acccess to Cromwell Business Centre 

to rear. Owned by Hawksworth; omitted from PCE

21 Cromwell Road Office CB26637  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   converted terrace and acccess to Cromwell Business Centre 

to rear. Owned by Hawksmoor; omitted from PCE

23 Cromwell Road Office CB116629  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   converted terrace and acccess to Cromwell Business Centre 

to rear. Owned by Hawksworth; omitted from PCE

Cromwell Business 

Centre, 25 Cromwell 

Road

Office CB64532  £                           -    £                         -    £                           -    £                                  -    £                      -   converted terrace and acccess to Cromwell Business Centre 

to rear. Owned by Hawksworth; omitted from PCE

27 Cromwell Road Office CB34113  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 converted terrace and acccess to Cromwell Business Centre 

to rear. Owned by Hawksmoor??

29 Cromwell Road Residential CB29781  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

31 Cromwell Road Residential CB81416  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

33 Cromwell Road Residential CB303824  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

35 Cromwell Road Residential CB87021  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

37 Cromwell Road Residential CB30842  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

39 Cromwell Road Residential CB29367  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

41 Cromwell Road Residential CB38018  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

43 Cromwell Road Residential CB64295  £                125,000  £                10,000  £                  12,500  £                          10,000  £           157,500 Spot price based on Land registry data

Land on east side of 

Deacon St

Highway & verges CB133348  £                    1,000  £                      100  £                       100  £                            1,000  £               2,200 highway verges, nominal payment

Land on the south side 

of Bright Street

Highway & verges CB248505  £                    5,000  £                      100  £                       500  £                            1,000  £               6,600 highway verges, nominal payment

80 Westgate Public House Freehold CB194421 The Brewery Tap  £                           -    £                20,000  -  £                          10,000  £             30,000 Pub is not to be acquired, spot figure adopted for disturbance 

and legal fees

8,165,900£             2,165,806£           578,950£                623,000£                        11,533,656£      

Property Value 8,165,900£              

Disturbance 2,165,806£              

Statutory Payments 578,950£                 

Professional Costs 623,000£                 

Total 11,533,656£           say 11,550,000£   

APPENDIX 4

217



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IX 
GARDINER & 
THEOBALD NORTH 
WESTGATE AREA 
SCHEDULE 
 

  
 

APPENDIX 4

218



Basement GF Mezz 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th TOTAL

Block A

Car Park 1,969.0 1,969.0 1,969.0 - - - - - - - 5,907

Cinema 170.0 170.0 - 2,381.0 1,814.0 - - - - - 5,215

A3 458.0 458.0 408.0 - - - - - - - 1,324

Block B

A3 - 1,002.0 846.0 - - - - - - - 1,848

Resi Core - 60.0 60.0 - - - - - - - 140

Resi 1,084.0 934.0 934.0 - - - - 3,400

Block C

Supermarket 532.0 507.0 - - - - - - - - 1,251

Hotel 287.0 excl. excl. excl. excl. excl. excl. - - - 287

A3 342.0 282.0 261.0 - - - - - - - 885

Retail 335.0 582.0 477.0 - - - - - - - 1,394

Resi core - 73.0 73.0 - - - - - - - 166

Resi 710.0 710.0 710.0 710.0 - - - 3,348

Block D

Retail - 1,903.0 1,560.0 - - - - - - - 3,463

Food Hall - 988.0 362.0 - - - - - - - 1,502

Resi Core - 130.0 130.0 inc. inc. inc. - - - - 294

Resi 1,499.0 1,499.0 1,499.0 1,019.0 - - - 6,450

Commercial 731.0 627.0 523.0 Roof - - - 2,274

Block E

Retail - 116.0 116.0 - - - - - - - 232

Resi Core - 43.0 43.0 inc. inc. inc. inc. inc. - - 102

Resi 255.0 255.0 255.0 255.0 255.0 150.0 - 1,780

Other 1,153.0 1,153

TOTAL 5,246.0 8,283.0 6,305.0 6,660.0 5,839.0 3,921.0 1,984.0 255.0 150.0 0.0 42,415

2. These areas do not include atriums

G&T Area Schedule - Basis of Estimate: DRAFT 21.12.15

NORTH WESTGATE - PETERBOROUGH

1. These areas are based upon PDF drawings contained in the Design & Access Statement (Figures 3.3.6 to 3.3.13) which do not have any scales and as such, are 

subject to verification

APPENDIX 4

219



T
his page is intentionally left blank

220



APPENDIX 5

221



APPENDIX 5

222



APPENDIX 5

223



APPENDIX 5

224



APPENDIX 5

225



APPENDIX 5

226



APPENDIX 5

227



APPENDIX 5

228



APPENDIX 5

229



This page is intentionally left blank

230



APPENDIX 6

231



APPENDIX 6

232



APPENDIX 6

233



APPENDIX 6

234



APPENDIX 6

235



APPENDIX 6

236



APPENDIX 6

237



APPENDIX 6

238



APPENDIX 6

239



APPENDIX 6

240



APPENDIX 6

241



APPENDIX 6

242



APPENDIX 6

243



APPENDIX 6

244



APPENDIX 6

245



APPENDIX 6

246



APPENDIX 6

247



APPENDIX 6

248



APPENDIX 6

249



APPENDIX 6

250



APPENDIX 6

251



APPENDIX 6

252



APPENDIX 6

253



APPENDIX 6

254



APPENDIX 6

255



APPENDIX 6

256



APPENDIX 6

257



APPENDIX 6

258



APPENDIX 6

259



This page is intentionally left blank

260


	Agenda
	4.1 16/00252/FUL - Queensgate Shopping Centre, Westgate, Peterborough
	4.1 1600252FUL - Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 1a - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 1b - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 1c - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 1d - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 2a - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 2b - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 3 - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 4 - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	1.0 Executive Summary
	2.0 Introduction
	QUEENSGATE DEVELOPMENT
	3.0 Anchor & MSUs
	3.2 Cinema
	3.3 Restaurants
	3.4 Commercialisation – outside JLP
	3.5 Advertising Screen
	3.6 Total Development Costs
	3.7 Asset Enhancement and Development Viability
	3.8 Development Viability

	north westgate development
	4.0 Background
	4.2 Residential
	4.3 Offices
	4.4 Retail and Leisure
	4.5 Cinema
	4.6 Car Park
	4.7 Super Market and Foodhall
	4.8 Hotel
	4.9 Commercialisation
	4.10 Advertising Screen
	4.11 Other
	4.12 Property Cost Estimate
	4.13 Total Development Costs
	4.14 Development Viability
	5.0 CONCLUSIONS

	Appendices.pdf
	1.0 Executive Summary
	2.0 Introduction
	QUEENSGATE DEVELOPMENT
	3.0 Anchor & MSUs
	3.2 Cinema
	3.3 Restaurants
	3.4 Commercialisation – outside JLP
	3.5 Advertising Screen
	3.6 Total Development Costs
	3.7 Asset Enhancement and Development Viability
	3.8 Development Viability

	north westgate development
	4.0 Background
	4.2 Residential
	4.3 Offices
	4.4 Retail and Leisure
	4.5 Cinema
	4.6 Car Park
	4.7 Super Market and Foodhall
	4.8 Hotel
	4.9 Commercialisation
	4.10 Advertising Screen
	4.11 Other
	4.12 Property Cost Estimate
	4.13 Total Development Costs
	4.14 Development Viability
	5.0 CONCLUSIONS



	4.1 Appendix 5 - 1600252FUL Queensgate
	4.1 Appendix 6 - 1600252FUL Queensgate




